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A

(incorporated as a société anonyme under the laisieémboury
€750,000,000 Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resdia Securities
guaranteed on a subordinated basis by

SES Global Americas Holdings GP
(established as a general partnership under the lafibe State of Delawaye

Issue Price: 99.666 per cent.

The €750,000,000 Deeply Subordinated Fixed RatetRdde Securities (th@ecuritieg will be issued by SES S.ASESor thelssuer) on
10 June 2016 (thessue Dat@ and, subject to Terms and Conditions of the Securities — Subsiitutf Guarantor and termination of
Guarante&, unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed osubordinated basis by SES Global Americas Hold®BstheGuarantor and
theGuaranteerespectively).

The Securities are being offered in connection Withacquisition of O3b Networks Limite®8h) by SES. The structure of the acquisition
is more particularly described undéfHe Acquisitioh The offering of the Securities is not conditibman closing of the acquisition and
there can be no assurance that the acquisitiorcaiifiplete on the terms described herein or asedl, Risk Factors- Risks relating to O3b
and the Acquisitioh Furthermore, if the Issuer has confirmed in imgtto the Fiscal Agent (as defined in tAeefms and Conditions of the
Securitied (the Conditiong) on or before 2 January 2017 that it, or anyt®&ubsidiaries through which such acquisitiomterided to be
effected, no longer intends and is no longer Iggatimmitted to pursue the acquisition O3b then alynsubject to the provisions of the
Conditions, redeem all, but not some only, of teeuBities at any time at 101 per cent. of theingipal amount, together with any accrued
and unpaid interest up to (but excluding) the reptéon date and any outstanding Arrears of Intef@stdefined in the Conditions), all as
more particularly described imerms and Conditions of the Securities—Redempti@deiRption for Acquisition Event

The Securities will bear interest on their printigenount from (and including) the Issue Date tot @xcluding) 2 January 2022 (tkérst
Reset Datpat a rate of 4.625 per cent. per annum, payamhealy in arrear on 2 January in each year, extegtthe first payment of
interest, to be made on 2 January 2017, will bespect of the period from (and including) the &sBate to (but excluding) 2 January 2017
and will amount to €26.031 per €1,000 in principalount of the Securities. Thereafter, unless ptsljoredeemed, the Securities will bear
interest from (and including) the First Reset Diatébut excluding) 2 January 2027 at a rate peuanwhich shall be 4.664 per cent. above
the 5 year Swap Rate (as defined in the Conditibmsjhe Reset Period (as defined in the Conditiopayable annually in arrear on 2
January in each year. From (and including) 2 JanR@R7 to (but excluding) 2 January 2042 the Sé&esriwill bear interest at a rate per
annum which shall be 4.914 per cent. above theab $@ap Rate for the Reset Period payable annimediyrear on 2 January in each year.
From (and including) 2 January 2042, the Securititisbear interest at a rate per annum which shealb.664 per cent. above the 5 year
Swap Rate for the relevant Reset Period payableadlynin arrear on 2 January in each year, all asenparticularly described inrérms
and Conditions of the Securities—Interest Paynients

If the Issuer does not elect to redeem the Seesriti accordance with Condition 9(g) thereof follagvthe occurrence of a Change of
Control Event (as defined in the Conditions), thentiprevailing interest rate per annum (and eaclsespkent interest rate per annum
otherwise determined in accordance with the Comuij shall be increased by 5 per cent. per annumeffect from (and including) the
date on which the Change of Control Event occursssy Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Interestniayts—Step-up after
Change of Control Eveht

The Issuer may, at its discretion, elect to defeoapart of any payment of interest on the Setesias more particularly described in
“Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Optionaéregt Deferrdl. Any amount so deferred, together with furthetenest accrued
thereon (at the interest rate per annum prevafliog time to time), shall constitute Arrears ofdrgst (as defined in the Conditions). The
Issuer may pay outstanding Arrears of Interesiyhiole but not in part, at any time in accordancehhe Conditions. Notwithstanding this,
the Issuer shall pay any outstanding Arrears ofrbdt, in whole but not in part, on the first ocmgrMandatory Settlement Date (as
defined in the Conditions) following the Interestyfhent Date on which a Deferred Interest Paymentiéined in the Conditions) arose,
all as more particularly described ifiérms and Conditions of the Securities— Optiontdrest Deferral—Mandatory Settlemént

The Securities will be perpetual securities in eespf which there is no fixed redemption date,dhatll be redeemable (at the option of the
Issuer) in whole but not in part on any Call Daas (lefined in the Conditions), at the principal amaf Securities, together with any
accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excludinghslate and any outstanding Arrears of Interesaddition, upon the occurrence of an
Accounting Event, a Capital Event, a Change of @oifvent, a Substantial Repurchase Event, a TaluBt®n Event, a Withholding Tax
Event or an Acquisition Event (each such term dseé in the Conditions), the Securities shall bdesmable (at the option of the Issuer)
in whole but not in part at the prices set out, aganore particularly described, ifigrms and Conditions of the Securities—Redeniption

The Issuer may, upon the occurrence of an Accogriivent, a Capital Event, a Tax Deduction Evera &¥ithholding Tax Event, at any
time, without the consent of the holders of theutiéies, either (i) substitute all, but not soméyprof the Securities for, or (ii) vary the
terms of the Securities with the effect that thesain or become, as the case may be, Qualifyingriies, in each case in accordance with
Condition 10 thereof and subject to the receipth®yFiscal Agent of the certificate of the directofshe Issuer and any relevant opinions
referred to in Condition 11 thereof.

Subject to certain preconditions which are setimtiferms and Conditions of the Securities — Subsiitutif Issuef, the Issuer may at any
time substitute for itself as the principal debtwrder the Securities, the Guarantor or any othenipee of the Group or a successor in
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business of the Issuer. Further, the Deed of Goeeafas defined in the Conditions) contains prowisiwhich (i) allow the Guarantor at
any time to substitute itself for another entitytlire Group or a successor in business of the Gtayaand (ii) for so long as SES Global
Americas Holdings GP remains Guarantor, permitraiteation of the Guarantee where (l) an order islenBy any competent court or
effective resolution passed for the winding up issdlution of SES Global Americas Holdings GP atifiuch winding up or dissolution

is for the purposes of or pursuant to an amalgamateorganisation or restructuring while solvamd pursuant to which SES S.A. assumes
all of the assets, liabilities and obligations @SS Global Americas Holdings GP, with any such teramion pursuant to (ii) above
becoming effective upon the relevant winding up dissolution taking effect. The Guarantor may onlgce to effect any such
substitution or termination if certain preconditioset out in Terms and Conditions of the Securities — Subsiitutf Guarantor and
termination of Guarantéere satisfied.

The Securities will be unsecured securities ofliseler and will constitute subordinated obligatiofishe Issuer, all as more particularly
described in Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Statumsl “Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Subordinatibhe payment
obligations under the Guarantee will constitutecsdimated obligations of the Guarantor, all as nuadicularly described inTerms and
Conditions of the Securities—Status of the Guaeireted “Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Subordinadicthe Guarantée

Payments in respect of the Securities and undeGtlagantee shall be made free and clear of, arfutitwithholding or deduction for, or
on account of, taxes of Luxembourg or the Uniteate3t, unless such withholding or deduction is meglby law. In the event that any such
withholding or deduction is made, additional amsumiay be payable by the Issuer or the Guarantbjesuto certain exceptions as are
more fully described inTerms and Conditions of the Securities—Taxdtion

Application has been made to tBemmission de Surveillance du Secteur FinanglerCSSH in its capacity as competent authority under
the Luxembourg Act dated 10 July 2005 relatingrimspectuses for securities, for the approval &f Eriospectus for the purposes of Article
5.3 of Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended (#nespectus Directive Application has also been made to the Luxemb@&itogk Exchange
for the Securities to be admitted to the officialt lof the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (@€ficial List) and to be admitted to trading
on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s regulated mgtketMarket). References in this Prospectus to the Secutitisg “listed” (and
all related references) shall mean that the Séesiritave been admitted to the Official List and &tha to trading on the Market. The
Market is a regulated market for the purposes oB@ive 2004/39/EC of the European Parliament aihthe Council on markets in
financial instruments. By approving this Prospectihe CSSF gives no undertaking as to the econamitfinancial soundness of the
transaction or the solvency of the Issuer in liriththe provisions of article 7 (7) of the LuxembguL.aw on prospectuses for securities.

The Securities will initially be issued in registdrform and represented upon issue by a registgobdl certificate which will be registered
in the name of a nominee for a common depositarpeimlf of Euroclear Bank SA/N\E(roclear) and Clearstream Bankingpciété
anonyme(Clearstream, Luxembourgon or about the Issue Date. Securities in défimiform will be issued only in limited circumstas
(as described inThe Global Certificatd.

The Securities are expected to be rated BB+ bydatain& Poor’s Credit Market Services France S&tudard & Poor'g and Bal by
Moody'’s Investors Service LtdMoody's) (each, eRating Agency. Each of Standard & Poor’'s and Moody's is esttt#d in the European
Union (theEU) and is registered under Regulation (EC) No. 12809 (as amended) of the European Parliament atftea®ouncil of 16
September 2009 on credit rating agencies. A raimgpt a recommendation to buy, sell or hold sé¢i@srand may be subject to suspension,
reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigniating agency.

Investing in the Securities involves a high degreef risk. Prospective investors should have regard to tbeorfs described under the
section headedRisk Factor8in this Prospectus.

Sole Global Co-ordinator and Structuring Agenthe tssuer and the Guarantor and Joint Bookrunner
J.P. Morgan

Lead Joint Bookrunners
BNP PARIBAS Société Générale Corporate & InvestmenBanking

Other Joint Bookrunners

HSBC ING Morgan Stanley

The date of this Prospectus is 8 June 2016
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This Prospectus comprises a prospectus for theopespof Directive 2003/71/EC as amended Rtaspectus
Directive) and for the purpose of giving information witlgaed to the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Issuertand i
subsidiaries taken as a whole (fBeoup) and the Securities which, according to the paldicnature of the
Issuer, the Guarantor and the Securities, is naess enable investors to make an informed assadsof the
assets and liabilities, financial position, profiddosses and prospects of the Issuer and the Guoardine
Issuer and the Guarantor accept responsibilityttferinformation contained in this Prospectus. T® bist of
the knowledge and belief of the Issuer and the &uar (each of which has taken all reasonable tcaeasure
that such is the case), the information containetthis Prospectus is in accordance with the faatkdoes not
omit anything likely to affect the import of suatférmation.

This Prospectus is to be read in conjunction withh& documents which are incorporated hereindfgrence
(see Documents Incorporated by Referet)ce

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer ofroivitation by or on behalf of the Issuer, thea@ntor or
the Bookrunners (as defined iBubscription and Sdlédelow) to subscribe or purchase, any of the Séesr
The distribution of this Prospectus and the offgrifithe Securities in certain jurisdictions mayréstricted by
law. Persons into whose possession this Prospeotuss are required by the Issuer, the Guarantorttead
Bookrunners to inform themselves about and to @esany such restrictions.

For a description of further restrictions on offarsd sales of the Securities and distribution o Brospectus,
see ‘Subscription and Saldelow.

No person is authorised to give any informationcomake any representation not contained in thisgactus
and any information or representation not so caethimust not be relied upon as having been auétbhg or
on behalf of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Baokers. Neither the delivery of this Prospectusaror sale
made in connection herewith shall, under any cistances, create any implication that there has been
change in the affairs of either the Issuer or tliar@ntor since the date hereof or that there hers e adverse
change in the financial position of either the Issrehe Guarantor since the date hereof or thairtformation
contained in it or any other information supplieddonnection with the Securities is correct asrof aime
subsequent to the date on which it is suppliedf alifferent, the date indicated in the documenttaining the
same.

To the greatest extent permitted by law, the Bookeus accept no responsibility whatsoever for trgants of
this Prospectus or for any other statement madmuggorted to be made by a Bookrunner or on its Ibéia
connection with the Issuer, the Guarantor or tteudsand offering of the Securities. Each Bookrunner
accordingly disclaims all and any liability whethamising in tort or contract or otherwise (saveeferred to
above) which it might otherwise have in respedh&f Prospectus or any such statement.

The Securities have not been and will not be reggst under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as aexbifthe
Securities Act and are subject to U.S. tax law requirementsje8tiho certain exceptions, the Securities may
not be offered, sold or delivered within the Unit&tdtes or to U.S. persons.

The Securities may not be a suitable investmenalfanvestors. Each potential investor in the $i#i@s must
determine the suitability of that investment inhligof its own circumstances. In particular, eactieptal
investor should:

€) have sufficient knowledge and experience to naakeaningful evaluation of the Securities, theitser
and risks of investing in the Securities and tHerimation contained or incorporated by reference in
this Prospectus or any applicable supplement;

(b) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriatdytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in 8exurities and the impact the Securities will hawe
its overall investment portfolio;



(c) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity bear all of the risks of an investment in the
Securities;

(d) understand thoroughly the terms of the Seasitind be familiar with the behaviour of the retva
financial markets and of any financial variable whiolght have an impact on the return on the
Securities; and

(e) be able to evaluate (either alone or with thle bof a financial adviser) possible scenarios émnemic,
interest rate and other factors that may affedhitestment and its ability to bear the applicaisks.

The Securities are complex financial instrumentsamath instruments may be purchased by potentiaktovs
as a way to reduce risk or enhance yield with aserstood, measured, appropriate addition of riskhéir
overall portfolios. A potential investor should riotest in the Securities unless it has the exge(gither alone
or with a financial adviser) to evaluate how theusities will perform under changing conditions, tiesulting
effects on the value of the Securities and the ahftas investment will have on the potential inee's overall
investment portfolio.

Prospective investors should also consult their tevadvisers as to the tax consequences of thehase,
ownership and disposition of the Securities.

The credit ratings assigned to the Securities noayeflect the potential impact of all risks relatedstructure,
market, additional factors discussed above, aner dtttors that may affect the value of the SeiasitA credit
rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or Hedgturities and may be revised or withdrawn byrtiimg

agency at any time. A credit rating is not a statehas to the likelihood of deferral of interesttba Securities.
Holders have a greater risk of deferral of inte@sments than persons holding other securitiels siihilar

credit ratings but no, or more limited, interestedeal provisions. In addition, each of the Ratifsgencies, or
any other rating agency may change its methodddgierating securities with features similar te Becurities
in the future. This may include the relationshipwaen ratings assigned to an issuer’s senior sesiand
ratings assigned to securities with features smtdathe Securities, sometimes called notchinghéf Rating
Agencies were to change their practices for rasunch securities in the future and the ratings efSkecurities
were to be subsequently lowered, this may havegative impact on the trading price of the Secwsitie

The investment activities of certain investors subject to legal investment laws and regulationsgaiew or
regulation by certain authorities. Each potentiakestor should consult its legal advisers to deieenwvhether
and to what extent (1) the Securities are legatstments for it, (2) the Securities can be usetblateral for
various types of borrowing and (3) other restricti@pply to its purchase or pledge of any of theuBtes.
Financial institutions should consult their legalvisers or the appropriate regulators to deternthme
appropriate treatment of Securities under any agblé risk-based capital or similar rules.

The following cautionary statements identify immt factors that could cause the Group’s actualltseso
differ materially from those projected in the fomgddooking statements made in this Prospectus. Any
statements about the Group’s expectations, bep&dss, strategies, objectives, assumptions orduguents or
performance are not historical facts and may bedod-looking. These statements are often, but vedyess,
made through the use of words or phrases such #islikely result,” “are expected to,” “will contine,”
“believe,” “anticipated,” “estimated,” “intends,"ekpects,” “plans,” “seek,” “projection” and “outlkb These
statements involve estimates, assumptions and tantées, which could cause actual results to difiaterially
from those expressed in them. Any forward-lookitejesnents are qualified in their entirety by refemto the
factors discussed throughout this Prospectus. lapbfactors that could cause these differencdsidiec but
are not limited to: general economic and businesslitions; industry trends; competition; launchaysl or
failures; satellite anomalies, damage, failuresdestruction; risks relating to insurance; exposiarekey
customers; inability to renew existing contractscassfully; changes in technology; changes in guaent and
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other regulation; changes in political and econostability; currency fluctuations and other risks;luding
those described irRisk Factors beginning on page 2 of this Prospectus.

Because the risk factors referred to in this Prasecould cause actual results or outcomes terdiffaterially
from those expressed in any forward-looking statemmade in this Prospectus by the Group or oGtioeip’s
behalf, investors should not place undue reliamcarty of these forward-looking statements.

Furthermore, any forward-looking statement speakg as of the date on which it is made, and theu@ro
undertakes no obligation to update any forward-logkstatement to reflect events or circumstancts dfie
date on which the statement is made or to refleetoccurrence of unanticipated events. New ristofaawill
emerge in the future, and it is not possible fa &roup to predict such factors. In addition, theup cannot
assess the impact of each factor on the Group'iméss or the extent to which any factor, or comtiamaof
factors, may cause actual results to differ materfiaom those described in any forward-lookingtetaents.

In connection with the issue of the Securities, J.Morgan Securities plc (theStabilising Managej (or any
person acting on behalf of the Stabilising Managerjnay over-allot the Securities or effect transactios
with a view to supporting the market price of the ®curities at a level higher than that which might
otherwise prevail. However, there is no assurancéat the Stabilising Manager (or any person acting o
behalf of the Stabilising Manager) will undertake gabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may kegin
on or after the date on which adequate public disokure of the terms of the offer of the Securitiesimade
and, if begun, may be ended at any time, but it mti€nd no later than the earlier of 30 days after th issue
date of the Securities and 60 days after the datd the allotment of the Securities. Any stabilisatia action
or over-allotment must be conducted by the Stabiliag Manager (or any person acting on behalf of the
Stabilising Manager) in accordance with all applichle laws and rules.
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RISK FACTORS

Any investment in the Securities involves a higjrate of risk. Prospective investors shocdatefully consider,

in light of their own financial circumstances ant/éstment objectives, tii@lowing risks before making an
investment decision with respect to the Securiiemy of thefollowing risks actually occur, they could have a
material adverse effect on the Groupissiness, financial condition, results of operai@nd future prospects
and the market value tfie Securities may be adversely affected.

The risks discussed below are those that the Isasndrthe Guarantor believe are material, but theisks

and uncertainties may not be the only risks thatlssuer, the Guarantor and the Group face. Addél risks
that are not known to the Issuer, the Guarantortter Group at this time, or that are currently keled to
be immaterial, could also have a material adveefiect on the Issuer’'s and/or the Guarantor's andfe

Group'’s business, financial condition, result®pgrations, future prospects and the value of gmufties. The
order in which the following risks are presentechi intended to be an indication of the probapitif their
occurrence or the magnitude of their potential e@ffe

For the purposes of the Risk Factors, referenceg&8and to theGroup are to SES and its subsidiaries.
Risks Relating to the Group’s Business

The Group may experience a launch delay or failuve other satellite damage or destruction duringulach,
which could lead to a total or partial loss of trsatellite.

Including predecessor companies, since 1988 thepGhas launched more than 50 satellites, threghath
resulted in launch failures and some of which eepeed launch delays. SES is planning to launclsatiellites
between the date of this Prospectus and the eR@1af, each of which is subject to the risk ohletudelay or
failure. Launches may be delayed for a varietyra#sons including the late availability of the Heigefor
shipment to the launch site, the late availabiitythe launch service or last-minute technicabj@gms arising
on the satellite, the co-passenger satellite ofahiecher. Launch failures can occur due to a ranrnbfactors,
including technical failure of the launch vehieled/or human error.

A launch delay or failure could result in signifitadelays in the deployment of satellites becafighe need to
secure another launch opportunity and, in the oif&lure, to construct a replacement satelliteiol involves
significant replacement cost (which may or maylm®tovered by insurance) and may take two yedinger.
Moreover, while it may be possible in some casdsatiosfer the launch to another launch serviceigesythe
limited number of launch service providers and pnecess of scheduling a replacement launch mayiavo
further delay and limit SES’s options. Failuredetays could also potentially cause the losseaxfency rights
at certain orbital positions, reduced satelliteetiihe in the case of an incorrect orbit injectiseduced
functionality of the satellite, total loss of a imn and, to the extent that there are no othetlitas that can be
readily redeployed to carry the traffic that haérmeontracted for the satellite that was lostaykein the onset
of projected revenue streams or loss of revenue.

In addition, since satellite capacity agreemergaesl ahead of launch generally include provis@mlisving a
customer to terminate the agreement if the lauadh ér delays or failures are not remedied beforeagreed
date, any launch failure or delay could cause tfmito lose customers to competing satellite apes. Even
where launch failures or delays are remedied, $aittres or delays could damage the Group’s retat
Satellite launch and in-orbit insurance policiengrally do not compensate for lost revenue dukddoss of
customers to competitors because of interruptmmservices or for consequential losses resultiogn fany
launch delay or failure.

The occurrence of launch failures and launch detaydd therefore have a material adverse effecthen
Group's business, financial condition and resofitsperations.



The Group’s satellites may experience in-orbit destion, damage or other failures or degradatiors
performance that could impair the satellites’ comns&@l performance.

Due to the nature of the environment in which tbpgrate, satellites are subject to significantrajpenal risks
while in orbit. One or more of the Group’s satellitmay suffer an in-orbit failure ranging from artial
impairment of commercial capabilities to a totaldmf the asset. Satellite malfunctions, commeoelgrred to
as anomalies, can occur as a result of:

. the satellite manufacturer’s error, including adetected design, manufacturing or assembly defect
the use of a new technology that proves to be faulty;

. problems with the satellite’s power systems, idilg circuit failures or other array degradation
causing reductions ithe power output of the solar arrays on the satellites;

. problems with the satellite’s control systems; or
. general failures, including premature componeitria

Certain of the Group’s satellites have experieraredi may in the future experience anomalies auriagl, which
could lead to:

. a degradation in commercial performance;

. a reduction in transmission capacity;

. a reduction in the satellitedperational life;

. outages;

. a reduction in the quantity of operating transpasdor
. the total loss of a satellite,

any of which could result in lost revenue untileplacement satellite is launched as well as ineckagpenses
to replace the satellite. In addition, to the ekténat the Group has multiple satellites with samitlesigns,
problems experienced with one satellite may be respeed with other satellites. For further inforinatabout

the health of the Group’s satellites, please Szaeilite Fleet - Satellite Healttbelow.

In the event of a failure, the Group may not bie &b continue to provide service to its custonfess) the same
orbital position or at all, which could harm theoGp’'s reputation and adversely affect its abitibyretain

existing customers or attract new customers. Ttmihas an in-orbit backup strategy at certain dabjtal

positions where customers of an impaired satalite be transferred to another satellite in theu@sofleet. In
addition, the Group has in place a restoration eagemt with another satellite operator pursuant ickv
customers on an impaired satellite may possiblydresferred to another satellite in that operatibetst in order
to protect continuity of service. However, therenie guarantee that these mitigations will be eiffect
especially in the event of the failure of seveedtHites.

The occurrence of any of the risks above could lzan®terial adverse effect on the Group’s busjHesmcial
condition and results of operations.

The actual lives of the Group’s satellites may bwsger than their estimated design lives.

The expected design life of a satellite is typicdlh years. The value of a satellite is normallgrdeiated on a
straight-line basis over this period. In the evefithanges in the expected fuel life of the saegllin-orbit
anomalies or other technical factors, its actual thay be shorter than its design life. Depreamatisay be



accelerated as well as the lifetime revenue geegraduced, leading to a reduction in the returmeastment
for the asset.

The Group relies on a limited number of launch pridkers to launch its satellites.

There are a limited number of commercial launchvigigrs. Historically, SES has been reliant on tvey k
launch providers, Arianespace S.AArianespacg and International Launch Servicek §). The Group
currently also has a number of agreements with &Sgaploration TechnologieSpaceX for satellite launches.
Relying on a limited number of launch providers @sgs the Group to certain risks. For example, diépery
on a small number of launch providers may reducg’'SBegotiating power in relation to the fees iypéor
satellite launches. In addition, the Group may eemee significant delays in launching new satdliin
the event of a prolonged unavailability of a ldupcovider. The unavailability of a launch provideuld cause
a global shortage in launch service capacity, wiricturn could have a material adverse effecttanGroup’s
business, financial condition and results of opena.

The Group is primarily dependent on a small numbafrsatellite manufacturers and secondary suppliers

SES is primarily dependent on six major satellisnaofacturers for the construction of its satedliédmd a small
number of suppliers of key components of commuidnat satellites (referred to as secondary suppliers
Dependency on a small number of satellite manufacs and secondary suppliers may reduce the Goup
negotiating power and access to advanced techmslogihich may only be available from certain swgpli
This dependence may also result in a higher cdraten of risk. SES may experience significantagielin
procuring new satellites in the event of prolongedblems, operational difficulties or financiaffatiulties at
one of these satellite manufacturers. Furtherdiffieulties caused by any technical problems wfth design of

a particular model of satellite may be multipliédseveral satellites of that design are purcha&ts may
experience significant delays in acquiring and &uimg new satellites in the event of prolongedblgms at
one of its secondary suppliers.

The occurrence of the defects or delays describesteacould have a material adverse effect on troaiis
business, financial condition and results of openat

Satellites may be subject to damage or loss froengs that might not be covered by insurance p@gi

SES maintains launch and initial in-orbit insurgnas well as third party liability insurance fas isatellites.
SES also maintains in-orbit insurance for its $igesl that have book value. The insurance poligeserally
contain exclusions from losses resulting from:

. military or similar action;
. any antisatellite device;
. electromagnetic and radio interference (excepplfgisical damage to a satellite directly resulfirmgn

this interference);

. confiscation by any governmental body;

. insurrection and similar acts or governmental action to prevent such acts;

. nuclear reaction or radiation contamination;

. wilful or intentional acts by the insured causthg loss or failure of satellites; and
. terrorism.



Furthermore these insurance policies do not proemapensation for business interruption, loss afket
share, reputational damage, incidental and conatigbdamages and similar losses that might dr@a the
failure of a satellite launch, incorrect orbitabptment or the failure of a satellite to perforacaading to
specifications and the in-orbit insurance only aevesses in excess of the potentially high resiemtion level
or deductible selected by SES. SES self-insurew tipe retention level or deductible. In addititme Group’s
third party liability insurance (which covers lossarising from third party bodily injury and propedamage
caused by, among others, launch failures and isatedlllisions) is subject to a single limit of €bnillion of

coverage for any one occurrence.

The Group’s insurance policies do not cover loseesénue. Furthermore, SES will not be fully reimged if
the cost of a replacement satellite exceeds theissumed. As a result of such exclusions and corsgion and
risk level arrangements, SES could be exposedgtifisiant losses under any of the circumstancesifipd

above or if it has inaccurately estimated the agate risk retention level.

The Group's insurance policies may also excludmfooverage failures arising from pre-existing defesuch
as defects in solar array and battery anomaliesoome existing satellites. For example, defectshan dolar
arrays are currently excluded for the AMC-16 satelhnd subject to technical deductibles on certdirer
satellites.

In addition, SES addition will not be reimbursetiastthan for a major event because minor incideiéding to
defects fall within SES’s insurance policy dedueth Losses arising from any of the factors alkmdd result
in material increases in costs or reductions ipeeted revenue and profits, either of which coudeha
material adverse effect on the Group’s busin@sané€ial condition and results of operations.

A portion of the Group’s in-orbit insurance policieare maintained through self-insurance.

SES has adopted a policy of limited self-insurdiocen-orbit insurance. Insurance is provided g twholly-
owned subsidiaries that re-insure part of the wigk external insurance companies, which reducesathount

of insurance premiums paid to such insurance coiapabut leaves the Group with exposure in thetegé
loss. Although SES self-insures only a chosen exggge deductible as well as amounts above a certain
aggregate limit of insurance, and external insuggaicies cover losses in excess of the aggratgtactible

up to the limit of insurance, the Group retainsiigant risk both below and above those thresholds

If any event occurs that is covered by the in-osbif-insurance deductible, it would not be compges by an
outside insurer and thus there could be a matieriabase in the Group’s costs, which would decrgasfits
and could have a material adverse effect on tloe@s business, financial condition and resultspsrations.

The Group may not be able to obtain adequate insw@ or the desired level of coverage, and insuranc
premiums may increase.

Satellite insurance is a cyclical market and theeprterms and availability of satellite insuraraes fluctuated

in recent years. The amount of capacity curremtilable in the market is adequate to cover SES's
satellite programmes. However, events outside @neup’'s control — including large losses and shifts
of insurance capacity from space to other linebusiness — could change this situation. Thisccoasult in
increases in the amount of insurance premiumspaBES to cover its risks and affect its abiliyobtain the
desired level of coverage, which would increaseGhaup’s costs and have an adverse effect orugmess,
financial condition and results of operations.

The Group may not be successful in renewing itsstixig satellite capacity agreements, or in renewithem
on terms that are similar to their current terms.

The Group’s satellite capacity contracts vary ingkh depending on the type of customer. Contradtis w
broadcasters are generally long-term, with typittahktions of ten years (and up to 15 years in icec@ses) for



customers in North America and Europe, and betviiwenand ten years for customers in developing itk
Contracts with commercial enterprises are typicdlyee to five years in length, and contracts with
governmental customers are typically one yearHE $s unsuccessful in obtaining the renewal ofittllite
capacity agreements when they come up for renewats unable to obtain commercial terms similar to
those currently reflected in its agreements, sashdue to budget cuts affecting governmental oeroth
customers, revenue could be adversely affectesdime time.

The inability to renew satellite capacity agreerseamt terms as favourable as existing agreementd bawve a
material adverse effect on the Group’s businesantiial condition and results of operations.

The Group has several large customers, the losarf of which could materially reduce the Group’svenue
and materially adversely affect the Group’s busises

The Group generates its revenue primarily fromiseragreements to provide satellite transpondeacity to
its customers. Certain customers have major oifgignt contracts with the Group. The Group’s fiaegest
commercial customers represented 27.9 per celeoBtoup’s revenue in 2015, and revenue genergtéueb
U.S. government (and customers serving the U.Sergovent) represented approximately 10 per cenhef t
Group’s revenue in 2015. However, the Group’s austobase is subject to constant change. Some of the
Group’s major customers could decide not to rettesir contracts, seek to renew them on termsatatess
favourable to the Group or, where a contract castan early-termination right (which typically reéops
significant payment to be made by the customerjetminate a contract. Moreover, because of thiaily
long-term nature of satellite capacity contractd Hre costs to customers of switching providers, éustomer
decides not to renew an agreement (for exampléheasesult of developing or increasing relationshipth
other operators or moving to other telecommunioatigolutions), it may be a number of years betoeeGroup
has the opportunity to win back or replace theress. Also, if key customers reduce their reliamt&SES by
developing or increasing relationships with othatellite operators (or moving to other telecommatians
solutions) and such key customer cannot be repl&#€8's revenue may be impacted negatively.

In addition, key customers may go bankrupt or corahiith other customers in mergers and acquisitions
Consolidation in the industries in which the Graupustomers operate may increase their bargaimwegmpand
leverage when negotiating agreements with the Grieapling to pressure on pricing. Budget cuts nisy be
imposed on SES’s governmental customers.

The loss of large customers or the reduction inadahfor services from customers for any of theseaa above
could have a material adverse effect on the Grdusiness, financial condition and results of apiens.

The Group is exposed to general customer countetpaisk.

The Group is exposed to risks associated withitten€ial condition of its customers and their apito fulfil

their contractual obligations. If any customer eigreces financial difficulties or fails to fulfits contractual
commitments to the Group, the Group may incur cesfercing its contractual rights and may incungigant
losses. The Group has a number of customer costrglcere the customer’'s payments to the Group are
scheduled towards the end of the contractual ternhe revenue are recognised in the Group’s atscama
linear basis under IFRS accounting standards. résut, if a customer experiences financial diffi@s or fails

to fulfil its contractual commitments to the Grouipe Group may not only fail to receive the revedue from

the customer but may also have to record a lossffeet the revenue already recognised in its firdnc
statements.

The level of customer credit risk faced by the Qrooay increase as it grows revenue in developindkets
because credit risk tends to be higher in thesé&eta(compared to the markets of Europe and Nontlerica).
Any failure of the Group’s customers to fulfil theiontractual commitments to the Group could haweaterial
adverse effect on the Group’s business, financiatiition and results of operations.



The Group's operations and systems are subjectxieemal threats, including sabotage, terrorist atties and
natural disasters.

As a satellite operator, SES is subject to a nunaberisks that could impair its operations and ey,
including sabotage, terrorist acts, piracy, attacknti-satellite devices, jamming, unintentiomé&trference and
natural disasters.

The risks of terrorist attacks are beyond SES’'droband such an attack could cause substantiahdarto the
Group's network. In addition, natural disastersldalamage or destroy the Group’s earth statiorssiltieg in
a disruption or termination of service to its amsers. Although the Group takes measures to ptéhereffects
of such natural disasters, such as using techndlgafeguard antennas and to protect earth rs¢atiaring
natural disasters such as a hurricane, there gaia@ntee that the measures will be effective.

Such occurrences are generally excluded from tlo@ii3s insurance coverage. For further informatsse “—
Satellites may be subject to damage or loss frantewhat might not be covered by insurance pdicbove.

The occurrence of any of these risks may leadtesrgorary or permanent interruption in service andgsult
in a loss of customers, reputational damage anaexti revenue, any of which could have a materiabiesg
effect on the Group’s business, financial conditimd results of operations.

The Group relies on information systems, satellitentrol and operations networks and other technojognd
a disruption or failure of such systems, networks technology as a result of unauthorised access,
misappropriation of data or other malfeasance magmdipt the Group’s business.

Because information systems, satellite control @gmetations networks and other technologies arieario the
Group's operating activities, disruptions or shutde caused by events such as computer hacking,arglw
dissemination of computer viruses, worms and otlestructive or disruptive software and other malisi
activity or forms of cyberattack pose significarisks. Due to the fast-moving pace of technological
advancements, the high sophistication of certdaclatrs and an increasingly hostile cyberattackrenment,

it may be difficult to detect, determine the scafecontain and remediate every such event. Anj syent
could have an adverse impact on the Group’s oparatincluding service disruption or malfunctiotoss of
customers, non-compliance with legal and regulateguirements, inadvertent violations of data mtibe,
export control and other relevant laws, damagé¢oGroup’s reputation or result in damage to theu@'s
properties, equipment and data. Such an eventcalsial result in large expenditures necessary tairem
replace such networks or information systems qrabect them from similar events in the future.riiparties
may also experience errors or disruptions thatccadlversely impact the Group’s business operatiodsover
which the Group has limited control.

SES has been the target of cyberattacks in the \Wste the impact of such attacks has not beenifgignt to

date, there can be no assurance that any futaekativould not have a material effect on the Grabp'siness.
Any inability to prevent the occurrence of cybéaeks could result in a disruption to services, fomadtions

and/or inadvertent violations of data protectiod ather relevant laws and regulations. In additemmmercial
satellite companies have been the victims of abmunof attempts to intentionally jam broadcastsnfrineir

satellites. Such attempts could lead to disruptimnservice, which could have a material effectrevenue
and/or cause reputational damage.

In addition, the Group’s operating activities couldd subject to risks caused by misappropriatiorsusg,
leakage, falsification and accidental release @es lof information maintained in the Group’s infotioa
technology systems and networks, including custppensonnel and vendor data. The Group could besexb
to significant costs, fines and penalties if suidks were to materialise, and such events couldaganthe
Group's reputation and credibility and have a niegampact on its revenue.



The occurrence of any such events or security hesacould have a material adverse effect on theig®so
business, financial condition and results of openat

The Group’s international operations are subject ta number of risks that could negatively affect
future operating results or subject the Group tarinal and civil enforcement actions.

SES conducts business around the world. Interredttmrsiness is subject to a variety of risks,udiig:

. lack of developed legal systems to enforce contractual rights;

. greater risk of uncollectible accounts and longer collection cycles;

. foreign currency exchange volatility;

. inflation;

. increased riskf fraud and political corruption;

. uncertain and changing tax rules, regulations and rates;

. logistical and communication challenges; and

. general economic, political and financial condisan foreign markets.

In addition, SES is subject to civil or criminalhility under the U.S., UK, EU and other regulasion relation
to economic sanctions, export controls and anbidosi requirements. SES has procedures, policies@midols
in place that are designed to detect and prevstdrioes of non-compliance with such requiremeriteréhave
nonetheless been a few instances when SES hadi@demictivities that may have constituted violatioof
applicable requirements. For example, in Noveml@dr32 SES submitted a voluntary self-disclosure ntefmo
OFAC (for more information seeRegulation—The United States—U.S. Export Controld Sanctions
Regulationy. In such circumstances, SES has taken promptratt investigate and remediate such activities
and to adjust its controls to prevent such occuwesern the future. Any failure by SES to obtainnmintain
required authorisations or failure to comply wiinstions, export control and anti-bribery laws aggulations
may render it impossible for SES to provide siéetiapacity and related services to certain casthat are
subject to sanctions, to purchase satellites guipment from certain vendors (including U.S. mawctidirers
and suppliers), restrict its ability to conductsimess with U.S. government entities, expose theugsrto
significant fines and other penalties and/or caegeitational damage. Additionally the failure oétroup’s
vendors or suppliers to obtain the necessary esutinorisations could affect SES’s ability to aicgulaunch or
operate satellites.

International risks and violations of internationegulations may negatively affect future opersior subject
the Group to criminal or civil enforcement actioAdthough the Group has policies and procedurasdaitor

legal and regulatory compliance, there can be revagtiee that such policies and procedures will gareall

violations of applicable regulations. Moreover,rthean be no guarantee that the Group’s employeagemts
will not violate these requirements or will not egg in activities that result in the Group’s directindirect
violation of such applicable regulations.

See"—Risks Relating to Regulation—The Group is subie@xport control laws including those of the \@dit
States, which may preclude exporting satellitesléonch, satellite-related hardware, technologytadand
services or preclude sourcing these items in thiéedrtates below for further information.

In particular regarding the business with the W8vernment, the proxy structure of the SES Govenime
Solutions entity, in line with common practice farsinesses serving certain segments of the U.&rgment,
imposes various restrictions on the Board of Daectand executive management in directly supenyiire



maintenance of an internal control system and ifngoan internal audit structure. Internal contnotlanternal
audit may not be properly implemented due to seslrictions.

The occurrence of any of the risks above could lzar®terial adverse effect on the Group’s busirfess)cial
condition and results of operations.

Risks Relating to the Group’s Strategic Development
The Group is exposed to risks inherent in doing mess in developing markets.

The Group’s development strategy involves targetiagy geographical areas and developing marketh, &s
in Latin America and Asia and potentially develapinjoint ventures or partnerships with
local telecommunicationsnedia and financial businesses in such markets in aénprove market access
for its services.

Expansion into these regions may not be successfdleven if successful, SES is exposed to thednheisks

of doing business in those regions, such as ingyaarising from political or economic factors differences in
legal and regulatory regimes. See-Risks Relating to the Group’s Business—The Gmouternational
operations are subject to a number of risks thatldmegatively affect future operating resultssoibject the
Group to criminal and civil enforcement actionabove Such instability could cause difficulties in tBeoup’s
ability to operate, increase costs or lead tora@xpected reduction in the demand for the Grougrsices. In
addition, in some developing markets, customery b less financially secure and run a higher 6§k
insolvency than in more developed markets. Thiuriaiof a customer to make payments for the Group’'s
services or honour its agreements would leadréalaction in the Group’s revenue.

The occurrence of any of the risks above could lzan®terial adverse effect on the Group’s busjHesmcial
condition and results of operations.

The Group is subject to general risks associatethvitis strategic investments.

The Group has a number of strategic investments ithdoes not control and may enter into similar
arrangements in the future. As a result, the Gisujependent in part on the cooperation of otheestors and
partners in protecting and realising the full ptisnof certain investments. The Group may not bk do
prevent strategic partners from taking actions #natcontrary to the Group’s business interestsbprctives or
are inconsistent with the Group’s views of whathis best strategy for the investment. In certaicuonstances,

it may become necessary for the Group to inveshdéurfunds or fulfil its contractual obligations, the Group
may be restricted from realising the value ofritgeistment.

Any of these risks could have a material adverfeeebn the Group’s business, financial conditiod eesults
of operations.

For more information about the Group’s strategiestments, see “Business—Strategic Investments”.

Forward looking information included in this Prospeus may differ materially from actual results and
investors should not place undue reliance on it.

The forward looking information set forth in thisoBpectus regarding SES, RR Media and O3b represent
SES'’s current view of such information and is basadassumptions including, but not limited to, esuot
arising concerning satellite health; satellite lshes occurring when anticipated; no changes tcagney global
macroeconomic and political conditions (in particuivhere SES, RR Media or O3b has significant soél
operation); no deterioration in the financial cdioti or solvency of SES, RR Media or O3b’s key oustrs;

no change in market conditions within the satellitdustry, including in relation to customer demawrd
competitive environment; no change in currency exge rates between the euro and the currenciekiaghw
the Group operates (including, most significanthe U.S. dollar); no changes in inflation, interestax rate



assumptions in SES, RR Media or O3b’s principal ket compared with SES’s budgeted estimates; no
adverse event impacting SES, RR Media or O3b'shfira performance; no changes in legislation oulagry
requirements, including accounting principles orterality thresholds; the conclusion of negotiatidor new
and renewed capacity agreements in line with SEg)X@ctations; and no material issues arising ipetsof
SES, RR Media or O3b’s contracts. While the forwhaking information contained in this Prospectus a
based on the assumptions that it currently beli@resappropriate, it is inevitable that there idegjree of
uncertainty relating to any forward looking revenperformance and trend information. Such infororati
should therefore be read in this context and caoedtaccordingly.

The assumptions on which forward looking informatie based are inherently subject to significardiress,
operational, economic, market and other risks, nanyhich are outside of SES’s control. Accordinguch
assumptions may change, potentially materially, thoeg expected effects of these assumptions may not
materialise at all. In addition, unanticipated eégemay adversely affect the actual results that &gtfieves in
future periods whether or not its assumptions irgato the forward looking information for futuresods
otherwise prove to be correct. As a result, itsiactesults may vary materially from the forwaraHKing
information included in this document, and investsinould not place undue reliance upon it.

The Group may not be able to retain and/or attrgetrsonnel who are critical to the Group’s business

SES has a number of key employees with highly sfieed skills and extensive experience in thalds. If
one of these employees were to leave, SES may diffiilty replacing him or her. Although SES optrs
retention programmes, succession planning and @@velnt plans, there can be no assurance that 8kid w
be successful in hiring and training suitable aepments without undue costs or delays. If SESable to
retain key employees or attract new highly quadifemployees, it could have a material adversetefie the
Group's business, financial condition and resofitsperations.

Pursuing external growth opportunities may not yiethe expected benefits.

As part of its strategy, the Group regularly evedgaopportunities to make strategic acquisitionsoancrease
its stake in ventures in which it currently hasisterest. Such growth opportunities may not yi¢ld éxpected
benefits due to a number of factors, some of whdoh not entirely within the Group’s control, such a
associated costs, regulatory approvals, antitavsews, diversion of management time and challepgeed by
integration operations. In addition, the Group rfalto obtain, in a timely manner, the necessargricing on
satisfactory terms to allow the transaction to peat Acquisitions also may adversely affect theupi®
financial ratios as a result of related financinguirred or the performance of the acquired busifaksving
the acquisition. The Group may incur significanstsoarising from its efforts to pursue strategiquasitions
which exceed the returns realised. Failure to pumsucomplete strategic growth opportunities maywent the
Group from growing the business, which could inntwesult in a material adverse effect on the Greoup’
business, financial condition and results of openat

See also “—Risks relating to O3b and the Acquisition”.
Risks Relating to the Satellite Communications Marlkt

The telecommunications market is highly competitiead SES faces competition from satellite, terrest
and wireless networks.

The Group is subject to a number of risks relatmgompetition. The Group’s main competitors dre other
major international satellite operators, Intelsah.SEutelsat S.A. and Telesat Holdings Inc. Iniadd, the
Group faces competition from satellite operatorthvgatellites in Low Earth Orbit and Medium EarthbiD
The Group also faces significant and increasing pagdition in different regions around the world fraan
increasing number ohational and regional satellite operators and ealtti integrated very small aperture
terminal YSAT) providers and may face competition from new maekdrants in the future.
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The development of national satellite programmey hiader the Group’s ability to compete in thosertnies

on normal economic terms. The new capacity (whicky rhe significant) may also negatively impact the
transponder supply/demand dynamics in those magketgesult in lower transponder pricing than elsne.
The implementation of national satellite systemsyrabso increase the risk that market access faigor
satellite operators will be restricted. In additi@mme national operators enjoy advantages im thahestic
markets, such as tax and regulatory advantagesvermgment funding, that are not available to SH&SE or
other competitive advantages could result in actdn in the Group’s business in such regionsddition, the
significant competition between satellite operataoth regionally and internationally could leadbt@rsupply,
greater pressure on prices or a reduction in émeatid for the Group’s services, which could negatiimpact

its profits or revenue.

SES also faces competition from other forms of coamications technology, such as providers of mobile
satellite communications services as well as teiaéand wireless networks, including cable, dilaptic, digital
subscriber line PSL), radio relay broadcasting, very-high-frequendyathigh-frequency transmission,
worldwide interoperability for microwave acce$¥iMAX) and long-term evolutiorLTE). Any increase in the
technical effectiveness or geographic spread afetttompeting operators and technologies couldtresa
reduction in demand for the Group’s satellite citgand could make it more difficult for the Grotgpretain or
develop its customer portfolio. Some terrestriad avireless operators may receive state aid ansidieb not
available to SES, which could give them a competiadvantage over the Group.

The occurrence of any of the risks above couldltrésua demand reduction for SES'’s satellite cayaand
could have a material adverse effect on the Graop&iness, financial condition and results of apiens.

Changes in technology or the satellte communicatso market could make the Group’s satellite
telecommunications system obsolete or subject teeioor reduced demand.

Although, on the whole, the fixed satellite sergicaarket has experienced growth over the past y@atke
future the market may not grow or it may shrink.cAmological innovations that serve as alternatites
satellites could render satellite technology olisol® less cost-effective, and consumer viewindgepeaces
may shift in a way that makes other technologig¢tebsuited to delivering the broadcast content tiarently
accounts for most of the demand for the Group'sli#at capacity. The use of new technology to invarsignal
compression rates or changes in consumer prefergisoeh as increased demand for new forms of video
distribution, in particular non-linear or linearrttent provision via broadband technologies by exisPay TV
providers or “over-the-top” by new entrants, orrgessed consumption via devices not fed directlydirectly

via satellite), or future trends in viewing not getticipated, could lead to a reduction in demamdife Group’s
satellite capacity. Existing technologies, suchfibse optic cable, are currently competing with edlite
technology and expanding their geographic reach raagt experience innovations that make them more
effective competition for satellites. Se€he telecommunications market is highly competitind SES faces
competition from satellite, terrestrial and wiretesetworks above.

Similarly, demand for the current generation artdrieigenerations of high definition televisidd¥TV) which
the Group expects to be a major driver of demanddtellite capacity in future periods, may failreach the
levels the Group currently expects, which couldilEalower than expected demand for the Group’sciéyp

If the Group cannot quickly and efficiently adaptthese changes, its satellites could become etiesot less
competitive, leading to an inability to retain diig customers or attract new customers, a regtudati demand
for its services, and a negative impact on revenue.

Any of these risks could have a material adverfeeebn the Group’s business, financial conditiod eesults
of operations.
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SES is subject to risks from legal and arbitratigmoceedings.

Disputes in relation to SES'’s business arise frione to time and can result in legal or arbitratpwoceedings.
There can be no assurance that the Group will acbrbe involved in legal or arbitration disputesoiring
material claims for damages or other payments. diteome of these and any other proceedings careot b
predicted. In the event of a negative outcome $peet of any material legal or arbitration procagdiwhether
based on a judgment or a settlement agreement,c8&8 be required to make payments that could laave
material adverse effect on the Group’s busineaanftial condition and results of operations. Initaid the
costs related to litigation and arbitration prodagd may be significant.

Risks Relating to Regulation

The telecommunications industry is highly regulatéd a result, SES is subject to a number of rislss
described below. For more information on the repiaof the satellite industry and associate riskese
“Regulatiofi.

If the Group or its customers fail to obtain and rimain required regulatory approvals, the Group manot
be able to operate its existing satellites or maintor expand its operations.

The Group must obtain and maintain approvals frathaities to operate or offer satellite capacityservices
which often involves significant time and experiBe: example, the Group must obtain authorisatidartding
rights (i.e., permission to offer services or céyadn certain countries to permit the Group’s edlites to
transmit or receive signals to, from or within ghecountries. The failure to obtain or maintain the
necessary authorisations to operate satelliteds abtain the requisite landing rights or approvasrovide
services in certain countries could lead to lossewénue. In addition, licensing authorities meyoke rights to
use frequencies at an orbital location if that tatbiocation is left vacant beyond the period p#ed by such
regulator. If the Group cannot obtain, is delayedbtaining or does not maintain in good standthg,required
regulatory approvals or loses authorisations assaltr of changes to regulations or other governraetibns,
it may not be able to provide existing or futuegvices to customers or expand to new customeist@new
services.

In addition, customers are responsible for obtgimertain regulatory approvals for their operatiofds a result,
there may be governmental regulations of which 8E®t aware or which may adversely affect the ajans

of customers. The Group could lose revenue if enets fail to comply with such approvals, if redidas are

changed and customers are unable to satisfy thestef any new regulations or if necessary appsoaed not
granted on a timely basis or at all, in any juididns in which customers wish to operate or fiewservices or
if applicable restrictions in those jurisdictiomscome unduly burdensome.

The occurrence of any of the risks above could lzan®terial adverse effect on the Group’s busjHesmcial
condition and results of operations.

The Group’s business is subject to extensive retialaand is sensitive to regulatory changes in baaf the
countries in which it provides services.

The operation of the Group’s business is and walitmue to be subject to the laws and regulatiainthe
governmental authorities of the countries whereGhsup operates or uses radio spectrum and/ariscsteellite
services or capacity, and also to the frequencydioation process of the International Telecomroation
Union (TU). Regulation and legislation is extensive andsioigt the Group’s direct control. New or modified
rules, regulations, legislation or decisions bgekevant governmental entity or the ITU could miaier and
adversely affect operations.

The operations of the Group’s existing satellitese also regulated by, among others, the U.S. Béder
Communications Commissior=CC); the Institut Luxembourgeois de Régulation of #Beand Duchy of

12



Luxembourg; the Radiocommunications Agency of tetherlands; the Gibraltar Regulatory Authority;
Innovation, Science and Economic Development Cafladastry Canadg; the National Telecommunications
Agency of Brazil; the Federal Telecommunicationstitate of Mexico and the Swedish Post and Telecom
Authority. Although the Issuer believes that theo@ is in compliance with regulatory requiremeimtshe
countries in which it operates, there can be neurasce that the Group will maintain the
authorisations necessary to operate its existatglises or obtain required authorisations in fléure,
which would affect future prospects.

In addition, the Group may in the future becomejettbto regulations of which it is not presentlyaaer If
the Group fails to comply with all applicable laewsd regulations, it could lose revenue from sesviprovided
to the countries covered by those laws and reguistand subject the Group to criminal or civil giées.

Failure to obtain or maintain the required authaditss described above could have a material adwedfect on
the Group’s business, financial condition and rtesofl operations.

The ITU may not allocate orbital slots and asso@dt frequencies to permit the Group to maintain or
augment its satellite system.

SES needs access to orbital slots and associataeficies to permit it to maintain or grow itsefaé system.

The ITU establishes radio regulations and is resibta for the allocation of spectrum for particulses, and
the allocation to particular national administramf orbital locations and associated frequepegtsum. SES
can only access spectrum through ITU filings magedtional administrations.

Orbital slots in the geostationary arc and assedifitequencies are a limited resource. The ITU raattbnal
regulators may reallocate spectrum from sateftitéerrestrial uses. National administrations ia@easingly
charging for access to spectrum by way of feesamtions. In addition, national administrationsymavoke
SES's rights to use spectrum, even when SES hastablished business at a particular orbital losafThe
most recent World Radiocommunication Conferences2@itl not reallocate significant amounts of speutru
from satellite to terrestrial uses. However, it Bas for study the use of various spectrum banaisabuld be
allocated to terrestrial mobile at the next suchfexence in 2019 and whose use by terrestrial matiluld be
inconsistent with satellite use. In addition, ciertaational administrations are studying the altegpectrum
needs of terrestrial mobile and considering thdaeation of spectrum used by satellites, whichytban do
independently of ITU radio regulations so longleesytavoid international interference.

Any reallocation of spectrum from satellite to émtrial uses or fees by national administratiomy fmave a
significant adverse effect on the Group’s businfésancial condition and results of operations.

The Group's ability to use a satellite at a giverbial location for its proposed service or covgmarea may
be adversely affected by coordination issues.

Like other satellite operators, SES is requiredettord, through relevant national administratidneguencies
and orbital locations used by its satellites with tTU and to coordinate the operation of its litgs with the
satellite networks filed with the ITU through oth®ational administrations so as to prevent or cecharmful
interference between its satellites and the st®lbf other operators. It may not always be jes$o achieve
successful coordination, which may affect the péghoperation by SES of its satellites. In certaines, SES
might also be required to coordinate any replaceérsatellite that has performance characteristicghvdiffer
from those of the satellite that it replaces.

As a result of such coordination, SES may be requto modify the proposed satellite coverage amas
satellite design or transmission plans in ordeglitminate or minimise harmful interference witthet satellites
or ground-based facilities. Those maodificationsymeean that use of a particular orbital positiomastricted,
possibly to the extent that it may not be econommiocaplace a new satellite in that location. Inditidn,
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interference concerns of a country may affect thibty of the Group’s satellite network to generatvenue
due to the operational restrictions that the cgumiay impose. Such operational restrictions inelunbt
allowing transponders to be operated at the maxirpomer over the intended area, requiring receiving
transmitting earth stations to use a minimum argesige or using steerable coverage to avoid a fapeci
geographical area.

Similarly, if and to the extent that ITU regulat®or other contractual or regulatory constrainiistéaprevent
competing satellite operators from operating tisaitellites in a manner that causes harmful intenfes with
existing or future satellites operated by the Grahp performance of the Group’s satellites indffected areas
could be adversely affected.

Coordination issues with other satellite operatoise from time to time, and the Group may not gbnuae able
to resolve such issues quickly, or at all, whichlddead to reputational harm, loss of customeeseribration

of the Group’s relationships with other operataegradation of signal quality resulting from ineggnce from

satellites of other operators, operating or desigtrictions that make the Group’s services inréiqudar region

less competitive or non-economic or limit the apitd fully utilise the capabilities of a particulsatellite, and,
to the extent an issue is not resolved in the Gsofgwour, potential loss of rights. Such issueaxpose the
Group to the risk of litigation, such as the rebesettled dispute with Eutelsat (for more inforioatsee note
31 to the 2015 Financial Statements).

In addition, certain of the Group’s frequency assignts are governed by specific national regulatitinany
country decides to exercise its rights under threggilations, or if these specific regimes are aradnthe
Group could be forced to change or discontinueube of its frequency assignments, which could have
significant negative impact on its ability to opteréts satellites.

Any of the factors above could have a material estveffect on the Group’s business, financial d@adand
results of operations.

If the Group does not occupy unused orbital locat®by specified deadlines, or does not maintaitefiiies
in the orbital locations the Group currently usethose orbital locations may become available faeuby
other satellite companies.

Orbital locations or frequency bands that SES osés planning to use may become available foengatellite
operators to use if SES does not:

. occupy unused orbital locations by specified deadlines;

. maintain satellites in their orbital locationspéor

. operate in all the frequency bands that have ffitgsh at the ITU and for which a licence has been
received.

SES has access to orbital locations that have filedrat the ITU through various national admiragbns. For
each filing, the ITU and the national regulatorpase conditions that must be met in order to seuse of the
spectrum and SES must determine, based on thosiions, which frequencies it will bring into usadaon

what schedule. Operational issues like satelliadh failure, launch delay or in-orbit failure cemmpromise
the access to the spectrum at specific orbitadtions. SES is committed to the highest qualitysatellite

procurement and launch, which helps to reduce rikls In addition, the Group’s large fleet permite

relocation of in-orbit satellites in order to mélee regulatory conditions in most of the caseswéi@r, there
is no guarantee that SES will always be able éwent this risk and the loss of an orbital locattoald have a
material adverse effect on SES’s business, finhnoradition and results of operations.
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The Group is subject to export control laws includj those of the United States, which may preclude
exporting satellites for launch, satellite-relatdthrdware, technology, data and services or preewburcing
these items in the United States.

The Group must comply with applicable export cohtaws and regulations including applicable U.$part
control laws in connection with any informationtalgproducts or materials that it provides toremeives from,
foreign companies relating to communications s#sll launch vehicles and associated equipmentdatel
related to each. The Group’s U.S. operations mapaable to maintain normal international bussregivities
and the Group’s non-U.S. operations may not be &bleource satellites, satellite related hardwaeda,
technology and services in the United States if;

. export licences or approvals cannot be, or areaibéined or are obtained but later withdrawn tue
breach of or changes in policy;

. export licenes or approvals are not obtained in a timely fashion;

. export licences or approvals do not permit transfesome or all items requested;

. launches are not permitted in the locations th& Btefers; or

. the requisite licence, when granted, contains itiond or restrictions that pose significant comoned

or technical issues.

Such occurrences could impede construction aradydbE launch of any future satellites, negativeipacting
current or future revenue, which could have a nalteadverse effect on the Group’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Relating to O3b and the Acquisition

As a satellite operator, O3b is subject to substhysimilar risks to SES as described in Risks Relating to
the Group’s Business“— Risks Relating to the Group’s Strategic Developiért Risks Relating to the
Satellite Communications MarKeand “—Risks Relating to RegulatibnCertain additional risks specific to
0O3b and the Acquisition are described below.

0O3b may not meet targets set out in its business @r otherwise perform as anticipated.

O3b is a start-up company providing high-speedllgatéroadband connectivity across the developivogld

via a new kind of satellite system that uses migitgatellites in a Medium Earth OrbMEO) (which is lower
than the geostationary orbiGEO) used by FSS operators). O3b has a substantidtacbrbacklog which
requires a constellation of twelve satellites thilfthe first phase of O3b’s business plan. In @013, O3b
launched the first group of four satellites for tumstellation. Following in-orbit tests on thesfifour satellites,
0O3b delayed the launch of the second four satlideanake modifications to them.

0O3b's first four satellites experienced payload raalles which caused the satellites to be declared a
constructive total loss for insurance purposesrdddiy, three of the four satellites have been nexddfrom
operations, and are classified as back-up satellitee fourth satellite was less affected by thensaly and is
currently part of the operational O3b constellation

The second group of four satellites was launcheduly 2014. As at the date of this Prospectus sktond
group of four satellites were operating nominallyith eight satellites in orbit, O3b started fullnemercial
operations on 1 September 2014. The third groupuof satellites was successfully launched on 18cbduer
2014. As at the date of this Prospectus this thialip of four satellites was operating nominallizeTfourth
group and fifth group of four satellites have beedered in July 2015 and are due to be launch@®d1i8 and
2020.
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There can be no assurance that the future satiliteches will not face launch delays or that thtelite
constellation will not experience in-orbit failures anomalies. There can also be no assurancéiatwill
meet the targets set out in its business plan rdonpe as otherwise anticipated. For more informatiegarding

the risks relating to O3b’s business plan, se®isks Relating to the Group’s Strategic Develogmémrward
looking information included in this Prospectus ntiffer materially from actual results and investahould

not place undue reliance oni.itAny of these factors could impact the valuelod Group’s current and, post the
Acquisition, intended investment in O3b thereby ihgvnegative consequences for the Group’s business
financial condition and results of operations.

The 50.5 per cent Acquisition will take SES’s owship in O3b to above 50 per cent on a fully dilutbdsis,
meaning that SES will take control of O3b and thadincial results of O3b will be fully consolidatedithin
those of the Group.

The Group currently accounts for O3b’s results urkle equity method and, in accordance with itoanting
principles, assesses the carrying value of itssimrent in O3b for impairment whenever events ongbka in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may reotdroverable. Since the 50.5 per cent Acquisitidh
increase the Group’s ownership interest in O3badully diluted basis, to over 50 per cent, it wiligger
certain changes in corporate governance arrangsroB3b which will result in SES having controleovO3b.
From the point of SES assuming such control, O8bancial information will be fully consolidated ithe
financial reporting of the Group. In 2015, O3b irred a loss of $317.0 million and as of 31 Decenfi5
had a net debt position of $1.2 billion. These eraticould have an adverse impact on the Group’satbve
performance, financial condition and financial @atsuch as the net debt to EBITDA ratio and tharele no
assurance that these matters will not have a ivegatipact on the Group’s credit rating and finahc@enant
ratios under its financing arrangements.

Completion of the 50.5 per cent Acquisition willigger certain exit rights for the remaining minont
shareholders in O3b, which could result in an obdition by the Issuer to buy out the remaining shamters.

On signing the 50.5 per cent Acquisition agreem8ES and the other equity investors in O3b entariexl
amongst others, an investor rights agreement, mgvaigreement and an agreement relating to transfer
restrictions and rights of first refusal (therangement$. By virtue of the Arrangements, when the Group
obtains control of O3b through the 50.5 per cenguigition, if SES does not provide O3b’'s minority
shareholders with an exit by means of an initidblipuoffering (PO), or if SES does not exercise the Call
Option, prior to 1 October 2017, those minorityrealders will have the right to sell their equityerests by
means of a put option (tHut Option) to the Group at a pre-determined value. In surclumstances the Group
may need to obtain funds to meet this obligatioher€ can be no assurance that such funding would be
available on acceptable terms or at all at sucle.tidepending on the nature and the amount of ttemding,

this could further adversely affect the Group’sd@reating and financial covenant ratios.

The Group may not be able to realise anticipatechéfits of the Acquisition, or the Group may not be
successful in integrating the business operationfs@3b in the manner or within the timeframe currelgt
anticipated.

The Acquisition and integration process involvetaer risks and uncertainties, and there can bessorance
that the Group will be able to integrate the O3kitess operations in the manner or within the tiemaé
anticipated. Risks and challenges relating to titegration of the business operations of O3b irelunit are
not limited to, the following:

. the placement of considerable demands on the Gsawgburces to manage the integration process,
including requiring significant amounts of managatteme;
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. the creation and development of consolidated catppfinancial, control and administrative functpn
including cash management, internal and other &imay hedging of market risks, insurance, financial
control and reporting, information technology, coomitations, compliance and other administrative

functions;

. the implementation of an adjusted business anch@g@onal model;

. the process of coordinating sourcing in order iimielate overlapping procurement operations;

. the retention of management and/or other key engglowf O3b after the Acquisition;

. the coordination of research and development, ntiatkand other support functions; and

. the mitigation of contingent and actual liabilitie§ the Group taken as a whole following the
Acquisition.

Due to such specific risks and challenges, themebeano assurance that the Group’s ability to aehéffective
integration of O3b will not be limited or delayedghich could have a material adverse effect on ithantial
condition and results of operations of the Group.

The Group does not currently control O3b and wilbhhave the ability to do so until completion ofel50.5
per cent Acquisition.

The Group does not currently control O3b and wili have the ability to do so until completion o&th0.5 per
cent Acquisition. There can therefore be no assardmat during the interim period O3b would be aped in
the same way SES would operate it.

The value of the shares in O3b acquired pursuanttte terms of the Acquisition may be less than the
consideration paid by SES.

Prior to completion of the Acquisition, SES hasited rights to terminate the Acquisition. Accordingn the
event that there is an adverse event affectingahe of O3b or the value of the O3b business deslprior to
completion of the Acquisition, the value of the idsain O3b purchased by the Group pursuant toetmast of
the Acquisition may be less than the consideratigreed to be paid by SES and, accordingly, thexsssts of
the Group could be reduced. There can be no agsuthat SES would be able to renegotiate the ceratidn
paid for the relevant shares in such circumstanc€sSES may therefore pay an amount in excess itketa
value for the relevant shares, which could havadrerse effect on the business and financial donddf the
Group.

Completion of the 50.5 per cent Acquisition is sabj to certain conditions precedent, primarily relgtory
approvals.

Completion of the 50.5 per cent Acquisition is sgbjto satisfaction (or waiver, where applicablerertain
conditions, including regulatory and anti-trust egyals and non-objection. These regulatory appeokelhte to
increasing the Group’s stake in O3b to a contrgliimerest. Outstanding approvals include: FCC aymdrof
transfer of licence, Hart-Scott-Rodino (U.S. amtimpetition body) and approval(s) required by thditidts
Regulation and Competition Authority of the Baharfashe transfer of control of for the transfercointrol of
Bahamas licences with respect to VSAT antennasatraBas-registered vessels served by O3bB#mamas
Licences. There can be no assurance that these regulgppnpvals will be granted on a timely basis orlat a
In the event the required regulatory approvalsrertegranted on or before 4 January 2017, the 5&x=ent
Acquisition (and therefore the 100 per cent Acdigis) could not complete. In the unlikely eventtttids were
to happen, the Issuer would then need to assessdbieappropriate use for the proceeds from thét&ldpaise
in such circumstances.
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The 50.5 per cent Acquisition is also subject ttotal constellation failure” having not occurredqr to receipt
of the above regulatory approvals, defined genetallmean the failure of more than three of theantty
insured satellites of O3b, where such failure cabeccured by the launch of any of the eight séaslicurrently
under construction or other satellites of O3b ipitcat signing.

For more information on the regulatory approvatyuieed see The Acquisition—Regulatory approvals for the
50.5 per cent Acquisition and other condititns

There can be no assurance that governmental agemaiéll not seek to impose new or more stringent
conditions on the Group in connection with grantinggulatory or anti-trust approvals in relation tthe 50.5
per cent Acquisition.

Relevant governmental agencies may impose conditbancompletion of the Acquisition or require chesigp

the terms of the Acquisition and conditions of aywais that are granted may impose additional requénts,
limitations or costs on the business of the Grolipere can be no assurance that these conditions or
undertakings will not materially limit the revenoé the Group, increase the costs of the Group, aedhe
ability of the Group to achieve cost synergieseadito the abandonment of the Acquisition.

The costs relating to the Acquisition may exceed tBroup’s expectations.

The Group expects to incur costs in relation toAbgquisition, including integration and post-Acqtitn costs.
The actual costs of the integration process mageazkthose estimated and there may be further analitand
unforeseen expenses incurred in connection withAtlwpuisition, including, but not limited to, unfaeen tax
consequences. In addition, the Group will incualegccounting and transaction fees and other cektsng to
the Acquisition, some of which will be payable whest or not the Acquisition completes.

Risks Relating to Finance
Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor is a holdingtéy.

The Issuer and the Guarantor are holding entitied,each of them conducts substantially all obfterations
through subsidiaries. As a result, the right toeihez payments under the Securities and the Guarairte
addition to being subordinated to the Senior Obikges (as defined in the Conditions) of the Issaied the

Guarantor, will be structurally subordinated to tlehilities of the Issuer’s subsidiaries other rththe

Guarantor. The ability of the Issuer and the Guaraim meet their respective financial obligatigmslependent
upon the availability of cash flows from their dastie and foreign subsidiaries and affiliated comesn
through dividends, intercompany advances, managdieenand other payments.

The Securities are obligations of the Issuer aral gwaranteed exclusively by the Guarantor. Therothe
subsidiaries of the Issuer and the Guarantor & ate and distinct legal entities and have naggabibn to pay
any amount due on the Securities or the Guaramteepyovide the Issuer or the Guarantor with fufaigheir
respective payment obligations thereunder. As hgldintities, the rights of the Issuer and the Ghtarato
receive any assets of any of their subsidiaries Ujguidation or reorganisation, and therefore tiight of the
creditors of the Issuer and the Guarantor to ppdtie in those assets, will be structurally submatid to those
claims (including trade payables) of those subsieia creditors. The Securities and the Guaran@eenat
restrict the ability of those subsidiaries to inaatditional indebtedness or other liabilities. EViethe Issuer or
the Guarantor were a creditor of any of its subsids, its rights as a creditor would be subordirtatany
security interest in the assets of its subsidiaaies$ any indebtedness of its subsidiaries migtgdpgor to its
rights as a creditor
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Failure to generate cash flow or access other capiesources could force the Group to reduce ifecations
or default on debt service obligations.

If, for any reason, SES is not successful in im@etimg its business model, cash flow and capitsbueces
may not be sufficient to repay indebtedness. If &@nable to meet debt service obligations or dgmyjith
covenants, a default under debt agreements wotddroTo avoid a possible default or upon a default
SES could be forced to reduce or delay the comoplalr expansion of the satellite fleet, forgo istveents in
joint ventures, sell assets, obtain additionalitgcgapital or refinance or restructure its debhyAsuch action
could have a material adverse effect on the Geopsiness, financial condition and results of apiens.

Negative changes in SES’s debt rating may have demial adverse effect on the Group’s financial cdition.

A change in the SES'’s debt rating could affectabst and terms of its debt as well as its abitityaise finance.
SES currently has and seeks to retain a BBB ratitiy Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services (S&B&) a
Baa2 rating with Moody's Investors Service (Moody’Among other things, increases in financial leggr
ratios beyond the thresholds recommended by tliregraggencies could result in a downgrade. If SEBit
rating were to be downgraded, it would affect SE&bility to obtain financing and the terms assted with
that financing. SES cannot guarantee that it vélable to maintain its credit ratings.

S&P’s and Moody's are established in the EuropeaiotJand are registered under the CRA Regulati&®'s
and Moody's also appear on the latest availableatgpths of December 2015) of the European Seustiel
Markets  Authority's list of credit rating agenciescurrently available on its website
(https://www.esma.europa.eu/supervision/credit-gpigencies/risk)

The Group'’s financial results may be materially aghsely affected by unforeseen additional tax assesnts
or other tax liabilities.

SES does business in many different countries angubject to tax liabilities on its business operet
in multiple tax jurisdictions. SES makes provisan its accounts for current and deferred tebilliies and tax
assets based on a continuous assessment of mxditing to it.

However, SES cannot be certain of a tax authoraypglication and interpretation of the tax law.SSfay be
subjected by tax authorities to unforeseen matéaialclaims including late payment interest anghenalties.
These unforeseen tax claims may arise throughge lanmber of reasons including identification dagable
presence of a non-indigenous group company irxiaggurisdiction, transfer pricing adjustmentsphgation
of indirect taxes on certain business transactidies the event and disallowance of the benefits tax treaty.
In addition, SES may be subject to tax law chamgestaxing jurisdiction, which could lead tonactive tax
claims.

Although SES has implemented a tax risks mitigatioarter based (among other things) on a framewbtéx
opinions for the financially material tax positionaken by SES, transfer pricing documentation tfoe
important intra-Group transactions of SES and asfex pricing policy and procedures for accurae t
compliance in all taxing jurisdictions, there is goarantee that the charter will be effectivethé Group
becomes subject to a significant amount of ungoatied tax liabilities or has its transfer priciagangements
successfully challenged, it could have a matesadiverse effect on the Group’'s effective tax rate,
business, financial condition and results of opena.

The Group is exposed to liquidity, currency and égn exchange, interest rate and counterparty sk

The Group is exposed to risks in relation to lidiyidforeign exchange rates, interest rates anohteoparties.
For further details, see note 19 to the 2015 FisdStatements.
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Failure to adequately manage these risks could hamaterial adverse effect on the Group’s busjrfesmcial
condition and results of operations.

The Group is exposed to risks associated with macamomic conditions in the global economy, both in
developing markets and developed markets.

An economic slowdown in the countries where theuproperates may have a negative effect on thepGrou
performance if potential customers face difficidtfanding their business plans, which could in tdefay the
onset of new revenue. This situation could be frraffected by measures concerning the curreadiegted in
the countries where the Group operates, as wdllygsolitical instability and governments’ inabjlito take
timely action to deal with the crisis. All this dduin turn, result in decreased profitability, thvisignificant
negative consequences for the Group’s businees)dial condition and results of operations.

The Group is exposed to asset impairment risk.

SES'’s non-current intangible and tangible assetsvatued at historic cost less accumulated amtdisar
depreciation (where relevant), and accumulated imm@at charges. The resulting net book values abgst to
confirmation each year through impairment testingcedures, where net book values are comparedeto th
value-in-use of the asset, which represents theeptevalue of the future cash flows expected tddveved from

the asset. Where future assumptions for a spexsfiet, as set out in the Group’s business plaoniedess
favourable, or, for example, the discount ratediegpo the future cash flows increase, this maultein the
need for material asset impairment charges.

The Issuer also tests for impairment on the cagryialue of shares, or groups of shares, in affilat
undertakings using procedures similar to thosermdlabove. If the carrying value of the relevanvestment,

or group of investments, is not substantiated by#lue-in-use computed, and any shortfall is asskas being
of an other than temporary nature, this could téswn impairment charge being taken to the incetatement

of the Issuer’s annual accounts in the period aoreck

Risks related to the Securities generally
The Securities will be perpetual securities.

The Securities will be perpetual securities in eespf which there is no fixed redemption date byctvtthe
Issuer would be under the obligation to redeemSbeurities. SeeTerms and Conditions of the Securities—
Redemptioh Therefore, prospective investors should be awlaethey may be required to bear financial risks
of an investment in the Securities for an indefirperiod of time and may not recover their investime the
foreseeable future.

The Securities will be subject to optional redengutiby the Issuer including upon the occurrence ddrtain
events.

The Securities will be redeemable, at the optiotheflssuer, in whole but not in part on any Caltdat their
principal amount together with any accrued and ithpaerest up to (but excluding) the redemptiotedand
any outstanding Arrears of Interest.

In addition, upon the occurrence of an Accountingr, a Capital Event, a Change of Control Everitaa
Deduction Event, a Substantial Repurchase Evenfcauisition Event or a Withholding Tax Event (eaah
defined in the Conditions and as more fully describeCondition 9 of the Securities), the Issueridiave the
option to redeem, in whole but not in part, theusities at the prices set out therein, in each tagether with
any accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excg)dthe redemption date and any outstanding Arrefrs
Interest. In the case of a Change of Control Evienthe event that the Issuer does not elect teamdthe
Securities, the then prevailing Interest Rate @mdd in the Conditions), and each subsequentésitéate
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otherwise determined in accordance with Conditiaf the Securities, on the Securities shall bedased by 5
per cent. per annum with effect from (and includlitige date on which the Change of Control Eventioedl.

During any period when the Issuer may elect to eadehe Securities, the market value of the Seesriti
generally will not rise substantially above thecprat which they can be redeemed. This also marsubeprior
to any redemption period.

The Issuer may be expected to redeem the Secuwties its cost of borrowing is lower than the istr
payable on them. At those times, an investor gdgerauld not be able to reinvest the redemptiooceeds at
an effective interest rate as high as the intgragable on the Securities being redeemed and mgyberable
to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potentialestors should consider reinvestment risk in lighbther
investments available at that time.

There is no redemption at the option of holderthefSecurities.

The interest rate on the Securities will reset dretFirst Reset Date and on every Reset Date thdezafvhich
can be expected to affect the interest paymentl@n$ecurities and the market value of the Secustie

Although the Securities will earn interest at a dixate until (but excluding) the First Reset Dadite current
market interest rate on the capital markets iftlaeket interest ratgtypically changes on a daily basis. Since the
initial fixed rate of interest for the Securitiediviie reset on the First Reset Date (as set otitérConditions),
and on each subsequent Reset Date, the interastepayn the Securities will also change. Holdershef
Securities (thédolders) should be aware that movements in these marteriest rates can adversely affect the
price of the Securities and can lead to lossethvHolders if they sell the Securities.

Holders are exposed to the risk of fluctuating egerate levels and uncertain interest income esetbet rates
could affect the market value of an investmenhim $ecurities.

The Issuer has the right to defer interest paymeaotsthe Securities.

The Issuer may, at its discretion, elect to defieorapart of any payment of interest on the Se@siwhich is
otherwise scheduled to be paid on an Interest PatyiDate. See Terms and Conditions of the Securities—
Optional Interest Deferrdl Only upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Arreafriiterest Settlement Event, in
the event of a redemption of the Securities pursta@ondition 9 or in the event of a winding uptioé Issuer
or the Guarantor in a manner falling within Coratitil4 will the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the ca@g be, be
obliged to pay any such Arrears of Interest to ldadd

Any such deferral of interest payment shall notstitmte an Enforcement Event or a default for angppse
unless such payment is required in accordance@atidition 8(b) of the Securities. Although the kssintends
to pay all outstanding Arrears of Interest (if amy)respect of the Securities on the fifth annivers# the
Interest Payment Date on which the Deferred IntéPagment first arose, this is only a current intentnot an
obligation of the Issuer. Therefore, there can bassurance that deferred interest will be satisfighin such
five year period.

Any deferral of interest payments is likely to hame adverse effect on the market price of the S@srin
addition, as a result of the interest deferral fmion of the Securities, the market price of theusities may be
more volatile than the market prices of other dsaturities on which original issue discount orriesé accrues
that are not subject to such deferrals and may tie reensitive generally to adverse changes inghaet’s
financial condition.

Integral multiples of less than the specified denioration.

The denominations of the Securities are €100,000 iategral multiples of €1,000 in excess thereof.
Therefore, it is possible that the Securities mayrhded in amounts in excess of €100,000 thatatrmtegral
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multiples of €100,000. In such a case, a Holder,vesoa result of trading such amounts, holds acipdh
amount of less than €100,000 in its account withrtdevant clearing system, will not receive a ifieste in
respect of such holding (should Certificates batpd) and would need to purchase a principal amofint
Securities such that it holds an amount equal soammore denominations. If Certificates are issimlders
should be aware that Certificates representing r@ssuwhich have a denomination that is not aegndl
multiple of €100,000 may be illiquid and difficutt trade.

The Issuer’s obligations under the Securities arftetGuarantor’s obligations under the Guarantee wik, in
each case, subordinated.

The Issuer’s obligations under the Securities dnmedGuarantor’s obligations under the Guarantee hwi)lin
each case, unsecured and subordinated. In the @vent

(@) an order being made, or an effective resolutiging passed, for the winding-up of the Issueastthe
case may be, the Guarantor (except, in any suah aaolvent winding-up solely for the purposea of
reorganisation, restructuring, reconstruction, raergonversion or amalgamation of the Issuer or, as
the case may be, the Guarantor or the substitirtipface of the Issuer of a New Issuer in accordanc
with Condition 18 or, in the case of the Guarantubstitution or termination in accordance with
Condition 19, the terms of which reorganisatiorstmecturing, reconstruction, merger, conversion,
amalgamation or substitution or termination (x) arghorised or permitted in accordance with the
provisions of the Conditions or have previously rheg@proved by an Extraordinary Resolution (as
defined in the Fiscal Agency Agreement) and (y) @b provide that the Securities shall thereby
become redeemable or repayable in accordancehet@onditions);

(b) an administrator or receiver of the Issuerasr the case may be, the Guarantor being appointtd a
such administrator or receiver giving notice thtaintends to declare and distribute a dividend or
distribution (in the case of the Guarantor, sudtriiution being in respect of the partnershipriedes
of the Guarantor or, after a substitution purstar@ondition 19, any other ownership interests); or

(c) any analogous event relating to the Issuea®the case may be, the Guarantor to those desdnile)
and (b) above under any insolvency, bankruptcyiroilar law applicable to the Issuer or, as the case
may be, the Guarantor,

the claims of the Holders will rank (i) junior the claims of holders of all Senior Obligations loé issuer or
the Guarantor, as the case may be,p@i)i passuwith the claims of holders of all Parity Obligat® of the
Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, i@nskfior to the claims of, in the case of thautss holders of
any class of share capital of the Issuer and dmgr aibligations of the Issuer, issued directlyratiriectly by it,
which rank, or are expressed to raplyi passuwith any such class of share capital, or, in thsecof the
Guarantor, holders of any class of partnershipéste(whether common or preferred) of the Guaraamor any
other obligations of the Guarantor, issued direotlyndirectly by it, which rank, or are expressedank,pari
passuwith any such class of partnership interest. Jegris and Conditions of the Securities—Statugerms
and Conditions of the Securities—SubordindtidfiTerms and Conditions of the Securities—Status ef th
Guaranteé and “Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Subordinaifdhe Guarantée

By virtue of such subordination, payments to a oldill, in the events described in the Conditionsly be
made after all obligations of the Issuer or, asdase may be, the Guarantor resulting from higheking
claims have been satisfied. A Holder may, theref@egver less than the holders of unsubordinateottoer
prior ranking subordinated liabilities of the Issu®, as the case may be, the Guarantor. Furtherntioe
Conditions will not limit the amount of the lialtiks ranking senior to, grari passuwith, the Securities or the
Guarantee which may be incurred or assumed bysheet or the Guarantor respectively from time reti
whether before or after the Issue Date. The inogeef any such other liabilities may reduce thewam (if
any) recoverable by Holders on a winding-up or auilstviation of the Issuer or, as the case may be, th
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Guarantor and/or may increase the likelihood oéfedal of interest payments under the Securiesject to
applicable law, no Holder may exercise, claim @apl any right of set-off, compensation or reteniiorespect
of any amount owed to it by the Issuer in resp&obroarising under or in connection with, the Séoes or any
amount owed to it by the Guarantor in respect ofartsing under or in connection with, the Guarantnd
each Holder shall, by virtue of his holding of egrcurity, be deemed to have waived all such righset-off,
compensation or retention.

Although subordinated debt securities, such astwirities, may pay a higher rate of interest twmnparable
debt securities which are not subordinated, theeereal risk that an investor in subordinated rst€esi such as
the Securities will lose all or some of his investrhshould the Issuer become insolvent.

The Guarantor may be replaced by another entitytie Group or the Guarantee may be terminated.

The Deed of Guarantee contains provisions whiclal{dw the Guarantor at any time to substitutelfitfe
another entity in the Group or a successor in lassirof the Guarantor; and (ii) for so long as SH&h&
Americas Holdings GP remains Guarantor, permitmiteation of the Guarantee where (l) an order islenay
any competent court or effective resolution pagsedhe winding up or dissolution of SES Global Ancas
Holdings GP and (ll) such winding up or dissolutienfor the purposes of or pursuant to an amalgamat
reorganisation or restructuring while solvent andspant to which SES S.A. assumes all of the gd&sigities
and obligations of SES Global Americas Holdings ®&Rh any such termination pursuant to (i) above
becoming effective upon the relevant winding uglissolution taking effect. The Guarantor may orgceto
effect any such substitution or termination if{@ Enforcement Event has occurred and is continidgach
Rating Agency confirms that upon such substitubotermination becoming effective the Securitiel gither
have the same credit rating as immediately pri@utth substitution or termination or the creditngtwill not
be adversely affected, (iii) each Rating Agencyficors that upon such substitution or terminatiorcdraing
effective the Securities will either still be eligg for the same, or a higher amount of, “equisdd” (or such
other nomenclature that the Rating Agency may thento describe the degree to which an instrumdnibiés
the characteristics of an ordinary share) as rfated to the Securities on the date immediateigrpgo such
substitution or termination or such eligibility @attribution will not be adversely affected and (itwWo
Authorised Signatories of the Issuer or two Autbedi Signatories of the Guarantor certify to thedig\gent
that, following consultation with an independenvastment bank of international repute, an indepenhde
financial adviser with appropriate expertise orependent counsel of recognised standing, the Issuass the
case may be, the Guarantor has concluded thatssdodtitution or termination (i) will not result the Issuer
having an entittement, as at the date such sutistitor termination becomes effective, to redeemSkcurities
as a result of a Special Event and (ii) in the aafsa substitution only, will not result in the t&s of the
Securities and the Guarantee (taken together) inatedg following such substitution being materialgss
favourable to holders than the terms of the Sdesrdnd the Guarantee (taken together) immediatédy to
such substitution. However, notwithstanding eachthef these conditions being satisfied prior to anogh
substitution or termination, there can be no guaethat any such substitution or termination wit have an
adverse effect on the price of the Securities armbexjuently lead to losses for the Holders if thely the
Securities.

Limited Remedies.

The Conditions will provide that the SecuritiesIvaé perpetual securities and there is, therefonegbligation
on the Issuer to repay principal on any given dateaddition, payments of interest on the Seclgitiey be
deferred in accordance with Condition 8(a) of tleeBities and interest will not therefore be dugeotthan in
the limited circumstances described in Conditidn) &f the Securities.

The only enforcement event in the Conditions & dfefault is made by the Issuer and the Guaraota period
of 14 days or more in the payment of principal drdays or more in the payment of interest, in ezade in
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respect of the Securities and which is due. Upa supayment default, the sole remedy availablddiders
for the recovery of amounts owing in respect of payment of principal or interest on the Securitidsbe the
institution of proceedings to enforce such payment.

Therefore, it will only be possible for the Holdeis enforce claims for payment of principal or e in
respect of the Securities when the same are due.

In addition the claims of holders of all Senior Qhations will first have to be satisfied in any wimghup or
administration proceedings before the Holders mapeet to obtain any recovery in respect of theirusities
or, as the case may be, under the Guarantee, emdhmreto Holders will have only limited abilitg influence
the conduct of such winding-up or administratiomgaedings. See “ Fhe Issuer’'s obligations under the
Securities and the Guarantor’s obligations under @Guarantee will be, in each case, subordinated

Modification, Waiver and Substitution.

The Conditions will contain provisions for callingeetings of Holders to consider matters affectingirt
interests generally. These provisions will perméfimed majorities of holders of the Securities todball
Holders, including those Holders who did not attand vote at the relevant meetings and Holderswehed in
a manner contrary to the majority.

The Conditions and the Fiscal Agency Agreement alsb provide that the Fiscal Agent and the Issnay
agree, without the consent of Holders, to (i) arodification (except such modifications in respefctvbich an
increased quorum is required in accordance withptiogisions of the Fiscal Agency Agreement) of Hiscal
Agency Agreement which is not prejudicial to théemests of the Holders or (ii) any modification tbie
Securities or the Fiscal Agency Agreement whicbfia formal, minor or technical nature or is madedrrect
a manifest or proven error or to comply with maodaprovisions of the law.

The Issuer may also at any time, without the canskthe Holders, substitute for itself as the pifial debtor
under the Securities, the Guarantor or any othemimee of the Group upon the fulfilment of certain
preconditions set out under Condition 18. Notwahsling each of the these preconditions being matigfrior

to any such substitution, there can be no guarahtgeany such substitution will not have an adveffect on
the price of the Securities and subsequently ledosses for the Holders if they sell the Secusitie

Variation or substitution of the Securities withouwfolder consent.

Subject as provided in Condition 10 and Conditidn the Issuer may, in its sole discretion and withithe
consent or approval of the Holders, elect to stilistithe Securities for, or vary the terms of teeusities with
the effect that they become or remain, QualifyingciBities at any time following the occurrence of a
Accounting Event, a Capital Event, a Tax Deductitvent or a Withholding Tax Event. Whilst Qualifying
Securities are required to have terms which arewaitrially less favourable to Holders (as a clédsah the
terms of the Securities and the Guarantee takeathteg there can be no assurance that the Qualifyin
Securities will not have a significant adverse igtpan the price of, and /or market for, the Se@sior the
circumstances of individual Holders.

Further, prior to the making of any such modifioatior taking any action as aforementioned in tisis factor

or in the risk factor Modification, Waiver and Substitutibabove, or prior to any substitution, termination
variation in a manner contemplated in Conditionsi®or 19, the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Fisgent
shall not be obliged to have regard to the taxtwsiof individual holders of the Securities or ttte tax
consequences of any such modification, substitutemmination, variation or other action for indival holders

of the Securities. No holder of Securities shallebétled to claim, whether from the Fiscal Agehe Issuer,
the Guarantor, a New Issuer or any other persow, imdemnification or payment in respect of any tax
consequence of any such modification, substitutienmination, variation or other action upon indival
holders of the Securities.
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Change of law.

The Securities will be governed by English law aimdrespect of Conditions 3(a) and 6(a) of the Htea
only, Luxembourg law and Delaware law respectivélg. assurance can be given as to the impact of any
possible judicial decision or change to English,lawxembourg law or Delaware law or any administeat
practice thereof after the Issue Date.

The Global Certificate is held by or on behalf ofuEbclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and investavsl
have to rely on their procedures for transfer, pagnt and communication with the Issuer.

The Global Certificate will be registered in themeaof a nominee for Euroclear and Clearstream, minogeirg
(the Relevant Nomineg Except in the circumstances described in théo&@IQertificate, investors will not be
entitled to receive Certificates. Euroclear anda@tream, Luxembourg will maintain records of thieliests in
the Global Certificate. While the Securities arpresented by the Global Certificate, investors bdlable to
trade their interests only through Euroclear ora@eam, Luxembourg.

While Securities are represented by the Global if@ate, the Issuer will discharge its payment gations
under such Securities by making payments to (othferorder of) the Relevant Nominee for distribatio their
account holders. A holder of an interest in a Gldbertificate must rely on the procedures of Eueacland
Clearstream, Luxembourg to receive payments urdeSecurities. The Issuer has no responsibilitjability
for the records relating to, or payments madespeet of, interests in the Global Certificate.

Holders of interests in the Global Certificate wilbt have a direct right to vote in respect of 8Bexurities.
Instead, Holders will be permitted to act only be textent that they are enabled to do so by Ewpae
Clearstreaml,.uxembourg.

Provisions which provide for interest to be payabdm interest may be unenforceable as a matter of
Luxembourg law

The Securities contain provisions which providettiay Deferred Interest Payment (as defined in the
Conditions) (or part thereof) shall itself beareistst. If it came to any proceeding before a Lux@amdp court
any provision relating to the payment of interestimterest may not be enforceable pursuant to l&rtid54 of

the Luxembourg Civil Code. There exists no publisbase law in Luxembourg in relation to the rectigniof
provisions pursuant to which a party agrees totpathe other party an interest on interest. If adrabourg
court had to analyse the validity and enforcegbditsuch provisions, it may likely consider thespion taken

by the FrenclCour de Cassatioand Belgian, French and Luxembourg legal schalecsrding to which Article
1154 of the Civil Code is not of international pohpolicy and, therefore, provisions relating te fmayment of
interest on interest provided for in a foreign ldecument, such as the Conditions, are not affdayedrticle
1154 of the Civil Code. There can, however, be margntee that a Luxembourg court would take this@gch.

Risks related to the market generally
The secondary market generally.

Although application will be made to admit the S#oes to trading on the Market, the Securities rhaye no
established trading market when issued, and onermaegr develop. If a market does develop, it mayh®o
liquid. Therefore, investors may not be able td thadir Securities easily or at prices that wilbpide them with
a yield comparable to similar investments that haeveloped secondary market. This is particullmdycase
for securities that are especially sensitive terest rate, currency or market risks, are desidoedpecific
investment objectives or strategies or have be@paped to meet the investment requirements of dimit
categories of investors. These types of securg@werally would have a more limited secondary mtaskel
more price volatility than conventional debt settasi. llliquidity may have a severely adverse dffes the
market value of the Securities.
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Exchange rate risks and exchange controls.

The Issuer will repay principal of and pay interestthe Securities in euro. This presents certaksrelating to
currency or currency unit conversions if an investdinancial activities are denominated principailty a
currency or a currency unit (thevestor’'s Currency other than euro. These include the risk that axge rates
may significantly change (including changes due ewathiation of euro, or revaluation of the Invesor’
Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurésidn over the Investor’'s Currency may impose avdify
exchange controls. An appreciation in the valutheflnvestor’s Currency relative to euro, wouldrdese (1)
the Investor's Currency equivalent yield on theusides, (2) the Investor's Currency equivalentueabf the
principal payable on the Securities and (3) thestar's Currency equivalent market value of theusges.

Government and monetary authorities may impossdage have done in the past) exchange controlsdidd
adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. Assalt, investors may receive less interest orcipal than
expected, or no interest or principal.

Interest rate risks.

Investment in the Securities involves the risk thalbsequent changes in market interest rates magysady
affect the value of the Securities. Fluctuations irterest rates can affect the market values of] an
corresponding levels of capital gains or lossedigad rate securities. During periods of risingemst rates, the
prices of fixed rate securities, such as the Séesyritend to fall and gains are reduced or lossegiied upon
their sale. Therefore, investment in the Securitie®lves the risk that changes in market interats may
adversely affect the value of the Securities.

The Interest rate reset may result in a declineyidld.

As the Securities feature a fixed interest rate ik be reset during the term of the Securitielmlders are
exposed to the risk of fluctuating interest rateels and uncertain interest income. Fluctuatingriggt rate levels
make it impossible to determine the yield of suetusities in advance.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents which have previously bgeiblished or are published simultaneously with this
Prospectus and have been filed with the CSSF slealhcorporated by reference in, and form partttuf
Prospectus:

€)) the SES Annual Report for the year ended 3kmDber 2013 set out in the English version including
the 2013 Financial Statements and the informatbrost at the following pages in particular:

Balance Sheet Page 61

Income Statement Page 59
Comprehensive Income Statement Page 60

Changes in Equity Statement Page 63

Cash Flow Statements Page 62

Notes to the Annual Accounts Page 64 to 106
Independent Auditor’s Report Page 58

List of subsidiaries included in the consolidatsmope Pages 103 to 106
Related party transaction Page 103

(b) the SES Annual Report for the year ended 3lebder 2014 set out in the English version including
the 2014 Financial Statements and the informatbrost at the following pages in particular:

Balance Sheet Page 77

Income Statement Page 75
Comprehensive Income Statement Page 76

Changes in Equity Statement Page 79

Cash Flow Statements Page 78

Notes to the Annual Accounts Page 80 to 124
Independent Auditor’s Report Page 74

List of subsidiaries included in the consolidatsmope Pages 121 to 124
Related party transaction Page 119

(c) the SES Annual Report for the year ended 3lebder 2015 set out in the English version including
the 2015 Financial Statements and the informatbrost at the following pages in particular:

Balance Sheet Page 69

Income Statement Page 67
Comprehensive Income Statement Page 68

Changes in Equity Statement Page 71

Cash Flow Statements Page 70

Notes to the Annual Accounts Page 72t0 116
Independent Auditor’s Report Page 66

List of subsidiaries included in the consolidatsmope Pages 114 to 116
Related party transaction Page 113
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(d) the Guarantor’'s consolidated financial statamdor the financial year ended 31 December 2014
drawn up in accordance with IFRS and the infornmasiet out at the following pages in particular:

Independent auditor’s report Pages 3-4

Consolidated income statement Page 5

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income fage

Consolidated statement of financial position Page 7

Consolidated statement of cash flows Page 8

Consolidated statement of changes in shareholdgtsty Page 9

Notes to the consolidated financial statements $4a0ec0

(e) the Guarantor’'s consolidated financial statasdar the financial year ended 31 December 2015

drawn up in accordance with IFRS and the infornmasiet out at the following pages in particular:

Independent auditor’s report Pages 3-4
Consolidated income statement Page 5
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income fage
Consolidated statement of financial position Page 7
Consolidated statement of cash flows Page 8
Consolidated statement of changes in shareholdgtsty Page 9
Notes to the consolidated financial statements $agel9

® pages 239 to 249 of the prospectus dated 27 204% relating to the Capital Raise, which conthim
unaudited interim condensed consolidated finarstalements of the Group as of and for the three
months ended 31 March 2016 drawn up in accordaiitelAS 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” as
adopted by the European Union, together with thievereport of the auditors thereon; and

(9) the articles of association of the Issuer (ianieh and English).

Copies of documents incorporated by reference im Bmospectus can be obtained, without chargengluri
normal business hours from the registered officBE$ at Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf, amah the
specified offices of the Fiscal Agent for the titeing in Luxembourg. This Prospectus and each dentim
incorporated by reference will also be published tre Luxembourg Stock Exchange's website
(www.bourse.l).

Any information not listed in the above cross-refese tables but included in the documents incotpdray
reference is given for information purposes onlg @not required by the relevant schedules of Ciasion
Regulation (EC) No 809/2004, as amended. Any dootintself incorporated by reference in the docureent
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus stwaiform part of this Prospectus.
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OVERVIEW

The following overview refers to certain provisionbthe ‘Terms and Conditions of the Securitieand is
qualified by the more detailed information contaieésewhere in this Prospectus. Capitalised terred herein
have the meaning given to them ifetms and Conditions of the Securities

Issuer

Guarantor

Issue Size

Issue Date

Issue Price

Interest

SES S.A.

SES Global Americas Holdings GP
€750,000,000

10 June 2016

99.666 per cent.

The Securities will bear interest on their printipanount from (and
including) the Issue Date to (but excluding) thesFReset Date at a
rate of 4.625 per cent. per annum, payable annimllgrrear on 2
January in each year, except that the first payroEinterest, to be
made on 2 January 2017, will be in respect of theod from (and
including) the Issue Date to (but excluding) 2 #2017 and will
amount to €26.031 per €1,000 in principal amounthef Securities.
Thereafter, unless previously redeemed, the Sexuritll bear interest
from (and including) the First Reset Date to (bxtleding) 2 January
2027 at a rate per annum which shall be 4.664 eet. @above the 5
year Swap Rate (as defined in the Conditions) ferRbset Period (as
defined in the Conditions), payable annually in armen 2 January in
each year. From (and including) 2 January 2027t €xcluding) 2
January 2042 the Securities will bear interestrate per annum which
shall be 4.914 per cent. above the 5 year Swap Ratthe Reset
Period payable annually in arrear on 2 Januarnah gear. From (and
including) 2 January 2042, the Securities will bedaerest at a rate per
annum which shall be 5.664 per cent. above theab $&ap Rate for
the Reset Period payable annually in arrear omBa¥g in each year,
all as more particularly described imTérms and Conditions of the
Securities—Interest PaymehtSee also Change of Control”
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Optional Interest Deferral

Status of the Securities

Subordination of the Securities

The Issuer may, at its discretion, elect to defleorgpart of any Interest
Payment (eDeferred Interest Paymeitwhich is otherwise scheduled
to be paid on an Interest Payment Date by giviideterral Notice of
such election to the Holders, the Fiscal Agent, Registrar and the
Paying Agents. Subject as described Mahdatory Settlemehtif the
Issuer elects not to make all or part of any Irgefeayment on an
Interest Payment Date, then it will not have anljgaltion to pay such
interest on the relevant Interest Payment Date amg such non-
payment of interest will not constitute an EnforemmnEvent or any
other breach of its obligations under the Secwritie for any other
purpose.

Arrears of Interest may be satisfied at the optifihe Issuer in whole
but not in part at any time (th@ptional Deferred Interest Settlement
Date) following delivery of a notice to such effect giv by the Issuer
to the Holders, the Fiscal Agent, the Registrar tredPaying Agents
informing them of its election to so satisfy suctrédars of Interest (or
part thereof) and specifying the Optional Deferhatrest Settlement
Date.

Any Deferred Interest Payment (or part thereof)lIsitaelf bear
interest (such further interest together with thefdbred Interest
Payment, beingArrears of Interes}, at the Interest Rate prevailing
from time to time, from (and including) the datewhich (but for such
deferral) the Deferred Interest Payment would atfsr have been due
to be made to (but excluding) the Optional Defelrgdrest Settlement
Date or, as appropriate, such other date on whigth Deferred
Interest Payment is paid in accordance with Comdi8(b), in each
case such further interest being compounded on leséatest Payment
Date. Non-payment of Arrears of Interest shall cantstitute a default
by the Issuer under the Securities or for any offuepose, unless such
payment is required in accordance with Conditiorb) 86f the
Securities.

The Securities constitute direct, unsecured and orsliated
obligations of the Issuer and rargari passuand without any
preference among themselves.

In the event of: (a) an order being made, or amcéffe resolution
being passed, for the winding-up of the Issuer dpkcin any such
case, a solvent winding-up solely for the purpasfes reorganisation,
restructuring, reconstruction, merger, conversamalgamation or the
substitution in place of the Issuer of a New Issneaccordance with
Condition 18, the terms of which reorganisationstmecturing,
reconstruction, merger, conversion, amalgamatiosulastitution (x)
are authorised or permitted in accordance withpiawisions of the
Conditions or have previously been approved by atraBrdinary
Resolution (as defined in the Fiscal Agency Agredijramd (y) do not
provide that the Securities shall thereby becoméeemnable or
repayable in accordance with the Conditions); (bjadministrator or
receiver of the Issuer being appointed and suchirdstnator or
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Status of the Guarantee

Subordination of the Guarantee

Mandatory Settlement

receiver giving notice that it intends to declaned adistribute a
dividend or distribution; or (c) any analogous dveelating to the
Issuer to those described in (a) and (b) above ruadg insolvency,
bankruptcy or similar law applicable to the Issulke rights and claims
of the Holders against the Issuer in respect ofiriging under the
Securities will rank (i) junior to the claims ofl dlolders of Senior
Obligations of the Issuer, (ipari passuwith the claims of holders of
all Parity Obligations of the Issuer and (iii) santo the claims of
holders of all Junior Obligations of the Issuere SRisk Factors—
Risks related to the Securities generally—LimitechBdie’

The payment obligations under the Guarantee -catsstitirect,
unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Gt@rand ranlkpari
passuand without any preference among themselves.

In the event of: (a) an order being made, or apcéffe resolution
being passed, for the winding-up of the Guararggcépt, in any such
case, a solvent winding-up solely for the purpasfes reorganisation,
restructuring, reconstruction, merger, converseamalgamation or a
substitution in accordance with Condition 19, tleents of which
reorganisation, restructuring, reconstruction, ragrgconversion,
amalgamation or substitution (x) are authorised parmitted in
accordance with the provisions of the Conditionshave previously
been approved by an Extraordinary Resolution (faatkin the Fiscal
Agency Agreement) and (y) do not provide that tleeugities shall
thereby become redeemable or repayable in accardaith the
Conditions); (b) an administrator or receiver o tGuarantor being
appointed and such administrator or receiver givrgice that it
intends to declare and distribute a dividend airibligtion in respect of
the partnership interests (or, after a substituiorsuant to Condition
19, any other ownership interests) of the Guarantor (c) any
analogous event relating to the Guarantor to tleseribed in (a) and
(b) above under any insolvency, bankruptcy or simiaw applicable
to the Guarantor, the rights and claims of Hol@ayainst the Guarantor
in respect of or arising under the Guarantee \aifikr (i) junior to the
claims of the holders of all Senior Obligationstioé Guarantor, (ii)
pari passuwith the claims of the holders of all Parity Obligas of
the Guarantor and (iii) senior to the claims of thelders of all
Junior Obligations of the Guarantor. S&dsk Factors—Risks related
to the Securities generally—Limited Remedies

Notwithstanding the provisions ofOptional Interest Deferrd] the
Issuer shall pay any outstanding Arrears of Intefesvhole but not in
part, on the first occurring Mandatory SettlementeDiallowing the
Interest Payment Date on which a Deferred InteResgment first
arose.

If a Mandatory Settlement Date does not occur ptathe calendar
day which is the fifth anniversary of the Inter&styment Date on
which the Deferred Interest Payment first aroseisitthe intention,
though not an obligation, of the Issuer to pay altstanding Arrears
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of Interest (in whole, but not in part) on the néstiowing Interest
Payment Date.

No fixed maturity The Securities will be perpetual securities in eespf which there is
no fixed redemption date.

Optional Redemption The Issuer may redeem all, but not some only ofSbeurities on any
Call Date, at their principal amount together withy accrued and
unpaid interest up to (but excluding) the redenmmptitate and any
outstanding Arrears of Interest.

Special Event Redemption If a Special Event has occurred and is continuingn the Issuer may
redeem at any time all, but not some only, of theugties at:

® in the case of a Capital Event, Tax Deductionerif or
Accounting Event where the relevant date fixed for
redemption falls prior to the First Reset Date, ped cent. of
their principal amount;

(i) in the case of a Capital Event, Tax DeductiBrent or
Accounting Event where the relevant date fixed for
redemption falls on or after the First Reset Dategir
principal amount;

(iii) in the case of an Acquisition Event where lsuedemption
occurs at any time, 101 per cent. of their prinicgmaount;

(iv) in the case of a Substantial Repurchase Eventa
Withholding Tax Event where any such redemptioruceat
any time, their principal amount; or

(V) in the case of a Change of Control Event whemg such
redemption occurs at any time, at 101 per centtheir
principal amount,

in each case together with any accrued and unpteédest up to (but
excluding) the redemption date and any outstandingars of Interest.

Change of Control If a Change of Control Event has occurred and iigicaing, the Issuer
may elect to redeem all, but not some only, of 8eeurities at any
time at 101 per cent. of their principal amountetbgr with any
accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excludihg)redemption date
and any outstanding Arrears of Interest.

If the Issuer does not elect to redeem the Seesiribllowing the
occurrence of a Change of Control Event, the thewgiling Interest
Rate, and each subsequent Interest Rate, on theitsc shall be
increased by 5 per cent. per annum with effect ftand including) the
date on which the Change of Control Event occurBs Terms and
Conditions of the Securities—Interest Payments—$tegdter Change
of Control Everit

Acquisition Event If an Acquisition Event has occurred and is contiguthe Issuer may
elect to redeem all, but not some only, of the B8ea at any time at

32



Substitution or Variation

Substitution of Issuer

101 per cent. of their principal amount togethethvéiny accrued and
unpaid interest up to (but excluding) the redemmptitate and any
outstanding Arrears of Interest.

The Issuer may, at its sole discretion and at eng prior to 2 January
2017, give notice (which notice shall be irrevoealib the Holders, in
accordance with Condition 21, and to the Fiscal mgand the
Registrar that it has elected to irrevocably waiseight to redeem the
Securities in the event of an Acquisition Event.

If an Accounting Event, a Capital Event, a Tax Daohin Event or a
Withholding Tax Event has occurred and is contiguiwithout the

consent of Holders the Issuer may either (i) stiistiall, but not some
only, of the Securities for, or (ii) vary the termfsthe Securities with
the effect that they remain or become, as the gwsebe, Qualifying
Securities, in each case in accordance with CamditiO thereof and
subject,inter alia, to the receipt by the Fiscal Agent of the cewiiicof

the directors of the Issuer and the relevant opmiceferred to in
Condition 11 thereof.

Subject to the provisions set out iTefms and Conditions of the
Securities — Substitution of Issliethe Issuer may at any time
substitute for itself as the principal debtor untlee Securities, the
Guarantor or any other member of the Group or aessor in business
of the Issuer provided that (i) a deed poll anchsoiher documents (if
any) are executed by the New Issuer and, to thenextecessary, the
other parties to the Fiscal Agency Agreement, ag beanecessary to
give full effect to the substitution and pursuanthich the New Issuer
undertakes in favour of each Holder and each Adtmlder (as
defined in the Deed of Covenant) to be bound byGbaditions, the
Deed of Covenant and the Fiscal Agency Agreemenprascipal
debtor in respect of the Securities in place of Igmuer, (i) each
Rating Agency confirms that upon the substitutiérine New Issuer
becoming effective the Securities will either habe same credit
rating as immediately prior to the substitutionttoe credit rating will
not be adversely affected, (iii) each Rating Ageoeyfirms that upon
such substitution becoming effective the Securitwdk either still be
eligible for the same, or a higher amount of, “égueredit” (or such
other nomenclature that the Rating Agency may il to describe
the degree to which an instrument exhibits the attaristics of an
ordinary share) as is attributed to the Securit@s the date
immediately prior to such substitution or such ibligy or attribution
will not be adversely affected, (iv) the Fiscal Agdas received legal
opinions addressed to the Holders from legal adviskinternationally
recognised standing approved by it to the eff@bgr alia, that (A) the
New Issuer has obtained all governmental and remylaapprovals
and consents necessary for its assumption of tHigations and
liabilities as principal debtor under the Condispnthe Deed of
Covenant and the Fiscal Agency Agreement in plddbelssuer, the
Holders have rights against the New Issuer at legstvalent to the
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Substitution of Guarantor and
termination of Guarantee

rights they have against the Issuer, subject toother conditions in
Condition 18 having been satisfied such assumptidally effective
and such obligations and liabilities are legallyidrand binding on,
and enforceable against, the New Issuer; (B) symbromals and
consents are in full force and effect at the tirheubstitution; and (C)
confirming, with respect to the New Issuer, comptiawith (v) below,
(v) all payments of principal and interest in rapaf the Securities by
or on behalf of the New Issuer shall be made fred eear of and
without withholding or deduction for or on accouoft any taxes,
duties, assessments or governmental charges ofsedvar nature
imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessedrbyn behalf of the
tax jurisdiction to which it is subject or any galal subdivision
thereof or any authority thereof or therein hayirogver to tax, (vi) any
stock exchange on which the Securities are lisbedirens to the Issuer
and the Fiscal Agent that, after giving effect h@ tsubstitution, the
Securities will continue to be listed on such stegkhange, (vii) two
Authorised Signatories of the New Issuer certifythe Fiscal Agent
that the New Issuer is solvent at the time at witlheh substitution or
appointment is proposed to be effected and (vilip tAuthorised
Signatories of the Issuer or two Authorised Sigrietoof the New
Issuer certify to the Fiscal Agent that, followiegnsultation with an
independent investment bank of international repateindependent
financial adviser with appropriate expertise oreipendent counsel of
recognised standing, the Issuer or, as the caseébmaie New Issuer
has concluded that such substitution (i) will nesult in the New
Issuer having an entitlement, as at the date suloktitution becomes
effective, to redeem the Securities as a reswdt®pecial Event and (ii)
will not result in the terms of the Securities indiaely following
such substitution being materially less favourabléiolders than the
terms of the Securities immediately prior to sughssitution.

The Deed of Guarantee contains provisions whicha(ipw the

Guarantor at any time to substitute itself for Aeotentity in the Group
or a successor in business of the Guarantor; §nfdr(iso long as SES
Global Americas Holdings GP remains Guarantor, [iera

termination of the Guarantee where (I) an ordem@de by any
competent court or effective resolution passedttier winding up or
dissolution of SES Global Americas Holdings GP &id such

winding up or dissolution is for the purposes of prsuant to an
amalgamation, reorganisation or restructuring whilelvent and
pursuant to which SES S.A. assumes all of the siskabilities and
obligations of SES Global Americas Holdings GP,hw#ny such
termination pursuant to (i) above becoming effeetiupon the
relevant winding up or dissolution taking effechelfGuarantor may
only elect to effect any such substitution or teration if (i) no

Enforcement Event has occurred and is continuiigeéch Rating
Agency confirms that upon such substitution or teation becoming
effective the Securities will either have the saomnedit rating as
immediately prior to such substitution or termioatior the credit
rating will not be adversely affected, (iii) eachtRg Agency confirms
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Enforcement Event

Additional Amounts

Form

that upon such substitution or termination becomeffective the
Securities will either still be eligible for thersa, or a higher amount
of, “equity credit” (or such other nomenclaturetttiee Rating Agency
may then use to describe the degree to which @ammsent exhibits the
characteristics of an ordinary share) as is atteitbtio the Securities on
the date immediately prior to such substitutiortesmination or such
eligibility or attribution will not be adversely f@tcted and (iv) two
Authorised Signatories of the Issuer or two Autbed Signatories of
the Guarantor certify to the Fiscal Agent that|dieing consultation
with an independent investment bank of internatiorepute, an
independent financial adviser with appropriate etige or independent
counsel of recognised standing, the Issuer orhesase may be, the
Guarantor has concluded that such substitutioreronibation (i) will
not result in the Issuer having an entitlement,ahghe date such
substitution or termination becomes effective,édaem the Securities
as a result of a Special Event and (i) in the adsesubstitution only,
will not result in the terms of the Securities ahd Guarantee (taken
together) immediately following such substitutioginy materially less
favourable to holders than the terms of the Seesrénd the Guarantee
(taken together) immediately prior to such substitu

If a default is made by the Issuer and the Guardntoa period of 14
days or more in the payment of principal or 21 daysnore in the
payment of interest, in each case in respect oStwirities and which
is due, then any Holder may, at its sole discretiamstitute

proceedings for the winding-up of the Issuer andf@ Guarantor
and/or prove in the winding-up of the Issuer andhloe Guarantor
and/or claim in the liquidation of the Issuer amdfee Guarantor, for
such payment, and in the event of a winding uphef Issuer in a
manner falling within Condition 14(a), any Holddra#l be entitled to
claim for all unpaid principal in respect of a Sefyuit holds together
with any accrued and unpaid interest up to (butuekeg) such date
and any outstanding Arrears of Interest in respéeiny such Security,
with such rights and claims subordinated as pravideCondition 3(a).

Payments in respect of the Securities shall be nfregeand clear of,
and without withholding or deduction for, or on agnt of, taxes of
Luxembourg or the United States or any politicabdvision or any

authority thereof or therein having power to taxpless such

withholding or deduction is required by law. In tixent that any such
withholding or deduction is made, additional amsumiay be payable
by the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case magubgect to certain
exceptions as are more fully described underths and Conditions of
the Securities—Taxatitn

The Securities will be in registered form represdnbn issue by a
global certificate (theSlobal Certificat§ which will be registered in
the name of a nominee for Euroclear and Clearstreasembourg on

the Issue Date. Save in limited circumstances,ifidates will not be

issued in exchange for interests in the Globalifizte.
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Listing and Admission to Trading

Denominations

Governing Law

Ratings

Use of Proceeds

Selling Restrictions

Risk Factors

ISIN
Common Code

Fiscal Agent, Paying Agent,
Transfer Agent and Registrar

Agent Bank

Replacement Intention

Application has been made to list the SecuritiethenOfficial List and
to be admitted to trading on the Market.

The Securities will be issued in denominations 4D&000 and
integral multiples of €1,000 in excess thereof. d¢otificates will be
issued with a denomination below €100,000. SedéurfThe Global
Certificate'.

English law save for the provisions relating to aalination of the
Securities contained in Condition 3(a) which shallbject to the
provisions of Condition 18(d)Substitution of Issugrand Condition
19(e) Gubstitution of Guarantor and termination of Guaed), be

governed by the laws of Luxembourg and the promiicelating to
subordination of the Guarantee contained in Camlité(a) (and
corresponding provisions of the Guarantee) whichl &fe governed by
the laws of Delaware.

The Securities are expected to be rated BB+ bydatan& Poor’s and
Bal by Moody’s. A rating is not a recommendatiotbty, sell or hold
securities and may be subject to suspension, rieduat withdrawal at
any time by the assigning rating agency. As of tade of this
Prospectus, each Rating Agency is a credit ratijgmey established in
the European Union and is registered under RegulatEC) No
1060/2009 (as amended). As such each Rating Ageniogluded in
the list of credit rating agencies published by Eheopean Securities
and Markets Authority on its website in accordansih such
Regulation.

The net proceeds of the issue of the Securitidshailapplied by the
Issuer (i) for general corporate purposes and ¢payment of certain
existing indebtedness of the Group; and (ii) thEyeent of a portion
of the existing indebtedness of O3b.

The United States, the United Kingdom, France, dapad the
Republic of Italy. See “Subscription and Sale”.

Category 2 offering restrictions have been implemmeénfor the
purposes of Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Prospective investors should carefully consideritii@rmation set out
in “Risk Factorsin conjunction with the other information contaih
or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus.

XS1405777746
140577774

BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch

BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch

Unless (a) the rating assigned by Standard & Potw’she Issuer is at
least “BBB” (or such similar nomenclature then useyl Standard &
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Poor’s) and the Issuer is of the view that suchngtwould not fall

below this level as a result of such redemptionepurchase; or (b)
the Securities are not assigned an “equity credidt such similar

nomenclature then used by Standard & Poor’s), a time of such
redemption or repurchase; or (c) in the case ofepurchase, such
repurchase is in an amount necessary to allow Hsedr's aggregate
principal amount of hybrid capital remaining outsthng after such
repurchase to remain below the maximum aggregateipal amount

of hybrid capital to which Standard & Poor's woultksign equity
content under its prevailing methodology, the Issatends (without
thereby assuming a legal obligation), during theriqud from and

including the issue date of the Securities to bidlugling the Reset
Date falling on 2 January 2042, in the event of:

@ an early redemption of the Securities pursuemCondition
9(b); or
(i) a repurchase of the Securities of more thanl(Q per cent. of

the aggregate principal amount of the Securitiegioally
issued in any period of 12 consecutive months pR2%bhper
cent. of the aggregate principal amount of the Btes
originally issued in any period of 10 consecutieang,

to redeem or repurchase such Securities only toettient that such
part of the aggregate principal amount of the Sdims to be

redeemed or repurchased as was characterised agydnu Standard
& Poor’s at the time of their issuance (but takimgo account any
changes in hybrid capital methodology or anotherlevant

methodology or the interpretation thereof since tbsuance of the
Securities) does not exceed such part of the netepds which is
received by the Issuer or any subsidiary of thedssluring the 360-
day period prior to the date of such redemptiomepurchase from the
sale or issuance by the Issuer or any subsidiartheflssuer to third
party purchasers (other than subsidiaries of treu&) of securities as
is characterised by Standard & Poor’s, at the tiofesale or issuance,
as equity.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SECURITIES

The following, except for paragraphs in italicseahe terms and conditions of the Securities whiithbe
endorsed on each Security in definitive form @§tied).

The issue of the €750,000,000 Deeply SubordinateddFRate Resettable Securities (Becurities which
expression shall, unless the context otherwise imegjuinclude any further securities issued pursuan
Condition 22 and forming a single series with thexBities) of SES S.A. (thkssuen was authorised by
resolutions of the board of directors of the Isspassed on 7 April 2016 and approved by the ekexut
committee of the Issuer on 9 May 2016, and the antae of the Securities was authorised by resalatif
the partners of SES Global Americas Holdings Gle Gharantor) dated 27 April 2016. The Securities are
subject to, and have the benefit of, a deed of cave(theDeed of Covenantdated 10 June 2016 entered into
by the Issuer. The Securities are also the subjeatfiscal agency agreement (thiscal Agency Agreemeint
dated 10 June 2016 relating to the Securities letwibe Issuer, the Guarantor, BNP Paribas Seauritie
Services, Luxembourg Branch as fiscal agent andngaggent (the-iscal Agent and together with any
additional or successor paying agents, Baging Agenty, BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg
Branch as agent bank (tAgent Bank, BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg &ras registrar (the
Registra) and the transfer agents named therein (togetliter the Registrar, thdransfer Agents which
expression includes any successor or additionasfea agents appointed from time to time in coripaciith
the Securities). These terms and conditions (asidetefrom time to time) (th€onditiong include summaries
of, and are subject to, the detailed provisionthef Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Deed of Covenadtthe
Deed of Guarantee (as defined in ConditionThe(Guarante¢. The Fiscal Agency Agreement includes the
forms of the Securities. Copies of (i) the Fiscal Agency Agreement; (ii) the Deed of Covenant; and (iii) the Deed

of Guarantee are available for inspection duringalbusiness hours at the principal office of tiec& Agent
(presently at 60, avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-2085 Lupanmyg). The holders of the Securities are entittethe
benefit of, are bound by, and are deemed to hatreenof, all the provisions of the Deed of Covenantl the
Deed of Guarantee applicable to them and to haveenof all of the provisions of the Fiscal Agency
Agreement applicable to them.

1 Form, Denomination and Title
(@) Form and Denomination

The Securities are issued in registered form indireominations of €100,000 and integral multiple€1000
in excess thereof up to and including €199,000eéusty certificate (each @ertificate) will be issued to each
holder in respect of its registered holding of S#ims. Each Certificate will be serially humberedith an
identifying number which will be recorded on théekant Certificate and in the register of holdetsich the
Issuer will procure to be kept by the Registrae Registey.

The Issuer will maintain a register of holders lo¢ tSecurities at its registered office in accordawith the
provisions of the Luxembourg law of 10 August 194% commercial companies, as amended, which shall
match the Register with regard to the entries thete the event of any discrepancy between thedRagand

the register held by the Issuer at its registefédep the register held by the Issuer at its rieged office shall
prevail for Luxembourg law purposes.

The Fiscal Agency Agreement contains provisionschvtiblige the Registrar promptly to provide an upda
copy of the Register to the Issuer on the Issue Batl at any time following any amendment to thgifRer, in
order to allow the Issuer to update the registét bt at its registered office to reflect thegraer.

(b)  Title

Title to the Securities passes only by registratiothe Register. The holder of any Security wik¢ept as
otherwise required by law) be treated as its absawner forall purposes (whether or not it is overdue and
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regardless of any notice of ownership, trust or Emgrest in itany writing on it, or its theft or loss of, the
Certificate issued in respect of it) and no pensiihbe liable for sareating the holder. In these Conditions,
Holder or holder means the person in whose name a Securitggistered in the Register.

(©) Transfers

A Security may be transferred by depositing thetiieate issued in respect of that Security, witle form of
transfer on the back duly completed and signedthatspecified office of the Registrar or any of the
Transfer Agents.

(d) Delivery of new Certificates

Each new Certificate to be issued upon transfesemfurities will, within five business days of reately the
Registrar or the relevant Transfer Agent of theydebmpleted form of transfer endorsed on the
relevantCertificate, be mailed by uninsured mail at th& a6the Holder entitled to the Security to the radd
specifiedin the form of transfer. For the purposes of thandition, business dayshall mean a day on which
banks areopen for business in the city in which the spedifieffice of the Registrar or Transfer Agent
with whom aCertificate is deposited in connection with a tfanss located.

Where some but not all of the Securities in respéethich a Certificate is issued are to be trameff a new
Certificate in respect of the Securities not smdfarred will, within five business days of recelpt the
Registrar or the relevant Transfer Agent of thgiogdl Certificate, be mailed by uninsured mailtee tisk of
theHolder of the Securities not so transferred to dddress of such Holder appearing on the Register or
asspecified in the form of transfer.

(e) Formalities free of charge

Registration of transfer of Securities will be effed without charge by or on behalf of the Isstheg,Registrar

or any Transfer Agent upon payment (or the giviigslach indemnity as the Issuer, the Registrar or an
Transfer Agent may reasonably require) in respécany stamp duty, tax or other governmental charges
which may be imposed irelation to such transfer.

® Closed periods

No Holder may require the transfer of a Securitpeaegistered during the period of 15 days endimthe due
date for any payment of principal or premium ont t8acurity or in the period falling 15 days prior any
Interest Payment Date.

(9) Regulations

All transfers of Securities and entries on the Biegiwill be made subject to such reasonable régntaas the
Issuer and the Registrar may from time to timegiks (the initial such regulations being set ouSchedule 3
to the Fiscal Agency Agreement).

2 Status

The Securities constitute direct, unsecured andrdirtated obligations of the Issuer and rauaki passuand
without any preference among themselves. The righdsclaims of the Holders are subordinated agitestin
Condition 3 Subordinatioi.

3 Subordination
€) General

In the event of;
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(@) an order being made, or an effective resolutiomdp@assed, for the winding-up of the Issuer (except
in any such case, a solvent winding-up solely fog purposes of a reorganisation, restructuring,
reconstruction, merger, conversion, amalgamatiothersubstitution in place of the Issuer of a New
Issuer in accordance with Condition 18upstitution of Issugrthe terms of which reorganisation,
restructuring, reconstruction, merger, conversamalgamation or substitution (x) are authorised or
permitted in accordance with the provisions of ¢h€snditions or have previously been approved by
an Extraordinary Resolution and (y) do not proviug the Securities shall thereby become redeemable
or repayable in accordance with these Conditions);

(b) an administrator or receiver of the Issuer beingoaped and such administrator or receiver giving
notice that it intends to declare and distributévédend or distribution; or

(c) any analogous event relating to the Issuer to theseribed in (a) and (b) above under any insolyenc
bankruptcy or similar law applicable to the Issuer,

the rights and claims of the Holders against tiseids in respect of or arising under the Securitidisrank

(i) junior to the claims of all holders of Seniotbl@ations of the Issuer, (iipari passuwith the claims of
holders of all Parity Obligations of the Issuer diiiJl senior to the claims of holders of all Juni®bligations of
the Issuer.

Nothing in this Condition 3(a) shall affect or pretice the payment of the costs, charges, expelsgiities or
remuneration of the Agents or the rights and reesdf the Agents in respect thereof.

Accordingly, and without prejudice to the rightstbé Agents, the claims of holders of all Senioligations
will first have to be satisfied in any winding-up administration or any other proceeding describied(a)
through (c) above before the Holders may expecobtain any recovery in respect of their Securi@s prior
thereto Holders will have only limited ability tofluence the conduct of such winding-up or adniatistn. See
the section entitled “Risk Factors — Risks relaiedhe Securities generally — Limited Remedies”.

The Issuer does not have any Preferred Sharesdktiuer outstanding and the Issuer’s articlesssogiation

do not provide for the issuance of such sharesheyl$suer. For so long as any of the Securitiesarem
outstanding, the Guarantor and the Issuer do nterid to issue any Preferred Shares of the Is$treferred
Shares of the Issuemeans any shares in the Issuer which constituggital without voting rights” issued in
accordance with Article 44(1) of the Luxembourg lafvl0 August 1915 on Commercial Companies, as
amended, and which confer a preferential right withpect to the reimbursement of contributions.

(b) Set-off

Subject to applicable law, no Holder may exerait&im or plead any right of set-off, compensatiometention
in respect of any amount owed to it by the Issuereispect of, or arising under or in connectiorhwifie
Securities and each Holder shall, by virtue oftiokding of any Security, be deemed to have wailkduzh
rights of set-off, compensation or retention.

4 The Guarantee

The Guarantor has, subject to the provisions ofditimm 19 Substitution of the Guarantor and termination of
the Guaranteg unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the ghayment of all sums expressed to be
payable by the lIssuer under the Securities on ardunated basis. Its obligations in that respebe (t
Guaranteg are set out in the deed of guarantee dated she Bate and made by the Guarantor for the beofefit
the Holders (th®eed of Guarantee
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5 Status of the Guarantee

The payment obligations under the Guarantee catestitirect, unsecured and subordinated obligatidribe
Guarantor and rangari passuand without any preference among themselves. @h@e of the subordination
of the Guarantee is described in Conditiors6Hordination of the Guarantge

6 Subordination of the Guarantee
€)) General
In the event of;

(@) an order being made, or an effective resolutiomdaeiassed, for the winding-up of the Guarantor
(except, in any such case, a solvent winding-ugehgofor the purposes of a reorganisation,
restructuring, reconstruction, merger, conversiamalgamation or a substitution or termination in
accordance with Condition 1$(bstitution of Guarantor and termination of Guaea), the terms of
which reorganisation, restructuring, reconstructimerger, conversion, amalgamation, substitution or
termination (x) are authorised or permitted in adaace with the provisions of these Conditionsher t
Deed of Guarantee or have previously been apprbyeaih Extraordinary Resolution and (y) do not
provide that the Securities shall thereby becontieamable or repayable in accordance with these
Conditions);

(b) an administrator or receiver of the Guarantor beipgointed and such administrator or receiver givin
notice that it intends to declare and distributgivadend or distribution in respect of the partingjps
interests (or, after a substitution pursuant toditoom 19 Substitution of Guarantor and termination of
Guaranteg, any other ownership interests) of the Guarartor;

(c) any analogous event relating to the Guarantor tsethdescribed in (a) and (b) above under any
insolvency, bankruptcy or similar law applicabletie Guarantor,

the rights and claims of Holders against the Guaran respect of or arising under the Guarantde nank
() junior to the claims of the holders of all SanDbligations of the Guarantor, (fpari passuwith the claims
of the holders of all Parity Obligations of the @tor and (iii) senior to the claims of the hoklef all
Junior Obligations of the Guarantor.

Nothing in this Condition 6(a) shall affect or pretice the payment of the costs, charges, expelesgities or
remuneration of the Agents or the rights and reesdf the Agents in respect thereof.

Accordingly, and without prejudice to the rightstbé Agents, the claims of holders of all Senioligations
will first have to be satisfied in any winding-up administration or any other proceeding describied(a)

through (c) above before the Holders may expecbtain any recovery in respect of the Guarantee jamaor

thereto Holders will have only limited ability tofluence the conduct of such winding-up or adniatigtn. See
the section entitled “Risk Factors — Risks relaedhe Securities generally — Limited Remedies”.

(b) Set-off

Subject to applicable law, no Holder may exerait&im or plead any right of set-off, compensatiometention
in respect of any amount owed to it by the Guamaimaespect of, or arising under or in connectidth the
Guarantee and each Holder shall, by virtue of bidihg of any Security, be deemed to have waivéduth
rights of set-off, compensation or retention.
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7 Interest Payments
€)) Interest Rate

The Securities bear interest on their principal ami@t the applicable Interest Rate from (and idiclg) 10
June 2016 (thé&ssue Datg¢ in accordance with the provisions of this Corufiti/.

Subject to Condition 8Jptional Interest Deferrd] interest shall be payable on the Securities alhynin arrear
on each Interest Payment Date as provided in thisdifion 7, except that the first payment of ingtréo be
made on 2 January 2017, will be in respect of #réod from (and including) the Issue Date to (bxtleding)
2 January 2017 and will amount to €26.031 per Qaticm Amount (as defined below).

(b) Interest Accrual

The Securities will cease to bear interest frond (ertluding) the date of redemption thereof pursuarthe
relevant paragraph of Condition Rddemptiopor the date of substitution thereof pursuant tmdition 10
(Substitution or Variatio)) as the case may be, unless payment of all ammolurg in respect of the Securities is
not made, in which event interest shall continuadorue in respect of unpaid amounts on the Sesrhoth
before and after judgment, and shall be payablegragided in these Conditions up to (but excluditiog
Relevant Date.

Save as provided in Condition 7(c), where it isassary to calculate an amount of interest in réspleany
Security for a period which is less than a completar, such interest shall be calculated on theés lmsthe
actual number of days in the period from (and iditig) the most recent Interest Payment Date (omiife, the
Issue Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payndané divided by the actual number of days in tréod from
(and including) the most recent Interest Paymen¢ Dar, if none, the Issue Date) to (but excludithg) next (or
first) scheduled Interest Payment Date.

Where it is necessary to calculate an amount efést in respect of any Security for a period ofertban one
year, such interest shall be the aggregate ofntieegist payable in respect of a full year plusittiherest payable
in respect of the remaining period calculated anrttanner as aforesaid.

Interest in respect of any Security shall be caked per €1,000 in principal amount thereof @séculation
Amount). The amount of interest payable per Calculationofnt for any period shall, save as provided in
Condition 7(c), be equal to the product of thevata Interest Rate, the Calculation Amount anddie count
fraction as described in this Condition 7(b) foe tielevant period, rounding the resulting figurdhte nearest
cent (half a cent being rounded upwards). The atnafuinterest payable in respect of each Secuhigfl$e the
aggregate of the amounts (determined in the mgmosided above) for each Calculation Amount conipgs
the denomination of such Security without any farttounding.

() First Fixed Interest Rate

For each Interest Period ending on or before thet Reset Date and subject to Condition 8, the IBexibear
interest at the rate of 4.625 per cent. per antheHrst Fixed Interest Rat§, payable annually in arrear on the
Interest Payment Date in each year, except thdtrdigpayment of interest, to be made on 2 Jan@ady, will
be in respect of the period from (and includingg tesue Date to (but excluding) 2 January 2017 witid
amount to €26.031 per Calculation Amount.

(d) Subsequent Fixed Interest Rates

For each Interest Period which commences on ar thfteFirst Reset Date and subject to Conditio@gtibnal
Interest Deferra), the Securities bear interest at the relevans&myeent Fixed Interest Rate. Such interest shall
be payable annually in arrear on the Interest PayrBate in each year and shall be calculated, sulje
Condition 7(i) below, as follows:
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Subsequent Fixed Interest Rat& year Swap Rate + Margin
all as determined by the Agent Bank and where,

5 year Swap Rateeans the annual mid-swap rate as displayed oteRescreen “ISDAFIX2" as at 11:00 a.m.
(Central European time) (tHReset Screen Pagy®n the day falling two Business Days prior to finst day of
the relevant Reset Period (tReset Interest Determination Date

If the 5 year Swap Rate does not appear on the Beseen Page on the Reset Interest Determinatibe, the
5 year Swap Rate will be the Reset Reference Bank Rate on such Reset Interest Determination Date;

Reset Reference Bank Ratmeans the percentage rate determined on the bh$ie 5 year Swap Rate
Quotations provided by five leading swap dealerthiminterbank market (thReset Reference Bankso the
Agent Bank at approximately 11:00 a.m. (Centraldpean time) on such Reset Interest Determinatide.Da
at least three quotations are provided, the 5 @eap Rate will be the arithmetic mean of the qumtat
eliminating the highest quotation (or, in the evehéquality, one of the highest) and the lowegitgtion (or, in
the event of equality, one of the lowest);

the 5 year Swap Rate Quotationmeans, in respect of each Interest Period falliitgin a Reset Period, the
arithmetic mean of the bid and offered rates ferahnual fixed leg (calculated on a 30/360 day tbasis) of
a fixed-for-floating euro interest rate swap whichhas a term of 5 years commencing on the releRaset
Interest Determination Date, (ii) is in an amoumattis representative of a single transaction & riflevant
market at the relevant time with an acknowledgedlateof good credit in the swap market, and (idsha
floating leg based on therfienth EURIBOR rate (calculated on an Actual/360 day count basis); and

Margin means in respect of (i) the Reset Period endinfponexcluding) 2 January 2027, 4.6 cent.; (ii)
each Reset Period which falls in the period comimgnen (and including) 2 January 2027 and endingborn
excluding) 2 January 2042, 4.9pér cent.; and (iii) each Reset Period which falls on or after 2 January 2042,
5.664 per cent.

If on any Reset Interest Determination Date onlg onnone of the Reset Reference Banks provideAdghet
Bank with a 5 year Swap Rate Quotation as provittethe foregoing provisions of this paragraph, the
Subsequent Fixed Interest Rate shall be deterniinbd (i) the Interest Rate as at the last pregeR#set Date
less the Margin applicable as from the last preggéieset Date plus the Margin applicable as fraenctirrent
Reset Interest Determination Date or (ii) in theecaf the first Reset Interest Determination D#ie, First
Fixed Interest Rate.

The Subsequent Fixed Interest Rate shall be detethds provided above in respect of each ReseatdPanid,
as so determined, such rate shall apply to eaenelsit Period falling within that Reset Period.

For the purposes of this Condition 7(d), the Ageahk shall not be responsible to the Issuer omiothird
party as a result of the Agent Bank having relipdruor acted on any quotation or information giterit for

the purposes of calculating the Subsequent Fix¢éeldst Rate or the Reset Reference Bank Rate which
subsequently may be found to be incorrect or in@ateun any way or for any losses whatsoever riegsuftom
acting in accordance therewith.

(e) Determination of Subsequent Fixed Interest Rates

The Agent Bank will, as soon as practicable afte©Q a.m. (Central European time) on each Resetesit
Determination Date, determine the Subsequent Firtatest Rate in respect of each Interest Peritithda
within the relevant Reset Period.
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® Publication of Subsequent Fixed Interest Rates

The Issuer shall cause notice of each Subsequert Fnterest Rate determined in accordance with thi
Condition 7 in respect of each relevant Interesiofleio be given to the Fiscal Agent, the Registitae Paying
Agents, any stock exchange on which the Secuitiedor the time being listed or admitted to trgdamd, in
accordance with Condition 2Néticeg, the Holders, in each case as soon as practiedtieleits determination
but in any event not later than the fourth Busirigayg thereafter.

(9) Agent Bank and Reset Reference Banks

With effect from the Reset Interest Determinaticatdrelating to the First Reset Date, the Issubmudintain
an Agent Bank and five Reset Reference Banks wheriterest Rate is to be calculated by referém¢eem.
The name of the initial Agent Bank and its iniglecified office is set out at the end of thesedt@mns.

The Issuer may from time to time replace the Adgamk with another leading financial institution liondon,
Paris or Luxembourg. If the Agent Bank is unabl@awilling to continue to act as the Agent BanKails duly
to determine a Subsequent Fixed Interest Ratesjpent of any Interest Period as provided in Coomlifi(d),
the Issuer shall forthwith appoint another leadingncial institution in London, Paris or Luxembguo act as
such in its place. The Agent Bank may not resigndiities or be removed without a successor haveeg b
appointed as aforesaid.

(h) Determinations of Agent Bank Binding

All notifications, opinions, determinations, ceidétes, calculations, quotations and decisionsngiegpressed,
made or obtained for the purposes of this Condifidny the Agent Bank shall (in the absence of Wilfefault,
manifest error or negligence) be binding on thedssthe Guarantor, the other Agents and all Hslderd (in
the absence of wilful default, manifest error ogligeence) no liability to the Holders or the Issshall attach to
the Agent Bank in connection with the exercise ar-gxercise by it of any of its powers, duties disdretions.

® Step-up after Change of Control Event

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Condliti7, if the Issuer does not elect to redeem tloar8ies in
accordance with Condition 9(gRédemption for Change of Control Eveftllowing the occurrence of a
Change of Control Event, the then prevailing InderBate, and each subsequent Interest Rate otkerwis
determined in accordance with the provisions o tondition 7, on the Securities shall be incredsel per
cent. per annum with effect from (and includingg thate on which the Change of Control Event occurre

8 Optional Interest Deferral
€)) Deferral of Payments

The Issuer may, at its discretion, elect to delleorgpart of any Interest Payment Deferred Interest Paymet
which is otherwise scheduled to be paid on an éstePayment Date by giving notice Qaferral Notice of
such election to the Holders in accordance withditmmm 21 (Notice3, the Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and the
Paying Agents not more than 14 nor fewer than 7ri&ss Days prior to the relevant Interest Paymeate D
Subject to Condition 8(b), if the Issuer elects tmimake all or part of any Interest Payment onrderest
Payment Date, then it will not have any obligattonpay such interest on the relevant Interest PaybDate
and any such non-payment of interest will not dtumst an Enforcement Event (as defined in Conditldn
(Enforcement Evejjtor any other breach of its obligations under$leeurities or for any other purpose.

Arrears of Interest (as defined below) may be fatisat the option of the Issuer in whole but nopart at any
time (theOptional Deferred Interest Settlement Datiollowing delivery of a notice to such effect giv by the
Issuer to the Holders in accordance with Condig@anNotices, the Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and the Paying
Agents not more than 14 nor fewer than 7 Busineags[prior to the relevant Optional Deferred Interes
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Settlement Date informing them of its election dosatisfy such Arrears of Interest and specifyimg elevant
Optional Deferred Interest Settlement Date.

Any Deferred Interest Payment shall itself beagenest (such further interest together with the DeteInterest
Payment, beind\rrears of Interes}, at the Interest Rate prevailing from time todjnfrom (and including) the
date on which (but for such deferral) the Deferrgdrest Payment would otherwise have been due todde
to (but excluding) the relevant Optional Deferratetest Settlement Date or, as appropriate, suwr date on
which such Deferred Interest Payment is paid iroatance with Condition 8(b), in each case suchhéurt
interest being compounded on each Interest PayDeet

Non-payment of Arrears of Interest shall not cdno&ti a default by the Issuer or the Guarantor urlder
Securities or for any other purpose, unless sughmeat is required in accordance with Condition 8(b)

(b) Mandatory Settlement of Arrears of Interest

Notwithstanding the provisions of Condition 8(alptig to the ability of the Issuer to defer Intr@ayments,
the Issuer, failing which the Guarantor, shall pay outstanding Arrears of Interest, in whole battin part, on
the first occurring Mandatory Settlement Date failag the Interest Payment Date on which a Defeméstest
Payment first arose.

Notice of the occurrence of any Mandatory Settlenigeate shall be given to the Holders in accordanite
Condition 21 Noticeg, the Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and the Payiggms not more than 14 and no fewer
than 7 Business Days prior to the relevant Mangabettlement Date.

If a Mandatory Settlement Date does not occur ptiothe calendar day which is the fifth anniversafythe
Interest Payment Date on which the relevant Detemerest Payment first arose, it is the intentittrough not
an obligation, of the Issuer to pay all outstandidgears of Interest (in whole, but not in part) tme next
following Interest Payment Date.

9 Redemption
€)) No Fixed Redemption Date

The Securities are perpetual securities in resgfaghich there is no fixed redemption date andiiseier shall
(subject to the provisions of Condition 3(&upordination — Genergl only have the right to repay them in
accordance with the following provisions of thisn@dion 9.

(b) Issuer’s Call Option

The Issuer may, by giving not fewer than 30 norentyan 60 days’ notice to the Fiscal Agent, theifReay
and, in accordance with Condition 24ctice3, the Holders (which notice shall be irrevocablejeem all, but
not some only, of the Securities on any Call Datiyeir principal amount together with any accraed unpaid
interest up to (but excluding) the redemption datd any outstanding Arrears of Interest. Upon ttare of
such notice, the Issuer shall redeem the Securities

(©) Redemption for Certain Taxation Reasons

If, immediately prior to the giving of the noticeferred to below, a Tax Deduction Event or a Witdimgy Tax
Event has occurred and is continuing, then theetssay, subject to having given not fewer than 80more
than 60 days’ notice to the Fiscal Agent, the Resjisand, in accordance with Condition 24ofices, the
Holders (which notice shall be irrevocable) andjettbto Condition 11 Freconditions to Special Event
Redemption, Change of Control Event RedemptionstiBution and Variatiol, redeem in accordance with
these Conditions at any time all, but not some,aflthe Securities at (i) 101 per cent. of theingipal amount
(in the case of a Tax Deduction Event where sudemgtion occurs prior to the First Reset Date)iptheir
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principal amount (in the case of a Tax DeductioerEwvhere such redemption occurs on or after tret Reset
Date or in the case of a Withholding Tax Event wh&nch redemption occurs at any time), togetheeaith
case, with any accrued and unpaid interest up b €kcluding) the redemption date and any outstandi
Arrears of Interest. Upon the expiry of such nqttbe Issuer shall redeem the Securities.

(d) Redemption for Rating Reasons

If, immediately prior to the giving of the noticeferred to below, a Capital Event has occurred iand
continuing, then the Issuer may, subject to hagivgn not fewer than 30 nor more than 60 days'aectd the
Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and, in accordance @ihdition 21 Noticeg, the Holders (which notice shall be
irrevocable) and subject to Condition Bréconditions to Special Event Redemption, Chahggoatrol Event
Redemption, Substitution and Variatjpredeem in accordance with these Conditiongatlnot some only, of
the Securities at any time at (i) 101 per centhefr principal amount (where such redemption cgqrior to
the First Reset Date) or (ii) their principal ambwhere such redemption occurs on or after thet Reset
Date), together, in each case, with any accruediapdid interest up to (but excluding) the redeomptiate and
any outstanding Arrears of Interest. Upon the gxgirsuch notice, the Issuer shall redeem the S@xsir

(e) Redemption for Accounting Reasons

If, immediately prior to the giving of the noticeferred to below, an Accounting Event has occuemed is
continuing, then the Issuer may, subject to hagivgn not fewer than 30 nor more than 60 days'aecto the
Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and, in accordance @®ihdition 21 Noticeg, the Holders (which notice shall be
irrevocable) and subject to Condition Bréconditions to Special Event Redemption, Chahggoatrol Event
Redemption, Substitution and Variatjpredeem in accordance with these Conditiongatinot some only, of
the Securities at any time at (i) 101 per centhefr principal amount (where such redemption cgqirior to
the First Reset Date) or (ii) their principal amb@where such redemption occurs on or after thet Reset
Date), together, in each case, with any accruediapdid interest up to (but excluding) the redeomptiate and
any outstanding Arrears of Interest. Upon the gxgirsuch notice, the Issuer shall redeem the S@sir

® Redemption for Substantial Repurchase

If, immediately prior to the giving of the noticeferred to below, a Substantial Repurchase Evenbbeurred,
then the Issuer may, subject to having given neefe¢han 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to tisediAgent,
the Registrar and, in accordance with Condition(Raticeg, the Holders (which notice shall be irrevocable)
and subject to Condition 1Pieconditions to Special Event Redemption, Chafgioatrol Event Redemption,
Substitution and Variationredeem in accordance with these Conditionsatinot some only, of the Securities
at any time at their principal amount, togethetwany accrued and unpaid interest up to (but eku)dhe
redemption date and any outstanding Arrears ofésteUpon the expiry of such notice, the Issuall sedeem
the Securities.

(9) Redemption for Change of Control Event

If, immediately prior to the giving of the noticeferred to below, a Change of Control Event hasmed and is
continuing, then the Issuer may, subject to hagivgn not fewer than 52 nor more than 82 days’'aecto the
Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and, in accordance @ihdition 21 Noticeg, the Holders (which notice shall be
irrevocable) and subject to Condition Bréconditions to Special Event Redemption, Chahggoatrol Event
Redemption, Substitution and Variatjpredeem in accordance with these Conditiongatlnot some only, of
the Securities at any time at 101 per cent. ofr thencipal amount, together with any accrued angaid
interest up to (but excluding) the redemption datd any outstanding Arrears of Interest. Upon tture of
such notice, the Issuer shall redeem the Securities
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(h) Redemption for Acquisition Event

If an Acquisition Event has occurred and is coritiguthen the Issuer may, subject to having givenfewer
than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the Fidgant, the Registrar and, in accordance with Gamdi21
(Notice3, the Holders (which notice shall be irrevocalaeyl subject to Condition 1Pfeconditions to Special
Event Redemption, Change of Control Event RedempHaobstitution and Variatignredeem in accordance
with these Conditions all, but not some only, of tBecurities at any time at 101 per cent. of thaircipal
amount, together with any accrued and unpaid istenp to (but excluding) the redemption date ang an
outstanding Arrears of Interest. Upon the expirgwth notice, the Issuer shall redeem the Seauritie

The Issuer may, at its sole discretion and at emg prior to 2 January 2017, give notice (whichiceshall be
irrevocable) to the Holders, in accordance with ditton 21 (Noticeg, and to the Fiscal Agent and the Registrar
that it has elected to irrevocably waive its righredeem the Securities pursuant to this Condgi@dr). Upon
such notice being given, the Issuer shall no lofgeentitled to exercise its rights under this Qo 9(h).

10 Substitution or Variation

If an Accounting Event, a Capital Event, a Tax Daaun Event or a Withholding Tax Event (each a
Substitution or Variation Eventhas occurred and is continuing, then the Issusy, subject to Condition 11
(without any requirement for the consent or appra¥ahe Holders), and having given not fewer ttghnor
more than 60 days’ notice to the Fiscal Agent,Registrar and, in accordance with Condition Rt{ce3, the
Holders (which notice shall be irrevocable), at aimye either (i) substitute all, but not some ordf,the
Securities for, or (i) vary the terms of the Séiteis with the effect that they remain or becometfee case may
be), Qualifying Securities, and the Fiscal Agerdlisfsubject to the following provisions of this @tition 10
and subject to the receipt by it of the certificafetwo Authorised Signatories of the Issuer refdrto in
Condition 11 Preconditions to Special Event Redemption, Charigéoatrol Event Redemption, Substitution
and Variatior)) agree to such substitution or variation.

Upon expiry of such notice, the Issuer shall eitha&ry the terms of or, as the case may be, sutsstihe
Securities in accordance with this Condition 10.

The Fiscal Agent shall, at the expense of the tssuse reasonable endeavours to assist the lssubei
substitution of the Securities for, or the variatiof the terms of the Securities so that they ramai as
appropriate, become, Qualifying Securities, proditieat the Fiscal Agent shall not be obliged tdipigrate in,
or assist with, any such substitution or variatibthe terms of the proposed Qualifying Securit@sthe
participation in or assistance with such substtutdr variation would impose, in the Fiscal Agerdfsinion,
more onerous obligations upon it or expose itdbilities or reduce its protections. If the Fisgkent does not
participate or assist as provided above, the Issumy redeem the Securities as provided in Condifion
(Redemption

In connection with any substitution or variationaocordance with this Condition 10, the Issuerlst@hply
with the rules of any stock exchange on which theusities are for the time being listed or admitietrading.

Any such substitution or variation in accordancehwthe foregoing provisions following a Substitutior
Variation Event shall only be permitted if it dagst give rise to any other Substitution or Variatievent with
respect to the Qualifying Securities.

Any such substitution or variation in accordancehwthe foregoing provisions following a Substitutior
Variation Event shall only be permitted if it dagst result in the Qualifying Securities no longeiriy eligible
for the same, or a higher amount of, “equity cfe(it such other nomenclature that the Rating Agemay
then use to describe the degree to which an insmumxhibits the characteristics of an ordinaryrghas is
attributed to the Securities on the date notiggvien to Holders of the substitution or variation.
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In these ConditionQualifying Securitiesmeans securities that:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(€)

11

are issued by the Issuer or any wholly-owned dioedghdirect finance subsidiary of the Issuer wath
guarantee of such obligations by the Issuer andaicth case, continue to have the benefit of the
Guarantee on substantially the same terms as th#itses benefitted prior to such substitution or
variation;

rank and (save in the case of a direct issue bistuer) benefit from a guarantee that ranks itii

to the obligations of the Issuer under such seeariand/or such guarantee (as the case may be),
equally with the Securities anmhri passuin a winding-up or liquidation of the Issuer widiny Parity
Obligations of the Issuer;

contain terms not materially less favourable toddos than the terms of the Securities (as reaspnabl
determined by the Issuer) and which:

® provide for the same or a more favourable InteRete from time to time as applied to the
Securities immediately prior to such substitutionvariation and preserve the same Interest
Payment Dates;

(i) preserve the obligations (including the obligatianising from the exercise of any right) of the
Issuer as to principal and as to redemption of3beurities, including (without limitation) as
to timing of, and amounts payable upon, such rediemp

(iii) preserve any existing rights under these Conditionany accrued interest, any Deferred
Interest Payments, any Arrears of Interest andodimgr amounts payable under the Securities
which, in each case, has accrued to Holders anbesst paid;

(iv) do not provide for the mandatory deferral of paytaesd interest and/or principal;

(V) do not provide for loss absorption through printipsite down or conversion to ordinary
shares; and

(vi) may include a feature which contains a term fomttamdatory repayment of such securities on
a specified date which shall not be earlier thandhte on which the next Call Date would
have fallen under the Securities (and the inclusibauch feature shall be deemed not to be
materially less favourable to Holders as comparigid thve terms of the Securities);

are (i) listed on the official list of the LuxemlrguStock Exchange and admitted to trading on its
regulated market or (i) listed on such other in&tionally recognised exchange platform in an OECD
country as is selected by the Issuer; and

will have at least the same credit rating as tleglitrrating ascribed to the Securities by eachrigati
Agency immediately prior to such substitution oriagon.

Preconditions to Special Event Redemption, Changd €ontrol Event Redemption, Substitution

and Variation

Prior to the publication of any notice of redemptipursuant to Condition 9Redemption (other than
redemption pursuant to Condition 9(b)) or any retef substitution or variation pursuant to Conditib0
(Substitution and Variationthe Issuer shall deliver to the Fiscal Agent:

(@)

a certificate signed by two Authorised Signia®iof the Issuer stating that the relevant requarg or
circumstance giving rise to the right to redeenbstitute or vary is satisfied, and where the rai¢va
Special Event requires measures reasonably awaitablhe Issuer to be taken, the relevant Special
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Event cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking suehsores. In relation to a substitution or variation
pursuant to Condition 10S(bstitution and Variation such certificate shall also include further
certifications that the criteria specified in pawgahs (a) to (e) of the definition of Qualifyingcbeties

will be satisfied by the Qualifying Securities upigsue and that such determinations were reached by
the Issuer in consultation with an independentstient bank of international repute, an independent
financial adviser with appropriate expertise orépendent counsel of recognisgghding;

(b) in the case of a Withholding Tax Event only, apinion of independent legal advisers of recoghise
standing to the effect that the Issuer or, as @se enay be, the Guarantor has or will become ablige
pay Additional Amounts (as defined in Condition (I%xatior)) on the Securities or, as the case may
be, under the Guarantee as a result of the reléaantaw Change; and

(c) in the case of a substitution or variation parg to Condition 10Substitution or Variatioponly, an
opinion from independent legal advisers of recogmhistanding confirming:

® that the Issuer has capacity to assume ditsignd obligations under the Qualifying Securities
and has obtained all necessary corporate or gowmamauthorisation to assume all such
rights and obligations (either as primary debtoasra guarantor of a wholly-owned direct or
indirect finance subsidiary of the Issuer that awssithe role of primary debtor in respect of
the Qualifying Securities) and, in the case of aollyhowned direct or indirect finance
subsidiary of the Issuer that assumes the roleiofgny debtor in respect of the Qualifying
Securities, that such finance subsidiary has cgptcassume all rights and obligations under
the Qualifying Securities and has obtained all ssag/ corporate or governmental
authorisation to assume all such rights and obligations; and

(i) the legality, validity and enforceability tfie Qualifying Securities,

and the Fiscal Agent may rely absolutely upon amall e entitled to accept such certificate and sngh
opinions without any liability to any person for doing and without any further inquiry as suffidi@vidence
of the satisfaction of the conditions precedentosgtin such paragraphs in which event it shaltteclusive
and binding on the Holders.

Any redemption of the Securities in accordance v@tbnditions 9(b), 9(c), 9(d), 9(e), 9(f), 9(g) oth®
(Redemptionshall be conditional on all outstanding Arreaf$nberest being paid in full in accordance witle th
provisions of Condition 8@ptional Interest Deferralon or prior to the date thereof, together witly ancrued
and unpaid interest up to (but excluding) suchmgateon, substitution or, as the case may be, vanatate.

The Fiscal Agent is under no obligation to ascerta@iether any Special Event or Change of Contr@nEwr
Change of Control or any event which could leadhi® occurrence of, or could constitute, any sucbcBp
Event, Change of Control Event or Change of Contrat occurred and, until it shall have actual Kedge or
express notice pursuant to the Fiscal Agency Ageedrto the contrary, the Fiscal Agent may assuratertb
such Special Event, Change of Control Event or Gaasf Control or such other event has occurred.

12 Purchases and Cancellation
€)) Purchases

Each of the Issuer, the Guarantor and any of tiesjpective Subsidiaries may at any time purchagegamure
others to purchase beneficially for its accountuBiies in any manner and at any price. The Seesri$o
purchased, while held by or on behalf of the Isstier Guarantor or any of their respective Subsieka shall
not entitle the Holder to vote at any meeting @ Holders or otherwise exercise any voting rights shall not
be deemed to be outstanding for the purposes aifileding quorums at meetings of the Holders ow@ing on
any Extraordinary Resolution or for the purpose€aiidition 17 eetings of Holders and Modificatipn

49



(b) Cancellation

All Securities redeemed or substituted by the Issugsuant to Condition 9 or 10, as the case maynik
forthwith be cancelled. All Securities purchasedthbg Issuer, the Guarantor or any of its/their eetipe
Subsidiaries may be held, reissued, resold omeatoption of the Issuer, surrendered for cancehato the
Fiscal Agent. Securities so surrendered shall becatbed forthwith. Any Securities so surrendered fo
cancellation may not be reissued or resold analtigations of the Issuer and the Guarantor ineespf any
such Securities shall be discharged.

13 Payments
€)) Method of Payment

Payments of principal, premium and interest in eespf each Security will be made by transfer te th
registered account of the Holder or by euro cheairagn on a bank (nominated in writing to the Regisby
the Holder) that processes payments in euro meolélde registered address of the Holder if it doeshave a
registered account, provided that the nominatiorecgived by the Registrar not later than 10 Bussiri@ays
before any date on which payment is scheduledrdstt®n the Securities due on an Interest Paymata will
be paid to the holder shown on the Register atcltbge of business on the date (teeord datg¢ being the
fifteenth day before the due date for the payménmtterest.

For the purposes of this Condition 13(a), a Holslezfistered accountneans the euro account maintained by
or on behalf of it with a bank that processes paysién euro in a city in which banks have accestho
TARGET System, details of which appear on the Repgist the close of business on the relevant redatd,
and a Holder’s registered address means its adapgesring on the Register at that time.

(b) Payments Subject to Fiscal Laws

Without prejudice to the terms of Condition 1%axatior), all payments made in accordance with these
Conditions shall be made subject to any fiscaltbemwmlaws and regulations applicable in the pldggagment.
No commissions or expenses shall be charged tddlders in respect of such payments.

(©) Payments on Business Days

If any date for payment in respect of any Secustyot a business day, the Holder shall not beledtio
payment until the next following business day nmorahy interest or other sum in respect of suchpoostd
payment. In this Condition 1#usiness dayneans a day (other than a Saturday or a Sundayhich banks
and foreign exchange markets are open for busindgbkg place in which the specified office of thegdistrar is
located and a day on which the TARGET System isiope
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14 Enforcement Event
€)) Proceedings

If a default is made by the Issuer and the Guardota period of 14 days or more in the paymenpraicipal
or 21 days or more in the payment of interest,anhecase in respect of the Securities and whichués(an
Enforcement Ever}, then any Holder may, at its sole discretiontitnge proceedings for the winding-up of
the Issuer and/or the Guarantor and/or prove inheing-up of the Issuer and/or the Guarantor andiaim

in the liquidation of the Issuer and/or the Guawgrfor such payment, and in the event of a windipgof the
Issuer in a manner falling within this Condition(a% any Holder shall be entitled to claim for alipaid
principal in respect of a Security it holds togethdth any accrued and unpaid interest up to (lxatueling)
such date and any outstanding Arrears of Interese¢spect of any such Security, with such rightd daims
subordinated as provided in Condition 3@uiljordinatioi.

For the avoidance of doubt, in the event of a wigdip of the Issuer in a manner falling within tlisndition
14(a), the Holders shall have a right to claim urtHe Guarantee, against the Guarantor for, anétrerantor
shall be obliged to pay, an amount equal to anyaigchprincipal on the Securities and any accruedarpghid
interest and any outstanding Arrears of InterestchSrights and claims against the Guarantor shall b
subordinated as provided in Condition 6@lijordination of the Guarantge

In the event of a winding-up of the Guarantor imanner falling within this Condition 14(a), the Hets shall
have a right to claim against (i) the Issuer (draissuer shall be obliged to pay) and (ii) againstGuarantor,
under the Guarantee, in the winding-up of the Guarain each case for an amount equal to any dnpai
principal on the Securities and any accrued andiidnipterest and any outstanding Arrears of Inter@sch
rights and claims against the Issuer and agaimstGiarantor shall be subordinated as provided imdifion
3(a) Subordinatioh and 6(a) $ubordination of the Guarantgeespectively.

(b) Extent of Holders’ remedy

No remedy against the Issuer or the Guarantory tttam as referred to in this Condition 14 shalkabailable

to the Holders, whether for the recovery of amowming in respect of the Securities or the Guamarde

in respect of any other breach by the Issuer orGliarantor of any of its or their respective other
obligations under or in respect of the Securitiethe Guarantee.

15 Taxation

All payments of principal, premium and interestdsyon behalf of the Issuer in respect of the S&esror the
Guarantor under the Guarantee shall be made ficbelaar of, and without withholding or deductiom, for on
account of, any present or future taxes, dutiegsssnents or governmental charges of whateveren@axes
imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessedrbyithin any jurisdiction (&Relevant Tax Jurisdictioh in
which the Issuer or the Guarantor is then incorgokaorganised or resident for tax purposes orpatigical
subdivision or any authority thereof or therein ingvpower to tax, unless such withholding or deiuncis
required by law. In that event, the Issuer, failwhich the Guarantor, shall pay such additional @m®
(Additional Amountg as shall result in receipt by the Holders of sanfounts as would have been received by
them had no such withholding or deduction been iredquexcept that no such Additional Amounts sl
payable with respect to any Security:

€)) Other connection to, or to a third party on behalf of, a Holderonis liable to such Taxes in respect
of such Security by reason of his having some caorewith a Relevant Tax Jurisdiction other than a
mere holding of such Security; or
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(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

Presentation more than 30 days after the Relevantdde: presented for payment more than 30 days
after the Relevant Date except to the extent thatHolder thereof would have been entitled to such
Additional Amounts on presenting it for paymenttba thirtieth day; or

Payment to individuals: where such withholding or deduction is requiretbéamade on a payment to
an individual beneficial owner resident in Luxemigpun accordance with the provisions of the
Luxembourg law dated 23 December 2005, as amend&dducing a 10 per cent. Luxembourg
withholding tax on interest or similar income payr® (accrued since 1 July 2005) made by a
Luxembourg Paying Agent to or for the immediatedfitrof an individual beneficial owner who is
resident in Luxembourg paid to Luxembourg residedividuals; or

Payment by another Paying Agentin respect of which payment is made to a Holdepanson on
behalf of such Holder who in each case would haenkable to avoid such withholding or deduction
by receiving such payment through another PayingnrAin a Member State of the European Union or
making any other claim or filing for exemption tdieh it is entitled to the relevant tax authority o
Paying Agent; or

FATCA withholding: where such withholding or deduction is imposedaurfections 1471 and 1472
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (tBede (or any regulations thereunder or official
interpretations thereof), including, pursuant to agreement described in section 1471(b)(1) of the
Code, under any intergovernmental agreement betweeinited States and any other jurisdiction
facilitating the implementation thereof (or anych$ or regulatory legislation, rules or practices
implementing such an intergovernmental agreement).

References in these Conditions to principal, premilnterest Payments, Deferred Interest Paymemtears of
Interest and/or any other amount in respect ofé@steshall be deemed to include any Additional Aniswvhich
may become payable pursuant to the foregoing pomgsor any undertakings given in addition theraton
substitution therefor pursuant to the Fiscal Agehgseement.

16

Prescription

Claims against the Issuer in respect of Secuntitdbecome void unless made within a period ofyBars (in
respect of claims relating to principal and prem)iamd five yeargin respect of claims relating to interest) from
the Relevant Date relating thereto.

17

Meetings of Holders and Modification

The Fiscal Agency Agreement contains provisioncémrvening meetings of the Holders to considerraatter
affecting their interests, including the sanctiagnby Extraordinary Resolution of a modificationaofy of these
Conditions or any of the provisions of the FiscagleAcy Agreement. Such a meeting may be convenddeby
Issuer or the Guarantor and shall be convened dysuer if required in writing by Holders holdingt less
than ten per cent. in principal amount of the Siiegrfor the time being remaining outstanding.

The quorum at any such meeting for passing an @xtirsary Resolution is one or more persons holding
representing not less than 50 per cent. in prim@peount of the Securities for the time being anding, or at
any adjourned meeting one or more persons beingpoesenting Holders whatever the principal amofitiie
Securities so held or represented, except thatyatrgeeting the business of which includes the neatibn of
certain provisions of the Securities (includingyesavhere permitted by these Conditions or the Defed
Guarantee, modifying any redemption date in refatio the Securities or reduction or cancellationttof
nominal amount payable upon redemption, a reductiazancellation of the amount payable or modifarabf
the payment date in respect of any interest omtkethod of calculating the rate thereof, modificatiaf the
Guarantee and modification of the currency in wipalgments under the Securities are to be madejjutbreim
shall be one or more persons holding or represgmtot less than three-quarters in principal amairthe
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Securities for the time being outstanding, or at adjourned such meeting one or more persons lgplolin
representing not less than one-quarter in prin@pabunt of the Securities for the time being ouiditag.

The agreement or approval of the Holders shalbeatequired in the case of any variation of thesadlions
and/or the Fiscal Agency Agreement required to lalenin the circumstances described in Condition 10
(Substitution or Variationin connection with the substitution or variatiohthe terms of the Securities so that
they become Qualifying Securities.

An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meetintgeHolders shall be binding on all the Holderkether
or not they are present at the meeting. The Fisgahcy Agreement provides that a resolution iningitsigned
by or on behalf of the Holders of not less tharmpéb cent in principal amount of the Securities nding or
consent given by Holders of not less than 75 pet iceprincipal amount of the Securities by elestcaconsent
through the clearing systems shall for all purpdsesas valid and effective as an Extraordinary Réiso
passed at a meeting of Holders duly convened atdl Aeresolution in writing may be contained in one
document or several documents in the same forrh, gigned by or on behalf of one or more Holders.

The Fiscal Agent and the Issuer may agree, witttmitonsent of the Holders, to:

€)) any modification (except such maodifications in mxpof which an increased quorum is required as
mentioned above) of the Fiscal Agency Agreementciwhis not prejudicial to the interests of the
Holders; or

(b) any modification of the Securities or the FiscaleAgy Agreement which is of a formal, minor or

technical nature or is made to correct a manifesproven error or to comply with mandatory
provisions of the law.

Any such madification shall be binding on the Hokleand any such maodification shall be notified he t
Holders in accordance with Condition 24aotice$ as soon as practicable thereafter.

Prior to the making of any such modification or itak any action as aforementioned, or prior to any
substitution, termination or variation in a mannentemplated in Conditions 18bstitution or Variatio) 18
(Substitution of Issugror 19 Substitution of Guarantor and termination of Guaed), the Issuer, the
Guarantor and the Fiscal Agent shall not be obligddave regard to the tax position of individualdiers or to
the tax consequences of any such modification tisutign, variation, termination or other actiorr fadividual
Holders. No Holder shall be entitled to claim, wWietfrom the Fiscal Agent, the Issuer, the GuaramatiNew
Issuer or any other person, any indemnificatiorpayment in respect of any tax consequence of aoly su
modification, substitution, variation, terminationother action upon individual Holders.

18 Substitution of Issuer

€)) The Issuer may at any time, without the conserthefHolders, substitute for itself as the principal
debtor under the Securities, the Guarantor or #mgranember of the Group or a successor in business
of the Issuer (such substitute, a New Issuer) geavihat:

® a deed poll and such other documents (if any) dleatixecuted by the New Issuer and, to the
extent necessary, the other parties to the Fisgehgy Agreement, as may be necessary to
give full effect to the substitution and pursuamtvthich the New Issuer shall undertake in
favour of each Holder and each Accountholder (dmel@ in the Deed of Covenant) to be
bound by these conditions, the Deed of Covenant thedFiscal Agency Agreement as
principal debtor in respect of the Securities acpl of the Issuer;
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(b)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

each Rating Agency confirms that upon the subgiitutf the New Issuer becoming effective
the Securities will either have the same credihgadis immediately prior to the substitution or
the credit rating will not be adversely affected;

each Rating Agency has confirmed that upon suctstidution becoming effective the
Securities will either still be eligible for theraa, or a higher amount of, “equity credit” (or
such other nomenclature that the Rating Agency tmary use to describe the degree to which
an instrument exhibits the characteristics of atinary share) as is attributed to the Securities
on the date immediately prior to such substitutiorsuch eligibility or attribution will not be
adversely affected;

the Fiscal Agent shall have received legal opiniadsiressed to the Holders from legal
advisers of internationally recognised standingaygd by it to the effecinter alia, that (A)

the New Issuer has obtained all governmental aguatory approvals and consents necessary
for its assumption of the obligations and liakéi#tias principal debtor under these Conditions,
the Deed of Covenant and the Fiscal Agency Agreernmeplace of the Issuer, the Holders
have rights against the New Issuer at least eqnivab the rights they have against the Issuer,
subject to the other Conditions in this Conditi@dhHaving been satisfied such assumption is
fully effective and such obligations and liabilgieare legally valid and binding on, and
enforceable against, the New Issuer; (B) such aptscand consents are in full force and
effect at the time of substitution; and (C) confinm with respect to the New Issuer,
compliance with sub-paragraph (v) below;

all payments of principal and interest in respddhe Securities by or on behalf of the New
Issuer shall be made free and clear of and withithiholding or deduction for or on account
of any taxes, duties, assessments or governmematjes of whatsoever nature imposed,
levied, collected, withheld or assessed by or dmalfeof the tax jurisdiction to which it is
subject or any political subdivision thereof or authority thereof or therein having power to
tax;

any stock exchange on which the Securities aredlishall have confirmed to the Issuer and
the Fiscal Agent that, after giving effect to thubstitution, the Securities will continue to be
listed on such stock exchange;

two Authorised Signatories of the New Issuer shalile certified to the Fiscal Agent that the
New Issuer is solvent at the time at which the swh®n or appointment is proposed to be
effected; and

two Authorised Signatories of the Issuer or twohftsed Signatories of the New Issuer shall
have certified to the Fiscal Agent that, followiognsultation with an independent investment
bank of international repute, an independent fir@nadviser with appropriate expertise or
independent counsel of recognised standing, theelss, as the case may be, the New Issuer
has concluded that such substitution (i) will reult in the New Issuer having an entitlement,
as at the date such substitution becomes effedtiveedeem the Securities as a result of a
Special Event and (ii) will not result in the terofsthe Securities immediately following such
substitution being materially less favourable tddecs than the terms of the Securities
immediately prior to such substitution.

Upon execution and delivery of the deed poll or d¢iteer documents referred to in paragraph (a)(i)
above and delivery of the legal opinions and otteauments referred to in paragraph (a)(ii) to (@)(v

above the New Issuer shall be deemed to be namtitkiSecurities, the Deed of Covenant and the
Fiscal Agency Agreement as the principal debtgplate of the Issuer and the Securities, the Deed of
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(©)

(d)

19

(@)

(b)

Covenant, the Fiscal Agency Agreement and any ottoeuments related to the Securities shall

thereupon be deemed to be amended to give effebketeubstitution, and the Issuer shall be released
from all of its obligations under or in respecttbé Securities, the Deed of Covenant, and the Fisca
Agency Agreement and any other documents relatétet&ecurities.

Not later than 14 days after the substitution deaw Issuer, notice shall be given to the Holders in
accordance with Condition 2IN6tices.

In the event of a substitution pursuant to this d@won 18, the governing law of Condition 3(a)
(Subordination) shall be amended to the goverramgdf the jurisdiction of incorporation of the New
Issuer. In addition for the purposes of the definitof “Compulsory Arrears of Interest Settlement
Event”, references to “Junior Obligations of theusr” shall be deemed to include references to such
obligations of both the New Issuer and SES S.A..

Substitution of Guarantor and termination of Guarantee

Notwithstanding the provisions of Condition #hg Guaranteg the Deed of Guarantee contains
provisions which:

® allow the Guarantor at any time to substitute fitéet another entity in the Group or a
successor in business of the Guarantor (upon whih other entity shall assume all the
rights and obligations of the Guarantor under theseditions, the Fiscal Agency Agreement,
the Guarantee and any other related documents); and

(i) for so long as SES Global Americas Holdings GP iem&uarantor, permit a termination
of the Guarantee where:

() an order is made by any competent court or effectesolution passed for the
winding up or dissolution of SES Global Americasldings GP; and

() such winding up or dissolution is for the purposEsr pursuant to an amalgamation,
reorganisation or restructuring while solvent andspant to which SES S.A. assumes
all of the assets, liabilities and obligations &SGlobal Americas Holdings GP,

with any such termination pursuant to (ii) abovedraing effective upon the relevant winding up
or dissolution taking effect.

Any such substitution or termination shall be & #lole discretion of the Issuer and the Guarabtdr,
shall be conditional upon:

® there being no Enforcement Event that has occameds continuing;

(i) each Rating Agency having confirmed that upon saudbstitution or termination becoming
effective the Securities will either have the saenedit rating as immediately prior to such
substitution or termination or the credit ratindlwbt be adversely affected; and

(iii) each Rating Agency having confirmed that upon ssudbstitution or termination becoming
effective the Securities will either still be eligg for the same, or a higher amount of, “equity
credit” (or such other nomenclature that the Ratgncy may then use to describe the
degree to which an instrument exhibits the charities of an ordinary share) as is attributed
to the Securities on the date immediately priostich substitution or termination or such
eligibility or attribution will not be adverselyfatted; and
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(iv) two Authorised Signatories of the Issuer or twohftsed Signatories of the Guarantor shall
have certified to the Fiscal Agent that, followiognsultation with an independent investment
bank of international repute, an independent fir@nadviser with appropriate expertise or
independent counsel of recognised standing, theelssr, as the case may be, the Guarantor
has concluded that such substitution or terminafipmill not result in the Issuer having an
entitlement, as at the date such substitution onitetion becomes effective, to redeem the
Securities as a result of a Special Event andiffijhe case of a substitution pursuant to this
Condition 19 only, will not result in the terms thfe Securities and the Guarantee (taken
together) immediately following such substitutiogiriy materially less favourable to holders
than the terms of the Securities and the Guardtdaken together) immediately prior to such
substitution.

(c) Upon any such substitution pursuant to Conditio@}(® taking effect, the Guarantor shall be reéehs
from all of its obligations under or in respecttbése Conditions, the Fiscal Agency Agreement, the
Guarantee and any other related documents.

(d) Upon any such termination pursuant to Conditiona)®) taking effect, SES Global Americas
Holdings GP shall be released from all of its adligns under or in respect of these Conditions, the
Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Guarantee and any otfeted documents.

(e) Not later than 14 days after any such substitutiotermination in accordance with the provisions of
this Condition 19, notice shall be given to theddwk in accordance with Condition @lotices.

® In the event of a substitution pursuant to this @on 19, the governing law of Condition 6(a) $hal
be amended to the governing law of the jurisdictibmcorporation of the entity substituted in paaf
the Guarantor.

20 Replacement of Certificates

If any Certificate is lost, stolen, mutilated, defd or destroyed, it may be replaced, subject plicgble laws,
regulations or other relevant regulatory authorégulations, at the specified office of the Registor such
other Paying Agent as may from time to time beglesied by the Issuer for that purpose and noticghaise
designation is given to Holders, in each case gmpat by the claimant of the fees and costs incuime
connection therewith and on such terms as to ewlesecurity, indemnity and otherwise as the Isandrthe
Fiscal Agent may require. Mutilated or defaced fflesttes must be surrendered before replacementdavi
issued.

21 Notices

All notices to the Holders will be valid if mailgd them by first class mail or (if posted to an r@s$d overseas)
by airmail to the Holders (or the first of any jbimamed Holders) at their respective addressdseirRegister
maintained by the Registrar. The Issuer shall atssure that notices are duly published in a mamhéh
complies with the rules of any stock exchange beotelevant authority on which tisecurities are for the
time being listed or by which they have been adrditp trading (which means, for the avoidance aftdoif
and for so long as the Securities are admittedaftirig on, and listed on the Official List of theXxembourg
Stock Exchange and the rules of such stock exchaogequire, a daily newspaper of general ciroohatn
Luxembourg, and/or on the Luxembourg Stock Exchangebsite (www.bourse.lu) or any other manner
considered as equivalent by the Luxembourg Stoat&mnge). Any such notice will be deemed to haven bee
given on the fourth dagfter being so mailed or on the date of publicationif published more than once, on
the first date on whicBuch publication is made.
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22 Further Issues

The Issuer may from time to time without the consdrthe Holders create and issue further Secarieking
pari passuin all respects (or in all respects save for the drom which interest thereon accrues and thaiato
of the first payment of interest on such furtheciB#ies) and so that such further issue shall desalidated
and form a single series with the outstanding Sgesir

23 Agents

The initial Agents and their initial specified affis are listed below. The Issuer reserves the aigany time to
vary or terminate the appointment of any Agent emappoint additional or other Agents, provided thwill:

€)) at all times maintain a Fiscal Agent and a Registnad

(b) whenever a function expressed in these Conditiome tperformed by the Agent Bank or by the Reset
Reference Banks falls to be performed, appoint @mdso long as such function is required to be
performed) maintain an Agent Bank and/or, as apjats Reset Reference Banks.

Notice of any such termination or appointment ahdny change in the specified offices of the Figagnt, the
Registrar or any of the Paying Agents or Transfgemts will be given to the Holders in accordancthwi
Condition 21 Notice. If any of the Fiscal Agent, the Registrar, thgeAt Bank or any Paying Agent is unable
or unwilling to act as such or if it fails to makedetermination or calculation or otherwise fadperform its
duties under these Conditions or the Fiscal Agégrgement (as the case may be), the Issuer shairgpan
independent financial institution to act as suchtsnplace. All calculations and determinations many the
Agent Bank or the Fiscal Agent in relation to thee&ities shall (save in the case of manifest glverfinal and
binding on the Issuer, the Guarantor, the othenggyand the Holders.

24 Governing Law

The Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Deed of Coverthet,Guarantee, the Securities and any non-congdactu
obligations arising out of or in connection witleth are governed by, and shall be construed in danoe with,
the laws of England save for the provisions comtdiim Condition 3(a)Subordinatiof which shall, subject to
the provisions of Condition 18(dB(bstitution of Issugrand Condition 19(e)Substitution of Guarantor and
termination of Guarantée be governed by the laws of Luxembourg and tleipions contained in Condition
6(a) which shall be governed by the laws of Delawahe provisions of articles 86 to 94-8 of the ¢mnbourg
law dated 10 August 1915 concerning commercial anigs, as amended, shall not apply to the Seauritie

25 Submission to Jurisdiction

The Issuer irrevocably agrees, for the benefithef iHolders, that the courts of England are to hexatusive
jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arsg of or in connection with the Securities (irdihg a
dispute relating to any non-contractual obligati@msing out of or in connection with the Fiscal ehgy
Agreement and the Securities) and accordingly stgatmithe exclusive jurisdiction of the English dsu

The Issuer waives any objection to the courts ofl&amd on the grounds that they are an inconversent
inappropriate forum. The Holders may take any sgtion or proceedings (together referred t@axeedings
arising out of or in connection with the Securiti@scluding a dispute relating to any non-contrattu
obligations arising out of or in connection witletBecurities), against the Issuer in any othertafiwompetent
jurisdiction and concurrent Proceedings in any nemnab jurisdictions.
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26 Appointment of Process Agent

The Issuer appoints Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringdé? at its registered office at 65 Fleet Streetndan
EC4Y 1HS (marked for the attention of the Disputsétution DMP and Mr. Christopher Barratt, refeeenc
123182-0056) as its agent for service of procesd, umdertakes that, in the event of FreshfieldscBraus
Deringer LLP ceasing so to act or ceasing to bistexgd in England, it will appoint another persanits agent
for service of process in England in respect of Brgceedings. Nothing herein shall affect the righserve
proceedings in any other manner permitted by law.

27 Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

No person shall have any right to enforce any terncondition of the Securities by virtue of the @ants
(Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.

28 Definitions
In these Conditions:

an Accounting Eventshall be deemed to occur if, as a result of a ghan accounting principles which
becomes effective on or after 10 June 2016, bubtiwrwise, the obligations of the Issuer underSbeurities
must not or may no longer be recorded as “equitythie next following audited annual consolidatehficial
statements of SES S.A. prepared in accordance I®RRIS or any other accounting standards that SBS S.
may adopt in the future for the preparation ofitislited annual consolidated financial statemenésaordance
with Luxembourg company law;

an Acquisition Eventshall be deemed to occur if the Issuer has confirineawriting to the Fiscal Agent on or
before 2 January 2017 that it, or any of its Subsies through which such acquisition is intendedbé
effected, no longer intends and is no longer lggatimmitted to pursue the acquisition of O3b Netksor
Limited;

Additional Amountshas the meaning given to it in Condition Taxatior);
Agent Bankhas the meaning given to it in the preamble teg¢h@onditions;

Agentshas means the Fiscal Agent, the Agent Bank, tliisRar, the Transfer Agents and the Paying Agents
or any of them

Arrears of Interesthas the meaning given to it in Condition 8@gferral of Paymenis
Authorised Signatorhas the meaning given to it in the Fiscal Agency Agreement;

Business Daymeans a day, other than a Saturday, Sunday oicfudiiday, on which commercial banks and
foreign exchange markets are open for general bssiim London and Luxembourg and the TARGET System
operating;

Calculation Amounthas the meaning given to it in Condition 7(lnXérest Accruat
Call Datemeans the First Reset Date or on any Interest Payment Date thereafter;

a Capital Eventshall be deemed to occur if the Issuer has redeaed notified the Holders in accordance with
Condition 21 RNotice3 that it has so received, confirmation from anytiftp Agency of an amendment to,
clarification of or change in its assessment get@r a change in the interpretation thereof whieltomes
effective on or after 10 June 2016 (or, if latdfective after the date on which the Securities assigned
“equity credit” by a Rating Agency for the firstrte) and as a result of which, but not otherwise,Skcurities
will no longer be eligible for the same, or a higheount of, “equity credit” (or such other nomextate that
the Rating Agency may then use to describe theegeigr which an instrument exhibits the characiesisif an
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ordinary share) as was attributed to the Securdtighe Issue Date (or if “equity credit” is nos@med to the
Securities by the relevant Rating Agency on thedd3ate, at the date on which “equity credit” isigsed by
such Rating Agency for the first time, or in theseaf S&P, at the date when the highest “equitditrevas

assigned during the period from 10 June 2016 tata fhlling on or around the first date on whick thsuer
may no longer exercise its right to redeem the ®&esl in accordance with Condition 9(Hpédemption for
Acquisition Event

Certificatehas the meaning given to it in Condition 1@)fm and Denomination

a Change of Control Evenshall be deemed to occur if:

@) a Change of Control occurs and within the Chang@asftrol Period (if at the time that the Change of
Control occurs any of the Senior Obligations of thguer are rated by a Rating Agency) a Rating
Downgrade in respect of that Change of Control s oor

(b) (if at such time none of the Senior Obligationshaf Issuer are rated) a Change of Control occurs,
For the purposes of the definition of a Change aitébl Event:

® a Change of Controlshall be deemed to have occurred at each timettfeher not approved
by the Board of Directors or Executive Committeehaf Issuer) that any person (fRelevant
Persor) or persons acting in concert or any person osq@& acting on behalf of any such
person(s), at any time directly or indirectly acg(s) (A) more than 50 per cent. of the issued
or allotted ordinary share capital of the IssuefB)rsuch number of the shares in the capital of
the Issuer carrying more than 50 per cent. of timg rights normally exercisable at a general
meeting of the Issuer, provided that a Change ofti@bshall not be deemed to have occurred
if all or substantially all of the shareholdergioé Relevant Person are, or immediately prior to
the event which would otherwise have constitutéthange of Control were, the shareholders
of the Issuer with the same (or substantially traepro ratainterests in the share capital of
the Relevant Person as such shareholders have tloe @ase may be, had, in the share capital
of the Issuer

(i) Change of Control Periodneans the period ending 120 days after the pablimuncement
of the Change of Control having occurreadd

(iii) a Rating Downgradeshall be deemed to have occurred in respect diam@e of Control if
within the Change of Control Period the rating jpwasly assigned to any Senior Obligations
of the Issuer by any relevant Rating Agency is wi)hdrawn or (y) changed from an
investment grade rating (BBB-/Baa3, or their reipecequivalents for the time being, or
better) to a non-investment grade rating (BB+/Balheir respective equivalents for the time
being, or worse) or (z) if the rating previouslgigeed to any such Senior Obligations of the
Issuer by any relevant Rating Agency shall be belownvestment grade rating (as described
above), lowered one full rating category (for exéarfipom BB+ to BB or such similar lower
or equivalent rating), provided that a Rating Dovatlg otherwise arising by virtue of a
particular change in rating shall be deemed ndbaee occurred in respect of a particular
Change of Control if the relevant Rating Agency mgkthe change in rating to which this
definition would otherwise apply does not publieynounce or publicly confirm that the
reduction was the result, in whole or part, of amgnt or circumstance comprised in or arising
as a result of, or in respect of, the applicablar@e of Control

a Compulsory Arrears of Interest Settlement Evestitall have occurred if;
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® a dividend (either interim or final), other disttibn or payment was validly resolved on,
declared, paid or made in respect of any Junioigatibns of the Issuer or the Guarantor,
except where (x) such dividend, other distributborpayment was required to be resolved on,
declared, paid or made in respect of any stocloogilans or employees’ share schemes of the
Issuer, the Guarantor or any other member of treuGor (y) the Issuer or the Guarantor is
obliged under the terms of such securities to msikeh dividend, distribution or other
payment or (z) such dividend, distribution or pagtnie made (or to be made) only to the
Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any other entity énGnoup; or

(i) a dividend (either interim or final), other disttibn or payment was validly resolved on,
declared, paid or made in respect of any Paritygatibns of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as
the case may be, except where such dividend, llitvh or payment was required to be
declared, paid or made under the terms of suchtyP@tligations of the Issuer or the
Guarantor, as the case may be, or except where divickend, distribution or payment is
made (or to be made) only to the Issuer, the Gtarand/or any other entity in the Group; or

(iii) the Issuer or the Guarantor has redeemed, repedivaotherwise acquired any of its Junior
Obligations, except where (x) such redemption, refpase or acquisition was undertaken in
respect of any stock option plans or employeesteskehemes of the Issuer, the Guarantor or
any other member of the Group, (y) the Issuer erGliarantor is obliged under the terms of
such securities to make such redemption, repurchasequisition or (z) any payment in
respect of such redemption, repurchase or acauisii made (or to be made) only to the
Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any other entity énGnoup; or

(iv) the Issuer or the Guarantor, or any Subsidiaryneflssuer or the Guarantor, has redeemed,
repurchased or otherwise acquired any Parity Ofitigs of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the
case may be, except where (x) such redemptionyalegse or acquisition is effected as a
public tender offer or public exchange offer atuaghase price per security which is below its
par value or (y) the Issuer or the Guarantor, axétse may be, or any Subsidiary of the Issuer
or the Guarantor, as the case may be, is oblige@rutme terms of such securities to make
such redemption, repurchase or acquisition, oaifg)payment in respect of such redemption,
repurchase or acquisition is made (or to be mad)to the Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any
other entity in the Group;

ConditionsmeansHhese terms and conditions of the Securities, as amended from time to time;
Deferred Interest Paymertias the meaning given to it in Condition 8@gferral of Paymenjs

euro or € means the lawful currency introduced at the stérthe third stage of European Economic and
Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended;

Extraordinary Resolutiorhas the meaning given to it in the Fiscal Agencyekgent;

First Fixed Interest Ratehas the meaning given to it in Condition 7€t Fixed Interest Raje
First Reset Dataneans 2 January 2022

Group means SES S.A. and its Subsidiaries taken as awhol

Guarantormeans SES Global Americas GP;

Holder has the meaningven to it in the preamble to these Conditions;

IFRS means International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU;
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Interest Paymenimeans, in respect of an interest payment on anesit Payment Date, the amount of interest
payable for the relevant Interest Period in acancdawith Condition 71(terest Paymenjs

Interest Payment Dateneans 2 January in each year, commencing on ffehdling) 2 January 2017;

Interest Periodmeans the period beginning on (and including)lsbae Date and ending on (but excluding) the
first Interest Payment Date and each successivedobeginning on (and including) an Interest Paytrri2ate
and endig on (but excluding) the next succeeding Interest Payment Date;

Interest Ratemeans the First Fixed Interest Rate and/or eatisefuient Fixed Interest Rate, as the case may
be;

Issue Datehas the meaning given to it in Condition 7(ajdrest Ratg
Issuermeans SES S.A.;
Junior Obligations means the Junior Obligations of the GuarantortaedJunior Obligations of the Issuer;

Junior Obligations of the Guarantormeans (i) any class (whether common or prefercédpartnership
interest (or, after a substitution pursuant to Giord 19 (Substitution of Guarantor and termination of
Guaranteg, any other ownership interests) in the Guaran(idr;all obligations of the Guarantor issued or
incurred directly or indirectly by it, which rank @re expressed to ramiari passuwith any class (whether
common or preferred) of partnership interest (fieraa substitution pursuant to Condition Bubstitution of
Guarantor and termination of Guaranfgeany other ownership interests) in the Guarantor;(iii) any
obligation of any Subsidiary of the Guarantor bémgf from a guarantee or support agreement entetedy
the Guarantor which ranks, or is expressed to faarkpassuwith the obligations referred to in (i) or (ii);

Junior Obligations of the Issuemmeans (i) any class of share capital of the Isdiigrall obligations of the
Issuer issued or incurred directly or indirectly ibywhich rank or are expressed to rgrdei passuwith any
class of share capital of the Issuer; or (jii) atnjigations of any Subsidiaries of the Issuer biéngffrom a
guarantee or support agreement entered into bissiier which ranks, or is expressed to rgoakj passuwith

the securities referred to in (i) or (ii);

Mandatory Settlement Datmeans the earlier of:

® as soon as reasonably practicable (but not later tie fifteenth Business Day) following the
date on which a Compulsory Arrears of Interestl&oaint Event occurs; or

(i) the date on which the Securities are redeemed paidan accordance with Condition 3,
Condition 6, Condition 9Redemptiopor Condition 14 Enforcement Evept

OECD means the Organisation for Economic Co-operatimh@evelopment;
Parity Obligationsmeans the Parity Obligations of the Guarantor thedParity Obligations of the Issuer;

Parity Obligations of the Guarantgrwith respect to the Guarantor means (if anygr(y obligations of the
Guarantor, issued or incurred directly or indingdty it, which rank, or are expressed to raodei passuwith
its obligations under the Guarantee and (ii) arigakions of any Subsidiaries of the Guarantor fing from
a guarantee or support agreement entered intoebgtlarantor which ranks, or is expressed to rpak,passu
with its obligations under the Guarantee;

Parity Obligations of the Issuerwith respect to the Issuer means (if any) (i) abligations of the Issuer,
issued or incurred directly or indirectly by it, iwh rank, or are expressed to rap#ri passuwwith the Securities
and (ii) any obligations of any Subsidiaries of tseuer benefiting from a guarantee or support eageat
entered into by the Issuer which ranks, or is esg@d to rankpari passuwith the Securities;
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Fiscal Agency Agreemertias the meaning given to it in the preamble tedhH@onditions;
Paying Agentshas the meaning given to it in the preamble tedgh@onditions;
Qualifying Securitieshas the meaning given to it in Condition Bubordination or Variatio)

Rating Agencymeans Standard & Poor's Rating Services, a divisfoThe McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. or
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. or any of theimpesgive subsidiaries and their successors or dmr aating
agency of equivalent international standing spedifrom time to time by the Issuer;

Registerthas the meaning given to it in Condition 1@)1m and Denomination

Relevant Dataneans (i) in respect of any payment other thamnate be paid by the Issuer in a winding-up or
administration of the Issuer, the date on whichhspayment first becomes due and payable but, iffule
amount of the moneys payable on such date haseeat feceived by the Fiscal Agent on or prior tdhsdate,
the Relevant Date means the date on which such ya@all have been so received and notice to ffedte
shall have been given to the Holders in accordaiiteCondition 21, and (i) in respect of a sunbmpaid by
the Issuer in a winding-up or administration of tesuer, the date which is one day prior to the datwhich an
order is made or a resolution is passed for theimgiup or, in the case of an administration, oag rior to
the date on which any dividend is distributed,;

Reset Dataneans the First Reset Date and each date falingeofifth anniversary of the First Reset Date;
Reset Periodneans the period from one Reset Date to (but diaa) the next following Reset Date;

Reset Reference Bank®eans five major banks in the interbank marketdndon, Paris or Luxembourg as
selected by the Agent Bank, after consultation ithlssuer;

S&P means Standard & Poor's Rating Services or ang stibsidiaries and their successors;
Securitieshas the meaning given to it in the preamble tsdh@onditions;
Senior Obligationgneans the Senior Obligations of the Guarantor ha&enior Obligations of the Issuer;

Senior Obligations of the Guarantomeans all obligations of the Guarantor, issuednhourred directly or
indirectly by it, other than Parity Obligations athe Junior Obligations;

Senior Obligations of the Issuemeans all obligations of the Issuer, issued auriredd directly or indirectly by
it, other than Parity Obligations and the Juniofigations;

Special Eventmeans any of an Accounting Event, a Capital Evangubstantial Repurchase Event, a Tax
Deduction Event, a Withholding Tax Event or an Asdion Event or any combination of the foregoing;

Subsequent Fixed Interest Ratlkas the meaning given to it in Condition 7(&ulbsequent Fixed Interest
Rates;

Subsidiarymeans, in relation to the Issuer or the Guararatay, individual, partnership, corporation, limited
liability company, association, trust, unincorpechbrganisation (i) in which the Issuer or, asdase may be,
the Guarantor holds a majority of the voting rigbts(ii) of which the Issuer or, as the case maythe
Guarantor is a member and has the right to apmoinémove a majority of the board of directors idj Of
which the Issuer or the Guarantor is a member antt@ls a majority of the voting rights, and inchsdany
individual, partnership, corporation, limited liiti company, association, trust, unincorporatedaoisation
which is a Subsidiary of a Subsidiary of the Issareias the case may be, the Guarantor;
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Substantial Repurchase Everghall be deemed to occur if prior to the givingtbg relevant notice of
redemption the Issuer repurchases (and effectesmonding cancellations) or redeems Securitiesspeact of
80 per cent. or more in the principal amount of 8exurities initially issued (which shall for thigirpose
include any further Securities issued pursuantdodion 22 Further Issuep;

Substitution or Variation Evenhas the meaning given to it in Condition Bupstitution or Variatio)

successor in businesmeans, in relation to a company, partnership oeroemtity, any other company,
partnership or other entity which:

® owns beneficially the whole or substantiallgtivhole of the undertaking, property and assets
owned by such company, partnership or other emtitgediately prior thereto; and

(i) carries on, as successor to such company,n@asttip or other entity, the whole or
substantially the whole of the business carriethyposuch company, partnership or other entity
immediately prior thereto;

TARGET Systenmeans the Trans-European Automated Real-Time @egkement Express Transfer (known
as TARGET?2) System which was launched on 19 Nover2®@7 or any successor thereto;

aTax Deduction Evenshall be deemed to have occurred if as a resalfl@fx Law Change:

® in respect of the Issuer’'s obligation to make anterest Payment on the next following
Interest Payment Date, the Issuer would not beledtio claim a deduction in respect of
computing its taxation liabilities in Luxembourg;, such entitlement is materially reduced
compared to such entitlement as at the Issue bate;

(i) in respect of the Issuer’s obligation to make anterest Payment on the next following
Interest Payment Date, the Issuer would not toraaterial extent be entitled to have such
deduction set against the profits of companies withich it is grouped for applicable
Luxembourg tax purposes;

and, in each case, the Issuer cannot avoid thgdorg in connection with the Securities by takingasures
reasonably available to it;

Tax Law Changemeans a change in or proposed change in, or anegt@mproposed amendment to, the laws
or regulations of a Relevant Tax Jurisdiction oy @olitical subdivision or any authority thereof threrein
having the power to tax, including any treaty toickha Relevant Tax Jurisdiction is a party, or ahgnge in
the application of official or generally publishiederpretation of such laws or regulations, inchgda decision

of any court or tribunal, or any interpretationpponouncement by any relevant tax authority thaviples for a
position with respect to such laws or regulationsimterpretation thereof that differs from the pomsly
generally accepted position in relation to simttansactions, which change or amendment becomegould
become, effective on or after 10 June 2016; and

a Withholding Tax Eventshall be deemed to occur if as a result of a Tax Change, in making any payments
on the Securities or the Guarantee, the IssudneoGuarantor has paid or will or would on the nlexérest
Payment Date be required to pay Additional Amowmntghe Securities or the Guarantee and the Issuiéreo
Guarantor, as the case may be, cannot avoid tegdirg in connection with the Securities by takingasures
reasonably available to it.

The following paragraphs do not form part of therte and conditions of the Securities.

Unless (a) the rating assigned by Standard & Podosthe Issuer is at least “BBB” (or such similar
nomenclature then used by Standard & Poor’s) aral Ifsuer is of the view that such rating would fadit
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below this level as a result of such redemption or repurchase; or (b) the Securities are not assigned an “equity

credit” (or such similar nomenclature then used $tandard & Poor’s), at the time of such redemptan
repurchase; or (c) in the case of a repurchase, such repurchase is in an amount necessary to allow the Issuer’s

aggregate principal amount of hybrid capital remaip outstanding after such repurchase to remairoweihe
maximum aggregate principal amount of hybrid cdgivavhich Standard & Poor’s would assign equitytamt
under its prevailing methodology, the Issuer indithout thereby assuming a legal obligation)rinig the
period from and including the issue date of theuigtes to but excluding the Reset Date fallingZdanuary
2042, in the event of:

(i) an early redemption of the Securities pursuantondition 9(b); or

(il a repurchase of the Securities of more thah 18 per cent. of the aggregate principal amountthaf
relevant Securities originally issued in any periofi12 consecutive months or (b) 25 per cent. ef th
aggregate principal amount of the relevant Secesitoriginally issued in any period of 10 consea@utiv
years,

to redeem or repurchase such Securities only teitent that such part of the aggregate principaloaint of
the relevant Securities to be redeemed or repumthas was characterised as equity by Standard & 'Pab
the time of their issuance (but taking into accoany changes in hybrid capital methodology or aeoth
relevant methodology or the interpretation thersiofce the issuance of the Securities) does notedxsech
part of the net proceeds which is received by Hseidr or any subsidiary of the Issuer during th@-8éy
period prior to the date of such redemption or nejnase from the sale or issuance by the Issuerrmyr a
subsidiary of the Issuer to third party purchas¢esher than subsidiaries of the Issuer) of secesitas is
characterised by Standard & Poor’s, at the timeak or issuance, as equity.
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THE GLOBAL CERTIFICATE

The Global Certificate will contain provisions whi@pply to the Securities in respect of which tlaeg
issuedwhile they are represented by the Global Certficaiome of which modify the effect of the
Conditions andvhich are summarised below. Terms defined in thed@ions have the same meaning in
paragraphs 1 to 7 below.

1. Accountholders

For so long as any of the Securities are repreddntehe Global Certificate, each person (othen thaother
clearing system) who is for the time being showrthia records of Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembaurg
any other clearing system (@iternative Clearing Systejnas the holder of a particular nominal amount of
such Securities (each akccountholde) (in which regard any certificate or other documésued by
Euroclear, Clearstreani,uxembourg or any Alternative Clearing System as tlh@ aggregate principal
amount of such Securities standing to #oeount of any person shall be conclusive and bgqdor all
purposes save in the case of manifest error) dleatreated as the holder of such nominal amoursuoh
Securities (and the expressibiolders andreferences tholding of Securitiesand toholder of Securitieshall

be construed accordingly) for all purpostlser than with respect to payments on such Seesyrihe right to
which shall be vested, as against the Issuer aadGiarantorsolely in the registered holder of the Global
Certificate, being the nominee for the relevanaitey system (th&elevant Nomineg in accordance with and
subject tahe terms of the Global Certificate and the Figagncy Agreement. Each Accountholder must look
solely to Euroclear or Clearstreabuxembourg, as the case may be, for its share @i payment made to
the Relevant Nominee.

2. Redemption and Cancellation

On any redemption or payment of interest being niadespect of, or purchase and cancellation of, afrthe
Securities represented by the Global Certificatéailde of such redemption, payment or purchase and
cancellation (as the case may be) shall be entgren on behalf of the Issuer in the Register. Upog such
redemption, payment of an instalment or purchadecancellation the nominal amount of the GlobaltiGeate

and the Securities held by the registered holdeedfieshall be reduced by the nominal amount of such
Securities so redeemed or purchased and cancétlednominal amount of the Global Certificate andhsf
Securities held by the registered holder hereddiohg any such redemption or purchase and carticellas
aforesaid or any transfer or exchange as refeaéglow shall be the nominal amount most recenttgred in

the register.

3. Payments

Payments of principal, premium and interest (iniclgdfor the avoidance of doubt, Deferred Inter@stespect
of Securities represented by the Global Certificssitebe made to the Relevant Nominee upon presientar,
if no further payment falls to be made in respdcthe Securities, against presentation and surreofdsuch
Global Certificate to or to the order of the Fisdglent or such other Paying Agent as shall hava betfied to
the holders of the Global Certificate for such s A record of each payment made willeb¢ered into
by or on behalf of the Registrar in the Registat simall be prima facie evidence that paymentiessn made.

Distributions of amounts with respect to book-enitnjerests in the Securities held through Euroclear
Clearstream, Luxembourg will be credited, to théeekreceived by the Fiscal Agent, to the castounts of
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg participamtadcordance with the relevant cleargygtem’s rules and
procedures.

For the purposes of Condition 1Baymenty the record date in respect of the Securitie beahe close of the
business day (being for this purpose a day on whigtoclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg are open for
business) before the relevant due date.
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4, Notices

So long as the Securities are represented by thisaGCertificate and the Global Certificate is hefdbehalf of
Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or any Altemea€learing System notices to Holders may be glwen
delivery of the relevant notice to theelevant clearing system for communication by it éatitled
Accountholders in substitution for notification r@gjuired by Condition 21Notice$ provided that the Issuer
shall also ensure that notices are duly giverpublished in a manner which complies with the rudesl
regulations of any stock exchange or other relegattiority on which the Securities are for the tibwng
listed. Any such notice shall be deemed to have baen to the Holders on the day after the day oiclwvh
such notice is delivered to Euroclea€learstream, Luxembourg and/or any Alternative 1¢igeSystem (as the
case may be) as aforesaid.

5. Exchange and Registration of Title

Transfers of the holding of Securities represebtethe Global Certificate pursuant to Condition)If@ay only
be made in part:

€)) if the Securities represented by the Globaltiftmte are held on behalf of Euroclear or Cleaa,
Luxembourg or any Alternative Clearing System ang such clearing system is closed for business
for a continuous period of 14 days (other than &égson of holidays, statutory or otherwise) or
announces an intention permanently to cease bgsimaoes in fact do so; or

(b) the Issuer has or will become subject to advéss consequences which would not be suffered were
the Securities represented by the Global Certdigatefinitive form; or

(c) upon an Enforcement Event,

provided that, in the case of the first transfepaifft of a holding pursuant to (a) or (b) above, iolder of the
Securities represented by the Global Certificate ¢i@en the Registrar not less than 30 days’ nadicés
specified office of such holder’s intention to effsuch transfer. Where the holding of Securitgsesented by
the Global Certificate is only transferable indtstirety, the Certificate issued to the transfengen transfer of
such holding shall be a Global Certificate. Wherangfers are permitted in part, Certificates issteed
transferees shall not be Global Certificates untlesgransferee so requests and certifies to tlyésiRer that it
is, or is acting as a nominee for, Clearstreamghbourg, Euroclear and/or an Alternative Cleariggt&n.

6. Transfers

Transfers of book-entry interests in the Securitiéd be effected through the records of Eurocleard
Clearstream, Luxembourg and their respective ppatits in accordance with the rules and procedofes
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and thgieiv/e direct and indirect participants.

7. Calculation of Interest

For so long as all the Securities outstanding @peasented by the Global Certificate, interestl éieatalculated
on the basis of the aggregate principal amounh@f3ecurities represented by the Global Certificate not
per Calculation Amount as provided in Condition){(bterest Payments - Interest Accrlual
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
Financial Data

Unless otherwise indicated, financial informatiocluded in this Prospectus has been prepared ordarice
with International Financial Reporting StandartiSRS) adopted by the International Accounting Standards
Board (ASB) and endorsed by the European UniBb)) (EU IFRS). EU IFRS differs in significant respects
from generally accepted accounting principles anlthnited States of Americ&J(S. GAAB.

The Group’s financial year ends on 31 December.
Group Financial Statements
The following financial statements are incorporatgdeference into this Prospectus:

. the audited consolidated financial statements af tBroup as of and for the year ended
31 December 2013 prepared in accordance with ELSIBRd the notes thereto, incorporated in the
SES Annual Report for the year ended 31 DecemhE3 @gBe2013 Financial Statemenjs

. the audited consolidated financial statements af tBroup as of and for the year ended
31 December 2014 prepared in accordance with ELSIBRd the notes thereto, incorporated in the
SES Annual Report for the year ended 31 Decemhibt @g8e2014 Financial Statemenjs

. the audited consolidated financial statements af tBroup as of and for the year ended
31 December 2015 compiled in accordance with EUSIFEIRd the notes thereto, incorporated in the
SES Annual Report for the year ended 31 Decembéb Zthe 2015 Financial Statementsand
together with the 2014 Financial Statements, antB ZBinancial Statements tienual Financial
Statementy

. pages 239 to 249 of the prospectus dated 27 Mafy &fating to the Capital Raise, which contain the
unaudited interim condensed consolidated finargtalements of the Group as of and for the three
months ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, hegetith the review report of the auditors
thereon;

. the Guarantor’s consolidated financial statementstlie financial year ended 31 December 2014
drawn up in accordance with IFRS and the notegtbeand

. the Guarantor’'s consolidated financial statemeatstlie financial year ended 31 December 2015
drawn up in accordance with IFRS and the notesther

The selected consolidated financial informatiomhaf Group included elsewhere in this Prospectusd aad for
the years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 201bdemsderived without adjustment from the Group’s
Annual Financial Statements (unless otherwise dtafehe selected interim condensed consolidateghial
information of the Group included elsewhere in frsspectus as of and for the three months endédiaBth
2015 and 2016 has been derived without adjustmesrh fthe Group’s unaudited interim condensed
consolidated financial statements (unless othersissed).

For a list of the Group’s subsidiaries and assesias of 31 December 2015, see note 33 to the Ei@akcial
Statements.

Rounding

Some financial information in this Prospectus hasnbrounded, and as a result the numbers showotas t
may vary slightly from the exact arithmetical aggaton of the relevant figures.
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Currency Presentation

In this Prospectus, references to “€,” “EUR” or f@uare to the single currency of the participatingmber
states fember States in the Third Stage of European Economic and MamyetUnion of the Treaty
Establishing the European Community, as amended fame to time. References to “U.S. dollars,” “l$S.
and “$” are to the United States dollar, the lavduiirency of the United States of America.

Non-IFRS Measures

In this Prospectus, the Group presents certaimdiahmeasures, including net debt, EBITDA, freshcélow,

net debt to EBITDA, EBITDA margin and contract bck which are not recognised by IFRS. These measur
are presented because the Issuer believes thaaidesimilar measures are widely used in the Geounglustry

as a means of evaluating operating performanceselheasures may not be comparable to similarkdtitl
measures used by other companies and are not ragssus under IFRS or any other body of generally
accepted accounting principles, and thus shoulcbaatonsidered substitutes for the information @omed in

the Group’s Annual Financial Statements. The Gdefines each of these measures as follows:

. net debt is defined as loans and borrowings lests @ad cash equivalents;

. EBITDA is defined as profit for the period beforeetimpact of depreciation, amortisation, net
financing charges, income tax, the Group’s sharthefresults of joint ventures and associates and
discontinued operations;

. net debt to EBITDA ratio is defined as net debidid by EBITDA,
. EBITDA margin is defined as EBITDA divided by reves
. contract backlog is defined as the minimum futuegenue due to the Group under its existing

customer contracts. In relation to contracts wioaisgomers have discretionary termination rights, th
minimum future revenue represents the revenue ugndcearliest termination point as well as the
applicable termination fee (if any). In certain &a®f breach for customer non-payment, cessation of
the operations of the customer or customer bangyupihe Group may not be able to recover the full
value of certain contracts or termination fees; and

. free cash flow is defined as net operating cash liéss net cash absorbed by investing activities.
Non-Financial Operating Measures

This Prospectus includes one non-financial opagatieasure used by the Issuer to track the perfarenafthe
Group's business: transponder utilisation ratess Tieasure is not a measure of financial performamzier
IFRS and has not been reviewed by an outside audibmsultant or expert. This measure is derivethfr
management information systems. As this term imddfby the Issuer, it may not be comparable tdlaim
terms used by other companies. The Issuer defiaasponder utilisation rates as the number of pamders
utilised divided by the number of commercially dable transponders.

The transponder utilisation figures included irstRrospectus have been extracted without matenahdment
from the Group’s management records.

Trademark

The SES trademark appearing on the front coverhisf Prospectus and variations thereon are registere
trademarks of SES and are registered with, or sulhfe pending trademark applications with, the vatg
registries of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg andowes other countries.
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Third-Party Data

In this Prospectus, the Issuer relies on and réfensformation and statistics regarding its industThe Issuer
obtained this market data from independent indystiylications or other publicly available infornmati These
and other third-party reports, publications andveys from which certain information contained insth
Prospectus has been extracted, as well as ther'tssuiernal estimates, rely on the applicationvafious

assumptions. While the Issuer believes that thesenaptions are reasonable, the Issuer cannot dssastors

that these assumptions are true, nor can the Iggusantee that an independent party applying rdifie
assumptions or using different methods to assemablalyse or compute market or other industry datalav

obtain or generate the same results.

The Issuer confirms that this information have baecurately reproduced and as far as the Issusvdse and
is able to ascertain from information publishedtbhat third party, no facts have been omitted whiauld
render the reproduced information inaccurate ofeaiing.

Websites

Websites included in the Prospectus are for inftiongurposes only and do not form part of the peotus.

69



EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION

The Group presents its consolidated information farahcial statements in euro. Set out in the takelew, for
the periods and dates indicated, are the periochgegthe average of the exchange rates on théuastess
day of each month for annual averages and the gwarfathe exchange rates on each business daygdhen

relevant period for monthly averages), high, lowd @&nd exchange rates as published by Bloomberg Thi

exchange rate information is provided solely fonv@mience. No representation is made that any atrafun
currencies specified in the table below has beenpuald be, converted into the applicable curresicthe rates

indicated or any other rate.

US$ per €1.00

Year Period Average Period High Period Low Period End
2010 1.3266 1.4513 1.1923 1.3387
2011 1.3924 1.4830 1.2907 1.2959
2012 1.2859 1.3458 1.2061 1.3217
2013 1.3285 1.3804 1.2780 1.3743
2014 1.3285 1.3932 1.2098 1.2098
2015 1.1102 1.2103 1.0497 1.0856
Month

January 2016 1.0867 1.0940 1.0747 1.0832
February 2016 1.1104 1.1324 1.0873 1.0873
March 2016 1.1104 1.1318 1.0868 1.1167
April 2016 1.1339 1.1446 1.1220 1.1446
May 2016 1.1298 1.1534 1.1115 1.1132
June 2016 (through 7 June 2016) 1.1287 1.1372 1.1151 1.1372

The above rates may differ from the actual ratesl rs the preparation of the Annual Financial Stegets and
other financial information appearing in this Presjpis. The inclusion of these exchange rates isneaint to
suggest that the euro amounts actually represet dollar amounts or that such amounts could haen b

converted into dollars at any particular ratet iflh
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THE ACQUISITION
Terms of the Acquisition

On 28 April 2016, the Issuer entered into an agesdrto increase its ownership of O3b from 49.14qaert to
50.5 per cent on a fully diluted basis and, in dado, will take a controlling share in O3b (@5 per cent
Acquisition). Pursuant to the terms of the 50.5 per cent Asitiom, the Group will purchase 3,431 additional
shares of O3b at $5,900 per share (plus an inteosst at an annualised rate of 6 per cent, apjii@d 30
September 2016) from shareholders of O3b other thanissuer (théNon-SES Shareholde)sfor a total
consideration of approximately $20 million. The S@er cent Acquisition will bring the Group’s aggate
equity investment in O3b to date to $323 millior2%Z million). Subject to regulatory approvals astfar
described below in——Regulatory approvals for the 50.5 per cent Actjpisiand other conditioristhe Issuer
expects that the 50.5 per cent Acquisition wilcbenpleted in the second half of 2016.

Upon signing the 50.5 per cent Acquisition agreemtire Issuer was granted the ability to make der db
acquire all O3b shares owned by Non-SES Sharetso{dad all such shareholders have agreed to asaept
offer) (theCall Option) at the same price being paid in connection with 50.5 per cent Acquisition plus an
interest cost, at an annualised rate of 6 per egmjed from the earliest of (i) the closing 0€t60.5 per cent
Acquisition and (ii) 30 September 2016. All outsterg warrants may be tendered into such offer &ndti so
tendered, all outstanding warrants, and all outkten options as well, will be cashed out for theowab
consideration. The Issuer intends to exercise tie@ption prior to completion of the 50.5 per céaquisition
and, as a result, would own 100 per cent of O3b 100 per cent Acquisitiorand, together with the 50.5 per
cent Acquisition, théAcquisition). The Issuer intends for the 50.5 per cent Actjoisiand the 100 per cent
Acquisition to close on the same day. AlthoughNdh-SES Shareholders have agreed to tender thaiesh
into such offer by the Issuer, the Issuer retaigists to acquire any non-tendering shares in Odkavsqueeze
out under Jersey law (available if the Issuer aeguover 90 per cent of each class of shares ofiD3he
Acquisition) (aSqueeze Olf and also has rights pursuant to existing doctatien to drag such non-tendered
shares into the Acquisition or to have O3b cangehshares in exchange for the consideration atbeseribed.
In connection with the Acquisition, on 31 May 20th@ Issuer raised gross proceeds of €908.8 miltioough
an issuance of 39,857,600 new fiduciary depositecgipts placed with institutional investors and iksuance
of 19,928,800 B shares of the Issuer to existirfghBreholders (th€apital Raisg. The Issuer intends to use a
portion of the net proceeds from the Capital Rtodinance the Acquisition.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Group hd2.65 per cent interest (voting rights) in O3b [{iiaking
common shares issued and transferred to SES agleati®on for in-kind services). This interest alaulated
on the basis of shares outstanding (and does olotdia the shares underlying the warrants held byldhuer
and its Affiliates). On a fully diluted basis, t#oup’s interest in O3b is 49.14 per cent.

Reasons for the Acquisition

The Issuer believes that the Acquisition of O3bl wékult in a strengthening of SES’s differentiatgdbal
network and capabilities, and in particular will:

. expand SES'’s global network and solutions by frtimcorporating O3b’s unique, low latency
solution satellite constellation which is alreadyoperation ;

. augment SES'’s differentiated capabilities by legarg the capabilities and features of the combined
fleets to deliver the best customer offering actbesdata-centric Enterprise, Mobility and Governine
verticals; and

. enhance SES's foundations for sustainable growth @Bb’s strong growth outlook representing an
important accelerator of long-term growth.
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In addition, the Issuer believes that as a resuthe Acquisition SES will capture additional batseffrom
commercial, operational, technical and financingesygies.

Regulatory Approvals for the 50.5 per cent Acquimit and Other Conditions

The 50.5 per cent Acquisition is subject to reguiatipprovals which are expected to be completemhguahe
second half of 2016. These regulatory approvakgeeb increasing the Group’s stake in O3b to drobimg
interest, and those still outstanding include: Fproval of transfer of licence, Hart-Scott-Rod{tbS. anti-
competition body) and approval(s) required by thtditlds Regulation and Competition Authority ofeh
Bahamas for the transfer of control of the Bahalriasnces. If regulatory approvals are not obtainador
before 4 January 2017, the 50.5 per cent Acquisitiil not complete, and the Group will maintais tdurrent
ownership. In addition, the Issuer may at its dison delay the closing of the 50.5 per cent Adgjois to a
date not beyond 4 January 2017 after having oldahmerequired regulatory approvals.

The 50.5 per cent Acquisition is also subject ttotal constellation failure” having not occurredqr to receipt
of the above regulatory approvals, defined genetallmean the failure of more than three of theantty
insured satellites of O3b, where such failure cabeccured by the launch of any of the eight séaslicurrently
under construction or other satellites of O3b ipitcat signing.

Rights Arising upon Completion of the 50.5 per cenficquisition

Upon completion of the 50.5 per cent Acquisitioa following rights will arise (in the event the C@iption is
not exercised):

. IPO window opensThe Issuer and the Non-SES Shareholders can agpeesue an IPO for O3b. The

final decision to float, after book-building andger discovery, must be approved by the Issuer &d 7
per cent of the Non-SES Shareholders (as measyredrbber of shares). As an additional condition,
no IPO may be conducted at a price per share thess $5,900. After such an IPO, the Issuer would
have no further obligations under the agreemeatadito the Put Option, described below.

Put window opengOn 1 October 2017 a put window (tRet Option) will open, conditional upon (i)
no IPO of O3b having occurred and (ii) the Issuvitng not exercised the Call Option. Any Non-SES
Shareholder may require the Issuer to make an tdfercquire all O3b shares owned by Non-SES
Shareholders, which shareholders have agreed &ptasach offer requiring the Issuer to acquire all
(but not less than all) of the O3b Shares (inckisiffwarrants tendered into the offer) that it does
own, in exchange for a baseline sum of $710 milplrs an interest cost, at an annualised ratepefr 6
cent, applied from the earlier of (i) the closirfgthee 50.5 per cent Acquisition and (ii) 30 Septemb
2016 (thePut Option Consideratioh The Issuer may pay the Put Option Consideratiorash or, in
the Issuer’s sole discretion, FDRs for new ClasShares in the IssueBES Consideration Shargs
with equivalent value to the Put Option Consideratiplus a gross-up of 6 per cent or, in the Issuer
sole discretion, in a mix of both. In the eventagbayment in FDRs, SES may agree with each Non-
SES Shareholder to pay a cash sum equivalent agcatithe interest rate of 6 per cent in placeks S
Consideration Shares on 5 January 2018 (such sbimewidenced by a loan note).

If the O3b shares held by the Non-SES Shareholteracquired on completion of an offer which isghbject
of the Call Option or Put Option, the subordinatmehs facilities granted by the Non-SES SharehslteO3b
will be transferred to the Issuer. Consideratiohl & paid at closing of the 100 per cent Acquisitin cash
based on the face value plus any outstanding urgradtbr accrued interest of the loans at closinthef50.5
per cent Acquisition plus 6 per cent interest rae annum. In the event of a transaction by midé2tie
consideration linked to the transfer of Non-SESr&halders loans is approximately $95 million.

In the event of a payment of the Put Option in FD&sClass A Shares, Non-SES Shareholders will have

restrictions on the sell down of shares post tretimain order to protect the Issuer’s share valle Non-SES
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Shareholders are permitted to sell their SES Cenglithn Shares in the open-market as long as tlersnsold
on any given day does not exceed 22.5 per cehedfldy’s volume of the Issuer’s shares traded. thmtdilly:

. From 1 October 2017 to 31 December 2017, Non-SE®eBblders shall be permitted to sell their SES
Consideration Shares provided that an orderly ntdskenaintained. Non-SES Shareholders must (i)
notify SES of the proposed sale, and (ii) obtainSSEprior approval to the appointment of the
brokers/bookrunners, such approval not to be unredsy withheld or delayed.

. From 1 January 2018 to 31 March 2018, the Non-SEBeBolders shall not be permitted to sell the
Issuer’s shares without the Issuer’s prior approstier than in the open-market subject to the abov
agreed open market orderly sale restrictions.

. From 1 April 2018 there shall be no restrictionsanly sale of the SES Consideration Shares by way of
an accelerated placement or an equity linked altizt

O3b Governance Following the 50.5 per cent Acquistn

The governance of O3b will be updated from closhghe 50.5 per cent Acquisition. The Issuer withtrol
O3b’s board with eight directors to be appointedruproposal of the Issuer. Six directors will bgaipted
upon proposal of each of the next six largest $todders of O3b, that currently are HSBC, Libertyokall,
Sofina, DBSA, ST1100 and Satya. Until acquiredhia Acquisition, preferred stock retains variouscking
rights with respect to non-ordinary course acigtof O3b.

Upon closing of the 100 per cent Acquisition, dioes nominated by Non-SES Shareholders would bevech
from O3b’s board.
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CAPITALISATION AND INDEBTEDNESS

The following table sets forth the Issuer’s cajtion and indebtedness as of 31 March 2016. toreshould
read this information in conjunction with the Anh@nancial Statements and interim condensed cateted

financial statements for the three month periodeen81 March 2016 and the related notes theretottad
section entitled Operating and Financial Reviéw

As of 31 March 2016

(€in millions)

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents 721.7
Total cash and cash equivalents 721.7
Current borrowings:
Interest-bearing borrowings 253.1
Total current borrowings 253.1
Non-current borrowings:
Interest-bearing borrowings

Of which bank borrowings 351.8

Of which bonds 3,738.5
Total non-current borrowings 4,090.3
Total borrowings 4,343.4
Net debt 3,621.7
Capitalisation
Attributable to equity holders of the parent 3,881.3
Non-controlling interests 135.9
Total equity 4,017.2
Total borrowings 4,343.4
Total capitalisation 8,360.6

There has been no material change to the Groupltalisation and indebtedness since 31 March 20héro
than the Capital Raise and the payment of the einddelating to the year ended 31 December 201ishwias
paid in April 2016 in the amount of €536 million.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The selected consolidated financial informatiomfaand for the years ended 31 December 2015, 2042613
has been derived from the Group’s audited condalttéinancial statements for the respective yearkleas
been prepared in accordance with EU IFRS. Thetseléaterim condensed consolidated financial infation
as of and for the three months ended 31 March 20852016 has been derived from SES’s unauditedrinte
condensed consolidated financial statements forebyective periods and has been prepared in aromgdvith
IAS 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” as adopted thg European Union. This selected financial infation
should be read together with the Annual Financi@tetnents and the discussion und@pérating and

Financial RevieW

Selected Group Income Statement Data

Revenue

Cost of sales

Staff costs

Other operating expenses
Operating expenses
EBITDA

Depreciation expense
Amortisation expense

Operating profit

Finance revenue
Finance costs
Net financing charges

Profit before tax

Income tax expense
Profit after tax

Share of joint ventures and associates’ resultphistx
Profit for the period

Attributable to equity holders of the parent
Attributable to non-controlling interests

For the year ended
31 December

For the three months
ended 31 March
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2013 2014 2015 2015 2016
(€ in millions)

1,862.5 1,919.1 2,014.5 477.8 481.6
(179.6) (173.5) (183.6) (42.5) (41.4)
(185.8) (194.5) (200.5) (48.6) (51.2)
(132.4) (123.1) (136.2) (30.6) (32.8)
(497.8) (491.1) (520.3) (121.7) (125.4)
1,364.7 1,428.0 1,494.2 356.1 356.2
(466.5) (491.6) (536.8) (126.6) (126.4)
(47.0) (53.8) (62.8) (14.4) (15.6)
851.2 882.6 894.6 215.1 214.2

9.6 33.8 53.1 35.8 3.3
(183.1) (188.8) (188.8) (48.0) (45.9)
(173.5) (155.0) (135.7) (12.2) (42.6)
677.7 727.6 758.9 202.9 171.6
(87.5) (85.2) (84.9) (30.3) (27.6)
590.2 642.4 674.0 172.6 144.0
(21.7) (39.0) (126.7) (31.2) (28.3)
568.5 603.4 547.3 141.4 115.7
566.5 600.8 544.9 140.4 115.1

2.0 2.6 42 1.0 0.6



Selected Group Statement of Financial Position Data

As of
As of 31 December 31 March
2013 2014* 2015 2016
(€ in millions)
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4,847.5 5,004.4 5,359.1 5,193.4
Intangible assets 2,750.3 3,329.3 3,587.4 3,446.8
Investments in joint ventures and associates 141.8 93.1 73.5 45.9
Other financial and operational assets 3.9 37.4 3 60. 60.9
Valuation of financial derivatives — — — —
Other non-current financial assets 65.5 60.3 54.8 60.3
Deferred tax assets 95.7 122.2 59.2 56.6
Total non-current assets 7,904.7 8,646.7 9,194.3 8,863.9
Current assets
Inventories 6.4 5.3 8.5 16.3
Trade and other receivables 586.6 691.5 782.7 660.2
Prepayments 374 38.8 39.0 46.9
Valuation of financial derivatives 9.5 — 1.6 3.8
Income tax receivable — 45.3 — —
Cash and cash equivalents 544.2 524.5 639.7 721.7
Total current assets 1,184.1 1,305.4 1,471.5 1,448.9
Total assets 9,088.8 9,952.1 10,665.8 10,312.8
Equity
Attributable to equity holders of the parent 2,820. 3,404.7 3,932.5 3,881.3
Non-controlling interests 78.2 84.9 128.3 135.9
Total equity 2,898.9 3,489.6 4,060.8 4,017.2
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 3,542.2 4,227.6 4,177.9 4,090.3
Provisions 129.0 122.1 62.7 40.7
Deferred income 227.8 335.1 383.3 359.6
Valuation of financial derivatives — — — —
Deferred tax liabilities 645.3 676.5 655.9 626.0
Other long-term liabilities 59.7 45.8 75.9 47.3
Total non-current liabilities 4,604.0 5,407.1 5,355.7 5,163.9
Current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 803.7 258.5 253.8 253.1
Provisions 12.6 43.8 10.8 29.2
Trade and other payables 341.4 3315 524.0 394.3
Valuation of financial derivatives — — — 1.3
Income tax liabilities 42.6 11.0 10.0 30.7
Deferred income 385.6 410.6 450.7 423.1
Total current liabilities 1,585.9 1,055.4 1,249.3 1,131.7
Total liabilities 6,189.9 6,462.5 6,605.0 6,295.6
Total liabilities and equity 9,088.8 9,952.1 10,665.8 10,312.8

*For consistency of presentation purposes, cextithe Group’s 2014 balance sheet figures have bégrsted to reflect reclassifications
(i) from assets in the course of construction (€&Hlion, which is no longer presented as a lineneto intangible assets, (i) from
provisions to other long-term liabilities and (ifjom trade and other payables to other long-teatilities. This reclassification had no
impact on total assets, total non-current assetstar liabilities.
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Selected Group Cash Flow Data

For the year ended For the three months
31 December ended 31 March
2013 2014 2015 2015 2016
(€ in millions)
Net cash flow from operating activities 1,148.5 35 1,450.6 416.6 315.6
Net cash flow absorbed by investing activities (@22 (501.1) (560.6) (107.1) (113.9)
Net cash flow absorbed by financing activities (351 (757.0) (758.3) (82.0) (123.9)
Net foreign exchange movements (50.1) (1.1) (16.5) 4.8 4.2
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivatent 304.2 (19.7) 115.2 232.3 82.0
Other Selected Financial Data
As of 31
As of 31 December March
2013 2014 2015 2016
(€ in millions)
Cash and cash equivalents .............cooeeveerniiiienec e, 544.2 524.5 639.7 721.7
Current borrowings
Interest-bearing DOrrOWINGS........ccuviiiimecmm e 803.7 258.5 253.8 253.1
Non-current borrowings
Interest-bearing DOrrOWINGS........ccuviiiieecm e 3,542.2 4,227.6 4,177.9 4,090.3
Net debt . 3,801.7 3,961.6 3,792.0 3,621.7
Net deb/EBITDA Fati0.......ccccivreeiireiiirmer e 2.79 2.77 2.54 243
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

This “Operating and Financial Review” relates toethGroup’s historical financial condition and resailof
operations as of and for the financial years en@&dDecember 2013, 2014 and 2015 and as of anchfor t
three months ended 31 March 2015 and 2016. Thewethat follows should be read in conjunction vitik
Group’s Annual Financial Statements and unauditedrfcial statements for the three months ended &kciv
2016, as well as “Presentation of Financial and &tlnformation,” “Risk Factors,” “Business” and “Skected
Financial Information”. Prospective investors shdutead the entire Prospectus and not just rely ba t
information set out below.

The following discussion of the Group’s result®pérations and financial condition contains forwdeobking
statements. The Group’s actual results could diffeterially from those discussed in these forwawking
statements. Factors that could cause or contriltotesuch differences include those discussed beludv a
elsewhere in this Prospectus, particularly underisiR Factors,” “Presentation of Financial and Other
Information” and in the cautionary statements rediag forward looking statements made on pages dnan

Overview

SES is a world-leading satellite operator. The @rowns and operates a fleet of 52 geostationaejlises and
provides satellite-enabled communications solutibtmsmajor customers around the world. The Group’s
operations are focused on delivering solutionsetoes four market verticals — Video, Enterprise, Mgband
Government. The Group'’s fleet is complemented bgtavork of teleports and offices located aroundvibdd.
This far-reaching infrastructure could enable theup to offer coverage to 99 per cent of the warld’
population. The Group’s transponder utilisatioreras at 31 December 2015 was 72.8 per cent, repirege
1,093 of 1,502 transponders commercially available.

In addition to operating a geostationary satefléet with global coverage, across multiple freqryebands, the
Issuer has a fully diluted interest of 49.14 partée O3b, a company operating a Medium Earth Gsiellite
constellation that combines the reach of satallith the speed of fibre. On 29 April 2016, SES amued the
50.5 per cent Acquisition. The Issuer intends tereise the Call Option to purchase the remainirtgtanding
share capital of O3b. For more information on G&lg Business—O3tbelow.

SES’s differentiated strategy focuses on threeckemyents:

. Globalisation (building scale to serve rapidly iEgsing demand for global solutions);

. Verticalisation (focused development of differetathcapabilities in the four market verticals); and

. Dematuring (shaping the future user experience, emtebnching satellite’s key role in the digital
ecosystem).

By delivering differentiated and world-class glotsaitellite-enabled solutions, SES seeks to optinsdive
customer requirements in four key market verticalideo, Enterprise, Mobility and Government whiobw
define SES’s business and strategy.

In 2015 the Group reported revenue growth in tlofene four verticals; Video grew 7.5 per cent 19354.9
million compared to €1,260.8 million in 2014, Mabjlgrew 47.4 per cent to €52.9 million compare€85.9
million in 2014 and Government grew 18.8 per cen€255.6 million compared to €215.1 million in 20T4he
revenue in the market vertical Enterprise decredse®.1 per cent to €307.6 million compared to €324
million in 2014. No analysis of revenues by veltisaavailable for years before 2014.

The Group contracts satellite capacity and hadn&r&ct backlog of approximately €7.6 billion as3df March
2016. Contracts with broadcasters are generallg-term, with typical durations of ten years (andtapl5
years in certain cases) for customers in North Acaeand Europe and between five and ten yearsuiomers

78



in developing markets. Contracts with enterprigestgpically three to five years in length and cants with
government customers are typically one year. Theu@s largest customers generally are leading media
companies, enterprises and government agencieslavititredit risk and steady cash flows. These tjeali
combined with the Group’s contract backlog, prov&teS with predictable cash flows and revenue Visibi
The Issuer believes the long-cycle nature of manthe Group’s material contracts make the busidess
susceptible to short-term fluctuations in globalremmic conditions.

Key Factors Affecting the Group’s Business and Re#is of Operations

The discussion below highlights several key factbet have had and/or may have a significant effacthe
Group's business and results of operations.

Acquisitions
Acquisition of O3b

In connection with the 50.5 per cent Acquisitidme i1ssuer will purchase 3,431 additional share®3i from
the Non-SES Shareholders for a total consideraf®20 million, bringing SES’s aggregate equityestment
in O3b to $323 million (€257 million). On complatiof the 50.5 per cent Acquisition, which is expelcin the
second half of 2016, the Issuer will own 50.5 pamtof O3b on a fully diluted basis. Before comipletof the
50.5 per cent Acquisition, the Issuer intends tereise the Call Option, to be funded by a portidrth@
proceeds of the Capital Raise, which will resulthia Issuer owning 100 per cent of O3b.

From completion of the 50.5 per cent AcquisitiorBb@ financial information, previously accounted tmder
the equity method, will be fully consolidated inetlinancial reporting of the Group. As part of theRS
purchase accounting treatment, the transaction giile rise to the recognition of deemed income of
approximately $560 million relating to the remea&snent to fair value of the current non-controllinterest in
0O3b.

In 2015, O3b incurred a loss of $317.0 million awlof 31 December 2015 had a net debt positiorl & $
billion. As of 31 December 2015 the average interate on O3b’'s debt, including amortisation ofroa
origination costs and commitment fees, was 9.5cpet. The Issuer intends to use a portion of therazeeds
from the Capital Raise and a portion of the netgeds from the issue of the Securities to repalyqidd3b’s
indebtedness. As a result, the Issuer expectattbet will be a reduction in O3b’s annual financougts after
initially covering any repayment charges. The Isspects its net debt to EBITDA ratio will be b&l@.30
times upon closing of the Acquisition. For moreoimhation on O3b’s debt se®tsiness—0O3b—Funding of
03h'.

2015 was 03b's first full year of commercial seevi©3b commenced commercial operations utilisiadirist
eight satellites in September 2014, with O3b’sdlsiet of four satellites being placed in servicMarch 2015.
As a result, both revenue and satellite networkatpey expenses increased in 2015. O3b generatedue of
$57 million in 2015, and is expected to generatemae of more than $100 million in 2016. O3b’s gpenal
and financial performance trends are currently isbeist with the criteria that SES requires to bgsfad
before moving to control, including significanti;mproving EBITDA. The Acquisition is expected to bete
free cash flow (before financing activities) and imecome accretive to SES in 2018. It is also etgubt¢hat
O3b’s EBITDA margin will be comparable to FSS intlysmargins when it reaches “steady-state”. O3b’s
effective tax rate is negligible in the near-temma éhereafter is expected to be approximately I<peat.

According to its business plan, O3b expects th&0ih6é and 2017, revenue per operational satedgsuming
nine operational satellites) will be in the randé&bl million to $24 million. For 2018 and 2019, I©8xpects
that revenue per operational satellite (assumingpEsational satellites) will be in the range oD3$agillion to
$29 million. For 2020, O3b expects that revenue gparational satellite (assuming 17 operationad|is@s)
will be in the range of $25 million to $32 million.
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By 2020, O3b targets having a fleet of 20 satall{iacluding three satellites flying as in-orbitckaup). As a
result, at “steady-state” utilisation, which isgated to be achieved by the end of the third yéar satellite’s
commercial service, the full operational constalais expected to generate annualised revenuetafen $32
million and $36 million per satellite. The Issuatimates that by 2021 O3b will generate €400 tc0&#ilion
of potential annualised revenue, at current exobhaates and assuming 17 operational satelliteteatysstate
utilisation.

O3b's first four satellites experienced payload raalles which caused the satelltes to be declared a
constructive total loss for insurance purposesrdtuiy, three of the four satellites have been neddfrom
operations, and are classified as back-up satellitee fourth satellite was less affected by thensaly and is
currently part of the operational O3b constellatiéa a result of the identified anomalies, all featellites have
been subject to an acceleration in their depretiatiycle which will result in a reduction in thesl®r’s full-
year depreciation charge from 2017 onwards.

In the periods under review, the Group accounted®fRb’s results under the equity method and, imatance
with its accounting principles, assessed the aagryialue of its investment in O3b for impairmentenbver
events or changes in circumstances indicate thngiegrvalue may not be recoverable.

For more information on the Acquisition, sééht Acquisitioh
Acquisition of RR Media

Subject to regulatory approvals, SES will pay $23.8er share (for a total of $242 million) to acgLa 100 per
cent stake in RR Media, to be completed in the redoor third quarter of 2016. On completion of the
acquisition, RR Media will merge with SES Platfo®ervices. RR Media is expected to generate revehue
between $160 million and $170 million in 2016. RRdR’'s EBITDA margin reported in 2015 was compagabl
to the EBITDA margins for the Group’s existing sees businesses.

Key Factors Affecting the Group’s Revenue
Transponder Capacity and Utilisation Rates

The Group’s primary source of revenue is the pionisf satellite transponder capacity. Its reveisuberefore
affected by the amount of transponder capacityGheup has and the number of transponders utiliesl (
utilisation rate). Capacity is determined by the size of the Greujget (52 satellites as at the date of this
Prospectus) and the network availability of thoateltites. The size of the Group’s fleet increaséh the
addition of new satellites and decreases whenligggehre retired from service, fail or malfunctidgtilisation

is affected by demand for capacity, as described-Hvemanti below.

The table below sets out the Group’s utilisatidesand revenue for the years ended 31 Decemb8&; 2014
and 2015.

Year ended 31 December

2013 2014 2015
Transponders utilised (in 36 MHz-equivalent) 1,1001,115 1,093
Transponders available (in 36 MHz-equivalent) 1,4871,534 1,502
Transponder utilisation% 74.0% 72.7% 72.8%

Revenue for the years ended 31 December 2013,8@ 2015 (€ in millions) 1,862.51,919.1 2,014.5

As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s utilisatiorerafais 72.8 per cent, compared with 72.7 per cemf 81
December 2014, which primarily reflects net newitess beginning in 2015. The decrease in utiligatide as
of 31 December 2014 compared to 31 December 2GtERtsethe Group’s bringing new satellite capaaityp

service.
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Investments in new satellites are expected to aserahe Group’s current capacity. Between the dfathis

Prospectus and the end of 2017, the Group plafmitch six more satellites, plus SES-9, launchelllanch

2016, will enter commercial service in mid-2016.ridg the same period, three satellites (ASTRA 2Qtne
2016, NSS-7 in April 2017 and NSS-6 in December72a¢till reach the end of their design lives, whitlay

result in their retirement. The effect of the swstel launch in 2016, the planned launches thr@@gty and the
potential retirements is expected to be a net asgren transponder capacity of approximately 12 qaert

compared to the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Group’s transponder utilisation rate as at 3rdd 2016 was 71.5 per cent, representing 1,0714&7
transponders commercially available (31 March 201154 per cent, representing 1,071 of 1,500 tramdgs
commercially available).

Pricing

The Group’s revenue is affected by the pricesarghs for its transponder capacity and relatedcsvPricing
of the Group'’s services is generally fixed for theation of existing service commitments, with saroatracts
incorporating inflation escalator clauses, primaii contracts with customers in Europe. New antewed
service commitments are generally priced competitivto reflect regional demand, the availability of
competing capacity and other factors.

Over the last three years, the Group’s averagenteveper utilised transponder, which reflects pribesg
achieved for utilised capacity, has remained nadistable in most of the regions the Group senwith some
variations according to the balance of supply asmthahd in certain markets. See-Demanti below for more
information.

Demand

Demand for the Group’s satellite capacity at anyegitime is partially dependent on the supply qfacity
available in a geographic region, including capadibm other satellite providers, and from compgtin
terrestrial distribution technologies such as Dfgire and wireless networks, as well as the le¥elemand for
that competing capacity. In recent years, the Groap generated new revenue from a number of squrces
including growth in demand for HD content, new DPplatforms and government communications networks.
With respect to DTH platforms, the Issuer is a iegdnternational satellite operator in supplying-Kand
capacity, which is the preferred means of provididigH content, and presently counts 50 DTH platforms
broadcast via its satellite fleet. The Issuer swhorld’s largest satellite-based carrier of HRwdion content,
carrying 26 per cent of the 8,600 HD channelsitisted by satellite around the globe as of 31 Ddmam2015.

In addition, the Issuer was the first satellite rapar to secure commercial agreements to distribliren HD
channels and now broadcasts 23 channels in Ultraintiuding all regional versions.

Government customers are an important driver ofadaimworldwide, for civil as well as defence netwsmrk
especially as remote surveillance and new apphicatsuch as unmanned aerial vehicles increaseethardi

for suitable satellite capacity and mobile netwar&hitecture is required for communications in oagiwithout
terrestrial communications alternatives. New reeefas also been generated from increased demand for
satellite capacity for global disaster relief andrianitarian missions. The percentage of the Grorgvenue
generated attributable to the Government verticas W1 per cent in 2014 and 13 per cent in 2015. No
corresponding analysis by vertical is availablederiods before 2014.

Geographic Mix

The developed markets of Europe and North Americaunt for the majority of the Group’s revenue 67fer
cent, 70.8 per cent and 70.7 per cent for the y@adled 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015, respsgtivel
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These markets are characterised by stable longdexelopment, with slight declines in North Ameraféset
by moderate growth in Europe, where revenue grivathbeen augmented by services such as HD+, arphatf
for the reception of encrypted and unencrypted-tivegir HD channels in Germany which SES broadcasts

The remaining portion of the Group’s revenue isitaitable to sales in “international” markets (i.markets
other than North America and Europe), where theu@ris concentrating a significant amount of its new
investments in capacity, and, in some cases, regiegl satellites that previously served the lowewgh North
American market. Such markets include Latin Ameracal Asia, where in recent periods there has been
sustained growth in demand for satellite bandwatdtd distribution capacity for both Standard Defamtand

HD television. Other regions offering significambgith opportunities include the Middle East, whire Group

has launched the YahLive satellite platform, andic&f where DTH television is in an early stageitef
development. Sales in developing markets are ctesised by the potential for higher revenue groretes, as
well as greater competition from regional and natlosatellite operators, which are planning sigaifit
capacity expansions.

Contract Backlog

The Group defines contract backlog as the minimutaré revenue due to the Group under its existing
customer contracts. In relation to contracts witeistomers have discretionary termination rights,rttinimum
future revenue represents the revenue up to thiestaermination point as well as the applicalgartination

fee (if any). In certain cases of breach for custonon-payment, cessation of the operations ottiseomer or
customer bankruptcy, the Group may not be abletowver the full value of certain contracts or teration
fees.

The Issuer believes its contract backlog incretisepredictability of the Group’s revenue and iases its cash
flow visibility by making net cash provided by opéing activities less volatile than that of typicaimpanies
outside the Group’s industry. The Issuer also efidts contract backlog reduces its exposureutifations in

global economic conditions.

Revenue attributable to the Video vertical accodiive 66 per cent and 67 per cent respectivelyhefGroup’s
revenue in the years ended 31 December 2014 arid R@lcorresponding analysis by vertical is avaddbr
periods before 2014. The contracts from which tlegenues are derived are generally long-term taraand
important components of the Group’s contract bagklo

The table below sets out the Group’s contract lmgklevenue up to the date of the backlog measunteamsl

the implied number of years of revenue generatedhbybacklog. As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s
contract backlog was €7.4 billion, representingragimately four years of revenue and remainingtieddy
stable as compared to 31 December 2014. As of 8kreer 2015, the Group’s weighted average remaining
contract life was over eight years.

As of 31 December

2013 2014 2015
Contract backlog (€ in millions) 7,483.8 7,282 7,368.3
Revenue (€ in millions) 1,862.5 1,919.. 12,0145
Implied revenue years 4.0 3.t 3.7

SES'’s contract backlog increased to €7.6 billioata31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: €7.4 billion)néfitting
from new businesses and renewals across SES'snfanket verticals.
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Satellite Launch Delays and Failures and Satelitemalies

Launch delays and failures can, under certain gistances, affect revenue and potentially causdoseof
frequency rights at certain orbital positions, whazn lead to decreases in revenue. Satellite taand in-orbit
insurance policies do not compensate for lost newatue to the loss of customers or for consequdntises
resulting from any launch delay or failure or ibibranomalies. To date, satellite launch delaysshzat had a
material effect on the Group’s overall returns frive affected satellites but have had the effectetdying the
start of revenue generation into a later repontiegod.

On the other hand, in-orbit anomalies such as safiay circuit failures can reduce, and have rediutiee
Group's capacity and, correspondingly, revenue.dxample, when compared to the revenue generafertbe
the first of its solar array circuit failures, sokaray circuit failures on AMC-16 had a negatiesenue impact
of €18.1 million in 2013, €18.0 million in 2014 a®23.3 million in 2015. (For more information oretlolar
array circuit failures, seeBusiness—Satellite Health".

Failures may also lead to impairment charges. kamgle, solar array circuit failures on AMC-15 aflIC-
16 resulted in impairment charges being recordecE@@f million and €9.7 million in 2014 and 2015,
respectively.

The Group plans to launch six new satellites betwtbe date of this Prospectus and the end of 20diThch
delays could have a negative impact on anticipegednue growth. Any in-orbit satellite anomaliesildoalso
have a negative effect on revenue and lead todunthpairment charges.

Key Factors Affecting the Group’s Costs
Product Mix

The Group’s business activities fall into two categs: (i) the provision of satellite transpondapacity and
directly attributable services and revenue fromdbmmercialisation of its satellite assets and gdooetwork,
which the Group refers to as “Infrastructure”; afiijithe provision of services such as the Groudi3+
platform, engineering services and platform ses/gach as play-out, uplinking and related actisigervices
and retail broadband two-way internet access, wtiehGroup refers to collectively as “Services” eT@roup’s
Services activities are a strategic complementht Group’s Infrastructure activities and are an drtgmt
element supporting the sale of additional transporedpacity (“pull-through sales”). After the elmation of
inter-segment transactions, Infrastructure accalfde 77.3 per cent, 76.7 per cent and 74.3 pet otthe
Group's revenue for the years ended 31 Decembe3, 24 and 2015, respectively. Infrastructureviids
generally return high EBITDA margins, as depreoiatia substantial element of cost is not refledted
EBITDA. Services activities typically require muldwer capital investment and thus have greateisafstales
in relative terms, resulting in relatively lower HBA margins than for Infrastructure. The EBITDA rgin for
Infrastructure for the years ended 31 December 20084 and 2015 was 83.3 per cent, 84.4 per ce&h84d
per cent, respectively, compared with 17.1 per,cehi6 per cent and 16.6 per cent, respectivetySévices
over the same periods.

During 2014 and 2015, the proportion of total rexemttributable to Services increased from 23.3cpat to
25.7 per cent, which led to an increase in direstts of sales associated with this revenue. Thiease
resulted from the fact that while a large portidrihe@ Group’s Services revenue has historicallynbgenerated

by platform and play-out services, in recent pesibdsted payload transactions with governmentabmess,

as well as services such as HD+, have also maigmifiGant contribution. For example, 2015 Servicegenue
included income in connection with two hosted pagldransactions: the Wide Area Augmentation Systems
payload WAAS) and the Global-scale Observations of the Limb @isk payload GOLD). Concerning HD+,

at the end of 2015, the number of paying HD+ custensurpassed 1.8 million, an increase of 11 pet ce
compared to the end of 2014.
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The table below sets out the revenue and EBITDAbatable to Infrastructure and Services during fiegod
under review.

For the year ended 31 December

2013 2014 2015
(€ in millions)
Revenue
Infrastructur& 1,591.0 1,643.3 1,727.3
Service® 432.5 455.7 526.3
Eliminatior® (161.0) (179.9) (239.1)
Total 1,862.5 1,919.1 2,014.5
Operating expenses
Infrastructure (265.8) (256.4) (277.3)
Services (358.7) (379.9) (438.8)
Eliminatior® 161.0 179.9 239.1
Unallocate® (34.3) (34.7) (43.3)
Total (497.8) (491.1) (520.3)
EBITDA
Infrastructure 1,325.2 1,386.9 1,450.0
Services 73.8 75.8 87.5
Unallocate® (34.3) (34.7) (43.3)
Total 1,364.7 1,428.0 1,494.2
EBITDA margin
Infrastructure 83.3% 84.4% 84.0%
Services 17.1% 16.6% 16.6%
Total 73.3% 74.4% 74.2%

@ Infrastructure and Services revenue for the yeateén3l December 2014 restated at constant FX wefg8E.7 million and
€496.1 million, respectively. Revenues at conskEtwere recalculated by reconsolidating the 20gdirfes using the exchange rates
applied for each month in 2015.

@ Revenue and operating expenses elimination priyndrié to capacity sold by Infrastructure operatimnServices companies.

®  Unallocated operating expenses represent the tostjporate-level operations.
Depreciation and Amortisation

The Group’s capital assets consist primarily of $ellites and associated ground network infrastrac
Included in capitalised satellite costs are thea ofsthe satellite procurements and related lausetvices,
insurance premiums for the satellite launches hedhe-year period following those launches andtalaed
interest charges incurred during the satellite yprement period. Depreciation begins when asset®rund
construction are transferred to assets in use.

Capital assets are depreciated on a straight-lsis lover their estimated useful lives. Estimatseful lives of
the Group’s satellites range from 10 to 19.5 yeasimated useful lives of ground network infrastune range
from three to 15 years. Intangible assets, pridigipgcquired orbital slot licence rights, are revisl at
acquisition to establish whether they represeratasgith a definite or indefinite useful life. Theoassessed as
being definite-life intangible assets are amortiseca straight-line basis over a period not excapd0 years.
Indefinite-life intangible assets are held at costthe statement of financial position but are eabjto
impairment testing. See note 2 to the 2015 Fina®ta@ements for more information.

The Group’s long-lived assets and definite-lifeamdible assets, including its in-service sateffieet, are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or chamygescumstances indicate that the carrying amafistich
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assets may not be recoverable. Impairments cae faosm complete or partial failure of a satelliés, well as
other changes in expected discounted future castsfllf impairment is indicated, the asset valueviiten
down to its value in use, represented by the ptesdne of the attributable future cash flows, dine write-
down is taken as a charge to income. For furthfarimation on solar array circuit failures on AMC-ahd
AMC-16 see Key Factors Affecting the Group’s Revenue—Satdli#ench Delays and Failures and Satellite
Anomalies.

Net Financing Charges

As of 31 December 2015 the Group had a net dehtigpof €3,792.0 million (€3,961.6 million as ofL3
December 2014 and €3,801.7 million as of 31 Decer@b&3). The net debt position as of 31 Decembé&520
included loans and borrowings of €4,431.7 milliamet( of loan origination costs). Of these loans and
borrowings, €4,078.3 million is at fixed rates @&8b3.4 million is at floating rates.

The Group’s financial strategy contemplates simgesportions of debt in its capital structure ire thuture,
which will result in continued significant net inést charges, although part of these charges magftalised
in the framework of satellite procurement prograrmnfdditionally net financing charges can be impddby
gains or losses on foreign exchange reflectinglueti@n impacts of assets and liabilities positidredd in
currencies other than the euro.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s tax expense for the year ended 31 DeeeR015 was €84.9 million compared with an incoae
expense of €85.2 million for the year ended 31 bBdamr 2014 and an income tax expense of €87.5 miftio
the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Group's effective tax rate reflects the statuttax rates—and the proportionate part of the @Giou
income—in the jurisdictions where the Issuer hasraorate income taxable status, and is influefgechany

factors based on the local tax law and regulatathose jurisdictions. These factors include, brg not

limited to, rules in relation to income recognitigmon) deductible expense (including operationadeases,
interest and depreciation/amortisation), fiscal sabidation, permanent establishments, the treatroéntet

operating losses, dividend and capital gains treatfexemptions, withholding taxes, foreign excharages,

timing differences and investment tax credits guitehinvestments.

Exchange Rate and Currency Fluctuations

The Group’s consolidated financial statements aesgmted in euro, which is the Group’s functionadl a
presentation currency. The Group’s income statermedtstatement of financial position are there&dfected
by movements in the exchange rates of the eurdaradional currencies of Group entities, with tlaegest
exposure relating to movements on the euro agtiadt.S. dollar.

In relation to the income statement, in the yeateen31 December 2015, 45.2 per cent of the Gragpsnue
and 50.5 per cent of the Group’s operating expemsgs generated by Group companies that use the U.S
dollar as their functional currency, or with curc@s pegged to the U.S. dollar, compared to 42.&@et and
40.5 per cent, respectively, for the year ended8dember 2014 and 46.1 per cent and 40.3 per cetid
year ended 31 December 2013.

The impact on the Group’s total equity of the reatibn of assets and liabilities held by U.S. della
denominated entities was a significant contribtitothe overall increase of €571.2 million in thegewhich
included other comprehensive income of €560.4 anillieflecting the total impact of currency tranislat net of
tax. This translation impact reflected a strengitgrof the U.S. dollar from $1.2141 to $1.0887 $&r00 in
2015.
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For 2014, the corresponding increase in total ggués €590.7 million with other comprehensive ineoof
€601.6 million, reflecting the total impact of cency translation, net of tax. This translation ictpaflected a
strengthening of the U.S. dollar from $1.3791 ta2$41 per €1.00 in 2014.

For 2013, the corresponding increase in total gquis €17.8 million with a charge to other compredine
income of €231.2 million, reflecting the total ingbaf currency translation, net of tax. This tratisih impact
reflected a weakening of the U.S. dollar from $281o $1.3791 per €1.00 in 2013.

To mitigate the effect of foreign exchange riskignstatement of financial position, the Grouphe past has
entered and in the future may enter into forwargigm exchange contracts or similar derivativehddge the
exposure on financial debt or on net assets.

To eliminate or reduce currency exposure on sget#insactions, such as satellite procurementssthap in
the past has entered and in the future may ent@fanward currency contracts, tailoring the matesi to the
underlying milestone payment schedule for the tarian. The forward contracts are in the same nayr@s
the hedged item and can cover up to 100 per cehedbtal value of the contract. It is the Groupdicy not to
enter into forward contracts until a firm commitrhénin place, and to match the terms of the heligi/atives

to those of the hedged item to ensure the effentise of the hedge. See-Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk—Foreign Currency Ris{ow and note 19 to the 2015 Financial Statement
for more information.

To assist investors in isolating the impact of exue rates on its results and therefore improve the
comparability of its financial statements, the Graeports changes in its operating results on &taah FX
basis. To do this, the Group reconsolidates figores month-by-month basis, by applying the excbhaage
used for a given month from the current year toctreesponding month in the prior year. For examigeuary
2015 financials would be reconsolidated using #raudry 2016 exchange rate.

In this Prospectus, constant exchange rate fighea® been included for the period-on-period disonss
included in this section for the revenue, operatrgenses, EBITDA, depreciation, amortisation aperating
profit.

Constant exchange rate commentaries are not pobfiddine items below operating profit, as thefeliénces
between period-on-period movements arising on arteg and constant exchange rate basis are legfcsigt.

Equity Accounted Associates

The Group has investments in associates which @@uated for using the equity method of accountiay.
more information on the method of consolidationhaf Group’s equity accounted associates, see Aated 15
to the 2015 Financial Statements aBdiSiness—Strategic Investménts

In the periods under review, the most significaithe Group’s equity accounted associates was B8vever,
when the Group increases its ownership intere&3h (on a fully diluted basis) to over 50 per cénwill fully
consolidate O3b’s results. Sekcyuisition of O3babove.

Segmental Reporting

The Group does business in one operating segmamelp the provision of satellite-based data trassion
capacity, and ancillary services, to customersratdhe world.

In recent years, including both 2014 and 2015,Ghaup has provided an analysis of its revenue basdithe
downlink region into which the service is providé&tlrope, North America and International).

In 2015 the Group transitioned to a “market vet§it@approach to analysing revenue, which is theupi®
primary presentational approach beginning in 20b& four verticals are defined as set out below.
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. Videq which comprises mainly broadcast satellite capa@nd teleport services, managed digital
media services and consumer television platforms;

. Enterprise which includes wide-beam and GEO/MEO HTS capaiyd teleport services,
network/platform services and managed networksdoisumer/SME applications;

. Mobility, which comprises trans-oceanic and landmass wedeiband GEO/MEO HTS capacity and
teleport services, as well as mobility network/aan services; and

. Government which encompasses wide-beam and GEO/MEO HTS itgpaond secure teleport
services, C/Ku/Ka and Military frequency capacitdaully managed end-to-end service to the end
customer.

Items that do not relate to any of the four vettiGae deemed to be “Other,” which includes, ambogzers:
revenue from significant transponder sales, tramsecinvolving rights to orbital slot licence righand other
revenue outside the normal course of business.

Description of Key Line Items
Revenue

Revenue is generated primarily from service agre¢snaith customers to provide satellite transponder
capacity and broadcasting services for the digidbwof television, radio and data.

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses include cost of sales, staff ersl other operating expenses:

. Cost of salesCost of sales (excluding staff costs and deptieajprepresents costs categories which
generally vary directly with revenue developmeniciscosts include the rental of third-party satelli
capacity, the cost of goods sold (for example endisposal of space segment assets) and costtydirec
attributable to the facilitation of customer coctsa

. Staff costsStaff costs include gross salaries and employsatéal security payments, payments into
pension schemes for employees and charges arisday share-based payment schemes; and

. Other operating expense®ther operating expenses are by their nature Jassble to revenue
development. Such costs include facility costspripit insurance costs, marketing expenses, general
and administrative expenditures, consulting chargresel-related expenditures and movements on
provisions for debtors.

EBITDA EBITDA represents profit for the year before thmpact of depreciation, amortisation, net financing
charges, income tax, the Group’s share of the teafl joint ventures and associates and discordinue
operations.

Depreciation expenseDepreciation expense relates to the depreciaifothe Group’s property, plant and
equipment over their useful lives, which are teargeor less except for satellite assets, whichrgéigdave an
assumed useful life on commencement of operatidnd50 years. Depreciation expense also includes
impairment charges in respect of such assets.-S&ey Factors Affecting the Group’s Business andiResf
Operations—Key Factors Affecting the Group’s Cofdgpreciation and AmortisatiGrabove.

Amortisation expenséAmortisation expense relates to the amortisadbthe Group’s definite-life intangible
assets. Amortisation expense also includes impairaferges in respect of intangible assets.
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Net financing chargesNet financing charges represent finance incomss famance costs. Finance income
includes net foreign exchange gains (if positivEjnance costs include interest expense on loans and
borrowings net of capitalised interest, net foregrchange charges (if negative) and value adjussmem
financial assets.

Share of associates’ result, net of .t8hare of associates’ result, net of tax, refldwesGroup’s share of the
results of operations of associates accountednfdenithe equity method, mainly its investment irbO3

Revenue Outlook

The Group’s 2016 revenue is expected to be betvi@eBl0 million and €2,050 million. This assumes an
average EUR/USD exchange rate of 1.10, as welbasnal satellite health and launch schedule.

SES is continuing to invest in new satellite progmaes as a key driver of sustainable future growtch
programme plays an important role in scaling up 'SESpabilities in its four market verticals, padiarly in
emerging markets. In addition to SES-9, which efiter into commercial service in mid-2016, SES lailinch
six new satellites by end-2017, adding 180 incraaiemde-beam transponders and 36 GHz of HTS capaci

These growth investments are expected to generaniental annualised revenue of between €250miihd
€300 million, when at an average “steady-statdisation of around 75 per cent by 2021.

For information regarding revenue and outlook f@@nd RR Media, see~Acquisitions’above.
Results of Operations

The following table sets forth selected incomeestant items for the periods indicated.

For the three months
For the year ended 31 December ended 31 March

2013 2014 2015 2015 2016
(€ in millions)

Revenue 1,862.5 1,919.1 2,014.5 477.8 481.6
Cost of sales (179.6) (173.5) (183.6) (42.5) (41.4)
Staff costs (185.8) (194.5) (200.5) (48.6) (51.2)
Other operating expenses (132.4) (123.1) (136.2) 0.6§3 (32.8)
Operating expenses (497.8) (491.1) (520.3) (121.7) (125.4)
EBITDA 1,364.7 1,428.0 1,494.2 356.1 356.2
Depreciation expense (466.5) (491.6) (536.8) (026.6 (126.4)
Amortisatior expense (47.0) (53.8) (62.8) (14.4) (15.6)
Operating profit 851.2 882.6 894.6 2151 214.2
Finance revenue 9.6 33.8 53.1 35.8 3.3
Finance costs (183.1) (188.8) (188.8) (48.0) (45.9)
Net financing charges (173.5) (155.0) (135.7) (12.2) (42.6)
Profit before tax 677.7 727.6 758.9 202.9 171.6
Income tax expense (87.5) (85.2) (84.9) (30.3) (7.6
Profit after tax 590.2 642.4 674.0 172.6 144.0
Share of associates’ result, net of tax (21.7) Q)39. (126.7) (31.2) (28.3)
Profit for the period 568.5 603.4 547.3 141.4 115.7
Attributable to equity holders of the par 566.5 600.8 544.9 140.4 115.1
Attributable to no-controlling interests 2.0 2.6 2.4 1.0 0.6

Three Months Ended 31 March 2016 Compared to the Tiee Months Ended 31 March 2015

Revenue Revenue increased by €3.8 million, or 0.8 per,cen€481.6 million for the three months ended 31
March 2016, from €477.8 million for the three man#nded 31 March 2015.

At constant exchange rates, revenue decreased.Byrllion, or 1.9 per cent, to €481.6 million ftre three
months ended 31 March 2016, from €490.8 million tlee three months ended 31 March 2015. This was
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principally due to the impact of the migration afpacity contracted by ARSAT to its own satellites tmpact

of the renewal of capacity on AMC-15/AMC-16 and ttamtribution associated with the construction ghafs

the WAAS U.S. government-funded hosted payloadustitig for these events, Group revenue was stable a
constant exchange rates.

At the end of the first quarter of 2016, availatbbnsponders had decreased by three transpondemced to
the end of the first quarter of 2015, reflectingealuction in available transponders generated hyepo
degradation on NSS-6. No existing commercial ttaffas impacted and the satellite will be replace&BS-
12, which is expected to be launched end-2017.€l@re no other events affecting commercially amd
capacity on the SES fleet in the period.

Utilisation increased slightly to 71.5 per cenBatMarch 2016 from 71.4 per cent at 31 March 2@\&rage
revenue per utilised transponder remained unchaageuss the market segments and the discrete ahtion
markets served.

Operating expenseperating expenses increased by €3.7 million,.brp@r cent, to €125.4 million for the
three months ended 31 March 2016, from €121.7anifior the three months ended 31 March 2015.

At constant exchange rates, operating expensesaised by €1.5 million, or 1.3 per cent, to €125idian for
the three months ended 31 March 2016, from €123l®mfor the three months ended 31 March 2015sTh
was principally due to higher staff costs and ottantrollable costs (such as premises costs, niagkebsts
and consulting costs), higher bad debt expensdigher backloading provisions, partially offsetfayourable
transponder rental and other cost of sales.

EBITDA. EBITDA increased by €0.1 million to €356.2 millidor the three months ended 31 March 2016,
from €356.1 million for the three months ended 34réh 2015. At constant exchange rates, EBITDA daaa
by €10.7 million, or 2.9 per cent, to €356.2 millifor the three months ended 31 March 2016, froB6£8
million for the three months ended 31 March 2016cénstant exchange rates, the Group’s EBITDA mmargi
decreased from 74.8 per cent for the three montdede31 March 2015 to 74.0 per cent for the threaths
ended 31 March 2016.

Infrastructure operations contributed €347.2 milliaf total EBITDA at an EBITDA margin of 84.2 peert,
compared to €345.5 million for the three monthseghd1 March 2015, with an EBITDA margin of 84.8 per
cent (€356.1 million and 84.9 per cent achieved Y3D March 2015 on a constant exchange rate basis).
Services operations generated EBITDA of €18.4 ariliat an EBITDA margin of 15.0 per cent, as comgaoe

the €19.8 million and 16.4 per cent achieved ferttiree months ended 31 March 2015 (€19.9 millrmh £6.1

per cent achieved for the three months ended 3thHvVi2015 on a constant exchange rate basis). Thalbve
EBITDA margin was 74.0 per cent for the three mgmthiod ended 31 March 2016, compared to 74.5grer ¢
for the three month period ended 31 March 2015.

Depreciation expenseDepreciation expense decreased by €0.2 milliof). brper cent, to €126.4 million for
the three months ended 31 March 2016, from €12@l@mfor the three months ended 31 March 2015.

At constant exchange rates, depreciation expenseated by €5.3 million, or 4.1 per cent, to €126ilion

for the three months ended 31 March 2016, from fBl&iillion for the three months ended 31 March 2015
This was principally due to the impact of sateflifeaving the depreciation cycle, more than offsgtthe
impact of the launch of ASTRA 2G.

Amortisation expenseAmortisation expense increased by €1.2 million8.& per cent, to €15.6 million for the
three months ended 31 March 2016, from €14.4 millay the three months ended 31 March 2015.
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At constant exchange rates, amortisation expemsedned by €1.1 million to €15.6 million for thedgd months
ended 31 March 2016, from €14.5 million for thesthmonths ended 31 March 2015. This was principkiéy
to higher development costs related to new soft\esgcts.

Operating profit. Operating profit decreased by €0.9 million, or Pef cent, to €214.2 million for the three
months ended 31 March 2016, from €215.1 milliontfiar three months ended 31 March 2015.

At constant exchange rates, operating profit deeedéy €6.5 million, or 2.9 per cent, to €214.2iomil for the
three months ended 31 March 2016, from €220.7 anilfor the three months ended 31 March 2015. As a
percentage of revenue, operating profit decreased constant exchange rate from 45.0 per cent ® per
cent.

Net financing chargesNet financing charges increased by €30.4 millmn71.4 per cent, to €42.6 million for
the period ended 31 March 2016, from €12.2 millfon the period ended 31 March 2015. This increase
principally reflects the net foreign exchange gafi€32.3 million recognised in Q1 2015. Net intérespense
for the period of €47.4 million was €0.9 milliorr, .9 per cent, lower than Q1 2015 due to an ovezdliction

in group debt. Capitalised interest was €8.3 mmiliio Q1 2016 (Q1 2015: €3.8 million).

Profit before tax As a result of the foregoing, profit before teectbased by €31.3 million, or 15.4 per cent, to
€171.6 million for the period ended 31 March 20t6m €202.9 million for the period ended 31 Mard@i 2.

Income tax expenseThe Group recorded a tax expense of €27.6 mifiiorthe period ended 31 March 2016,
compared with an expense of €30.3 million for tleeiqmd ended 31 March 2015. The 2016 expense reapgese
an effective tax rate of 16.1 per cent (31 March2d4.9 per cent).

Share of associates’ resulCharges from the Group’s share in the lossessaddgsociates decreased by €2.9
million to €28.3 million for the period ended 31 Mh 2016, from €31.2 million for the period endeldNarch
2015.

Profit for the period As a result of the foregoing, profit for the yabgcreased by €25.7 million, or 18.2 per
cent, to €115.7 million for the period ended 31 8ha2016, from €141.4 million for the period enddd\3arch
2015. The share of the profit for the year attide to the equity holders of the Issuer decredsmd
€140.4 million to €115.1 million, representing a@se in earnings per Class A share from €0.85.28.

Three Months Ended 31 March 2016 Compared to the Tiee Months Ended 31 March 2015—Revenue
Analysis

Throughout 2015, the Group transitioned to anatysiavenue based on market verticals, rather than by
downlink region. This analysis supports decisiopshe Group in analysing revenue and allocatingy tman

and capital resources. The analysis allocates tevamong four market verticals: Video, Enterpridebility

and Government. Revenue is included as “Othert ddes not correspond to any of the defined vdstica
Previously, the Group matched revenue to three tokregions, as described above ir-Segmental
Reporting.

For the three months ended 31 March

2015 2016
(€ in millions)

Video 323.5 339.7

Enterprise 73.1 59.9

Mobility 13.9 22.3

Government 60.4 56.8

Other 6.9 2.9
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For the three months ended 31 March

2015 2016

(€ in millions)

Market verticals total 477.8 481.6

Video (71 per cent of Q1 2016 revenue)

Video revenue for the three month period ended 3tcM2016 increased by €16.2 million, or 5.0 pert,c®
€339.7 million, from €323.5 million for the threeomth period ended 31 March 2015. On a constantaggeh
rate basis, video revenue for the three month genmled 31 March 2016 increased by €10.6 millior8.2 per
cent, compared to the prior year. This increaseduasprimarily to strong growth in new HDTV and taltHD

TV channels across the existing fleet. This was plemented by new revenue generated by SES's
differentiated media services capabilities.

Enterprise (12 per cent of Q1 2016 revenue)

Enterprise revenue decreased by €13.2 million,8t per cent, to €59.9 million for the three moptriod
ended 31 March 2016, from €73.1 million for theethmonth period ended 31 March 2015. On a constant
exchange rate basis, enterprise revenue decreg$i¥ i million, or 22.2 per cent, compared topher year.
This decrease was largely due to the prior yeagma® contribution from capacity contracted by ARSAT
advance of the planned migration to its own satelind the impact of the 2015 capacity renewals wit
EchoStar on AMC-15/AMC-16.

Mobility (5 per cent of Q1 2016 revenue)

Mobility revenue increased by €8.4 million, or 6@&r cent, to €22.3 million for the three monthiperended

31 March 2016, from €13.9 million for the three rttoperiod ended 31 March 2015. On a constant exghan
rate basis, mobility revenue increased by €7.5wonillor 50.8 per cent, compared to the prior y&dnis
increase was primarily due to contracts for inktigonnectivity, where SES has developed strongmenrtial
relationships with the three world-leading servicgegrators — Global Eagle Entertainment, Gogo and
Panasonic.

Government (12 per cent of Q1 2016 revenue)

Government revenue decreased by €3.6 million, @rpgr cent, to €56.8 million for the three monthiquk
ended 31 March 2016, from €60.4 million for theethrmonth period ended 31 March 2015. On a constant
exchange rate basis, government revenue decregs&idmillion, or 9.9 per cent, compared to thiemyear.

This decrease was primarily due to the accelenaeghue contribution associated with the constoacthase

of the U.S. government-funded WAAS hosted payloaidhg Q1 2015. Excluding the accelerated revenom fr
the WAAS hosted payload, government revenue detliyesd.4 per cent at constant FX.

Year Ended 31 December 2015 Compared to the Year Hed 31 December 2014

Revenue.Revenue increased by €95.4 million, or 5.0 pert,cem €2,014.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, from €1,919.1 million for the yeaded 31 December 2014.

At constant exchange rates, revenue decreasedéy €fillion, or 3.2 per cent, to €2,014.5 milliaor the year
ended 31 December 2015, from €2,081.3 million far year ended 31 December 2014. This was pringipall
due to the lower level of transponder sales putstmrthe Group’'s 2014 comprehensive agreement with
Eutelsat, the impact of capacity renewal agreemeitiisEchoStar on AMC-15/AMC-16 at the end of 2GiH

the transition of capacity contracted by ARSAT tlodwn satellite. Adjusting for these events, Groexenue
was stable at constant exchange rates.
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At the end of 2015, available transponders hadedeed by 32 transponders compared to the end pfitbre
year period, reflecting NSS-7's transition fromtistia-kept to inclined orbit (resulting in a decreasf 74
available transponders), the migration of capamitytracted by ARSAT from AMC-6 to its ARSAT-1 sditel

(resulting in a decrease of 16 available transpa)@dad a reduction of six available transponderbi§S-6 due
to power degradation. Offsetting this, ASTRA 2Q@¥rg into service added 64 available transponders.

Utilisation in 2015 increased slightly to 72.8 memt from 72.7 per cent in 2014, primarily due & new
business on existing capacity. The Group’s averagenue per utilised transponder remained stable.

Cost of salesCost of sales increased by €10.1 million, or ®Bqent, to €183.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, from €173.5 million for the yearesh81 December 2014. At constant exchange ratsspto
sales decreased by €3.2 million, or 1.7 per camhpared to the prior year, primarily due to the dowosts
associated with a decrease in transponder sales timel 2014 comprehensive agreement with Eutedsaa
percentage of revenue, cost of sales increasecdtonstant exchange basis from 9.0 per cent tod. tqnt.

Staff costs.Staff costs increased by €6.0 million, or 3.1 pent, to €200.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, from €194.5 million for the yearamh@1 December 2014. At constant exchange ratd$, st
costs decreased by €9.0 million, or 4.3 per cemtypared to 2014. As a percentage of revenue, cbafs
decreased on a constant exchange rate from 10cepeto 10.0 per cent.

Other operating expensesOther operating expenses increased by €13.1 millmr 10.6 per cent, to
€136.2 million for the year ended 31 December 20Gd®n €123.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. At constant exchange rates, other operatipgreses increased by €2.0 million, or 1.5 per acarhpared

to 2014, primarily due to changes in debtor prowigig largely in connection with Ukraine-based oostrs.

As a percentage of revenue, other operating expenseeased on a constant exchange rate basis6irbiper
cent to 6.8 per cent.

EBITDA. As a result of the foregoing, EBITDA increasedé®g.2 million, or 4.6 per cent, to €1,494.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015, from €1,4@@ln for the year ended 31 December 2014. Atstant
exchange rates, EBITDA decreased by €56.6 millbor3.6 per cent, compared to 2014. At constant axgh
rates, the Group’s EBITDA margin decreased fronb7dger cent in 2014 to 74.2 per cent in 2015, mainly
reflecting the increased contributions of Serviaesvities.

Infrastructure operations contributed €1,450.0iorillof total EBITDA at an EBITDA margin of 84.0 peent,
compared to €1,386.9 million in 2014, with an EBA hargin of 84.4 per cent (€1,504.3 million and2ger
cent achieved in 2014 on a constant exchange rasis)b Services operations generated EBITDA of
€87.5 million at an EBITDA margin of 16.6 per ceag compared to the €75.8 million and 16.6 per cent
achieved in 2014 (€80.7 million and 16.3 per catfti@ved in 2014 on a constant exchange rate bdsis).
overall EBITDA margin was 74.2 per cent, compaed4.4 per cent in 2014.

Depreciation expenseDepreciation expense increased by €45.2 milliorf.2 per cent, to €536.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015, from €491.6 mifiko the year ended 31 December 2014, At constant
exchange rates, depreciation expense decreaseddit®y illion, or 2.7 per cent, compared to 2014 thainly

to changes in the depreciable satellite fleet. Amicentage of revenue, depreciation expense saaean a
constant exchange rate from 26.5 per cent to 2&.6ent.

Amortisation expenseAmortisation expense increased by €9.0 million,16r7 per cent, to €62.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015, from €53.8 millanthe year ended 31 December 2014. At constant
exchange rates, amortisation expense increased? ynfillion, or 13.4 per cent, compared to 2014e du
primarily to the beginning of amortisation on newlgquired or generated definite-life intangibleetssAs a
percentage of revenue, amortisation expense iramideam 2.8 per cent to 3.1 per cent.
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Operating profit. As a result of the foregoing, operating profitressed by €12.0 million, or 1.4 per cent, to
€894.6 million for the year ended 31 December 20d®n €882.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. At constant exchange rates, operating pdefireased by €49.3 million, or 5.2 per cent, coeghdo
2014. As a percentage of revenue, operating ptefiteased on a constant exchange rate from 45¢epeto
44.4 per cent.

Net financing chargesNet financing charges decreased by €19.3 milthori,2.5 per cent, to €135.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015, from €155.0 miftio the year ended 31 December 2014. This deereas
was primarily the result of foreign exchange gaiealised in connection with the strengthening @& thS.
dollar. The net interest charge on borrowings kefbe capitalisation of interest fell by €2.8 noitlj or 1.4 per
cent, from €199.3 million to €196.5 million refleay both lower average borrowings and a favourable
development in the Group’s weighted average inteests.

Profit before tax As a result of the foregoing, profit before taxrieased by €31.3 million, or 4.3 per cent, to
€758.9 million for the year ended 31 December 20ddn €727.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Income tax expenselThe Group recorded a tax expense of €84.9 miftiorthe year ended 31 December 2015,
compared with an expense of €85.2 million for tharyended 31 December 2014. The 2015 expenseertses
an effective tax rate of 11.2 per cent.

Share of associates’ resultCharges from the Group’s share in the lossestsofagsociates increased by
€87.7 million to €126.7 million for the year endeétl December 2015, from €39.0 million for the yeaded 31
December 2014, reflecting mainly the effect of mash movements associated with the commencement of
commercial operations by O3b.

Profit for the year As a result of the foregoing, profit for the yefacreased by €56.1 million, or 9.3 per cent, to
€547.3 million for the year ended 31 December 20Gd®n €603.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. The share of the profit for the year attide to the equity holders of the Issuer decredsmd
€600.8 million to €544.9 million, representing a@se in earnings per Class A share from €1.£2.81.

Year Ended 31 December 2015 Compared to the Year Bad 31 December 2014—Revenue analysis

Throughout 2015, the Group transitioned to anatysiavenue based on market verticals, rather than by
downlink region. This analysis supports decisiopshie Group in analysing revenue and allocatingy tman

and capital resources. The analysis allocates tevamong four market verticals: Video, Enterpridebility

and Government. Revenue is included as “Othert ddes not correspond to any of the defined vdstica
Previously, the Group matched revenue to three tokregions, as described above ir-Segmental
Reporting.

For the year ended 31 December

2014 2015
(€ in millions)
Video 1,260.8 1,354.9
Enterprise 324.3 307.6
Mobility 35.9 52.9
Government 215.1 255.6
Other 83.0 43.5
Market verticals total 1,919.1 2,014.5
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Video (67 per cent of 2015 revenue)

Video revenue for the year ended 31 December 28tEeased by €94.1 million, or 7.5 per cent, to
€1,354.9 million, from €1,260.8 million for the yeanded 31 December 2014. On a constant exchamge ra
basis, video revenue for the year ended 31 Deceflidy increased by €29.6 million, or 2.2 per ceompared

to the prior year. This increase was due primadlincreased channels and growth in HD channeltpssia.
Services growth, mainly from HD+ activities and SBi&tform Services, were also important contribsitor

Enterprise (15 per cent of 2015 revenue)

Enterprise revenue decreased by €16.7 million, .&r fer cent, to €307.6 million for the year ended 3
December 2015, from €324.3 million for the yearamh81 December 2014. On a constant exchange rsite ba
enterprise revenue decreased by €73.1 million 9@ fier cent, compared to the prior year. This elss was
largely due to the lower prices agreed with a gustoon contract renewal in light of the solar arcaguit
failures on AMC-15 and AMC-16, as well as the migma of capacity contracted by ARSAT to its ownediite
and the impact of the stronger U.S. dollar on aeitastomers.

Mobility (3 per cent of 2015 revenue)

Mobility revenue increased by €17.0 million, or 4'per cent, to €52.9 million for the year ended>@&tember
2015, from €35.9 million for the year ended 31 Deber 2014. On a constant exchange rate basis, ityobil
revenue increased by €10.4 million, or 24.5 peit,ceompared to the prior year. This increase wanaily
due to contracts for aeronautical and maritime eotinity.

Government (13 per cent of 2015 revenue)

Government revenue increased by €40.5 million, &B Jer cent, to €255.6 million for the year enddd
December 2015, from €215.1 million for the yearash81 December 2014. On a constant exchange rsite ba
government revenue increased by €8.2 million, 8rpg&r cent, compared to the prior year. This irsgesas
primarily due to the two hosted payload transastiiAAS and GOLD.

Other

Other revenue decreased by €39.5 million, or 4@6cpnt, to €43.5 million for the year ended 31 édeloer
2015, from €83.0 million for the year ended 31 Deber 2014. On a constant exchange rate basis, other
revenue decreased by €41.9 million, or 49.1 pet, @ampared to the prior year. This decrease wiasapity

due to the lower level of transponder sales arisinger the comprehensive agreement signed with<atite
2014 and the interim mission revenue recorded oRR¥S1G in 2014.

Year Ended 31 December 2014 Compared to the Year Bad 31 December 2013

Revenue.Revenue increased by €56.6 million, or 3.0 pert,cem €1,919.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, from €1,862.5 million for the yeaded 31 December 2013. At constant exchange rates,
revenue increased by €74.2 million, or 4.0 per,cen€1,919.1 million for the year ended 31 Decenii#l 4,

from €1,844.9 million for the year ended 31 Decen@l3. This was principally due to infrastructgrewth

in European and International markets, combinel wistrong performance from the Group’s Servicesnass

in Europe.

Cost of salesCost of sales decreased by €6.1 million, or 3rdcpat, to €173.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, from €179.6 million for the yearesh81 December 2013. At constant exchange ratsspto
sales increased by €3.6 million, or 2.1 per cemymared to the prior year. This increase was piiyndue to
the increased cost of services activities. As aqraage of revenue, cost of sales decreased omsianb
exchange rate basis from 9.2 per cent to 9.0 per ce
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Staff costs Staff costs increased by €8.7 million, or 4.7 pent, to €194.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, from €185.8 million for the yearamh@1 December 2013. At constant exchange ratd$, st
costs increased by €11.4 million, or 6.2 per cenppared to the prior year. This increase was piiyndue to
continued investment in developing the Group’s @nes and capabilities in emerging markets. As agnéage
of revenue, staff costs increased on a constaiiaexge rate basis from 9.9 per cent to 10.1 per cent

Other operating expensesOther operating expenses decreased by €9.3 milloon 7.0 per cent, to
€123.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2@ €132.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2013. At constant exchange rates, other operatipgnses decreased by €8.7 million, or 6.6 per centpared

to the prior year. This decrease was primarily thueptimisation of the fixed cost base. As a petage of
revenue, other operating expenses decreased arstacbexchange rate basis from 7.1 per cent tpes.4ent.

EBITDA. As a result of the foregoing, EBITDA increasedé®s.3 million, or 4.6 per cent, to €1,428.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014, from €1,3®dlion for the year ended 31 December 2013. Atstant
exchange rates, EBITDA increased by €68.1 millan5.0 per cent. At constant exchange rates, thoeiis
EBITDA margin rose from 73.7 per cent in 2013 tad/7fer cent in 2014, mainly reflecting the sales of
European transponders and overall cost management.

Infrastructure operations contributed €1,386.9iorillof total EBITDA at an EBITDA margin of 84.4 peent,
compared to €1,325.2 million in 2013, with an EBA hargin of 83.3 per cent (€1,320.3 million and43per
cent achieved in 2013 on a constant exchange mis)b Services operations generated an EBITDA of
€75.8 million at an EBITDA margin of 16.6 per cengmpared to €73.8 million in 2013, with an EBITDA
margin of 17.1 per cent (€73.9 million and 17.5 pent achieved in 2013 on a constant exchangebeais).
The Group’s overall EBITDA margin was 74.4 per ¢eompared to 73.3 per cent in 2013.

Depreciation expenseDepreciation expense increased by €25.1 millior.4 per cent, to €491.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014, from €466.5 mifito the year ended 31 December 2013, reflectieg t
launch of three satellites during 2013 and a furttved satellites in 2014. The depreciation expeals®
included an impairment charge on AMC-15 due tohfarrtpower degradation being noted on the satelite.
constant exchange rates, the depreciation expeassaised by €27.6 million, or 5.9 per cent, compane2013.
As a percentage of revenue, depreciation expersegised on a constant exchange rate basis fronp@bcent
to 25.6 per cent.

Amortisation expenseAmortisation expense increased by €6.8 million,Lér5 per cent, to €53.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014, from €47.0 millanthe year ended 31 December 2013. At constant
exchange rates, amortisation expense increase®.Byndllion, or 12.3 per cent, compared to the mpyiear.
This increase reflects primarily the commencementmortisation on acquired or generated definfie-li
intangible assets and the inclusion of amortisatonsoftware under this heading for the first time2014
(formerly presented as part of depreciation). Aseecentage of revenue, amortisation expense irentears a
constant exchange rate basis from 2.6 per cen8tpe2 cent.

Operating profit. As a result of the foregoing, operating profitreesed by €31.4 million, or 3.7 per cent, to
€882.6 million for the year ended 31 December 20Gde €851.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2013. At constant exchange rates, operating pirofiteased by €34.7 million, or 4.1 per cent, coragdato
2013. As a percentage of revenue, operating prafit unchanged on a constant exchange rate bakisOgper
cent in both years.

Net financing chargesNet financing charges decreased by €18.5 milbori,0.7 per cent, to €155.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014, from €173.5 miftio the year ended 31 December 2013. This deereas
was primarily the result of refinancing activities the Group’s weighted average cost of borrowiigss was
complemented by a net foreign exchange gain raguitom the strengthening of the U.S. dollar exgearate,

95



as well as lower value adjustments on financiab@ssThese more than offset the reduction in digsth
interest from €41.1 million to €23.7 million.

Profit before tax.As a result of the foregoing, profit before taxrimased by €49.9 million, or 7.4 per cent, to
€727.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2Gde €677.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2013.

Income tax expenselncome tax expense decreased by €2.3 million,.@mp2r cent, to €85.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014, from €87.5 millionttier year ended 31 December 2013. This decrease was
primarily the result of changes in the Group’s paavisions and changes in rates in the jurisdictishere the
Group operates.

Share of associates’ resulCharges from the Group’s share of associateséossreased by €17.3 million, or
79.7 per cent, to €39.0 million for the year en8&dDecember 2014, from €21.7 million for the yeaded 31
December 2013, reflecting mainly the Group’s indeie O3b.

Profit for the year.As a result of the foregoing, profit for the yéacreased by €34.9 million, or 6.1 per cent, to
€603.4 million for the year ended 31 December 20Gdem €568.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2013. The share of the prdfit for the year attialble to the equity holders of the Issuer rose f&®6.5 million

to €600.8 million, representing an increase in iegsper Class A share from €1.41 to €1.49.

Year Ended 31 December 2014 Compared to the Year Bad 31 December 2013—Revenue analysis

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 201&rthe’s primary revenue analysis was done on tisesba
of downlink regions. As part of this reporting faimthe Group also reported constant exchangereatmue
for each of three geographical regions: EuropetiNamerica and International.

The Group’s revenue by region for the years endebe&&ember 2014 and 2013 are set out in the talidevb

Europe North America International Total
Year ended 31 December 2014
Revenue (€ in millions) 1,017.7 341.7 559.7 1,919.1
Year ended 31 December 2013
Revenue (€ in millions) (reported) 936.4 398.0 328. 1,862.5
Revenue (€ in millions) (constant exchange rate) 3.3 395.0 516.8 1,844.9
Europe

European revenue for the year ended 31 Decembet Rfiteased by €81.3 million, or 8.7 per cent, to
€1,017.7 million, from €936.4 million for the yeanded 31 December 2013. On a constant exchangeasite
European revenue increased by 9.1 per cent. Thistigrincluded the sale of eight transponders teEat as
part of the comprehensive agreement signed in da2@d4 and increases in both infrastructure amdces
revenue. Services growth, mainly from HD+ actidtiand SES Platform Services, were also important
contributors.

North America

North American revenue decreased by €56.3 millmn14.1 per cent, to €341.7 million for the yeadet
31 December 2014, from €398.0 million for the yeaded 31 December 2013, resulting largely fromUt
government sequester, which was the principal faotthe decrease of 13.5 per cent on a constatitagxe
rate.
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International

International revenue increased by €31.6 million,6® per cent, to €559.7 million for the year athcBl
December 2014, from €528.1 million for the yearesh81 December 2013. On a constant exchange rsite ba
the increase was 8.3 per cent. This increase viasully due to the continued success in commesiigi new
capacity brought into service in developing markess well as an important contribution from ASTRG 1
which was contracted for an interim mission.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In the ordinary course of business, the Group’agipal funding requirements are for capital exptmds,
dividend payments and debt servicing. The Grouphistsrically met these requirements primarily tigh a
combination of cash on hand, operating cash flowgrest-bearing loans and borrowings (includingisgen
unsecured notes and commercial paper programmes)caa lesser extent, from equity.

The Group has historically generated strong opwyatiash flows. The Group’s publicly stated targkt o
maintaining a net debt to EBITDA ratio of no motean 3.3 to 1, and dividend policy, requires careful
monitoring of capital expenditures and other invesits, as well as diligent management of workingtah A
dividend of €1.30 per Class A share and €0.52 hes9B share has been approved and paid for theegelad

31 December 2015.

In managing its cash flows, the Group seeks taiefftly use cash generated to repay maturing shod-4ong-
term debt and bank loans and hence reduce thedéeakh on hand to a prudent and efficient ldvethe case
of liquidity needs, the Group can call on uncomedttoans and a committed syndicated loan. In awtdiif

deemed appropriate based on prevailing market tiongj the Group can access additional funds throtsy
European Medium-Term Not&KITN) and commercial paper programmes. The Group deeleslor its debt
maturity profile to allow it to cover repayment igfaltions as they fall due.

The Issuer operates a centralised treasury funetivch manages the liquidity of the Group in ortteoptimise
the Group’s funding costs and to efficiently usshcgenerated so as to maintain short-term debbankl loans
at a low level. This is supported by a daily casblimg mechanism.

Liguidity is monitored through a review of cashdates, the drawn and issued amounts and the adligilab
additional funding under credit lines, the commargaper program, U.S. Ex-Im (as defined below) and
COFACE (as defined below). See-Overview of Financing Instrumehtzelow. As of 31 December 2015, the
Group had €639.7 million in cash and cash equi¥aJemd €4,431.7 million of indebtedness undeiGhaup’s
current and non-current interest-bearing loanshamobwings.

The table below summarises the projected contrhandiscounted cash flows (nominal amount plusrede
charges) based on the maturity profile of the Gioinqierest-bearing loans and borrowings as of 8tdinber
2014 and 31 December 2015. The interest assumfaticall floating debts is based on the interest maftthe
last drawing.

Expected cash payments falling due

After one
year but
Within not more
one than five More than
Total year years five years
(€ in millions)
Maturity profile
Loans and borrowings 4,476.3 254.0,917.1 2,305.2
Future interest commitments 1,757.8 1685385.7 1,003.8
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Expected cash payments falling due

Trade and other payables 526.1 526:1 --

Other long term liabilities 51.5 -- 51.5 --

As of 31 December 2015 6,811.7 948.2,554.3 3,309.0
As of 31 December 2014 6,699.9 767.2,022.0 3,910.9

The Issuer estimates that it will need approxinya€254.0 million for the remainder of 2016 to seevidebt
payments falling due under debt instruments regchmaturity during this period.

The Issuer believes that the Group’s available aaslources and borrowing facilities are sufficiémt its
present requirements.

Overview of Financing Instruments

The Group’s interest-bearing loans and borrowirggefs81 December 2015 are summarised in the tabileer
below, followed by a more detailed description afte instrument. The Group manages its treasuryatipes

so that net debt to EBITDA ratio is maintained bel8.30 times to ensure that it is always operating
comfortably within the terms of its financing ingtnents. As of 31 December 2015, the Group’s net tteb
EBITDA ratio was 2.54 times.

The following table summarises the evolution of Beoup’s net debt to EBITDA ratio over the periods
indicated.

For the year ended 31 December

2013 2014 2015
Net debt (€ in millions) 3,801.7 3,961.6 3,792.0
EBITDA (£ in millions) 1,364.7 1,428.0 1,494.2
Net debt/EBITDA ratio 2.79 2.77 2.54

Amounts outstanding as of 31 December
(€ in millions)

I_Effective
interest
rate Maturity 2013 2014 2015

Non-current
U.S. private placement
- Series B ($513 million) 5.83% September 2015 74.4 - -
- Series C ($87 million) 5.93% September 2015 63.1 - -
Euro private placement 2016 (€150 million) 5.05% August 2016 149.5 149. --
European Investment Bank (€200 million) 3.618% May 2017 100.0 66.7 334
Eurobond 2018 (€500 million) 1.875% October 2018 493.7 494. 494.8
U.S. Dollar Bond #2a ($500 million) 2.50% March 2019 - 408.¢ 456.8
Eurobond 2020 (€650 million) 4.625% March 2020 645.5 646.: 647.0
Eurobond 2021 (€650 million) 4.75% March 2021 644.9  645.¢ 646.3
U.S. Ex-Im ($158 million) 3.11% June 2020 69.3 64.2 55.8
COFACE (€522.9 million) EURIBOR + 1.7% October 2022 395.8 352.; 299.2
U.S. Dollar Bond #1a ($750 million) 3.60% April 2023 537.6 610.. 682.0
Euro private placement 2027 (€140 million) 4.00% May 2027 139.3 139.¢ 139.4
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Amounts outstanding as of 31 December
(€ in millions)

I_Effective
interest
rate Maturity 2013 2014 2015
German bond (€50 million), non-listed 4.00% November 2032 49.8 49.¢ 49.8
U.S. Dollar Bond #1b ($250 million) 5.30% April 2043 179.3 203.¢ 227.4
U.S. Dollar Bond #2b ($500 million) 5.30% March 2044 -- 397.¢ 446.0
Total non-current 3,542.2 4,227.¢ 4,177.9
Current
U.S. private placement
- Series B ($513 million) Septembe -
5.29¥% 2014/15 74.4 84.t
- Series C ($87 million) 5.83% September 2015 - 71.% -
European Investment Bank (€200 million) 3.618% May 2014/15/16 33.3 33.2 33.3
Euro private placement 2016 (€150 million) 5.05% August 2016 -- -- 149.9
Eurobond 2014 (€650 million) 4.875% July 2014 649.5 -- --
COFACE (€522.9 million) EURIBOR + 1.7% Various 33.9 54.% 54.2
U.S. Ex-Im ($158 million) 3.11% Various 12.6 14.¢ 16.4
Total current 803.7 258.t 253.8

U.S. private placement

On 30 September 2003, SES Americas issued in tBe fivate placement market four series of unsecure
notes amounting to $1,000 million and £28 millidhese notes comprised:

. Series A $400 million of 5.29 per cent Senior Nade® September 2013, repayable in September
2007. The private placement series A was repai8Oo8eptember 2013.

. Series B $513 million of 5.83 per cent Senior Naleg September 2015, repayable in September
2011. The private placement series B was repa@DdBeptember 2015.

. Series C $87 million of 5.93 per cent Senior Nates September 2015. The private placement series
C was repaid on 30 September 2015.

. Series D £28 million of 5.63 per cent Senior Natase September 2013, repayable in September 2007.
The private placement series D was repaid on 368dy@r 2013.

No further amounts are outstanding as of 31 Dece2biEb.
EMTN Programme

On 6 December 2005, the Issuer put in place a €2Yiilion EMTN Programme enabling the Issuer, & th
Guarantor, to issue as and when required notee apmiaximum aggregate amount of €2,000 millionMiy
2007, this programme was increased to an aggregateint of €4,000 million. On 23 September 2015 this
programme has been extended for one further yemmfA31 December 2015, the Issuer had issued €2,090
million, as compared with €2,090 million as of 3ldember 2014, under the EMTN Programme, with
maturities ranging from 2016 to 2027.
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€150 million private placement (2016)

On 13 July 2009, the Issuer issued a €150 millionape placement under the EMTN Programme with
Deutsche Bank. The private placement has a sewanry&turity, beginning 5 August 2009, and bearyést at
a fixed rate of 5.05 per cent.

€500 million Eurobond (2018)

On 16 October 2013, the Issuer issued a €500 mibmnd under the EMTN Programme. The bond hasea fiv
year maturity and bears interest at a fixed rate ®75 per cent.

144A Bond $500 million (2019)

On 25 March 2014, the Guarantor completed a 144&iofy in the U.S. market issuing $500 million fiyear
bond with a coupon of 2.50 per cent and a finalunigtdate of 25 March 2019.

€650 million Eurobond (2020)

On 9 March 2010 (pricing 1 March 2010), the Issssued a €650 million bond under the EMTN Programme
The bond has a 10-year maturity and bears intatesfixed rate of 4.625 per cent.

€650 million Eurobond (2021)

On 11 March 2011 (pricing 2 March 2011), the Issasued a €650 million bond under the EMTN Programm
The bond has a 10-year maturity and bears intatesfixed rate of 4.75 per cent.

€140 million private placement (2027)

Between May and July 2012, the Issuer issued thwdiwidual tranches of a total €140 million private
placement under the EMTN Programme with ING Ban¥.NLhe private placement has a 15-year maturity,
beginning 31 May 2012, and bears interest at @ fiate of 4.00 per cent.

€200 million European Investment Bank funding

On 21 April 2009, the Issuer signed a financingeagrent with the European Investment Bank concerhiag
investment by the Group in certain satellite inremit projects. This facility, bearing interest dixad rate of
3.618 per cent, is repayable in six annual instatsmibetween May 2012 and May 2017.

German bond issue of €50 million

On 29 October 2012, the Issuer signed an agreetoaasue €50 million in the German bond Schuldsthei
market. The German bond bears a fixed interesofated per cent and matures on 12 November 2032.

144A Bond $750 million (2023)

On 4 April 2013, the Guarantor completed a 144/erifig in the U.S. market issuing $750 million 1@uye
bond with a coupon of 3.60 per cent and a finalunigtdate on 4 April 2023.

144A Bond $250 million (2043)

On 4 April 2013, the Issuer completed a 144A offgrin the U.S. market issuing $250 million 30-yband
with a coupon of 5.30 per cent and a final matwtége on 4 April 2043.

144A Bond $500 million (2044)

On 25 March 2014, the Issuer completed a 144Aioffen the U.S. market issuing $500 million 30-yeand
with a coupon of 5.30 per cent and a final matuwéye of 25 March 2044.
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Syndicated loan 2021

In January 2014, the Issuer updated its syndicaiau facility. The updated facility is being proedl by 20
banks and has been structured as a five-year nmbtitcy revolving credit facility with two one-yeaxtension
options at the discretion of the lenders. The itgci$ for €1,200 million and the interest payalddinked to a
ratings grid. At the current SES rating of BBB / aa the interest rate is 45 basis points over
EURIBOR/LIBOR. On 13 November 2015 and 23 Novenil5 respectively, the facility agreement has been
amended and extended by one year to 13 January 2824df 31 December 2015 and 2014, no amount was
drawn from this facility.

€522.9 million COFACE facility

On 16 December 2009, the Issuer signed a finaragngement with Compagnie Francgaise d’Assurancelpour
Commerce ExtérieurQOFACE) in respect of the investment in four geostatignsaitellites (ASTRA 2E,
ASTRA 2F, ASTRA 2G and ASTRA 5B). The facility isvitled into five loans. The drawings under thelfaci

are based on invoices from the supplier of thelléate The first drawing was done on 23 April 204:0d all
loan tranches became fully drawn in November 2@ath COFACE tranche is repayable in 17 equal semi-
annual instalments where COFACE A has a final nitgtalate of 1 August 2022, COFACE B and F are
maturing on 21 May 2021 and COFACE C and D are rmgjwn 3 October 2022. The entire facility bears
interest at a floating rate of six month EURIBORgA margin of 1.7 per cent.

$158 million U.S. Export-Import Bank of the Unitetates

In April 2011, the Issuer signed a financing agreetwith Export-Import Bank of the United States $158

million for the investment in one geostationaryeflde (QuetzSat-1). At the in-orbit acceptanceedat the

satellite, the facility was fully drawn with $152:8illion which will be repaid in 17 equal semi-amhu
instalments starting on 22 June 2012. The loarahfasal maturity date of 22 June 2020 and beaesd@st at a
fixed rate of 3.11 per cent.

French Commercial paper program

On 25 October 2005, the Issuer put in place a €5illibn “Programme de Titres de Créances Négocidhies
the French market where the Issuer issugilléts de Trésorerie (commercial paper) in accordance with
articles L.213-1 to L213-4 of the French Monetang &inancial Code and decree n°92.137 of 13 Feypruar
1992 and all subsequent regulations. The maximustanding amount of ‘Billet de Trésorerie’ issuabtaler

the programme is €500 million or its counter vadfttghe date of issue in any other authorised cayre@n 5
June 2015, this programme was extended for ondéeiurgear. As of 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
borrowings were outstanding under this programme.

European Commercial paper program

In July 2012, the Issuer signed the documentatmntie inception of a joint €1,000 million guarsede
European commercial paper programme of the Issugrnttee Guarantor. The issuance under the programme
represents senior unsecured obligations of theilissd any issuance under the programme is guachhtethe
non-issuing entity. The programme is rated by Maadiyvestors Services and is compliant with thexdtads

set out in the STEP Market Convention. As of 31 dbalcer 2015 and 2014, no borrowings were outstanding
under the European Commercial paper programme.

Cash Flow

The table below summarises the Group’s consolidedst flow for the periods indicated.
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For the year ended For the three months

31 December ended 31 March
2013 2014 2015 2015 2016
(€ in millions)

Net cash flow from operating activit 1,148.5 1,239.5 1,450.6 416.6 315.6
Net cash flow absorbed by investing activ (422.3) (501.1) (560.6) (107.2) (113.9)
Net cash flow absorbed by financing activi (371.9) (757.0) (758.3) (82.0) (123.9)
Net foreign exchange moveme (50.1) (1.1) (16.5) 4.8 4.2
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivatent 304.2 (19.7) 115.2 232.3 82.0

Cash flow from operating activitieCash flow from operating activities increased By.© million, or 7.9 per
cent, to €1,239.5 million for the year ended 31 ddeloer 2014, from €1,148.5 million for the year eh@a
December 2013. This increase was driven both beased profitability as well as lower investmeniviorking
capital in 2014 than in 2013.

Cash flow from operating activities further incredsy €211.1 million, or 17.0 per cent, to €1,450ikion for
the year ended 31 December 2015, from €1,239.%omifbr the year ended 31 December 2014. This a&sere
was again mainly driven by higher levels of prdfitdy, reflecting to some extent the stronger Ud8llar, as
well as a further favourable development in workiagital.

Cash flow from operating activities decreased b¥1€Q million, or 24.2 per cent, to €315.6 milliar the three
months ended 31 March 2016, from €416.6 milliontfe three months ended 31 March 2015. This deereas
was driven by lower profit before tax and a deceeaspositive working capital movements, principdtiom
inflows in 2015 such as the European GNSS Agengmpat for EGNOS GEO 1 Service.

Cash flow absorbed by investing activitie€ash flow absorbed by investing activities incesady
€78.8 million, or 18.7 per cent, to €501.1 millifam the year ended 31 December 2014, from €4221Rmfor
the year ended 31 December 2013. The increaserpyimeflects the acquisition of intangible assétsluding
in connection with the Eutelsat settlement condiidelanuary 2014, as well as the acquisition leéiobrbital
frequency rights from third parties.

Cash flow absorbed by investing activities increédsg€59.5 million, or 11.9 per cent, to €560.6liil for the
year ended 31 December 2015, from €501.1 milliontHe year ended 31 December 2014. This increase wa
driven by increased expenditures on satellitekéncburse of construction.

Cash flow absorbed by investing activities increldsg €6.8 million, or 6.3 per cent, to €113.9 roiflifor the
three months ended 31 March 2016, from €107.1 anilfor the three months ended 31 March 2015. This
increase was driven by an increase in satellitgraromes under construction in Q1 2016 comparedlto Q
2015.

Cash flows absorbed by financing activitie€ash flow absorbed by financing activities inceshshy
€385.1 million, or 103.5 per cent, to €757.0 millifor the year ended 31 December 2014, from €3nill®n
for the year ended 31 December 2013. This incre@aseorimarily due to net borrowing activities.

Cash flow absorbed by financing activities increlalsg €1.3 million, or 0.2 per cent, to €758.3 roitlifor the
year ended 31 December 2015, from €757.0 milliontHe year ended 31 December 2014. This increase wa
mainly driven by increased repayment activitiesetfby the issuance of new capital.

Cash flow absorbed by financing activities increllsg€41.9 million, or 51.1 per cent, to €123.9limil for the
three months ended 31 March 2016, from €82.0 milfiar the three months ended 31 March 2015. This
increase was driven by buy-back of treasury shares.

Free cash flow.Free cash flow is defined as net operating casiv fess net cash absorbed by investing
activities. Free cash flow increased by €12.2 oillto €738.4 million for the year ended 31 Decenitit4,
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from €726.2 million for the year ended 31 DecemB&d3. This increase was driven by the favourable
development in net operating cash flow describemv@bpartially offset by the higher investing aitias in
2014.

Free cash flow increased by €151.6 million to €8%0illion for the year ended 31 December 2015, from
€738.4 million for the year ended 31 December 20lhls increase was again a reflection of a favderab
development in net operating cash flow, partiaffget by a year-on-year increase in investing #&@tis.

Free cash flow decreased by €107.8 million, or $&Bcent, to €201.7 million for the three monthdexd 31
March 2016, from €309.5 million for the three mantnded 31 March 2015. This decrease is principaityto
reduction in operating cash flow due to lower prbéfore tax and non-recurring cash flows recoghige2015.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Group’s off-balance sheet commitments compiisgére obligations in relation to operating leasesl
transponder service agreements. The table belownsuises the projected contractual undiscounted ftash
impact of these leases and agreements.

Expected cash payments falling due

After one
year but
not more More
Within than five than five
Total one year years years
(€ in millions)
Contractual commitments
Operating leases 37.9 4.8 18.7 14.4
Transponder service agreements 32.2 29.5 2.7 --
As of 31 December 2015 70.1 34.3 21.4 14.4
As of 31 December 2014 505 38.1 9.9 25

In addition to the contractual obligations desdalibethe table above, the Group had outstandingmioments
in respect of contracted capital expenditure togES825.6 million as of 31 December 2015, largelyelation
to the procurement and launch of future satellifésse commitments are expected to be largeledettithin
five years.

Capital Expenditure

The Group finances its cash outflows related topitschases of tangible assets, also referred tcapsal
expenditure CapEX), primarily using net cash inflows from operatiagfivities. This CapEx relates primarily
to the procurement of satellites.

The table below sets forth the Group’s net casliows for CapEx for the years ended 31 Decembei3201
2014 and 2015.

For the year ended 31 December

2013 2014 2015
(€ in millions)
Payments for purchases of tangible assets (net) 377.5 322.¢ 524.(
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Going forward, the Issuer expects to continue vesh in satellites, both to replace existing capdmfore their
end of life eplacement capaci)y as well as to make new capacity available totrgemving demandgrowth
capacity.

In February 2015, the Group initiated the procunenoé three satellite programmes, SES-14, SES-tI55#5-
16/GovSat-1.

The Group will also continue to invest in assodat®n-satellite assets, for example ground-bastsllita
operations infrastructure as well as other equigméxtures and fittings required to support dayekay
operations.

Projected cash outflows for CapEx for the period@€b 2020 are detailed in the table below, incigdihe
contractually committed amounts relating to the¢hsatellite programmes noted above.

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

(€ in millions)
Projected cash outflows for CapEx
Committed CapEx for both replacement and increnhgntavth capacity 560380 50 - --
Committed and uncommitted non-satellite CapEXx &stftucture and services) 6060 60 60 60
Estimated uncommitted replacement and increment&ith capacity 120130 365 415 440
Total 740 570 475 475 500

See Business—Investment Prograninfer more information on the Group’s strategy fexpanding and
renewing its existing fleet of satellites and ieswork of teleports.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

In the ordinary course of the Group’s business @xposed to market risk arising from fluctuatiamgoreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates, asawaltedit risk. To manage these risks effectivitlg, Group
has in the past entered and expects to continaetés into hedging transactions and to use devivditnancial
instruments, pursuant to established internal djuiee and policies. The Group does not enter imaricial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

The Group’s risk management policies are desctileéalv. For more information on the Group’s finahcisks
and sensitivity analyses, see note 19 of the 2@i&nEial Statements.

Foreign Currency Risk

As discussed in—Key Factors Affecting the Group’s Business anduResf Operationsabove, movements
in the U.S. dollar to euro exchange rate can affieet Group’s statement of financial position andome
statement, as the Group has significant operatidrsse functional currency is the U.S. dollar aradilities
denominated in U.S. dollar. To mitigate the balasiveet exposure, the Group may enter into forwareign
exchange contracts, or similar derivatives, to leettge exposure on financial debt or on net asgetsof
31 December 2015, the Group held no such finantiuments.

The Group also has a corresponding exposure ttJt8edollar in the income statement. In the yeateen
31 December 2015, 45.2 per cent of the Group’smaéveand 50.5 per cent of its operating expenses wer
generated by Group companies with the U.S. dobahair functional currency. The Group does noteirito
any hedging derivatives to cover this income statgnaxposure.

The Group may use forward currency contracts tmielite or reduce the currency exposure on individua
transactions such as satellite procurements, i@jahe maturities to the milestone payment scheedilihe
forward contracts are in the same currency as¢dgdd item and can cover up to 100 per cent dbtlaévalue
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of the contract. It is the Group’s policy not taeminto forward contracts until a firm commitmestin place,
and to match the terms of the hedge derivativaldse of the hedged item to ensure the effectigenéthe
hedge.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, cross-currency swagsadditional Group borrowings were designated as
hedge of the net investments in SES Global-Amerikes, SES Holdings (Netherlands) BV and SES Sitel
Leasing Limited. As of 31 December 2015, the netdtment hedges were assessed to be highly efeutid a
net translation loss of €139.9 million (stated wéttax of €75.6 million) was included in equity. Axf
31 December 2014, a net translation loss of €158ln (stated net of tax of €67.3 million) wascladed in
equity.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s exposure to risk of changes in marketrest rates relates primarily to its floatingerabrrowings.
The Group carefully monitors and adjusts the mitwben fixed and floating rate debt from time to dim
following market conditions. Interest rate swaps aged to manage the interest rate risk. The tefthe hedge
derivatives are negotiated to match the terms efftedged item to maximise hedge effectiveness.f/Axl o
December 2015, the Group had 92 per cent of iteolamgs at fixed rates, compared to 91 per cerufal
December 2014.

The Group had no interest rate hedges outstandinfy 2l December 2013, 2014 and 2015.
Credit Risk

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who lwi® trade on credit terms are subject to creditfivation
procedures. In addition, receivable balances amitored on an ongoing basis with the result that@toup’s
exposure to bad debts has historically not bearifignt.

Trade debtors, net of provisions, as of 31 Decer@bé&b were €378.8 million, compared with €377.0iorilas

of 31 December 2014. An amount of €16.4 million vegensed in 2015 reflecting an increase in the
impairment of trade and other receivables, companefl17.3 million in 2014. This amount is recordad
‘Other operating charges.’ As of 31 December 2@EHsle receivables with a nominal amount of €52.[liani
were impaired and fully provided for, compared 87 2 million as of 31 December 2014.

The Group’s largest customers are substantial mealigpanies and government agencies, the creditofisk
which is assessed as low.

Significant Accounting Policies

The Group’s financial information included in tHPsospectus has been prepared and presented irdaccer
with EU IFRS. SeePresentation of Financial and Other Informatioand the notes to the Annual Financial
Statements contained in this Prospectus. In p#aticsee note 2 to the 2015 Financial Statements.

The preparation of financial statements requiresGnoup’s management to make a number of estinaates
assumptions. These estimates and assumptions #ffeateported amounts of assets and liabilities, ain
revenue and expenses, and the disclosure of centimgsets and liabilities. All assumptions, exatemts and
forecasts used as a basis for certain estimatdsnwihe Annual Financial Statements represent daibl-
assessments of the Group’s future performance licchithe Issuer believes there is a reasonabls.basi

These estimates and assumptions represent the '&roeyw at the times they are made, and only tfidrey
involve risks, uncertainties and other factors tiatld cause the Group’s actual future resultdfopmiance and
achievements to differ materially from those forsed.
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BUSINESS
Overview

SES is a world-leading satellite operator. The @rowns and operates a fleet of 52 geostationaejlises and
provides satellite-enabled communications solutibtmsmajor customers around the world. The Group’s
operations are focused on delivering solutionsetoes four market verticals — Video, Enterprise, Mgband
Government. The Group'’s fleet is complemented bgtavork of teleports and offices located aroundvibdd.
This far-reaching infrastructure could enable theup to offer coverage to 99 per cent of the warld’
population. The Group’s transponder utilisatioreras at 31 December 2015 was 72.8 per cent, repirege
1,093 of 1,502 transponders commercially available.

In addition to operating a geostationary satefléet with global coverage, across multiple freqrebands, the
Issuer has a fully diluted interest of 49.14 peartée O3b, a company operating a Medium Earth Gsiellite
constellation that combines the reach of satalith the speed of fibre. On 29 April 2016, SES amued the
50.5 per cent Acquisition. The Issuer intends tereise the Call Option to purchase the remainirtgtanding
share capital of O3b. For more information on Q&g “—O3l" below.

SES’s differentiated strategy focuses on threeckements:

. Globalisation (building scale to serve rapidly iEgsing demand for global solutions);

. Verticalisation (focused development of differetathcapabilities in the four market verticals); and

. Dematuring (shaping the future user experience, emtebnching satellite’s key role in the digital
ecosystem).

By delivering differentiated and world-class glotsaitellite-enabled solutions, SES seeks to optinsdive
customer requirements in four key market vertiecadlddeo, Enterprise, Mobility and Government whicbw
define SES’s business and strategy.

In 2015 the Group reported revenue growth in tlofene four verticals; Video grew 7.5 per cent 19354.9
million compared to €1,260.8 million in 2014, Mabjlgrew 47.4 per cent to €52.9 million compare€85.9
million in 2014 and Government grew 18.8 per cen€255.6 million compared to €215.1 million in 20T4he
revenue in the market vertical Enterprise decredse®.1 per cent to €307.6 million compared to €324
million in 2014.

The Group contracts satellite capacity and hadnér&ct backlog of approximately €7.6 billion as3df March
2016. Contracts with broadcasters are generallg-term, with typical durations of ten years (andtapl5
years in certain cases) for customers in North Acaeand Europe and between five and ten yearsuiomers

in developing markets. Contracts with enterprigestgpically three to five years in length and cants with
government customers are typically one year. Theu@s largest customers generally are leading media
companies, enterprises and government agencieslavititredit risk and steady cash flows. These tjeali
combined with the Group’s contract backlog, prov&teS with predictable cash flows and revenue Visibi
The Issuer believes the long-cycle nature of manthe Group’s material contracts make the busidess
susceptible to short-term fluctuations in globalremmic conditions.

Competitive Strengths
The Issuer believes that the Group benefits froerfalowing key strengths:

. A leading satellite operator with global reaclSES is a leading satellite operator with a glabakth,
operating a fleet of 52 satellites in markets acbtime world. Its business supports a number of
applications, foremost of which is the transmissibrdirect-to-home DTH) television broadcasts, a
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high-value application with persistent charactarist SES also provides services, including VSAT
networks, broadband internet access and mobile haatk to commercial enterprises, and
communications links to government customers.

Strong and predictable cash flow3he Group had a contract backlog of approximai&ly billion as

of 31 March 2016 delivered by a strong customee l@msisting predominantly of broadcasters in
developed markets. This customer profile generatepredictable, high-margin revenue stream,
resulting in a high cash flow conversion factor.

Clear financial strategy The Group is committed to maintaining its BBB/Ba@tandard & Poor’s
and Moody’s) investment grade credit rating. Thés Hacilitated access on favourable terms to the
capital markets. While the Group has adequatedityuat hand as of the date of this Prospectus, it
continues to seek to diversify and extend its diaitling base and to optimise its debt maturity ipgof

Experienced management teanBES has a highly experienced management teampyethe
Executive Committee, each of whose members hasdemable experience in the satellite industry.

Strategy

The Group’s objective is to be the world’'s mosttoaser-focused satellite company by collaboratinthvitis
customers and partners around the world to grow thesinesses through the Group’s unique, reliziold
innovative satellite infrastructure and solutiofibe Group aims to deliver sustainable and proftajriowth
from its satellite infrastructure business by bmiéd on the Group’s core competencies and pursuirg t
following strategies:

History

market vertical-centric innovation, including
« rapidly increasing scale in the Video market vaitiaided by the acquisition of RR Media,

« enhancing capabilities within the Enterprise maslatical, including through the acquisition of
03b,

e building the potential of the Mobility market verdl by providing top-end aeronautical and
maritime connectivity and integrating O3b’s capiibs and

«  providing space resilience within the Governmentkatavertical, including to the United States
and NATO;

focused development of spectrum;

technological evolution that creates new opportesiand enables new markets;
differentiated investment;

building up global capabilities in all elementstioé business; and

sustained organisational efficiency.

The Issuer was founded in 1985 as Europe’s firstafg satellite operator under the name of Société
Européenne des Satellites. The Group’s first smelASTRA 1A, was launched in December 1988 for
broadcasting primarily into the UK, with transm@sibeginning in February 1989. The satellite had 16
transponders, most of which targeted specific ntarkethe UK and Scandinavia. By the end of 1998TRA

1A was able to reach over 16 million cable &d@H households in Europe. The launch of ASTRA 1A was
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followed by the launches of the ASTRA 1B, ASTRA &a@Gd ASTRA 1D satellites to meet increasing demand,
in 1991, 1993 and 1994, respectively. These da®llivere co-located in the same orbital slot (B.2f
ASTRA 1A, substantially increasing the number ddirwhels that could be transmitted from that orlgtadition.

In the years that followed, the Group reached @rrthilestones, including the inauguration of itgitgil
technical facilities for the reception, monitoringultiplexing, encryption and uplinking of hundreafsdigital
channels on the ASTRA system, the launching oh&nrtsatellites and the expansion of its footpricroas
Europe.

In 1998, the Issuer became a publicly listed cormgptinough an initial public offering and listing dhe
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. In 1999, the Group béganansition from a single-market business tgiabal
operator through a strategy of acquiring minonitierests in regional operators, such as Asian tpeAsiaSat,
Nordic operator NSAB and Brazilian operator StaeOn

In 1998, the Issuer opened a second orbital latdtio Europe at 28.2°E, to serve the UK and Irel&xddH
markets. First transmissions began following thadth of ASTRA 2A in August 1998.

In 2001, the Issuer acquired a 100 per cent inténesseneral Electric GE) satellite communications unit
American Communications, for a consideration inhcasd shares, following which GE became a significa
shareholder in the Issuer. The acquisition inclutiédatellites serving the North American markstyell as
six other satellites covering Asia, Latin Americamd certain Oceanic regions. The transaction alcloded a
U.S. government services unit.

In 2003, the Group created a strategic partnersiap linked SES AMERICOM (North America’s largest
satellite operator at the time) with EchoStar (th&.'s second-largest DTH network) by which the @ro
procures satellites and then fully contracts thgaciy of the satellites to EchoStar.

In May 2004, SES's securities were listed on theokext Paris Stock Exchange in order to furtheilifate
trading in SES’s securities.

In 2004, SES acquired DPC from the Kirch Group. @eed SES Platform Services, this entity provides
broadcasters with playout, multiplexing and enagpsatellite uplinks as well as other media brosidca
services.

In 2006, SES extended its footprint to deliver globoverage through the acquisition of New Skie®IBges.

This acquisition gave the Group global coveragel@@ per cent-owned satellites, thereby shiftisgsttategy
away from minority interests such as in AsiaSat &tat One. In a €1.2 hillion spin-off transaction2007,
these and certain other assets and cash werehltdnattito GE in exchange for its remaining sharehglih

SES, shares which were then cancelled.

In 2008, the Group began using a new orbital pmsitB1.5°E, to serve markets in Eastern Europerdipas
were initiated with the Sirius 2 satellite, renanf&8iTRA 5A. Following its retirement from serviceparations
continued on ASTRA 2C and subsequently ASTRA 1GTRA 5B was launched on 22 March 2014 and
operates at 31.5°E.

In 2009, SES continued to expand despite the gletmiomic downturn, with robust demand for capanaitys
developing markets. In particular, the Group emterdgo a partnership with Star Satellite Commuridzest
Company PJSCY@hSa) to offer DTH television in the Middle East and ri#o Africa. The Group also
announced its strategic investment in O3b.

By 2010, the Group had more than 40 satelliteparation and celebrated its 25-year anniversary.

In 2012, the Group expanded its fleet through shueth of three new satellites, SES-4, SES-5 andRASIF.
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The ASTRA satellite system has continued to expegeaudience growth in the 37 countries in its gegaigic
footprint coverage. A growing line-up of digitaldégision and radio channels has increased ASTR&Chrtical
reach. At the end of 2015, ASTRA reached approxipat56 million, or 61 per cent, of all television
households in its footprint. These households veckioadcasts via satellite, cable and IPTV, ofciisatellite
served approximately 64 million homes directly, hwitable (approximately 64 million) and IPTV
(approximately 28 million) serving the remainder.

In June 2013, the Group launched SES-6 and brauigtd service in July, replacing the NSS-806 suaaft at
40.5°W and doubling the available capacity at tirhttal position with an incremental 49 transpoisdSES-6

is home to Brazilian DTH Pay-TV provider Oi's neextended DTH package. In September 2013, SES and
Panasonic Avionic Corporation signed a major sttetlapacity agreement to use the SES-6 sateliteita
high-powered Ku-band mobility beams over the AitarDcean to deliver a complete entertainment and
communications package to aircraft.

SES-8 was launched on 3 December 2013 and entdedammercial service on 3 February 2014. It leenb
successfully co-positioned with SES’s NSS-6 saelit the orbital location of 95°E and is now fully
operational to serve markets in the Asia-Pacifigamr.

In addition, ASTRA 2E was launched on 30 Septen2Bd3 and entered into commercial service on 1 Febru
2014. ASTRA 2E delivers next generation broaddaSHT and broadband services in Europe, the MiddistE
and Africa, and carries Ku- and Ka-band payloadkeprime orbital location of 28.2°E/28.5°E.

The procurement of SES-10 was announced on 20 &gb2014. The Group has selected Airbus Defence and
Space (formerly known as Airbus Military, EADS Astn and Cassidian) to build this communications
satellite. The new satellite will expand SES’s dalitees in Latin America and the Caribbean througgh-
power beams tailored to provide direct-to-home ticaating, enterprise and broadband connectivityices in

the entire region at the orbital location of 67°With 55 high-power Ku-band transponders, the staelill
provide replacement capacity for the current sts|l AMC-3 and AMC-4, as well as incremental catyaat

the 67°W slot.

In June 2014, SES won the Brazilian spectrum anidtiothe two orbital positions 48°W and 64°W.

The procurement of SES-12 was announced on 1720dl¢. Airbus Defence and Space has been selected to
build this new hybrid communications satellite éov& the fast growing DTH, Data, Mobility and Gaverent
markets in Asia. The new satellite will expand SE$8apabilities to provide DTH broadcasting, VSAT,
Mobility and High Throughput SatellitdHT'S) data connectivity services in the Asia-Pacifigioa, including
rapidly growing markets such as India and IndoneHie spacecraft will be positioned at the welkbbshed
orbital slot of 95°E, providing incremental as wadl replacement capacity with excellent view angteess the
Asia-Pacific region. SES-12 will replace NSS-6 ailll be co-located with SES-8.

On 4 September 2014, SES announced the continuatithstrategic partnership with EchoStar Corfioraat
the orbital position of 105°W with the procuremefithe new SES-11 satellite. SES-11 will be marufac
by Airbus Defence and Space based on the relialtesiar E3000 platform. SES-11 will carry 24 Ku-tan
transponders as well as 24 C-band transponderssfdeecraft's Ku-band capacity will replace thestixg
SES satellite AMC-15 at 105°W, an orbital positishere EchoStar has been SES'’s anchor customer 2fnce
December 2004. The spacecraft’'s C-band capacityralide replacement capacity for AMC-18 at 105°W.

On 28 December 2014 ASTRA 2G was successfully laeton ILS Proton from Baikonour in Kazakhstan.
ASTRA 2G was built by Airbus Defence and Space oulduse, France. ASTRA 2G also delivers next
generation broadcast, VSAT and broadband servicEsiiope, the Middle East and Africa and carries &d
Ka-band payloads at the prime dual orbital locatib@8.2/28.5°E.
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On 16 February 2015 SES announced that it haseatdemw satellites SES-14 from Airbus Defence arat&p
and SES-15 from Boeing Satellite Systems to progidevth capacity in Latin America and North America
respectively. Both are powerful hybrid satellitesjng Ku-, Ka- and, in the case of SES-14, alsca@dbin
wide-beam and high-throughput technology and alpetectric propulsion system that enhances thellgas’
economic efficiency as a result of the enhancedopdythat can be carried as a result of the recluéti fuel
mass. Both satellites are due to be launched ii.201

In March 2015, Airbus Defence and Space announcedilti-year capacity agreement with SES to deliver
managed satellite communication services for catgocustomers in the mining, energy and humanitaria
sectors. Airbus Defence and Space will utilise cépan SES-5, with the potential to take additioka-band
capacity on ASTRA 2G, ASTRA 4A and NSS-12. In aiddit SES will provide teleport services from
Luxembourg.

SES’s commitment to developing its presence irMbbility vertical was boosted in March 2015, whelol@l
Eagle Entertainment3EE) contracted Ku-band wide-beam and High Througigaitllite spot-beam capacity
aboard SES-12, SES-14 and SES-15. GEE will takarddge of the combined coverage over North anchSout
America, the Atlantic Ocean, Western Europe, thddié East and Asia-Pacific to deliver in-flight cattivity
and services for commercial airlines.

SES achieved important milestones in accelerativey dommercial introduction of Ultra High Definition
(UHD). In addition to having three UHD demo channel&umrope via three orbital positions (19.2°E, 28.2°E
and 5°E) and in North America via 103°W, SES satweanulti-year contract to broadcast Europe’s first
commercial free-to-air UHD channel in May 2015.Jdy 2015, Sky Deutschland signed an additionahciap
agreement for UHD broadcasts.

SES has continued to develop its business withrgavents in Europe during 2015, notably with itsastnent

in LuxGovSat, a jointly owned entity of the Issugnd the Luxembourg government. In February 2015,
LuxGovSat procured SES-16/GovSat-1 to provide aadic military frequencies for governmental
requirements over Europe, the Middle East and Affiche Luxembourg government has also pre-comntitted
a significant amount of the satellite’s capacitijch will support its NATO obligations.

SES Government Solutions has signed two new hogigdoad contracts, namely the Global-Scale
Observations of the Limb and Disk payload on SESxfid the Wide Area Augmentation Systems satellite
payload on SES-15.

In June 2015, StarTimes contracted additional dgpam SES-5 to provide an enhanced TV viewing
experience in Africa. StarTimes provides Englishglaage video content to over five million subsarsb&cross
16 African countries and will use the additiongbaeity to provide additional high-quality contemstart of its
DTH package.

In September 2015, SES Platform Services unve#gdral innovative new products, which will helpsttape
the future of video distribution across multiplevides. These included FLUID HUB, which provides raged
cloud-based services on a variety of video platforiine service is already supporting over 20 viatedemand
(VOD) portals for customers such as Fox Internaiddhannels Germany, Turner and the INSIGHT UHD
channel. In addition, LIQUID VOD distributes VOD mtent over satellite in areas underserved by teraks
alternatives and delivers premium content to amesing number of users, without incremental distion
costs.

In December 2015, Televisa in Latin America cortgdcthree C-band transponders on AMC-9 to broadcast
premium channels to millions of homes across Mexidoe combination of premium content and on-going
investment in seeding cable head-ends furthergitiens SES'’s video neighbourhood in Mexico
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Recent Developments - most significant trends sintkee end of the 2015 financial year

In January 2016, SES announced the transmissiarr@tord number of TV channels through its sagefléet

as of 31 December 2015. SES’'s TV channel count drgwt1.3 per cent to 7,268 channels during 2015,
compared with an overall growth of 2 per cent fog test of the industry. The superior developmeag driven

by the continued introduction of new High DefinititHD) channels across Europe and North America, as well
as the further expansion of SES’s Video businesssa@merging markets. Nearly 60 per cent of aholels on

the SES fleet are now broadcast in the MPEG-4 cessiimn standard. The penetration of HD channetssacr
all markets continues to be an important drivegmfwth for SES. The number of HDTV channels sered
SES's fleet of over 50 satellites grew by 18 pertde 2,230 channels, representing 31 per certeofdtal TV
channels on SES satellites. In contrast, the nurobétDTV channels carried over satellite for thetref
industry grew by 13 per cent to about 6,400 channel

In February 2016, SES also signed important agretameith Panasonic and Gogo to provide capacity for
connectivity services. Panasonic Avionics signéohg-term contract for its highest bandwidth conmant to
date of high-powered, HTS spot-beam and wide-beanbdtd capacity, on the SES-14 and SES-15 satellite
Gogo has signed one of the largest satellite chpdeials ever struck in the aero market to meewigm
demand for high-speed in-flight connectivity onvelaroutes over the Americas, contracting spot-beanth
wide-beam capacity aboard SES-14 and SES-15.

On 26 February 2016, SES announced that SES PhatRervices will merge with RR Media, a leading
provider of global digital media services. RR Megiavides scalable, converged digital media sesvioeover
1,000 media customers globally. RR Media uses éimiged combination of satellite, fibre and thesimtet to
deliver global content to viewers of multi-platfoffiv operators, over 100 VOD platforms, as well abwring
content for online video and DTH service. The n@mpany will offer full continuity and enhanced seevto
SES Platform Services and RR Media existing custepeveraging multiple satellite positions as vadl a
large fibre network and the internet.

On 4 March 2016, the SES-9 satellite was launchedGeostationary Transfer Orbit and is schedubegach
geostationary orbit in the second quarter of 201 satellite carries replacement and expansioacigpfor
key markets in the Asia-Pacific region.

On 29 April 2016, SES announced it agreed to irsgré® stake in O3b to a controlling interest ab5fer cent.
The Issuer intends to exercise the Call Optionutelpase the remaining outstanding share capi@Bbf and in
connection therewith has carried out the Capitas€&résee section “ Fhe Acquisitiol). For more information
on O3b, see section “©3' below.

Industry Overview and Trends
Overview

SES operates in th&SS sector of the satellite industry, which forms amegral part of the global
communications infrastructure. According to Euraaudh revenue of FSS operators reached $12.3 rbiliio
2014.

Over the last several years, deregulation and fsaton have significantly reshaped the FSS sedtor
addition, the sector has seen an increase in efipartcing from countries such as China, FrancethrdJ.S.
that has contributed to the development of natigwkllite programmes. The sector has also undergon
consolidation, with regional and national operatoeing acquired by larger companies or seekingartnpr
with other providers.
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There are currently three FSS operators in addito8BES that provide services globally. This igéasingly
important as broadcasters, enterprises and govetsraeek global connectivity. In addition, there amumber
of operators with fewer satellites that provideioagl and/or national services.

Satellite Communication

Satellite operators compete with terrestrial (idetg wireless) network operators (e.g., cable, Difflre optic,
microwave broadcasting and 3G/4G networks) in tlaekat for video, data and voice communication sesi
Satellite services have several advantages ovee t@mpeting communication platforms, such as:

. the ability to extend beyond terrestrial networkl groints, or provide an alternative path to teriaist
infrastructure, thus avoiding points of congestiomunreliability;

. cost-effectiveness and efficiency in content disttion through the ability to broadcast high-qualit
signals (TV, radio and internet) from a single toma to many locations simultaneously;

. fast network deployments, with network performaeesily replicated across each site regardless of

geography or infrastructure, and efficient censeadi control and management;

. the ability to provide ubiquitous coverage ovemgé geographic region allowing for the addition of
sites at a lower marginal cost. Unlike cable abdefiines, satellites can readily provide broadeast
communication services over large areas and toteelncations where the population density may not
be high enough to warrant the expense of builditegrastrial-based communications network;

. superior end-to-end network availability comparedetrestrial networks;

. sufficient bandwidth to support the introductionnaiw technologies and video and data offeringd) suc
as HD and Ultra HD television; and

. rapid communications capabilities for disaster vecy.

Terrestrial alternatives, such as fibre optic cabieay be more advantageous than satellite in some

circumstances and can be used in conjunction sitllge to provide a hybrid network that takes @ttage of
the inherent abilities of both technologies. Gelermn areas well served by terrestrial network$as point-to-
point communications, terrestrial alternatives ntewe a cost advantage, while more dispersed, fmint-
multipoint communications may be better serveddiglite.

In recent years, the growth in both linear and lear TV viewing and the demand for the deliverfy o
broadcast and broadband network to subscribersighra single user interface have led to the dewsbop of
Hybrid Terrestrial-Satellite solutions. This trenfl hybridisation combines the satellite’s broadoasélity,
reach and economics with the interactivity of nioredr and terrestrial networks.

Supply and Demand for Fixed Satellite Services
Supply

The supply of satellite capacity is affected bynsigant requirements for financial, technical, ham natural
and other resources. For instance, there are tetimiumber of orbital locations and limited radieguency
spectrum available to commercial communicationslléat operators. As a result, a limited numbesatiellites
can be placed into service over any particular gaaitic area. New entrants face the significanttahposts of
procuring a satellite and must maintain the finahand highly specialised technical resources requio
operate a satellite system and market its servigtiser regulatory requirements must also be setidfiefore a
new entrant can provide services to, from or withispecific country. As such the supply of saelli@pacity is
also constrained by a number of regulatory requérgsat national, regional and supra-national evel
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Available supply of satellite capacity varies sfgantly by region, frequency and market demandhWwéspect
to video distribution, “neighbourhoods” develop whenany thousands or even millions of consumellisate
dishes or cable head-ends are pointed at a spewtfital location or locations. Due to the commairci
attractiveness of those neighbourhoods developed time as a result of significant investments atelite
operators, video distribution networks prefer touse expansion of satellite capacity from satallitcated at
the orbital location(s), or neighbourhoods, to whtiteir or their customers’ satellite dishes areaaly pointed.

Demand

Demand for satellite services is primarily driveyn édconomic growth, both generally and within a jcatar
geographic area, growth in product or service ntarkgrowth in demand for bandwidth-intensive amtlans,
technical advancements and improved regulatorysacte new and existing markets. In particular, [dseier
believes the following factors will drive FSS gréwih the next decade:

Proliferation of Video content and format

. FSS operators are experiencing strong demand forvideo distribution and contribution, evidenced
by the continued growth in the number of channeisd broadcast. Demand is also driven by the
increasing volume of high-quality display formats;luding a significant number of HDTV channels,
which require two or three times more bandwidthnttstiandard definition channels for a given
compression format. Demand for UHD (4K) is expedtedevelop, driven by the availability of UHD
screens in the market and the heightened focus Tay Bperators on premium quality which will
enable further differentiation among operatorsadidition, an increasing number of movies and digita
cinema are now shot in UHD. Commercial UHD broaticatarted in 2015 and are expected to
become widespread by around 2020. Mobile and fieltommunication companies are also turning
to satellite as they face significant consumer deahrfar video content, both as an add-on to complete
triple-play bundles as well as embedding sateliitdsybrid solutions.

Proliferation of Data-centric applications

The market for data-centric applications is expktteshow strong growth, with global industry reveracross
the Mobility, Enterprise and Government market igets projected to nearly double between 2015 &@##2
with compound annual growth rat€3AGR) in each region of 6 per cent or more over theespariod (source:
Northern Sky Research).

. Mobility. Applications such as wireless phone services, timaricommunications and aeronautical
services are fuelling demand for satellite bandwi&ignificant technology advancements are enabling
the provision of broadband connectivity to a widage of commercial passenger aircraft and maritime
vessels. The same technologies are also able tosliuthese links to manned and unmanned
aeronautical platforms and naval ships used by rgowvent and/or defence users. Rapid growth in
cellular services in developing regions is expediedransition demand for voice-only services to
demand for data and video services over time, tieguh increased network bandwidth requirements.
Given the low penetration of fixed-line telephomevices in developing markets and the introduction
of smart phones, tablets and netbooks, internaetsacin these markets may be primarily served by
satellite connectivity. Global Mobility revenuesagrojected to grow significantly, with a 20 pente
CAGR 2015-2024.

. Enterprise networks and application€orporate VSAT networks are being widely impleteéenin
developing regions and markets as economic gromthf@reign trade expands. Banking is among the
sectors driving this growth, along with multinatédncorporations expanding their presence in the
region.
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The use of satellite networks has expanded in te@ars to support oil and gas extraction and other
resource sectors such as mining. In more developgibns such as North America, oil and gas
companies increasingly rely on satellite since dipoare often located far from terrestrial
infrastructure and the use of remote real-time afjp@ns monitoring continues to increase. Demand for
satellite capacity has been driven both by growtlthis sector as well as an increase in the use of
bandwidth-intensive applications by such operations

Ka- and Ku-band satellite services support broadbemernet access for consumers and small
businesses. The capabilities of today's high-thhpug satellites allow ISPs to offer high-speed
internet access comparable to terrestrial altaresiti

A well-developed market vertical, Enterprise isefgen to deliver a 3 per cent revenue CAGR 2015-
2024.

GovernmentGovernment digital inclusion projects to bring ltband services to rural and remote
communities and those with limited terrestrial &sftructure are an important and growing application
being led by civilian agencies in both developed daveloping nations. These projects coincide with
strong government demand from national broadbandrammes for rural connectivity and universal
mobile coverage obligations.

Demand for satellite capacity from defence andtamifiagencies around the world continues to grow.
The U.S. government remains the single largest efseommercial satellite communications capacity
and most of this use relates to U.S. DepartmebBedénse operations.

The sustained growth in the Government verticauggesting revenue CAGR of 7 per cent in the
period 2015-2024.

Customers and Services

Overview

SES provides its services to customers worldwideluding broadcasters, telecommunications companies
content and internet service providers, mobile fixet network operators, network integrators antpomate
and government customers.

The Group’s services fall into two categories:

Infrastructure This category includes the provision of satellitansponder capacity and directly
attributable services, which accounted for 76.7 qeert and 74.3 per cent of the Group’s revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2014 and the year &ldedcember 2015, respectively.

Services This category principally includes (i) the prawis of products through SES Platform
Services, which includes playout and transmiss@mnisces, (ii) the Group’s HD+ platform, (iii) retai
broadband two-way internet access provided thr@&g8 Techcom (since 2015, following the merger
of SES Broadband Services with SES Techcom), (hgireering services provided through SES
Techcom and (v) SES Government Solutions (partiadly-SES fleet related revenue).
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SES focuses on four market verticals:

Customer Segment Key Services Sold

Video DTH broadcasting including HDTV (7,268 chalshe
Video contribution and distribution/teleport seesc
Managed digital media services
Consumer TV platforms, e.g. HD+
Enterprise Wide-beam and GEO/MEO HTS capacity aleport services
Network/platform services (e.g. mobile backhaul)

Managed networks for consumer/SME applications. (§.§AT networks,
broadband internet access)

Telcos and MNOs

Mobility Trans-oceanic and landmass wide-beam and GEO/MES et#pacity and
teleport services

Mobility network/platform services (e.g. aeronaaticonnectivity, maritime
connectivity)

Government Wide-beam and GEO/MEO HTS capacity and secure ddlepervices
communications link

C/Ku/Ka and Military frequency capacity

Fully managed end-to-end service to the end custamguding hosted
payloads

Customers
Video vertical — Broadcasters

SES'’s satellites are the world’s leading audioviglistribution platform and enabled broadcastersldbver
7,268 television and radio channels (including @,PI®TV channels) as of 31 December 2015. Approxatyat
317 million television households worldwide weradieed at the end of December 2015. SES provides DTH
broadcasting, feeds for cable networks and digé@adestrial television networks, as well as futhé video
contribution services, HD+ and occasional use sesyias described in more detail below.

Revenue attributable to the Video vertical accodifive 66 per cent and 67 per cent respectivelyhefGroup’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014 angehe ended 31 December 2015. No corresponding
analysis by vertical is available for periods bef@f14. Video vertical revenue included:

. DTH broadcasting, including HDTV and Ultra HD TDTH service providers use the Group’s
satellites as a distribution platform for their\dees, delivering television programming, audio and
information channels directly to customers’ homes.

. Video distribution and contributio Major broadcasters, cable networks and DTH serpiroviders
use the Group’s satellites for the full-time traission of television programming. Additionally, SES
provides certain broadcasters and DTH service gensi bundled, value-added services that include
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satellite capacity, digital encoding of video chelsnand uplinking and downlinking services to and
from the Group’s satellites and teleport facilities

. HD+. HD+ is a platform for the reception of the encegband unencrypted free to air channels in HD
in Germany which SES broadcasts. The line up iredl encrypted free to air channels in HD and 30
non-encrypted free to air channels in HD. HD+ made&velopment continued to progress with over
1.8 million subscribers at the end of December 2015

. Occasional use service®ccasional use services comprise the sale ofcitgpan a short-term basis,
to broadcasters, programmers and special evetits tiglders for the timely broadcast of video news,
sports and live event coverage on a short-termsbasabling broadcasters to conduct on-the-scene
transmissions using small, portable antennas.

Mobility and Enterprise verticals - Commercial Emigses

The Group’s global satellite fleet and ground isfracture, combined with its partner teleports ariaus
countries, ensure that SES customers enjoy hightgjeannectivity around the world. SES provides AIS
networks, broadband internet access, mobile bat¢klaamad many more services for corporate and
telecommunications customers worldwide.

Revenue attributable to the Mobility and Enterpnseticals were 3 per cent and 15 per cent respgtof
Group revenue for the year ended 31 December 20hpared to 2 per cent and 17 per cent respectioetpe
year ended 31 December 2014. No correspondingsigdly vertical is available for periods before 201

Services provided to Enterprise customers include:

. VSAT networksThe Group provides capacity for the operationV&AT networks which serve
thousands of VSAT terminals at customer sites. déone of these customers, SES offers end-to-end
services including installation and maintenancthefend user terminal, maintenance of the VSAT hub
and provision of satellite capacity.

. Internet servicesThe Group provides satellite capacity to a varadtgustomers who use it to provide
two-way broadband internet services.

. Telecommunication carrier serviceBhe Group provides satellite capacity and endrib-gervices for
data and voice transmission to telecommunicaticarsiers located throughout the world. These
services include space segment capacity and teéatdatilities for GSM (mobile telephony) backhaul
and for maritime and aeronautical sectors wherenectivity cannot be provided by terrestrial
networks.

Government vertical

SES serves the diverse needs of governments adid pabtor organisations around the globe includimg
governments of the United States, Germany, theedritingdom, the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and the
Netherlands, offering secure and reliable commuioica links. The largest government customer isUtf@.
government. The Group delivers vital communicatilimiss for civil and military agencies, first regmters and
educational or medical purposes worldwide.

Services Agreements

The Group provides its satellite transponder capanid related services under a variety of conttechs.
Satellite capacity contracts vary in length andteonhdepending on the type of customer. The Grocqrdracts
are up for renewal at various times in the futlitee Group’s contracts generally do not have bréakses and
therefore must be honoured in full.
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. BroadcastersContracts with broadcasters are generally longstavith typical durations of ten years
(and up to 15 years in certain cases) for customdierth America and Europe, and between five and
ten years for customers in developing markets. Swuctiracts can sometimes be for the whole of a
satellite’s operational life and can be for singianultiple transponders.

. Commercial enterpriseLContracts with commercial enterprises are gelyethtee to five years in
length, and the capacity contracted for will geltgi@ver more than one geographic region.

. GovernmentContracts with government customers are genenallipnger than one year in length, as
government customers generally cannot pre-emptanah budget allocation. The Group has multi-
year framework agreements with many of its govemtnoastomers pursuant to which the customer
agrees that the contract will be renewed as lonth@sgency receives the necessary funds. SES has
recently signed five-year agreements with U.S. guwent customers, signalling a move to consider
longer-term contracts, to facilitate operationajuieements and secure capacity on more favourable
terms.

Under the Group’s standard capacity allotment ages, customers must obtain operating licences fiteen
relevant regulatory authorities, comply with rediglas governing the content of audiovisual prograsam
obtain the rights to operate their earth statiods@mply with the Group’s technical specificatiombe Group

may also require a customer to provide a banklrajuarantee as security for payment with regaalotted

capacity and in respect of the customer’s contedctbligations.

Principal Markets

The Group’s principal markets described below &poad to the Group’s four geographic customer-facin
commercial groups (Market/Business Verticals) dbsdr in section Description of the Issuer and Corporate
Governance—Thé&xecutive Committéebelow. These markets are served by the Groupdsvigg fleet of
satellites, many of which cover more than one maf@r information on which markets are coverecagh of
the Group’s satellites, se8dtellite Fleetbelow.

Europe

SES, under the ASTRA brand, is a leading provideDDH transmission capacity in Europe. The Group’s
European market includes customers and operattormsighout Western, Central and Eastern Europe. Its
customers include pay-TV groups (e.g. Sky, Candirgadcasters (e.g. BBC, RTL, ARD/ZDF), resellerg (
Globecast) and data network service providers (@idpus Defence & Space). SES offers a broad aofay
products and services in this market, includinguision broadcasting in DTH transmission and cablsvork
redistribution.

The Group'’s fleet carries 2,596 television chanirelgurope, reaching approximately 156 million henas of
31 December 2015.

All major cable networks in Europe retransmit peogming broadcast via SES satellites, and approgignét
million cable homes currently receive ASTRA-deliegrtelevision and radio channels. Approximately 64
million homes receive ASTRA transmissions direefly satellite. The HDTV market continues to grovd aas

of 31 December 2015, the number of HD channelseled on ASTRA platforms had increased to 674.

In respect of complementary satellite service #adb; particularly in Europe, SES undertakes derta
professional services to support customers’ usatgdlite capacity. These satellite service comgmimclude (i)
SES Platform Services, offering specialised groselices activities, especially for Germany andriést of
Western Europe, (i) SES Techcom, offering a braaey of products and services addressing variceesaof
broadband internet connectivity by satellite asl wslsatellite and network systems engineeringsadearope
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and (iii) HD+, providing a platform that offers viers in Germany a technical access to TV channels
broadcasting in HD quality.

The Americas

This market includes customers in North Americaluding the U.S. government, and in Latin Americathis
market, the Group is a leading provider of sateliiansponder capacity and associated servicesd lwasthe
number of orbital slots and transponders). SESigesvthese services to broadcasters, cable netws8a&T
applications and DTH platform providers and carriearly 1,800 TV channels, out of which more the20Q

are broadcast in HD quality. In addition, SES serpevate network providers, internet service pievs
(ISP9, mobile broadband providers, government agenei@scational institutions, telephone companies and
other business enterprises.

North America

The Group's fleet reaches more than 84 million lkeboefds in North America. The Group’s two largessU.
cable neighbourhoods, at the 101°W/103°W/105°W &p@°W/131°W/135°W orbital locations, reach more
than 53 million cable households and provide fded$urther distribution to IPTV and DTH househaldshis
includes the DISH Network DTH via Ciel-2, but daest include any households that may also be reabked
terrestrial re-transmission. Approximately threexdgers of the utilised transponders serving the. %
dedicated to video content providers (cable telewisbroadcast services and DTH). Due to the ingpae of
these neighbourhoods, virtually every cable heatliarthe U.S. has antenna reception facilities aédd to
these prime orbital slots, which further increabesvalue of the slots and of the available trandpo capacity.
The two neighbourhoods reach substantially alltpdgvision households in the United States. Intaaldi SES
has the most significant U.S. radio neighbourh@deducation neighbourhood and one of the strorgigist
based broadcast neighbourhoods. In addition, SH& ho 70 per cent interest in Ciel Satellite Limdite
Partnership Ciel). Ciel operates the Ciel-2 BSS satellite whichwisolly contracted by DISH Network and
supports DTH satellite services in North America.

U.S. government business is handled by a whollyeagubsidiary of SES. It provides raw satelliteawity to

the U.S. government and third-party resellers, alsd provides turn-key solutions to the U.S. goment.
Revenue generated by the U.S. government (and noastoserving the U.S. government) represented
approximately 10 per cent of the Group’s revenu2Gih5.

Latin America

The Group’s markets in Latin America comprise Mexi€entral America, South America and the Caribbean
The Group’s fleet currently reaches approximatélyrllion television households in this market.

As of 1 April 2014 SES also wholly owns the Mexictellite operator QuetzSat S. de R.L. de @QudtzSax
The QuetzSat-1 satellite, launched in Septembet,28vholly contracted by a subsidiary of EchoStar

Asia Pacific, India and the Middle East

This market includes key markets such as India,Pthiéippines, Thailand, South Korea, Indonesia,thaen,
Australia, the Pacific Islands, Saudi Arabia, Kuwdie UAE and Lebanon. The Group’s fleet currenglyches
over 44 million television households in the AsiacHic region. Customers served (directly and iectiry)
include, among others, DishTV, one of the large$HDoperators in Asia, Bharti Airtel, one of the dizg
telecommunications companies in the world, Hughesmirks, a leader in the provision of VSAT servjces
Tata Communications, one of the largest telecomaoations companies in India and PLDT, the leading
telecommunications provider in the Philippines. &ty provided to DishTV and Airtel is contractdadugh
Antrix Corporation Limited, an Indian governmentédheompany based in India. SES provides capacithim
region for provision of services to pay and free&toDTH service operators and VSAT services tokivam e-
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government and e-education institutions as wetlilband gas operations. SES is the leader in Aaicfié both
in terms of the number of channels and the numbesubscribers reached by DTH operators using SES'’s
capacity across the region. In the Middle EastGhmup predominantly provides data services.

Africa

This market comprises all 54 countries in Africlene SES provides transponders and value-addedesefor
DTH, video contribution and distribution, VSAT neiiks, mobile networks, internet trunking and brcatth
and corporate and government networks.

The Group’s fleet currently reaches eight milliefetision households in this market.

The Group's satellite service provisioning compariiave been very successful in Africa in recentyedES’s
service entity, which is branded under the nameS'&tatform Services”, complements the satellitedadth
activities of SES with necessary and highly prafesa ground service needs of the customer and dhows
the customer to concentrate on running a consuniemted business.

Product Development and Management
Overview

In order to ensure an effective client-solutionsduhapproach, SES is building differentiated cdipaksiin four
market verticals where satellites have a predontinsage. Each vertical is addressed by a functignmalp that
develops and deploys commercial solutions and tgavirket” strategies in their respective verticals.
Furthermore, these groups will ensure that develgmdutions are fully leveraged across SES’s prizdéc
services portfolio. The groups act in close coltation with the various sales, business developnaeiait
engineering teams of SES.

SES has three service provisioning companies whrehorganised and structured as individual entéied
which play a key role in the execution of the markartical strategies:

. SES Platform Serviceffering specialised DVB ground services such pasfessional content
management, play-out, encryption, encoding, maltiiplg and satellite uplinks to SES satellites for
and on behalf of television broadcasters. Thesacearare provided principally in Europe, Africadan
Asia. The SES Platform Services suite of servinetudles Smartcast, an in-house developed software
platform for decentralised playout offered currgiril 50 locations around the world.

. SES TechconOffering a broad array of products and servigelr@ssing various areas of satellite and
network systems engineering and infrastructureupetThese services are provided globally. SES
Techcom also offers broadband internet connectibitysatellite via the SES Broadband solution.
These services are provided principally in Eurdiféca and the Middle East.

. HD+. Providing a broadcast platform from satellitethat Astra 19.2°E position, independent from TV
operators, offering viewers access to HD channelsavdedicated receiver or an HD+ conditional-
access module and Smart Card. HD+ is active in Geym

Satellite Fleet
Network and Technology
Network

The Group’s global network is comprised of 52 disl as well as ground facilities, including tedeis and
leased fibre, which support the Group’s commersiivices and the operation and control of its lsz®l
Features of the Group’s network include:
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. prime orbital locations, reflecting a valuable [alio of coordinated fixed satellite spectrum right

. 99.9999911 per cent space service availability ashmercialisable transponders on the SES fleet
throughout 2015;
. flexibility, subject to contractual restrictions Bome cases, to relocate satellites to other brbita

locations, such as when there are changes in depateins or requirements of new customers;

. design features and steerable beams on many ofGthap’s satellites, enabling the Group to
reconfigure capacity to provide different areasmferage and to operate in different frequency sand
and

. multiple satellites serving each region, allowing dlternatives if a satellite anomaly should occur

Satellite Systems

All of the Group’s satellites are geo-synchronoatellites and are located approximately 22,300 snite
35,700 kilometres, above the equator. Geo-synclusosatellites can receive radio frequency commtioita
from an origination point, and distribute thosensilg to a single or multiple receivers within tlow@rage areas
of the satellites’ transmission beams.

Geo-synchronous satellites send these signals udiffagent parts of the radio frequency spectrurhe T
spectrum available for use at each orbital locatimtudes the frequency bands listed below in whiobst
commercial satellite services are offered today:

. C-band — low power, broad beams that require uselafively large reception antennae; the spectrum
least susceptible to weather-related transmissigrairments.

. Ku-band — high power, narrow to medium size beameifating use of smaller antennae which are
favoured by businesses and private end customptinal for DTH applications; generally highly
reliable and seldom affected by weather-relatedaimpents.

. Ka-band — very high power, very narrow beams fatitig use of very small antennae; considered to
be less reliable due to substantial weather-relaggsmission impairments. The Ka-band is optimised
for applications such as broadband services.

. Ka-band (Gov) — specific part of the Ka-band resdrfor governmental applications.

. X-band — medium power with medium size beams uselligively for governmental applications like
communications on the move.

All of the Group’s station-kept satellites are desid to provide capacity using the C-band and/eb&mud. An
increasing number of satellites also carry Ka-baaydoads.

High Throughput SatellitedH{TS) are satellites configured to optimise the avédddlequencies, typically Ku-
band or Ka-band, via frequency re-use. This iseagd by the re-use of parts of the available freqigs in
segregated spot beams, enabling higher data ratbe offered at a lower cost per bit than tradilln
configured satellites. HTS are typically used tdeofbroadband internet connectivity where terrabtri
connectivity is limited or absent altogether. SE&S taken a prudent approach to serving this maakding Ka-
band payloads on replacement satellites for limibedemental investment. These payloads, whichrdtially

on ASTRA 2E, ASTRA 2F, ASTRA 2G and ASTRA 5B, offesnnectivity at speeds of up to 20 Mb/s into the
markets they cover. Additional HTS opportunitiesitimue to be evaluated and may be incorporatedhén t
payload of future satellites. On 17 July 2014, SBSounced the procurement of SES-12, a hybridlisatir
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the Asia-Pacific region, which will benefit from é¢hdual innovations of an HTS payload and all-electr
propulsion.

A geo-synchronous satellite is identified as gdastary (or station-kept) when it is operated inaasigned
segment of the geo-stationary arc, which is desaghlly a specific range of latitudes and longitudeso-
stationary satellites revolve around the eartmaregular velocity that corresponds to that ofgheth’s rotation
and thus appear to stay above a fixed point oedinth’s surface at all times.

Geo-synchronous satellites that are only statigat-ke longitude are said to be in inclined orbiheTdaily
north-south motion of a satellite in inclined orékceeds the specified range of latitudes of isggagd station-
keeping box, and the satellite appears to osciibiely, moving above and below the equator every. d\n
operator will typically operate a satellite in im&d orbit toward the end of its service life bemagignificant
amounts of propellant will be saved by not coninglithe north-south position of the satellite, #fere
substantially extending the service life of theeBi¢. The kinds of services and customers thataecess an
inclined orbit satellite have traditionally beemiied due to the movement of the satellite relatvea fixed
ground antenna. However, recent innovations nowwalthe use of inclined orbit capacity for certain
applications. As a result, if these applicatioressarccessfully introduced, the Group anticipatas demand for
inclined orbit capacity may increase over the riewtyears. As of the date of this Prospectus, 1@®Group’s
satellites were operating in an inclined orbit, hwihost continuing to earn revenue beyond SES'sinalig
estimated life for each of these satellites.

In-Orbit Satellites

The Group’s operations and engineering staff areolied from the design stage through to the
decommissioning of each satellite procured. Theu@semployees work at the manufacturers’ and laarst
sites to monitor progress, which enables the Gtoupaintain close technical collaboration withdtmtractors
during the process of designing, manufacturing landching a satellite. Extensive monitoring of bastation
operations and constant satellite control and nétwperations support ensure consistent operatoumedity, as
well as timely corrections when problems ariseadtdlition, the Group has established contingencyspfar
technical problems that may occur during the lifietiof a satellite.

These features also contribute to the resiliendb®iGroup’s network, which enables the Group wuen the
continuity of service that is important for its tarmers and to retain flexibility in the event tlitateeds to move
customers to alternative capacity. The design B of some of the Group’s satellites enablegoitmeet
customer demand and respond to changing markettioorsd

As of 31 December 2015, the Group'’s fleet of 52Itds had 1,502 36-MHz equivalent transpondeesiabie
for transmitting in the C-, Ku- and Ka-band. Thecimage system transponder utilisation for the Graup’
satellites, which represents the percentage ofGttoeip’s total available transponder capacity teahiuse or
that is reserved at a given time (including guaadtreservations for service), was 72.7 per cemt/amB per
cent as of 31 December 2014 and 31 December 284pectively. The main factors resulting in the diein
system utilisation over this period were primaniglated to growth in demand for digital, especiatip,
television services, as well as from the supplyeadoly newly launched satellites.

End of Design Life

End of design life is the point beyond which sus@gsoperation of the satellite is no longer codeby the
manufacturers’ qualification programmes and relighpredictions. Various elements are consideredatellite
design, such as the length of the mission, equipmediability and redundancy schemes, limited téems and
impacts of the space environment, as well as redupower generation levels. Satellites that hasehred the
end of their design lives may be de-orbited andquan a “graveyard orbit” beyond the geostatioratyit, or
in some instances, may remain in operation, asaimynsases those satellites are launched with enadtoard
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propellant to enable station-keeping, or inclinebitooperations, beyond their design lives. Satdlitypically
have design lives between 12 and 15 years.

SES'’s 52 operational satellites have depreciabs Ibetween 10 and 19.5 years, with an averagedapte
life currently of 14.7 years. Twenty of the sateli have already reached the end of their deptediéd) for the
other satellites the average remaining deprecldeles 8.3 years.

For details of the end of design life of each $itdelsee the table inFleet’ below.
Network Operations and Current Ground Facilities

The Group has satellite operations centres in BetZGrand Duchy of Luxembourg), Princeton (Newsés,
Gibraltar and Woodbine (Maryland), from which theo@ controls and operates each of its satelliteb a
payloads (with the exception of QuetzSat-1, SES$d the YahLive payload, which are operated by third
parties) and manages the communications servigesticch each satellite is used. These centressaititi
network of ground facilities, including earth stei$ that provide tracking, telemetry and contrbr&C)
services for the Group’s satellites. This netwddoancludes teleports, leased fibre and networfopmance
monitoring systems. Through these ground facilitiee Group continually monitors signal qualitydeavours
to protect bandwidth from any interference and itadms customer-installed equipment and analysestry
from the Group’s satellites in order to monitoritretatus and track their location. In the evest ttne centre is
unavailable or disabled, each other centre hasliiliy to provide instantaneous restoration ofve®s on
behalf of the other.

Capacity Sparing and Backup and General Satellitk Rlanagement

As part of the Group’s satellite risk managemérd, Group continually evaluates and designs plansitigate
the risks posed to its fleet. The Group attemptait@mate the risk of in-orbit failure by carefubndor selection,
stringent satellite design and test requirement$ ative procurement oversight and high-qualityoiibit
operations. The impacts of such failures on custaeevice and related revenue are mitigated bynaorbit
backup strategy where customers on an impairedligatan be transferred to another satellite ia fleet. The
Group maintains some form of backup capacity farthesatellite designated as being in primary opegati
service, which may include:

. designated reserve transponders on the satellitethmr on-board backup systems or designed-in
redundancies;

. co-location of satellites at the same orbital posit
. an in-orbit spare satellite; or
. interim restoration capacity on other satellites.

SES also has satellite control backup capabilitisiig European and U.S.-based satellite operataamtres.
For information on the insurance policies the Grobfains for its fleet, see sectiomSurancé below.
Fleet

The Group’s global fleet of 52 geostationary siéslcould enable the Group to offer coverage tp&Scent of
the world’s population, delivering reliable and wex connectivity. This vast coverage enables brastdes to
deliver thousands of hours of television conterdrgvday, companies to provide broadband netwotkslio
remote locations and governments and military degdions to establish secure communications netsvork

The table below summarises the orbital locatioagdiency, launch date, manufacturer, end of de#igramhd
coverage of each of the Group’s existing satellites
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Orbital End of Current
No. Satellite Location Frequency Launch Date  Manufacturer  Design Life Coverage
1 AMC-1 129°W C- and Ku- 08-Sep-96 Lockheed *x North America
band Martin
2 AMC-2 81°W C- and Ku- 30-Jan-97 Lockheed ** South America
band Martin
3 AMC-3 67°W Ku-band 04-Sep-97 Lockheed ** Mexico,
Martin Caribbean,
Central America
4 AMC-4 67°W Ku-band 13-Nov-99 Lockheed ** Latin America
Martin
5 AMC-6 72°W Ku-band 21-Oct-00 Lockheed *x North America,
Martin Latin America
6 AMC-7 135°W C-band 14-Sep-00 Lockheed *x North America
Martin
7 AMC-8 139°W C-band 19-Dec-00 Lockheed ki North America
Martin
8 AMC-9 83°W C- and Ku- 07-Jun-03 Alcatel Jul-18 North America
band
9 AMC-10 135°W C-band 05-Feb-04 Lockheed Mar-19 North America
Martin
10 AMC-11 131°W C-band 19-May-04  Lockheed Jun-19 North America
Martin
11 AMC-15 105°W Ka- and Ku- 14-Oct-04 Lockheed Nov-19 North America
band Martin
12 AMC-16 85°W Ka- and Ku- 17-Dec-04 Lockheed Jan-20 North America
band Martin
13 AMC-18 105°W C-band 08-Dec-06 Lockheed Jan-22 North America
Martin
14 AMC-21 125°W Ku-band 14-Aug-08 Thales Alenia  Sep-23 North America
Space
15 ASTRA 1D 47.5°W Ku-band 01-Nov-94 Boeing * Europe
Satellite
Systems
16 ASTRA 1F 44 5°E Ku-band 09-Apr-96 Hughes b Boeo
17 ASTRA 1G 63°E Ku-band 02-Dec-97  Boeing * Europe
Satellite
Systems
18 ASTRA 1H 47.5°W Ka- and Ku- 18-Jun-99 Boeing * Europe
band Satellite
Systems
19 ASTRA 1KR 19.2°E Ku-band 20-Apr-06 Lockheed Jun-21 Europe
Martin
20 ASTRA 1L 19.2°E Ka- and Ku- 04-May-07 Lockheed Jun-22 Europe
band Martin
21 ASTRA 1M 19.2°E Ku-band 05-Nov-08  Airbus Dec-23 Europe
Defence &
Space
22 ASTRA 1IN 19.2°E Ku-band 06-Aug-11 Airbus Sep-26 Europe
Defence &
Space
23 ASTRA 2A 28.2°E Ku-band 30-Aug-98 Boeing *x Europe
Satellite
Systems
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Orbital End of Current
No. Satellite Location Frequency Launch Date  Manufacturer  Design Life Coverage
24 ASTRA 2B 31.5°E Ku-band 14-Sep-00  Airbus *x Europe
Defence &
Space
25 ASTRA 2C 60°E Ku-band 16-Jun-01 Boeing Aug-16 Europe
Satellite
Systems
26 ASTRA 2D 7°E Ku-band 19-Dec-00 Boeing * Europe
Satellite
Systems
27 ASTRA 2E 28.2°E/28.5°E Ka- and Ku- 29-Sep-13 Airbus Nov-28 Middle East,
band Defence & Europe
Space
28 ASTRA 2F 28.2°E/28.5°E Ka- and Ku- 28-Sep-12 Airbus Nov-27 Africa, Europe
band Defence &
Space
29 ASTRA 3A 177°W Ku-band 29-Mar-02 Boeing * East Russia
Satellite
Systems
30  ASTRA3B 23.5°E Ka-and Ku-  21-May-10 Airbus May-25" Africa, Middle
band Defence & East, Europe,
Space
31 ASTRA 4A 5°E Ka- and Ku- 18-Nov-07 Lockheed Dec-22 Africa, Europe
(formerly band Martin
known as
Sirius 4)
32 ASTRA 5B 31.5°E L-, Ku- and 22-Mar-2014  Airbus May-29 Europe, Russia
Ka-band Defence &
Space
33 Ciel-2 129°W Ku-band 10-Dec-08 Thales Alenia  Jan-24 North America
Space
34 NSS-5 50.5°E C- and Ku- 23-Sep-97 Lockheed *x Africa, Europe,
(formerly band Martin Indian Ocean,
known as Asia
NSS-803)
35 NSS-6 95°E Ka- and Ku- 17-Dec-02 Lockheed * Africa, Europe,
band Martin Russia, South
Asia, Asia
Pacific, Indian
Ocean, Pacific
Ocean
36 NSS-7 20°W C- and Ku- 16-Apr-02 Lockheed ki North America,
band Martin Latin America,
Africa, Europe,
Atlantic Ocean
37 NSS-9 177°W C-band 12-Feb-09  Orbital Mar-24 Russia, Asia
Sciences Pacific, Pacific
Corporation Ocean
38 NSS-10 (also  37.5°W C-band 03-Feb-05 Alcatel Mar®20 North America,
known as Latin America,
AMC-12) Africa, Europe,
Atlantic Ocean
39 NSS-11 108.2°E Ku-band 02-Oct-00  Lockheed *x South Asia, Asia
Martin Pacific, Pacific
Ocean, Indian
Ocean
40 NSS-12 57°E C- and Ku- 29-Oct-09 Space Systems Dec-24 Africa, Europe,
band Loral Russia, South
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Orbital End of Current
No. Satellite Location Frequency Launch Date  Manufacturer  Design Life Coverage
Asia, Asia
Pacific, Indian
Ocean
41 NSS-806 47.5°W C- and Ku- 28-Feb-98 Lockheed i North America,
band Martin Latin America,
Europe
42 QuetzSat 1 77°W Ku-band 29-Sep-11  Space Systems Oct-26 Mexico, North
Loral America, Central
America
43 SES-1 101°W C- and Ku- 24-Apr-10 Orbital May-25 North America
band FSS and Sciences
Ka-band BSS Corporation
44 SES-2 87°W C- and Ku- 20-Sep-11 Orbital Oct-26' North America
band FSS and Sciences
Ka-band BSS Corporation
45 SES-3 103°wW C- and Ku- 15-Jul-11 Orbital Aug-26° North America
band FSS and Sciences
Ka-band BSS Corporation
46 SES-4 22°W C- and Ku- 14-Feb-12 Space Systems Mar-27 North America,
band Loral Latin America,
Africa, Europe,
Atlantic Ocean,
Middle East
47 SES-5 5°E L-, C-, Ka- 10-Jul-12 Space Systems Jul-27 Africa, Europe,
and Ku-band Loral Atlantic Ocean
48 SES-6 40.5°W C- and Ku- 03-Jun-13 Airbus Jul-28 North America,
band Defence & Latin America,
Space Europe, Atlantic
Ocean
49 SES-7* 108.2°E Ku-band 16-May-09  Boeing Jun-24 South Asia, Asia
Satellite Pacific
Systems
50 SES-8 95°E Ku-band FSS  3-Dec-13 Orbital Jan-29 South Asia, Asia
and Ka-band Sciences Pacific
BSS Corporation
51 YahSat 1A* 52.5°E Ku-band 22-Apr-11 Thales Alenia May-26 Middle East,
Space Africa, Europe,
Southwest Asia
52 ASTRA 2G 28.2°E Ka-and Ku- ~ 28-Dec-14 Airbus Dec-29 Africa, Europe
band Defence &
Space

(1) For ASTRA 3B, the end of fuel life is currentigtimated to be Sep-2024
(2) For Ciel-2, the end of fuel life is currentlgtenated to be Oct-2023

(3) For NSS-10, the end of fuel life is currenttimated to be Jan-2020

(4) For SES-2, the end of fuel life is currentlyiested to be May-2026

(5) For SES-3, the end of fuel life is currentlyiested to be Oct-2024

*  Only the Ku-band payload is owned by the Group.
**  These satellites have reached the end of thesigh lives and have been fully depreciated.

The table below sets out the six satellites thatseheduled for launch between the date of thispeatus and
the end of 2017 and SES-9, which was launched €ape Canaveral, Florida, on 4 March 2016 and wiktie
into service by the third quarter of 2016. The semew satellites will increase available capacigyl80 net
transponders, or 12 per cent of total availableacdyp while capacity in the International geogriapbegment
will grow by 21 per cent (all as compared to thsifion as of 31 December 2015). In addition, thokthese
satellites (SES-12, SES-14 and SES-15) will carigtal of 36 GHz of HTS capacity in aggregate.

125



Orbital End of Current

No. Satellite Location Frequency Launch Date  Manufacturer  Design Life Coverage
1 SES-§ 108.2° Ku-band 04 March Boeing 2031 Asia Pacific
2016 Satellite
Systems
2 SES-10 67°W Ka- and Ku- H2, 2016 Airbus 2031 Latin America
band Defence &
Space
3 SES-11 105°W C- and Ku- H2, 2016 Airbus 2031 North America,
band Defence &
Space
4 SES-12 95°E Ka- and Ku- H2, 2017 Airbus 2033 Asia-Pacific
band Defence &
Space
5 SES-14 47.5°W C- and Ku- H2, 2017 Airbus 2033 Latin America
band Defence &
Space
6 SES-18 129°w Ku- and Ka- H1, 2017 Boeing 2033 North America
band Satellite
Systems
7 SES- 21.5°E X-band and H1, 2017 Orbital ATK 2033 Europe/MENA
16/GovSat-1 military Ka-
band

(6) SES-9, SES-12, SES-14 and SES-15 are to bequmesi using electric orbit raising, with entryangervice typically four to six months
after launch
(7) Procured by LuxGovSat

Investment Programme

Current investment programme

SES has implemented a substantial multi-year invest programme to expand and renew its existire té
satellites and its network of teleports.

The six satellites SES-10, SES-11, SES-12, SESHES-15 and SES-16/GovSat-1 are scheduled for launch
between the second half of 2016 and the end of.ZDdgether with SES-9, they are expected to bdmsnhet
transmission capacity of the SES fleet by approtétyal2 per cent as compared to the position as of
31 December 2015.

This new capacity is also expected to enhance @ppities for both customers and users. The majafitihe
additional capacity on these new satellites isnidégl to serve fast-growing economies in Asia, Afrithe
Middle East and Latin America, where it will enahlew services and improve coverage.

The financing of ongoing satellite procurement pangmes is through a mix of available resources) fliasv
from operations, and drawings under existing fugdirrangements where needed.

Investment activities over the previous three years
For 2013 the Board of Directors of the Issuer ditlapprove any satellites procurements.
SES-10

In February 2014, SES announced that it has sdlg&itbus Defence and Space to build SES-10. The new
satellite will expand SES’s capabilities in LatimArica and the Caribbean through high-power beaittsed
to provide direct-to-home broadcasting, enterpesd broadband connectivity services in the entigion.
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SES-10's comprehensive coverage includes Mexicmtr@eAmerica and South America, as well as the
Caribbean. The satellite is scheduled to be lawhghthe second half year of 2016 and will be poséd at the
67°W orbital position, pursuant to an agreementvbeh the Andean Community (Bolivia, Colombia, Earad
and Peru) and SES, which provides for use of thdeAn Community’s Simon Bolivar 2 satellite network.

SES-12

In July 2014, SES announced the procurement of BE$e deliver both replacement and new capacitye T
new hybrid communications satellite will be built Airbus Defence and Space to serve the fast ggpBifH,
data, mobility and government markets in Asia. 923s scheduled to be launched in the second habbs
and will expand the Group’s capabilities to providdH broadcasting, VSAT, mobility and HTS data
connectivity services in the Asia-Pacific region.

SES-11

In September 2014, SES announced the continuatide strategic partnership with EchoStar Corparatat
the orbital position of 105°W with the procuremefithe new SES-11 satellite. SES-11 will be martufac
by Airbus Defence and Space. The satellite is @drto be launched in the second half of 2016 aticcawer
North America.

SES-14 and SES-15

In February 2015, SES announced that it had ordbee8ES-14 hybrid satellite to capture growth oppuoties
across the Americas and the North Atlantic regidre new satellite will be built by Airbus Space dbefence,
is scheduled for launch in the second half of 28id will operate at 47.5/48°W.

In February 2015, SES announced that it had ordae&ES-15 hybrid satellite to provide growth adyan
North America. SES-15 is being built by Boeing alug to be launched in the first half of 2017. I wpen up
a new orbital location, 129°W to serve North Amarithe satellite will be equipped with an elecfiopulsion
system for orbit raising and in-orbit manoeuvred il solidify SES’s positioning in the aeronawianobility
and government markets, providing fresh capacity@verage over major airline routes across thércemt.

SES-16/GovSat-1

In February 2015 SES announced the procurementrafva satellite, SES-16/GovSat-1, by LuxGovSat, an
entity jointly incorporated by SES and the Luxemigpgovernment. The satellite is being built by Hagellite
manufacturer Orbital ATK, Inc. and is scheduled fmunch in the first half of 2017. SES-16/GovSdta
multi-mission satellite using dedicated militargduencies (X-band and military Ka-band) to providgh-
powered and fully steerable spot beams for multgogernment-specific missions. The satellite widlver
Europe, the Middle East and Africa.

In March 2016 SES announced the successful lauh8ES-9 into space on a SpaceX Falcon 9 rocket from
Cape Canaveral Air Force Station, Florida. SES-flasned to commence its services in the third teuaf
2016. SES-9 is SES's largest satellite to serveAsia-Pacific region.SES-9 will be collocated wahother
SES satellite, SES-7, at the prime orbital locatiéri08.2°E, and will replace the NSS-11 spaceatthat
position. SES-9 was built by Boeing Satellite Systdnternational.

SES expects to continue to invest in satelliteth o replace existing satellites before their ehtife, and to
make available new capacity at new or existing tathpositions to meet growing demand. Total capital
expenditure for satellites for the year of 201@&xpected to be approximately €740 million. Projéatapital
expenditure for 2017 is €570 million, €475 milliéor 2018 and 2019, and €500 million for 2020, chlted
using a EUR/USD exchange rate of 1.10.
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Future Satellites

The Group expects to replace other existing stedsllias necessary, with satellites that satisfyomer
requirements and demonstrate a compelling econ@tianale. The Group periodically conducts evahratito
determine the current and anticipated value ofGhaup’s existing and planned satellites and alsdegthe
Group in redistributing satellite resources as apipate.

Procurement Contracts

The Group regularly enters into satellite constamcicontracts to procure satellites from manufaatr The
typical time required to manufacture and launchatelbte is approximately 30-36 months. These @amig
generally provide for payments to be made at gertaiestones. In addition, the manufacturer mayehavpay
damages to the Group in the event that construcfitime satellite is not completed on time.

Launch Agreements

All current SES satellite procurement programmeslding SES-16/GovSat-1), have been assigned to a
launch provider (Arianespace or SpaceX). The Isseméers into launch agreements from time to tinreafo
number of launchers and has not entered into a-ymat agreement with a launcher provider.

Satellite Health

The Group'’s fleet is diversified by manufactured aatellite type, which reduces the likelihood adlegspread
technical problems and therefore any substantightiee impact on the Group’s customers and operatibhe
anomalies experienced to date have had little teng- impact on the overall transponder availabilitythe

Group'’s fleet, due to an ability to deploy backitgnsponders or satellites to ensure adequate amgaeAll of

the Group’s satellites have been designed to wititsin expected rate of equipment failure with adex
redundancy to meet or exceed their orbital desigrs with a probability of 75 per cent or more. Ta®up has
contingency plans in place that are tailored toumlmer of factors, including the mission, the sgate
importance of the satellite, the location of théebide and the type of anomaly. After anomaliegSShas
usually been able to restore service on the affesttellite, provide alternative capacity on anotaellite in

its fleet or provide capacity purchased from anogiaellite operator.

Satellites Operating Beyond the End of Their Desiifg

Several of the Group’s satellites are operatinghdythe end of their design lives and have expee@mertain
anomalies. Such anomalies could materially imphet ability of the satellites to perform currentfoture
missions.

Some satellites have already completed the primasgions for which they were designed and have been
redeployed for secondary missions until the enthefr propellant lives. Satellites in secondarysitiss are
used for various reasons, such as developing néitabriocations, safeguarding spectrum rights and/o
providing redundant capacity for satellites in theimary missions.

These satellites’ respective technical capabilitlesnot generally need to be fully utilised in adarg their
secondary missions, which potentially mitigatesdfiects of further technical failures.

Solar Array Circuit Failures

Eleven of the Group’s Lockheed Martin A2100 saidli(AMC-4, AMC-6, AMC-7, AMC-8, AMC-10, AMC-
11, AMC-15, AMC-16, NSS-6, NSS-7 and NSS-11) hayaeeienced and will continue to experience tecHnica
problems with their solar array circuits. The extehthe problem varies depending on the satdilite may
reduce the operational life of the satellite anel tflumber of transponders that can be used. Whilleciusolar
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array power losses may result in a reduction oflahig capacity on the affected satellites, theyraot expected
to result in a catastrophic loss of any of thelk&e

Specifically, the NSS-6, AMC-8, AMC-10 AMC-15 andMC-16 satellites experienced further solar array
degradation in 2015, which impaired power genematio the cases of AMC-10 and AMC-16, this degrimdat
led to a reduction in commercial capacity. Suchufas on any of the affected satellites can algmaimSES's
ability to maintain pricing levels and to place newgtomers on the satellite.

All of the satellites with solar array issues itk lseing used for their primary missions, withetexception of
AMC-4 and NSS-7, which are being used for seconddsgions. As mitigation, SES-8, launched in Decgmb
2013, is acting as a partial replacement for NSRi$ks on NSS-11 are partially mitigated by thespree of
SES-7 at the same location and the fact that tloeiGihas launched SES-9 as a replacement for thliteatA
certain amount of inter-satellite backup capabitikjsts to mitigate losses of capacity on satsllitethe U.S.
Western Arc including AMC-7, AMC-8, AMC-10 and AMCt. AMC-7 was relocated in June 2015 from
137°W to 135°W where it is collocated with AMC-Hiting as a backup for this satellite. Additionatigrtain
customers were proactively moved from the U.S. WasArc to satellites in the U.S. Centre of the .APast
risks on AMC-6 were mitigated by transferring thajonity of its C-band traffic to other satellitéditigation of
future risks on AMC-6 by transferring its Ku-bamdffic to other satellites is currently under calesation.

Risks on AMC-15 are mitigated by the ongoing camdton of SES-11, which will act as a replacement
satellite.

NSS-12, built by Space Systems Loral, has alsoreqpeed solar array power losses. However, thiseiss
deemed to be less severe than the Lockheed MagiO@® solar array issue. The Group does not bekeve
specific mitigation plan is needed at this point.

Other Anomalies

The Group’s Lockheed Martin A2100 satellites hale® &xperienced battery cell failures, leading tecduced
battery capacity. However, these anomalies hayarswt resulted in any net reduction of payloaplacity.

Several of the Group’s other satellites (AMC-4, AV1G, ASTRA 1H, ASTRA 1KR, ASTRA 1M, ASTRA
2B, NSS-7, SES-3 and QuetzSat-1) have experienamadus other anomalies including the matters desdri
below.

. Technical failures have resulted in a reductioth@operational life of ASTRA 1H. SES considerd tha
there is no risk of a recurrence of these issudhiersatellite.

. Available capacity on ASTRA 1G has been reduceéhduhe eclipse season due to battery problems.
ASTRA 1G’s primary mission has in any event beemmgeted. There is no risk of a recurrence of
these issues on this satellite.

. As indicated above, AMC-4 and NSS-7 have completetir primary missions and as a result no
mitigation is in place.

. ASTRA 1M, which is a key asset at the 19.2°E prori@tal position, has currently lost redundancy on
its propulsion subsystem. Further technical proklem the propulsion system could result in the loss
of the satellite. However, such an event is judgelikely and the risk is mitigated by the additibna
capacity at this orbital position provided by ASTRK, which was launched in September 2012 and
the deployment of additional backup capacity preslitty ASTRA 2E, launched in September 2013.

. QuetzSat-1 has experienced the loss of redundanty data handling equipment and further technical
problems with this sub-system could result in theslof the satellite. However, the Issuer beli¢kias
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the possibility of such an event happening is @hjiland risks have been mitigated by the uploadfng
a software patch which allows the partial restoratf the on-board redundancy.

Insurance

SES maintains launch and initial in-orbit insuraidice., one policy typically covers the launch ard initial
period (usually one year) after the launch), ad a®lthird party liability insurance for its satids. SES also
maintains in-orbit insurance for its satellitestthave book value. The insurance policies genexalytain
exclusions from losses resulting from:

. military or similar action;
. any anti-satellite device;
. electromagnetic and radio interference (exceppfysical damage to a satellite directly resultirayrf

this interference);

. confiscation by any governmental body;

. insurrection and similar acts or governmental actmprevent such acts;

. nuclear reaction or radiation contamination;

. wilful or intentional acts of the insured causihg toss or failure of satellites; and
. terrorism.

Insurance policies also contemplate technical margnd deductibles relating to the propellantitifet and
solar array power generating capability of the|btee.

The Group generally purchases insurance with réfiasurers having S&P’s and AM-best ratings ofok-
better. The Group may, in limited instances, ugatad or less than A- rated insurers.

It is the Group’s policy to obtain launch insurarfoe its satellites. Launch plus one year1) insurance
provides coverage from the moment of launch umé gear in orbit thereafter, in an amount equah&ofully
capitalised cost of the satellite, which generalbludes the construction costs, the L+1 insurgreeium, the
cost of the launch services, project managemerts,coen-reusable ground segment costs and capdalis
interest (but may exclude any unpaid incentive pants to the manufacturer and portions of the ground
segment which may be reused in case of launchrdilu

Upon expiration of their L+1 policies, the Grouatellites, excluding certain satellites owned tigio joint
ventures, are insured through the Group’s fleetirarsce policy. SES has adopted a policy of limisetf-
insurance by which SES self-insures a chosen dibtiieind external insurance covers losses in exafee
deductible up to a certain limit of insurance. hbibinsurance premiums are paid to a wholly owseldsidiary
and only a portion of the risk is reinsured witheeral insurance companies.

In-orbit insurance coverage, which may initially fl& an amount comparable to launch insurance devel
generally decreases over time and is typically dasethe declining book value of the satellite. Breup does
not currently insure against lost revenue in thenéwf a total or partial loss of a satellite.

As of 31 December 2014, two satellites in orbiteveovered by the L+1 policies and 34 of the sagsllin the
Group'’s fleet with book value were covered by iibinsurance.

As of 31 December 2015, no satellite in orbit wasered by an L+1 policy and 32 of the satelliteghia
Group'’s fleet with book value were covered by ilibinsurance.
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The Group also procures in-orhit third party ligghiinsurance for all its satellites. Such insumig renewed
annually and provides a yearly combined singletlsh€500 million of coverage.

Sales and Marketing

The Group’s global headquarters are located ind®ef{Grand Duchy of Luxembourg). It operates waiitie
through dedicated regional teams in local saleshnteal, marketing and customer support officeskéy
locations around the world for the markets it serve

SES'’s regional presence is expanding to be claséne customers in geographical areas where thepGe
deemed to have growth or development potential. Gtaup’s multi-functional teams enable SES to beano
aligned with market trends and better positionedbtid long-term business relationships with spate
customers. SES uses a range of direct and wholdistdibution methods to sell its services depegdipon the
region, applicable regulatory requirements andornst application.

The Issuer believes that its global presence coedbivith its way of working differentiates it froe Group’s
competitors. In video services, SES has a histbiyooking with the consumer electronics industryfaoilitate
the development of new broadcast technologies.dEivelopment of DTH and HDTV and the recent launfch o
Sat>IP, a technology that brings satellite telewisio every screen in the home including tabletgtdps and
mobile phones, are clear examples. With this amprothe Group is taking the initiative to keep Hite
applications at the cutting edge of home entertaimtmin enterprise services, the Group’s globalegepce
allows it to respond to market trends and develp solutions, including mobility services for aeaatical and
maritime where demand for data services continmgsaw.

SES combines local experience close to its custoared a commercial approach focused on takingifivié in
its markets. Its collaborative way of doing busmedslivers solutions that facilitate success fastamers and
market partners.

O3b

O3b operates a constellation of 12 High Througigatellites HTS) in a Medium Earth OrbitMEO) around
8,000 kilometres from Earth. O3b delivers low-cd8hre in the sky” connectivity to businesses ahdir end
consumers. The system is designed to provide washelidth and high throughputs so as to offer fillre-
connectivity for trunking and backhaul services fetecommunications and ISPs, with a focus on snerg
maritime, government and mobile backhaul services.

Since beginning commercial operations in Septen@®drd, O3b has become the fastest growing satellite
network in terms of capacity contracted. As of 3arbh 2015 O3b had a contract backlog of approxipate
$350 million.

O3b’s initial constellation of MEO satellites ratathe globe approximately four times per day aratufe
steerable 700-km diameter Ka-band beams. Each tzeemnnected to a high-throughput teleport, witHtiple
layers of redundancy, to give operators a relidhilgh-speed service. O3b provides throughputs awddtency
backhaul compatible with all forms of last-mile @ibns, including 2G, 3G, 4G, WIiMAX and LTE, which
allows O3b to deliver high-quality voice and dafBb is the first operator able to deliver 1.6 Gitmlper
second of bandwidth over a single transponder.hitte-throughput O3b service provides uncongested)es
hop connectivity to a global IP backbone.

0O3b’s corporate headquarters are located in ther@aslands, Jersey, and its operational headepgaate in
The Hague. It also has an engineering office in &daas, Virginia and sales offices in Dubai, Singapo
Washington, D.C. and Rio de Janeiro.
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O3b Satellite Fleet

O3b’s constellation is considerably closer to thetle (approximately 8,000 kilometres) than a gdmstary

orbit (approximately 36,000 kilometres). As a resthle signal delay is significantly reduced anddmparable
with that of terrestrial fibre networks. O3b’s tatgservice area is located between 45°N and 45°theof
Equator, with a specific focus on emerging markets insufficiently connected regions in developedtkats.

The satellites are capable of delivering up toGkps of throughput per beam, with ultra-low latefyess

than 150 milliseconds, a significant improvemengrogeostationary connectivity. O3b'’s satellite beaane

steerable, which allows for greater flexibilityadverage.

0O3b's first four satellites experienced payload raalles which caused the satellites to be declared a
constructive total loss for insurance purposesrédtuiy, three of the four satellites have been nerddfrom
operations, and are classified as back-up satellitee fourth satellite was less affected by thensaly and is
currently part of the operational O3b constellation

The second group of four satellites was launchetlinp 2014 and as of the date of this Prospectgsstdtond
group of four satellites is operating nominally. tiVieight satellites in orbit, O3b started full coential
operations on 1 September 2014.

The third group of four satellites was successfldlynched on 18 December 2014. O3b plans to havehad
20 satellites by 2020 (including three satellitggn§y at in-orbit back-up). To fulfil this plan, ®3expects to
launch an additional four satellites in each offttet half of 2018 and the second half of 2019.

03b’s satellites utilise the same reaction whedblabalstar 2, which has experienced early-liferaakes with
approximately 10 per cent of its reaction wheel8b@as implemented a robust screening and testapgs
that is aimed at reducing the likelihood of simifaoblems within its fleet and is also developidtware to
allow the system to be operated even with multigheel anomalies on a single satellite.

Customers and Products

0O3b serves more than 40 customers across 31 cemilaind is growing its customer base. Over 50 per afe
0O3b’s customers have upgraded their initial serg@amitments.

03D offers a suite of products to customers adioe®e market verticals: Enterprise, Mobility andv&mment.
Enterprise

Enterprise is O3b’s largest vertical, accounting7® per cent of its revenue in 2015. Key Entegpadgstomers
include Our Telekom, Digicel Group, SpeedCastghiitimor Telecom and Norfolk Telecom. Producteoéi
under the Enterprise vertical include:

. Trunk. O3b’s IP trunking product features flexible, direonnectivity to the global internet with high
speed and performance through latency comparablentphaul fibre. Its scalable data rates from
100Mbps to 1.6Gbps. O3b’s trunk product can bea@a rapidly and has full in-orbit redundancy
and fully redundant ground network architecture.

. Cell. O3b's cell offering is its mobile backhaul produshich features the lowest cost per bit passed
through the network and high voice quality and dioad speeds over satellite. O3b is the first stdell
system fully compliant with ITU and 3GPP performarspecifications (G1010 and G114). O3b's
MEO download speeds for end users are up to fmegtigreater than networks backhauled over GEO.
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Mobility

O3b’s Mobility vertical accounted for 24 per cemite revenue in 2015. This vertical includes eygugpducts
aimed at oil and gas customers and maritime predairhed at cruise operators. Key Mobility customers
include Royal Caribbean Cruises and RigNet.

Products offered under the Mobility vertical incbud

. Energy.O3b’s energy products have latency of less thanniiitseconds, which provides the highest
guality voice and video in the satellite industand unlimited bandwidth through O3b’s system
designed for availability of unlimited bandwidthr ftong-term IT roadmap planning. O3b’s energy
products also provide higher data rates and logntat, which results in faster internet access. grey
also capable of supporting cloud-based applicataons real-time monitoring of process, safety and
security sensors and systems on remote platforms.

. Maritime. O3b’s maritime products feature high-capacity tigtgput, enabling high-speed terminals
capable of delivering data rates up to 500Mbps shiaport more users with higher data rates and
offload business processes from ships to shorecgatiaes. This product is advantageous for crinse |
operators by providing broadband connectivity diyeto passengers’ own mobile devices. Low round-
trip latency of less than 150 milliseconds allowsfaster internet response time and higher thrpugh
per session. O3b’s satellites also feature stextmams that can follow a ship on its cruise ardhtgp
in real time if a ship’s course changes.

Government

0O3b’s Government vertical accounted for 6 per adrits revenue in 2015. In this vertical O3b offsecure
solutions for fixed government sites and matritinsers. O3b’s affordable, scalable bandwidth up tbtayond
1Gbps meets existing government requirements atrl@ests and emerging requirements within existing
budgets. O3b offers latency of less than 150 radlisids, which provides the highest quality voice @deo in

the industry. Key customers in the government gattinclude the U.S. National Oceanic and Atmosigher
Administration and other customers of SES Governretutions. O3b’s government products are capable
providing reachback in support of cloud-based a@gfithns, big data and analysis of ISR sensor datasapport
real-time, secure HD video conferencing and seifsenls. They can also support military and commercia
encryption without spoofing.

Principal Markets and Opportunities

0O3b has a vast coverage area, including emergingetsaand insufficiently connected regions in depel
markets. O3b’s principal markets and opportuniiegyrowth within each region are described below.

Asia Pacific

0O3b has become the largest satellite provider @ Racific Region by Gbps sold. The Pacific Regisn i
characterised by demand for low-latency capacigrtov economies. In recent years, this need hasased as
a result of an increase in new mobile licencesdaaued. Present fibre routes are increasingkisgdackup
capacity. Asia has also experienced an increa364G services and increased data demand in samdries,
including Thailand. The geography of some of thentdes in the region, such as Indonesia, hasdedliance
on satellite for high-capacity IP Trunking.

The Issuer believes that there is further poterftinlO3b in the Asia Pacific region because of thgion’'s
fragmented fibre infrastructure and high connettidosts, particularly in areas outside hubs sukhHang
Kong, Singapore, Tokyo and Seoul, where thereniseal for 3G cellular backhaul across large distance
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Americas

Large areas across Latin America are characteligddw population densities, poor fibre infrasturet and
high connectivity costs. O3b has as a result pealiahillions of consumers and businesses with reljdbw-
cost, low-latency broadband connectivity for thretftime. In addition, the Issuer believes thatehie potential
for O3b in rural areas of the United States thatetuly have limited connectivity to cellular toveer

Upgraded 3G and new 4G networks in Latin Americeehiad to an increase in data usage in recent years
Further, events like the 2014 FIFA World Cup in Brincreased the need for coverage, particularlgeimote
areas in the region, and O3b expects that the upgo2®16 Summer Olympics to be held in Rio de Jansill
continue this trend.

Africa & Middle East

Currently, approximately 20 per cent of trunkingffic across the Middle East and Africa is deligknga
standard geostationary satellites, which is gelyeodflered at a price several times higher than titered by
0O3b. O3b’s services deliver higher-capacity, lovegency and lower-cost broadband access to millioins
African and Middle Eastern consumers, businessoftmel organisations. In addition, mobile networlerators
have begun deploying more 3G in response to atsiifirds high growth in data revenues. In the Midghst,
Pakistan is currently preparing for 3G and in Itaqking demand is growing. There is also an insirea
Enterprise demand, especially in the energy ingustr

O3b’s Future Growth Investment

Going forward, O3b expects to continue to investsatellites, including launch, insurance and céipid
interest of satellites nine to 20, resulting inoatoof $80 million per satellite. O3b’s satellitesve an expected
design life of 12 years. Normalised CapEx (appt@@0 operational satellites with a design lifel@fyears) is
anticipated to be $130 million.

0O3b’s committed CapEx for the period 2016 to 2020detailed in the table below.

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

(€ in millions)

Committed CapEx 170 100 30 10
Ground CapEx 25 15 15 10 10
Total 195 115 45 20 10

Funding of O3b

As O3b started commercial operations in Septem@&4 Bubstantially all of its funding requiremenévé been
met through a combination of equity and loans fitsmshareholders as well as external borrowings.

As of 31 December 2015, O3b’s loans, before thaidemh of deferred financing costs, amounted t@$3.4
million (2014: $1,160.1 million) provided within ¢hframework of the following agreements:

1. Compagnie Francaise d’Assurance pour le Commigxeérieur COFACE) loans - $680.0 million
outstanding as of 31 December 2015 (2014: $68dlmm)i

2. Mezzanine loans - $275.8 million outstandingpf81 December 2015 (31 December 2014: $239.7
million)
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3. Original Term loans - $115.0 million outstandmgof 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: $115.0

million)

4, Contingent loans - $24.3 million outstandingafs31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: $21.5
million)

5. Shareholder support facility loan - $120.3 roillioutstanding as of 31 December 2015 (31 December

2014: $103.9 million)
COFACE loans

03b had $680.0 million of loans outstanding fronalBs and Arianespace which are guaranteed to thatef

95 per cent by COFACE as at 31 December 2015. i®fthount, as at 31 December 2015, $580.0 millias w
at fixed rates of between 3.97 per cent and 4.98eet and $100.0 million was at floating rateseither
LIBOR + 1.95 per cent or LIBOR + 2.50 per cent. Ddlawdowns under the COFACE loans are generally
disbursed directly to either the satellite manufeat or the launch service provider. The drawn COEAoans
mature in 2021. In 2015, O3b secured an additi$a84.0 million COFACE loan facility increasing thatal
such facility to $864.0 million. No drawings wereade on this additional COFACE loan as at 31 Decembe
2015.

Mezzanine loans

Two mezzanine loans of, in aggregate, $145.0 miNiere obtained by O3b in 2010 with an aggregateuam
outstanding, including accumulated interest thereo$275.8 million as of 31 December 2015 (31 Deoem
2014: $239.7 million). As of 31 December 2015, thezzanine Tranche A loan of $194.3 million inclugin
accrued interest (2014: $168.0 million) was beaitirtgrest of 10 per cent, with specified rate iases up to 16
per cent at 1 January 2022. As of the same daen#zzanine Tranche B loan had an outstandingantalint
of $81.5 million (2014: $71.7 million) was beariimgerest of 8 per cent at the end of 2015, witlcHigel rate
increases up to 14 per cent at 1 January 2022tvidnenezzanine loans will mature in 2023.

Original Term Loans

In 2010, O3b negotiated $115.0 million of Origineérm Loans comprising an $85.0 million development
financial institutions PFI) commercial tranche and a $30.0 million DFI stanttianche. As at 31 December
2015, $115.0 million was outstanding on these Ipatéch bore interest of between 7.52 per cent&f@ per
cent and will mature in 2021. The 2015 financingrédased the available Term loans by $31 millioi$1d6
million. This additional Term loan facility was ndtawn as of 31 December 2015.

Contingent Loans

In 2010, certain O3b investors agreed to provideaa of US$50.0 million to O3bContingent Loar). The
granting of the Contingent Loan was triggered by dielay of the launch of O3b’s satellites five tigl eight
that created an anticipated lack of liquidity adgged by O3b management which would impair O3b'titalhd
run its business or meet certain cash paymentneqgants.

The Contingent Loan has no specified interestaatkis repayable at the lender’s request only afterf O3b’'s
operating costs, borrowing costs and capital exipamed have been paid, and all outstanding amoahts
principal and interest under the COFACE loans, raeire loans, Original Term Loans, and the Sharehnold
Support Facility have been repaid.

As the Contingent Loan bears no interest and hafixad repayment term, the loan balance reflecesftir
value of the loan at 31 December 2015 and 201g.nteasured at fair value using an estimated marteriest
rate. The loan discount, which was the $31.7 mmilliifference between the fair value of the loan t#red$50.0
million received at the time the loan was fundedswthen treated as an additional equity contributiom the
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participating shareholders. Net of this discouhg toan principal is $18.3 million — to which acauated
interest of $6.0 million has added resulting inarying value of $24.3 million as at 31 Decembed 20
compared to $21.5 million as at 31 December 2014.

Shareholder Support Facility

The $100.0 million Shareholder Support Facili§SE was obtained in conjunction with a refinancing
undertaken by O3b in 2014. As of 31 December 20Ese was $120.3 million outstanding under the SSF.

The SSF bears interest at 15 per cent per anntienest is accrued and added to the outstandingipaihof the
SSF on 15 June and 15 December of each year. Ting@pad and accrued interest is due in October 2024
subject to full discharge of all senior debt andznamine debt obligations. $20.3 million of interbhas been
accrued and added to the SSF as of 31 December(201%: $3.9 million).

In consideration for their participation in the S$P3b agreed to issue 6,885 Series G preferenceshad
7,821 Series G preference share warrd@&-(Fee Sharésto a group of O3b investors. The SSF Fee Shares
were valued at $10.5 million, and this amount vex®rded as a deferred financing cost during 2014.

Strategic Investments
Investment in YahLive
Overview

The Group, through its subsidiary SES Finance $.&holds a 35 per cent interest in Al Maisan Siatel
Communications LLC, UAEAI Maisan), a company formed in 2009 with YahSat based ino Bhabi. YahSat
holds the remaining 65 per cent interest.

Al Maisan operates under the brand naviaHLive’ and was formed to create a DTH satellite platfannthe
Middle East, North Africa and Western Asia. YahLigean independent company and is utilising 23 kneb
transponders, which were successfully launched ahLie 1A in April 2011, providing capacity for DTH
broadcasting in Middle East, North Africa and WastAsia.

Shareholders’ Agreement

YahLive is governed by a shareholders’ agreemetwdsn SES Finance S.a r.l and YahSat dated 1 Qctobe
2011. Under the agreement, SES has the right toiatpihree of the company’s five board members &nd
appoint its chief executive officer. The contralsarg under such righténtrol) may not be transferred by SES
Finance S.a r.l to another party. However, corghalll transfer to YahSat in the event of a charfgmuotrol at

the SES level, cessation of business by SES Findrcel or SES Finance S.a r.I's shareholdingniglbelow

25 per cent.

In the event that financing is needed for any payser expenditure contemplated in YahLive's inmestt
plan, and one party does not agree to third-pargnting, both parties shall contribute the regligeounts in
the form of shareholder loans in proportion torttsbiareholdings in the company.

The shareholders’ agreement also contains customamyisions in relation to competition, rights ofst
refusal, tag along rights, transfers to third gartind change of control.

Accounting

Because SES has management control of YahLive, BBS consolidates the company's results into its
financial statements.
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Other Investments
For a complete list of the Group’s minority investmts, see note 22 to the 2015 Financial Statements.
Competition

The Group competes in the communications markethferprovision of satellite communications servites
broadcasters, content and ISPs, mobile and fixaslank operators and corporate and governmentabmests
worldwide. Communications services are providedngisvarious communications technologies, including
satellite networks, which provide services as a8itulte for, or as a complement to, the capalilititterrestrial
networks. The Group’s main competitors are othejomiternational satellite operators, such as |$ate
Eutelsat and Telesat as well as many regional tpseractive across Asia, the Middle East, Latin Ao
Africa, North America and Europe. All these proviglef FSS provide a combination of point-to-muliigand
point-to-point services. The Group also faces cditipe from suppliers of terrestrial communicatiaregpacity
which may be transcontinental, regional, natiomahetropolitan in scope, and delivered via fibréigdeased-
line or coaxial cables, as well as via microwavetays. All of the above may also be provided bgeiters,
who purchase FSS or non-satellite capacity andribsil it in the market.

In Europe, the Group’s principal competition isnfréerrestrial distribution technologies and compgsatellite
operators. SES’s main competitor in the Europeatespnarket is Eutelsat, a French satellite operé&itrer
competitors include smaller operators in the regioch as HispaSat, Telenor, Hellas Sat, Arabsaksatiand
Spacecom.

In North America, the Group’s principal satellitenepetitor is Intelsat, with Telesat, Eutelsat anthe others
also providing capacity in the market. DTH telesisiin North America has long been a service pravibg
vertically integrated companies such as DirecTV &icHoStar, both of whom own their own satelliteefte
SES supplies EchoStar and affiliated companies twéhsmission capacity to supplement that of Eciuast
own fleet.

In the rest of the world, there are several ottved| established, regional satellite operators twpete with
SES, the most prominent being StarOne of Brazila®at, APT and China Satcom of China, MEASAT of
Malaysia, ISRO of India, RSCC of Russia, JSAT gbala Arabsat of Saudi Arabia and SingTel-Optus of
Singapore/Australia. Competitors vary accordinthtoregion being served.

A more recent development has been the widesprsadfuexport credit financing from China’'s EXIM Ban
COFACE and the U.S. Ex-Im Bank to fund nationakliteé programmes. Russian satellite manufacturexe
also offered attractive terms and vendor finand¢mgleveloping countries. Together, they have engetda
second wave of national satellite programmes imt@s such as Venezuela, Kazakhstan, Vietham,ridige
Pakistan, Ukraine, Belarus, Bolivia, Laos, Sri Lardnd several others. This is adding to the supipbatellite
capacity in many regions of the world.

Please also see sectidndustry Overview and Trentlabove.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Offices

The Group’s administrative headquarters are locetedixembourg. These headquarters also house forie o
Group’s main offices and one of the prime satefifjerations centres. The land that underlies thesgings is
partially owned and partially leased on a long-tdrasis from the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg goverrnmen
pursuant to a lease that expires in 2029. The Grdap has additional key offices in The Hague (the
Netherlands), Princeton (New Jersey), McLean (Yiedi Washington (DC), Unterfohring (Germany),
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Johannesburg (South Africa) and Singapore. In,tttal Group has more than 60 offices and satealteices
centres in nearly 40 countries around the workljlastantial majority of which it leases.

Assets
The Group’s principal assets are its satellitestateports and its ground network.

The Group uses a worldwide ground network to opgeitatsatellite fleet and to manage the communinati
services that it provides to its customers. Theigdanfrastructure network is mainly composed o&CTsites
and communications systems monitoripM) sites. Excluding SES Government Solutions sités,rtetwork
comprises 30 TT&C sites worldwide, of which sevee awned by the Group and 23 are leased from third
parties. The network also comprises 28 CSM sitaslifding SES Government Solutions sites). The earth
service stations in the Group’s ground network ff@xcommercial TT&C and beam-monitoring servicese T
Group owns teleports in the United States, LuxemipoGermany and Gibraltar and leases facilitiemate
than 50 other locations for satellite/commercia¢ragpions worldwide (excluding SES Government Sohdi
sites and SOHO (Small Office / Home Office) typéaafs). The Group also contracts with the ownersoohe

of these facilities for the provision of additionsdrvices. The Group’s network also consists of ldased
communications links that connect the teleporitstsatellite operations centres.

The leases relating to the Group’s teleports, goaftpresence and office space expire at varionesti SES
does not believe that any such properties are inhailly material to the Group’s business or operatj and
expect that the Group could find suitable propsrt@replace such locations if the leases werearmwed at
the end of their respective terms.

Employees

As of 31 December 2015, the Group employed 1,3tl#victuals worldwide (counted in full time equivaten
(FTEs) rounded to whole numbers), including 462, 405, 85@ 90 FTEs in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg,
the rest of Europe, the United States and theofdbe world, respectively.

SES negotiates union contracts with Teamsters Uhawal 111 for U.S.-based union members. The Group
maintains good employee relations and has not exaed any material labour-related work stoppages.

Arrangements involving the employees in the capibéthe Issuer

SES offers several stock-based compensation ple@sployees and executives. The purpose of thes jdaio
enhance the competitiveness of the Group in aitigaeind retaining the best global executive talant] to
position SES as a global employer of choice.

Moreover, the plans are designed to make sureStE8temployees and executives become shareholdirs of
Issuer, feel a sense of ownership and benefit fhain contribution to increasing shareholder value.

Executives are eligible to participate in two platitee Equity Incentive Compensation PI&IGP) and the
Long Term Incentive PlarLTIP). Under the EICP, stock options are granted amyaalmarket value to all
eligible executives. Options vest in quarters deer years and have a 10-year life. Under the LEHres are
granted in the form of restricted shares and perdmice shares annually at market value to all édigib
executives. The shares cliff vest after three ye®esting of the performance shares is contingenthe
employees’ positive personal performance and thgelsachieving positive economic value added.

Employees are eligible to participate in the Stéglpreciation Rights TAR) Plan. Under this plan, stock
options are granted annually at market value. @pti@st in thirds over three years and have a sgsanlife.
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Intellectual Property

SES has a significant portfolio of internationaltgras managed by its patent board and internatjonal
registered trademarks and service marks to opésahrisiness worldwide. The Group protects its pebary
business information, products, services and branii a variety of ways, including relying on trasiecret,
patent and trademark laws, entering into confidgdityi and non-disclosure agreements, including
confidentiality and data protection clauses in caroial agreements and following internal corporatéicies
and procedure in relation to intellectual property.

SES is not aware of any breach of its intellechraperty by any party and, to its knowledge, is inéinging
the intellectual property of others.

Environmental Matters

The Group’s operations are subject to various lamgregulations relating to the protection of theimnment.
The Group, as an owner or operator of propertyiarmdnnection with current and historical operasiat some
of its sites, could incur significant costs, indhgl clean-up costs, fines, sanctions and thirdypelgims, as a
result of violations of or liabilities under envinmental laws and regulations. For instance, sonteeoGroup’s
operations require continuous power supply, and, @sult, current and past operations at its ¢eted other
technical facilities have included fuel storage datteries for back-up power generators. However,Group
believes that its operations are in compliance wfthironmental laws and regulations.

In addition, the Group is committed to further fiimg the environmental impact of its activitiescsuas by
designing and building new technical facilities @cling to the imperatives of sustainability and rgye
efficiency. The Group also regularly conducts carlfmotprint measurements in order to monitor anaitrcd

the greenhouse gas emissions generated by itstigpstaCompared to 2012, the Group’s carbon dioxide
emissions increased by 16 per cent in 2013 dueet@tiange of the calculation method and decreasgdli4
compared to 2013 by 9 per cent. The Group alscsseekpply best practices to minimise the envirantade
impact of outsourced activities, including the mfature and launch of spacecratft.

Governmental, Legal or Arbitration Proceedings

Neither the Issuer nor any member of the Grouplees involved in any governmental, legal or arbdra
proceedings (including any such proceedings whiehpending or threatened of which the Issuer isra@wa
during the twelve (12) months preceding the daténisf Prospectus which may have, or have had imebent
past, a significant effect on the financial positar profitability of the Issuer and/or the Group.
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

As of 31 March 2016 the Group comprised the Isanerits subsidiaries, along with its associated,iacludes
the following types of entities, a substantial portof which are wholly owned:

. Operating companies (21 entities), which perforistantially all of the Group’s satellite operations
These companies have historically owned the bullsatéllites, orbital slot licences and/or ground
infrastructure. They are also responsible for astautiial portion of the Group’s payroll for emplege
in all fields of satellite operations. Operatingrgmanies are the market-facing entities of the Group
entering into customer contracts and providing@neup’s core satellite communication services and
value-added services to external customers.

. Single satellite companies (30 entities), each lithvis individually insured for in-orbit failuresith
the Group’s captive insurance company.

. Marketing companies (12 entities), which give the@p a local marketing presence in key markets
and are often associated with local affiliates. ké#ing affiliates do not enter into customer coctisa

. Engineering companies (6 entities), which supph@sSES Engineering function.

. Holding companies (23 entities), which hold the @rs financial assets. Historically, many of these
companies were established for management repogimgoses and/or corporate organisational
reasons.

. Regulatory companies (14 entities), which are ipomated in those jurisdictions that do not permit

foreign entities to sell capacity to local customer obtain licences, enter into concession agretme
or acquire landing rights.

. Finance companies (7 entities), are responsibletlier Group’s captive finance and insurance
operations. Finance companies perform centralisadifig, cash management, foreign exchange and
interest rate hedging and insurance activitiesGooup entities. They also play important roles in
external or internal funding or cash flows of thex@.

SES”

Satellite 03b Networks LuxGovsSat YahLive

QuetzSat Ciel
operators 42.65% 50% 35%

100% 70%

Service Government Platform Techcom HD+

Companies Solutions Services Services 100%
100% 100% 100%
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SES'’s subsidiaries and affiliates at 31 Decembéb 2@ere:

SES ASTRA S.A., Luxembourg

SES GLOBAL-Americas Inc., U.S.A.

SES GLOBAL Americas Holdings General Partnership,
U.S.A.

SES GLOBAL Africa S.A., Luxembourg

SES Participations S.A., Luxembourg

SES Finance S.ar.l. Switzerland

SES Holdings (Netherlands) B.V., Netherlands
SES ASTRA Services Europe S.A., Luxembourg
SES Latin America S.A., Luxembourg

SES Belgium S.p.r.l, Belgium

SES Insurance International S.A., Luxembourg
SES Insurance International Re S.A., Luxembourg
SES Lux Finance S.ar.l. Luxembourg

SES NL Finance S.ar.l. Luxembourg

Ciel Satellite Holdings Inc., Canada

Ciel Satellite Limited Partnership, Canada
Northern Americas Satellite Ventures, Inc., Canada
SES Techcom S.A., Luxembourg

SES-15 S.ar.l., Luxembourg

SES Digital Distribution Services AG, Switzerland
SES Digital Distribution Services S.ar.l. Luxembmpu
Redu Operations Services S.A., Belgium

Redu Space Services S.A., Belgium

HD Plus GmbH, Germany

SES ASTRA Real Estate (Betzdorf) S.A., Luxembourg
SES Platform Services GmbH, Germany

SES Digital Distribution Services GmbH, Germany
Virtual Planet Group GmbH, Germany

SmartCast GmbH, Germany

SmartCast Technologies Ltd, Thailand

PT Smart Cast Indonesia, Indonesia

SmartCast Asia Ltd, China

ASTRA Deutschland GmbH, Germany

ASTRA lberica S.A., Spain

ASTRA France S.A., France

ASTRA (GB) Limited, United Kingdom

ASTRA Benelux B.V., The Netherlands

SES ASTRA CEE Sp. z 0.0, Poland

SES ASTRA ltalia S.r.l., ltaly

SES ASTRA (Romania) S.ar.l., Romania

SES Satellites Ghana Ltd, Ghana

SES ENGINEERING (Luxembourg) S.ar.l., Luxembourg
SES ASTRA AB, Sweden

Sirius Satellite Services SIA, Latvia

SES SIRIUS Ukraine, Ukraine
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Economic
interest (%)

SES ASTRA 1KR S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100.00
SES ASTRA 1L S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100.00
SES ASTRA 1M S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100.00
SES ASTRA 3B S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100.00
SES ASTRA 5B S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100.00
SES ASTRA 1IN S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100.00
SES ASTRA 2E S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100.00
SES ASTRA 2F S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100.00
SES ASTRA 2G S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100.00
SES 10 S.ar.l. Luxembourg 100.00
LuxGovSat S.A, Luxembourg 50.00
SES Satellite Leasing Ltd, Isle of Man 100.00
Al Maisan Satellite Communications LLC, UAE 35.00
Satellites Ventures (Bermuda), Ltd, Bermuda 50.00
SES ASTRA Africa (Proprietary) Ltd, South Africa a.oo
SES AMERICOM, Inc., U.S.A. 100.00
SES AMERICOM PAC, Inc., U.S.A. 100.00
SES AMERICOM International Holdings, Inc., U.S.A. 0aLo0
SES AMERICOM (Brazil) Holdings, LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
SES AMERICOM do Brasil Servicos de Telecomunicagcoes 100.00
Ltda, Brazil

SES Government Solutions, Inc., U.S.A. 100.00
Sistemas Satelitales de Mexico S. de R.L. de @A&xico 100.00
Socios Aguila S.de R.L de C.V., Mexico 49.00
Columbia Communications Corporation, U.S.A. 100.00
SES Satellites International, Inc., U.S.A. 100.00
SES Satellites (Gibraltar) Ltd, Gibraltar 100.00
SES AMERICOM Colorado, Inc., U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-1 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-2 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-3 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-5 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-6 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-8 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-9 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-10 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-11 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
SES AMERICOM (Asia 1A) LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMERICOM Asia Pacific LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-12 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
SES AMERICOM Callifornia, Inc., U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-4 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-7 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-15 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
AMC-16 Holdings LLC, U.S.A. 100.00
SES-1 Holdings, LLC, U.S.A. 100.00

QuetzSat Directo, S. de R.L. de C.V., Mexico 100.00
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SES ENGINEERING (U.S)) Inc., U.S.A.

AOS Inc., U.S.A.

SES-2 Holdings LLC, U.S.A.

SES-3 Holdings LLC, U.S.A.

QuetzSat S. de R.L. de C.V., Mexico

Satellites Globales S. de R.L. de C.V., Mexico

SES Satelites Directo Ltda, Brazil

SES DTH do Brasil Ltda, Brazil

SES GLOBAL South America Holding S.L., Spain
New Skies Satellites, Inc., U.S.A.

New Skies Satellites Mar B.V., The Netherlands
New Skies Satellites Ltda, Brazil

New Skies Networks, Inc., U.S.A.

SES ENGINEERING (Netherlands) B.V., The Netherlands
New Skies Satellites B.V., The Netherlands

New Skies Asset Holdings, Inc., U.S.A.

SES NEW SKIES Marketing B.V., The Netherlands
New Skies Satellites Argentina B.V., The Netherkand
New Skies Networks Australia B.V., The Netherlands
New Skies Satellites Australia Pty Ltd, Australia

New Skies Satellites Licensee B.V., The Netherlands
SES Asia S.A., Luxembourg

SES Finance Services AG, Switzerland

O3b Networks Ltd, Jersey, Channel Islands

SES World Skies Singapore Pte Ltd, Singapore
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REGULATION
Introduction

SES'’s business is regulated by a number of natiandlinternational regulatory authorities. SESuisjexct to
the regulatory authority of the Grand Duchy of Lontourg, the United States, the Netherlands, Gernpthry
United Kingdom, Gibraltar, the Isle of Man, the Baick of Jersey Jersey, Mexico, Canada, Sweden, the EU,
Bermuda, the Andean Community, Brazil and othemties and regions in which it operates, as welihas
radio regulations and frequency coordination precdéshe ITU.

The regulation of the Group’s business can be dividto three broad categories:

. Rules governing the operation of the Group’s stteflystem, which can in turn be divided into four
areas:
. launch and operation of satellites;
. allocation and licensing of space orbital locatiand associated electromagnetic spectrum;
. licensing of ground infrastructure; and
. licensing of communications services;
. Antitrust and competition laws, anti-bribery andiaorruption laws which are generally applicalde t

national and international businesses; and

. Other regulations, including rules restricting theort of satellite-related equipment and technglog
regulations related to sanctions and other pravssapplicable to the Group’s business.

Countries vary in their approaches to satelliteriging. Some countries grant licences based otabltations
and frequencies, while others grant licences bagea specific satellite at a particular orbitaldtion and the
associated frequencies. In addition, SES is sultjetite laws and regulations of countries to, franwithin
which it provides services or offers satellite aifya Numerous markets in which SES does businegsire
some form of market access approval or authorisgtitor to SES offering capacity or services insio
markets. SES seeks such approvals or authorisatforequired, but cannot be certain that all spghavals or
authorisations will be granted in a timely mannerab all. Such approvals and authorisations mag bks
subject to conditions that constrain operations.

Countries or regulatory authorities may adopt rewsl| policies or regulations, or change their retation of
existing laws, policies or regulations, that cocddise existing authorisations to be changed oretlad¢crequire
SES to incur additional costs or otherwise advgrafect operations or revenue. Any regulatory apals are
subject to modification, rescission and renewal.

If SES fails to obtain or maintain particular ap@ls, including for market access, on acceptabil@sesuch
failure could delay or prevent the offering of sooreall of its services and adversely affect thaults of its
operations, business prospects and financial dondiin particular, SES may not be able to obtdirofithe
required regulatory approvals for the constructlannch and operation of any future satellitesfpouuse of the
orbital positions planned for these satellites.rEMeSES is able to obtain the necessary appraadsorbital
positions, the licences obtained may impose sicamifi operational restrictions or permit interferey others
that could affect the use of the satellites.
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Regulation of the Group’s Satellite System
Luxembourg

SES ASTRA (a subsidiary of the Group) holds ithtsgto operate from Luxembourg pursuant to a caimes
agreement granted by the Grand Duchy of Luxembaquuigguant to Article 20 of the 1991 Law of Eleciion
Media as amendedg(loi du 27 juillet 1991 sur les médias électrameg, and an associated term sheghfer
des chargés The concession agreement, which was amende@bi8, 2001, 2004 and 2010, is in effect until 31
December 2021 (th@oncession Agreement

Under the Concession Agreement, SES ASTRA hadgheto set up and operate a satellite systemarkih
band and the Ka-band at the following orbital sldf8.0°-19.2° East, 23.0°-24.2° East, 28.0-28.25t Ezand
31.0-31.5°East. The concession may be extendedbitalgpositions at other orbital slots upon twortits prior
notice to the Luxembourg government (Bevernmen)t. The Government may object to any extension by
sending written notice one month prior to the exgeclate for the commencement of operations astbat

The concession includes the right to make satalifgacity available to users for the transmissioalectronic
media and other electronic communications serviltealso includes the right to establish, on Luxennig
territory, mobile or fixed earth stations to oper#tte satellites, to perform telemetry, tracking aammand
operations and to provide communications links \hih satellites.

Under the concession, SES ASTRA is required, withtgipical timeframe, to regularly improve its sees to
users through the implementation of economicallgtifiable new techniques whose financing could
legitimately be expected from SES ASTRA. SES ASTiRAy not abandon or interrupt the exploitation @& th
concession other than in exceptional circumstaraes, result oforce majeureor after prior written approval
of the Government.

The concession is not transferable and expires brD&ember 2021 but may be renewed. Good faith
negotiations on the renewal of the concessionaoerinmence at the request of either party stamirp18. If

no agreement is reached by 1 January 2020, theessino will automatically be extended on a erolusive
basis for the operational life of any of the exigtiSES satellites. SES is not aware of any readonthe
concession would not be renewed.

SES ASTRA has a priority right in the event that Government contemplates granting rights to thadies to
establish and operate a satellite system using rhbgrarg frequencies. If SES ASTRA cannot reach an
agreement with Luxembourg on those rights, Luxemip@an grant those rights to third parties on teamd
conditions similar to those offered to SES ASTRA.

Customers

The Concession Agreement authorises SES ASTRA ter @rto agreements for the use of satellite capaci
with customers on such commercial and other tes'&E5 ASTRA may agree so long as:

. the customers agree to comply with all relevandi@ns of thecahier des charges

. the customers are required to comply with the méwnational legislation and any applicable
international conventions; and

. the Government does not object to the operatiotiseofelevant customer.

Any total or partial transfer to a third party bycastomer of its satellite capacity is subjecthe tritten and
prior approval of SES ASTRA and the absence ofatigje by the Government. To date, the Governmest ha
not exercised its right to object to a customermy transferee that SES ASTRA has approved. Ifstooer
seriously breaches either its transponder agreeanghe provisions of the associated term sheetcantinues
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to do so notwithstanding any notice that SES ASTR#y have given to it, the Government can requir€ SE
ASTRA to suspend transmission of that customen'sises. If a transponder contract is suspendedsidch a
breach, neither SES ASTRA nor the Government isldiao the customer for any compensation for the
cessation of the transmissions. Similarly, SES AS&T® not indemnified by the Government for any ks
incurred as a result of a justified/legitimate intgption of transmission. To date, the Governmesd hot
required SES ASTRA to suspend a customer’s traissonis.

Government Supervision

Pursuant to the Concession Agreement, the Governimamtitied to appoint up to three commissiorters
supervise SES ASTRA’s compliance with the Concesgigreement and associated term sheet. Currently,
Luxembourg has one appointed commissioner who nzaificjpate in general meetings of SES ASTRA's
shareholders and meetings of the Board of Direatorany of its committees. The commissioner mayospp
any measure taken or envisaged by SES ASTRA thaldwamongst others, be contrary to Luxembourgdaw
international conventions applicable to the Govesntnor compromise the exploitation of the conaessi the
public order of Luxembourg. The commissioner magage and suspend any measure taken by SES ASTRA.
SES ASTRA has five (5) days to appeal against arspension failing which the suspension becomes a
permanent veto. Appeals are to the cabinet of theefAment which is required to decide any appetiimi
twenty-one (21) days.

The articles of incorporation of SES ASTRA may et modified without the Government's prior written
approval. The Government may only oppose any nuatifins of the articles of incorporation of SES AT
in the case where such changes (i) will be conttargational law or international conventions aj ill
compromise the exploitation of the concession.dditeon, under the Concession Agreement, certdatations
or transfers of shares of SES ASTRA require theeBuwent's written approval.

Modification of the Concession Terms

The Government can unilaterally amend the termscanditions of the Concession Agreement, as seindhe
cahier des chargedf a modification adversely affects the finanaald commercial benefits of the Concession
Agreement, the Government must indemnify SES AST&Aany detriment and loss of income SES ASTRA
suffers, failing which (or if such indemnificatioa not reasonably acceptable) SES ASTRA can tetmithee
concession on twelve (12) months’ notice withoability for compensation and without prejudice tBSS
ASTRA's right to claim damages. Any modification tbie cahier des chargewhich permanently disrupts the
financial and commercial balance between the Gaowent and SES ASTRA will be treated as a withdrawal
(after a prior notice of twelve (12) months) of ttencession and the Government will be liable ttemnify
SES ASTRA for losses incurred and other damagehjdimg consequential damages such as any depoeciat
in value of assets, reduced ability to repay dabtkfulfil other obligations, and loss in futurergags.

The Government is not responsible for any loss 8z ASTRA suffers (not attributable to the Goveentror

to SES ASTRA) if the conditions under which it oters change dramatically in a manner which coutdhave
been reasonably foreseen at the time the concesssngranted. However, if such a change occurs, SES
ASTRA has the right to require that thehier des chargebe revised to reflect the new circumstances. df th
Government refuses or if SES ASTRA reasonably camsithe proposed amendment to be insufficiembaiy
terminate the concession on twelve (12) monthstaatithout liability to the state for indemnifigan.

Withdrawal or Suspension of Concession

The concession may be withdrawn in whole or in gl 8ES ASTRA remains in serious breach of the
Concession Agreement or associated term sheettafbesuccessive notices from the Government to dgme
the specified breach within a reasonable time g¢hé state. A withdrawal requires the Governmenetjuest
SES ASTRA and the commissioner to present theivwim writing. The Government may also deprive SES
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ASTRA of all or part of the exclusive rights if SEESTRA fails to continuously and regularly expleite
concession at an optimum level to obtain long-temeximum financial profitability. The procedure aippble
is the same as for a withdrawal.

Upon the withdrawal of the concession by reasam sdrious breach of the Concession Agreement ociassd
term sheet, SES ASTRA will forfeit all rights astted with the concession and the Government mely ke
become the owner of the ASTRA satellites, contacilities and other equipment and be substituted jparty

to any agreements necessary for the exploitatiathefconcession. SES ASTRA will be entitled to faird
equitable indemnification before any property righte so transferred. If the Government decidesttadraw
the concession in whole or in part for any reagbierothan serious breach by SES ASTRA of its okiiga, it
must give SES ASTRA twelve (12) months’ notice amiemnify SES ASTRA for all damages SES ASTRA
suffers, including consequential damages such psl@preciation in value of assets, reduced alidityepay
debts and fulfil other obligations, and loss irufit earnings.

SES ASTRA has no reason to believe that the Govenhintends to withdraw the SES ASTRA concession.
The United States
FCC Regulation and Licences

SES AMERICOM holds FCC authorisations for the fallog operational satellites at the following nontina
orbital locations utilising the specified frequert@nds:

Nominal Orbital Slot Operational Satellite(s) Frequency Bands
37.5°W.L. NSS-10 (also known as AMC-12) C-band
67°W.L. AMC-3 and AMC-4 Ku-band and TT&C in C-band
72°W.L. AMC-6 C- and Ku-bands
81°W.L. AMC-2 C- and Ku-bands
83°W.L. AMC-9 C- and Ku-bands
85°W.L. AMC-16 Ka-band

87°W.L. SES-2 C- and Ku-bands
101°W.L. SES-1 C- and Ku-bands
103°W.L. AMC-1 C- and Ku-bands
103°W.L. SES-3 C- and Ku-bands
105°W.L. AMC-15 Ka- and Ku-bands
131°W.L. AMC-11 C-band

135°W.L. AMC-10 C-band

137°W.L. AMC-7 C-band

139°W.L. AMC-8 C-band

For details of the Group’s satellites located iest orbital slots, se®lisiness—Satellite Fleet—FIget
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SES AMERICOM's FCC licences are subject to comméamwith the terms and conditions therein. SES
AMERICOM must obtain prior FCC approval before nfgitig its licenced operations. The licences are als
subject to modification by the FCC on its own motinder Section 316 of the U.S. Communications dfct
1934, as amende@€émmunications Ac), but only after reasonable notice to the liceress@d an opportunity to
protest. The burden of justifying any such modiiima is on the FCC. FCC licences may not be assigme
transferred to another party without prior FCC appt.

The FCC typically issues each space station licefocean initial term expiring 15 years after the
commencement of the operation of a satellite. Talpiche FCC allows a space station licensee ttacepan
operational satellite that is about to reach thebadrits useful life with a new satellite, withdiaicing competing
applications for the orbital and frequency rightani other parties, assuming the licensee contitiueseet the
FCC's legal, technical and financial requiremeAtsthe end of a licence term, a satellite typicadhallowed to
continue operations for additional time based anaiaing fuel life, either through an extension loé ticence
term or temporary authority granted by the FCC. FR& also generally will grant temporary authofiy a
satellite to be moved to a vacant orbital positifter launch of its replacement so that it can rerated until
the end of its useful life.

SES AMERICOM also holds various FCC authorisatimm®perate earth station facilities in the U.S. Sehe
earth station licences are granted on a relati@lyine basis, subject to FCC rules regarding trégsion to or
reception from satellites, and interference coatiom with other parties.

SES AMERICOM is required to submit periodic repaashe FCC providing information about its operat.
FCC Regulatory Fees

SES AMERICOM is required to pay annual fees witbpeet to many of its FCC licences and other opmrati
In 2015, the FCC decided to decrease the regulétes/ payable by satellite licensees by 3 per oeet the
fees paid in 2014 and implemented a slight incr@gagiee fees payable by earth station licensees.FIGC has
signalled that it intends to continue reviewingatsual fees across multiple communications sedtorkiding
the satellite sector, with the prospect of higheasffor some sectors in the future. SES will cartito engage
in the FCC process, but cannot be certain thatasad FCC regulatory fees will not raise the Isswgast of
doing business in 2016 and beyond.

U.S. Market Access

Both New Skies Satellites B.VNéw Skie} and SES Satellites (Gibraltar) INGHES Gibralta) have been
granted U.S. market access by the FCC for a nuofteatellites licenced by the Netherlands and/erlthited
Kingdom on behalf of Gibraltar. They include:

Nominal Orbital Slot Operational Satellite(s) Frequency Bands
20°W.L. NSS-7 C- and Ku-bands
22°W.L. SES-4 C- and Ku-bands
40.5°W.L. SES-6 C- and Ku-bands
47.5°W.L. NSS-806 C- and Ku-bands
105°W.L. AMC-18 C-band

125°W.L. AMC-21 Ku-band
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Nominal Orbital Slot Operational Satellite(s) Frequency Bands

177°W.L. NSS-9 C-band

For details of the Group’s satellites located iast orbital slots, se®lisiness—Satellite Fleet—Fl&et

In addition, both QuetzSat-1 and Ciel-2 are ausledtito serve the U.S. market through blanket esaition
licences held by a customer.

Foreign Ownership Restrictions

Section 310(a) of the Communications Act precludeforeign government or representative thereof from
directly holding any FCC radiofrequency licenceeT#CC is aware of SES AMERICOM's foreign ownership,
including partial ownership by the government okémbourg, and does not consider SES AMERICOM ta be

foreign government or representative thereof fappses of Section 310(a).

Section 310(b) of the Communications Act imposesrietions on foreign ownership of FCC common-eatri
broadcast and aeronautical service licensees. 8&Srwbt currently hold any such licences, and therés not

directly subject to the restrictions in Section @)0For SES’s FCC licences, the FCC retains géuisaretion

to consider foreign ownership issues as part gfutdic interest analysis. While SES is not awdrany current
legislative proposals to change U.S. foreign ownigreestrictions, there is no certainty that suabppsals will

not arise in the future. Depending on the naturauch proposals, SES may be required to changeitership
structure, including reducing the levels of non-lb®&nership by private or government entities.

Universal Service Fund

Section 254 of the Communications Act, as amendsi@blishes a Universal Service FultbF) to subsidize

the provision of basic telecommunications servicgural and other high-cost areas. To fund thissislyb a
USF contribution is levied on all “providers of @énstate telecommunications” (with limited excepsipnThe
USF contribution factor (or rate) is a percentafygross revenue received from the provision of tingrstate

and U.S.-international telecommunications. Theettemmunications” on which USF contributions areadev
include certain satellite services but not baregpander capacity. Broadband Internet access ascalsently
exempt from contributions, pending new FCC ruleshow such services are to be treated under the USF
scheme upon their reclassification as “telecommatitins.” This factor changes quarterly and is &8 cent

for the second quarter of 2016. SES currently p#§B contributions but does not receive any subkiy the
USF.

Since 2010, the FCC has taken a number of stepfdon the USF subsidy scheme, including expanditm
subsidise broadband services and capping the bsaalof the fund. In April 2012, the FCC releaseNotice

of Proposed Rulemaking to reform the USF contrdsucheme, which included potential ways to broatien
USF contribution base and a new method of calawatiSF contributions based on something other than
revenue (e.g., telephone numbers or IP addressi#erarumber of connections). In February 2015, R
reclassified broadband Internet access as a comeaarer service. The FCC, however, forbore from
immediately applying existing USF rules to broadbdmternet access revenues, pending its considerafi
broader USF reforms. It is uncertain how the FQ@€tposed USF reforms will impact SES’s businessthist
possible that SES may have to pay more in USF itaonions if the FCC were to re-define the rangsaivices
subject to USF contributions, eliminate certainnegons, or revoke its forbearance.

FCC Satellite Competition Report

In December 2011, the FCC issued a report on cdtippein the satellite industry, including the F8@lustry.
As part of that report, the FCC recounted allegestiof anticompetitive conduct in the governmenttiaating
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context by Intelsat that were based on more geradiejations about the lack of competition in tiateBite
industry. While the FCC acknowledged that the réamas too limited for it to make definitive findiagbout
the allegations and that the evidence it had te Hatl mixed implications, the FCC neverthelessatlign its
intent to commence a follow-up inquiry into thedlegations.

The FCC initiated a follow-up inquiry in June 2088 seeking public comment on allegations of warshay
and vertical foreclosure in the satellite industfipe FCC closed the proceeding in 2014 and fouad tte
record did not justify further action or inquirytinthe issues.

U.S. Law Enforcement and National Security Requerém

In the U.S., the Exon-Florio Amendment to the DefeRroduction ActExon-Florio), as amended, gives the
U.S. President the authority to review the acqoisitof control by a foreign person of a U.S. perdon
determine whether the acquisition raises any naki@ecurity concerns. This authority enables th&. U.
President to block or restrict a transaction ipiesents national security concerns. The U.S. d@esihas
delegated review authority to the CFIUS. Theredsagal obligation to notify CFIUS of a transacti@ES is a
foreign person within the meaning of Exon-Florio.

SES has requested CFIUS review and has receivadanlge for certain previous U.S. transactionsuifing
SES'’s acquisitions of SES AMERICOM in 2001 and N8lies in 2006. In February 2016, SES requested
review of its acquisition of a greater interest@3b. As of the date of this Prospectus, the revwstill
pending. As part of these processes, the foreignemhip of SES, including partial ownership by the
government of Luxembourg, was disclosed to CFIUBIUS'’s prior approval of the SES AMERICOM and
New Skies transactions provides a “safe harbortnfioirther challenge under that provision. Futuré&.U.
acquisitions may be subject to CFIUS review.

Proxy Agreement and Defense Security Clearances

As a result of U.S. national security laws and fatijons, SES Government Solutions, IESGS, (formerly
AMERICOM Government ServiceAGS)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of SES AMERICOM, isbgect to a
proxy agreement with the U.S. Department of Defdis@D). SES, SES AMERICOM, SESGS and the DOD
are all party to the proxy agreement (Brexy Agreement

A proxy agreement is an instrument intended to teega mitigate the risk of foreign ownership, cohtor
influence when a foreign person acquires or mevggsa U.S. entity that has a facility securityaiance. A
proxy agreement conveys a foreign owner’s votights to proxy holders, comprising the proxy bodhdxy
holders are cleared U.S. citizens approved by tl$e §ibvernment.

The DOD’s Defense Security Servicd3S9 required that SESGS enter into a proxy agreerbenause
SESGS is indirectly owned by SES, a foreign compangd SESGS has classified contracts with DOD which
contain certain proscribed information. The Proxgrédement enables SESGS to participate in classified
contracts with the U.S. government. The Proxy Agret can be terminated prior to the end of its-figar
period if DSS determines that it is no longer nsagg if there has been a violation of its term# oequested

by SES AMERICOM and SESGS. The Proxy Agreementiigest to renewal upon agreement with DSS in
20109.

As a result of the Proxy Agreement, strict limitaits are placed on the information that may be shaine the
interaction that may occur between SESGS, SES ANMIERI and SES. DSS monitors compliance with the
Proxy Agreement by, at a minimum, reviewing SESGtivities on an annual basis.

Security clearances must be sought and maintaiitedive issuing authority in order to participateciassified
U.S. government programmes. Failure to maintairuriigcclearances, material violations of the terofs
security clearances or loss of required securitpreinces or of the Proxy Agreement may result iIBGESs
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inability to satisfy existing obligations under adlgssified U.S. government contracts, terminabigrthe U.S.
government of classified contracts with SESGS &medinability to participate in new classified pragmes.
Any material violations of U.S. law by SES or itsbsidiary holding security clearances could prex&a$ and
its subsidiaries from holding security clearanced eould result in SES and its subsidiary beingdzhfrom
U.S. government contracts, including unclassifieditacts and SES could be subject to civil or anathi
enforcement actions and penalties.

U.S. Export Controls and Sanctions Regulations

The U.S. Commerce Department regulates the expartre-export of commercial communications satallite
and most satellite-related components, subsysteafisyare and technology under the Export Adminigina
Act following the implementation of export contraform in November 2014. The Commerce Departmesat al
regulates exports of certain network equipmentlugling earth stations. Exports of these items aidted
technology from the U.S., and their subsequentamsfer outside the U.S. may require licensing toy t
Commerce Department. For overseas launches ofddt8llites and foreign-manufactured satellites aioirig
regulated U.S.-origin components, the launch locatand launch-related technical arrangements requir
approval by the U.S. Department of State pursuatitea Arms Export Control Act. The timing of thee@t of
licences from the Commerce Department or State frapat can be difficult to predict. Licences ar¢enf
issued with commercially significant conditions arebtrictions, and some launch locations that mayeh
pricing or other advantages may not be approved.

These licensing requirements affect technical cadjmn among SES entities. They also affect SE&tsllite
procurement and launch activities. In engagingaitelite-related export activities in the U.S. a@ndsourcing
satellites, satellite-related hardware, technolmgg services in the U.S., there can be no guarémiéeequisite
export licences will be obtained in a timely fashidhat those licences will permit transfer of afms
requested, that launches will be permitted in iocatthat the Group may prefer or that licencessmfiranted,
will not contain conditions or restrictions that sgosignificant commercial or technical problemsciSu
occurrences could delay the launch of future stsll

As an international company with subsidiaries encbuntries of operations, SES is subject to thanftial and
export sanctions laws of the jurisdictions wherepierates, including the following:

. the Arms Export Control Act, implemented by ITARdsadministered by the U.S. State Department;

. the Export Administration Act/International EmerggnEconomic Powers Act, implemented by the
Export Administration RegulationE£AR) and administered by the U.S. Commerce Departraeiat;

. the trade sanctions laws, executive orders anterkel@gulations, including those administered key th
U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Asgawatrol OFAC).

These laws impose restrictions on SES’s abilitpriavide services in, or export hardware to, certaiantries
or specific entitiespecially Designated Nationglsin certain cases, SES may be able to obtainodasttion
from the relevant sanctioning country in order tovide service that would otherwise be subjectaioctions;
however, there is no guarantee that such authiorsatll be granted. As a result, SES may be reglito forgo
commercial opportunities that are subject to sansti

U.S. sanctions laws and regulations administere@B&C apply directly to the activities of the Gréaip).S.
subsidiaries and U.S. persons employed by the Gi@apgain of the Group’s U.S. subsidiaries havearasrs

in jurisdictions where sanctions apply, but in eaabe the activities are carried out pursuantanies granted
by OFAC and other relevant U.S. government autlesribr in compliance with U.S. sanctions laws and
regulations. In addition, the activities of the Gpts non-U.S. subsidiaries directly or indirecthy sanctioned
countries or with persons named on the Specialsigdated Nationals list maintained by OFAC (812N list)
could put the Group at risk for any resulting vima of such laws and regulations. The Group hdigips and
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systems in place designed to monitor the Groupttviies and to prevent the Group from engaging in
prohibited activities or dealing with entities dretSDN list.

Failure to obtain or maintain required export onc#ns authorisations or failure to comply withphgable
export control and sanctions laws and regulatiangdchave a material adverse effect on business. mhay
render it difficult or impossible to obtain the eesary licences for exports related to satelliag)ch services,
TT&C, and equipment. Additionally, failure of SESi®ndors or suppliers to obtain the necessary é&xpor
authorisations could affect SES and its subsidiasird affiliates’ ability to acquire, launch orevate satellites.

Within the last five years, SES and its subsidg@ahave filed four voluntary disclosures with theSUState
Department’s Directorate of Defense Trade Cont(DI®BTC) regarding possible violations of the ITAR. All
four matters have been closed by DDTC without ggnal

SES has also submitted a voluntary self-disclosepert to OFAC on 26 November 2013, the circumstanc
relating to which are described below. This repentains under review by OFAC. A finding by OFAC ttktze
Group violated any U.S. sanctions regulations ceufubse the Group to fines and penalties.

Through non-U.S. subsidiaries and without the imewient of U.S. employees, SES provided satelligetha
communications services to certain customers Idcatdran. During 2012 and 2013 SES wound down this
Iranian business and the underlying contracts andces. SES stopped receiving payments relatdtetse
Iranian customers during 2012 and the contract® wenminated in 2013. These services did not domsta
violation by SES of OFAC sanctions. However, SEéntdied that certain payments in U.S. dollars were
received from such customers by SES subsidiaritsdauthe United States. Payments from these cestom
constituted less than 0.15 per cent of SES’s totalial revenue during each of 2010, 2011 and 204 2urther
payments were received from these customers. S&Sidéntified certain payments related to an Imania
customer that were made by a non-U.S. subsidiaays@les agent in U.S. dollars. The U.S. dollamdenated
payments from these customers and to the agenthaag been processed either through correspondent
accounts at U.S.-based financial institutions oodgh a U.S. branch of a non-U.S. financial insittu There is
therefore a risk that the involvement of the U.&ks in question could expose the Group to lighitit having
caused or contributed to a violation of OFAC samdi

In the self-disclosure report, SES also reporte@kAC that certain of its non-U.S. subsidiaries aasmall
number of Iranian customers (included among theferenced in the preceding paragraph) to whom they
provided satellite communication services who wareor affiliated with or were reselling servicespersons

on the SDN list. Two of these SDN-listed persongehbeen sanctioned for human rights abuses. Service
provided by SES to such customers consisted ofigioov of satellite capacity for private networksdan
broadcast services. In the case of one of thesiieenSES suspended provision of service befoeecttstomer
was designated a human rights abuser and placéiiecBDN list. SES stopped receiving payments reltde
these Iranian customers during 2012 and the cdatveare terminated in 2013. SES has not identbiggsiness
with any other persons that are on or affiliatethyiersons on the SDN list.

SES also reported to OFAC that it identified twetamces in which its direct customers in non-saneti third
countries had resold portions of the satellite capaupplied by New Skies for use by third-coundgrgbassy
sites located in Cuba. In both cases, it appedradcertain of the payments received from the tlitastomers
of New Skies were specific to the provision of seeg to the embassy sites in Cuba and were dentediira
U.S. dollars.

Aside from the circumstances described above, SEsSbt identified unauthorised transactions invjvany
other sanctioned countries or SDNs under OFACdigi®n or other applicable U.S. sanctions prograits
the extent permitted under applicable laws andlagigns, SES may decide to pursue business in lnaindoes
not currently have contracts with any Iranian comss.
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The Netherlands

On 16 November 1998, the government of the Nethdsglassued New Skies Satellites N.V. (in 2004 ckdng
to New Skies Satellite B.V. dlew Skie} a Licence Letter setting forth the rights of N&kies to exploit
geostationary arc orbital locations and associfitegfiencies in accordance with ITU obligationsjudag the
ITU Radio Regulations. Pursuant to the most recamsion of Attachment 1 to the Licence Letter, as
periodically updated, in compliance with applicalde/s and regulations of the Netherlands and camin
which services are provided, New Skies has estaaliand has operational satellites at the follovarigtal
locations:

Nominal Orbital Slot Frequency Bands
2°E.L. Ku-band

20°W.L. C- and Ku-bands
22°W.L. C- and Ku-bands
40.5°W.L. C-, Ku- and Ka-bands
50.5°E.L. C- and Ku-bands
57°E.L. C- and Ku-bands
95°E.L. Ku- and Ka-bands
177°W.L. C- and Ku-bands

For details of the Group’s satellites located iasth orbital slots, see “Business—Satellite FleetetFl New
Skies operates the NSS-5 satellite in the C- andatids at 50.5°E.L. subject to a commercial arnarsyg
with Thaicom Public Company LimitedTlaicom) under a permission letter granted to Thaicom Huy t
Administration of Thailand and pursuant to a lieemssued by the Dutch authority.

New Skies is subject to the provisions of the Ne#imels Telecommunications Act as amended I{fid). The
NTA does not require a licence for the operatiomdfvities that New Skies performs in the Nethsikand

for the exploitation of satellite frequencies. N8lies notifies the Netherlands government and itqugodates

to the Licence Letter in advance of the launch odification of satellites at particular orbital &g®ons. There is
no guarantee that the Netherlands government pjii@e such requests. Denial of such requests ¢@aud a
material adverse effect on SES’s business. TheoRaxtimunications Agency (Agentschap Telecom) regslat
the New Skies licence under the NTA and may impaesealties, or revoke or amend the New Skies licence
New Skies is not aware of any infringements andrftaeason to believe that it is in violation ofy/grart of its
licence.

The Space Activities Act (Wet Ruimtevaartactiviéei} effective 1 January 2008 regulates space tesvi
falling under Dutch jurisdiction. New Skies opesatnder a licence effective 19 December 2008 pnotsioa
Article 3 of this Act. The Space Activities Act éince requires New Skies to ensure communicatiotty wi
control of and sufficient power to operate the spabject. It also requires that New Skies operatespace
object so that it will not damage the environmendiiter space and that, at the end of the objkfet,sadequate
fuel supply is on board to transport the objecatproper decommissioning orbit. The Act also respiithat
New Skies maintain third party liability insuranceverage of €500 million per incident with the Nexlnds
government as a beneficiary. Additionally, New Skieust have the financial security to guarantedirngity
of its space activities. New Skies is required rtfoiim the Netherlands government in advance ofdhun
relocation or decommissioning of a space objecshauld there be technical or other changes relatabe
licence, including changes of control or compositdh the legal entity (licensee).
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Compliance with the terms of the Space Activitiest Acence is also regulated by the Radio Commuiuica
Agency. The Radio Communications Agency conductfitauof New Skies’' operations every four years to
ensure compliance with the licence. The first awdihcluded in December 2008. The 2012 audit was
successfully concluded during July 2012. The nexiitas planned for 2016, and is expected to odauhe
second or third quarter.

The Space Activities Act enables the revocatiorhef licence if New Skies fails to comply with thpa8e
Activities Act or the terms of the licence. Thegihce may also be revoked for failure to comply \sitineaty or
binding decisions of an international institutian, if there is good reason to believe that maineraof the
licence will jeopardise the safety of persons andy the space environment, public order or natiseeurity.
The regulator also has authority to amend the dieeather than revoke it, and may require certetio@s prior
to revocation to ensure safety of people, goodsthadcenvironment. Failure to comply with the licenoay
result in financial penalties of up to €450,00016r per cent of the annual sales of New Skies, veviehis
greater. The penalty is required to be commensuvikethe seriousness of the violation, degreeanftfand
duration of the infringement. There is a five-ystatute of limitations on infringements and the &pActivities
Act provides for a process under which parties m@aytest penalties or administrative actions agatmestn.
New Skies has no reason to believe that it isatation of its licence and is not aware of anyimjements.

Germany

On 17 December 2004, SES ASTRA and T-Systems katiermal GmbH (at that time an affiliate of Deutsche
Telekom AG) entered into a cooperation agreementhfe development, operation and commercialisabion
certain German orbital frequency rights at 23.5°thén held by Media Broadcast (as successor tosteBSys
International GmbH) under assignments for thesgqufeacies issued by the German “Bundesnetzagentur fi
Elektrizitdt, Gas, Telekommunikation, Post und Bishnen” (BNetzA). Under said cooperation agreement
Media Broadcast granted an exclusive right of dsherelated orbital frequency rights to SES ASTRA

On 6 December 2005, SES ASTRA and T-Systems BusiBesvices GmbH (at that time an affiliate of
Deutsche Telekom AG) entered into a framework cretp@ agreement, inter alia, for the use by SEFRS

of certain German orbital frequency rights at 2B.&? then held by Media Broadcast (as successor-to
Systems Business Services) as of October 4, 20b8erUthis framework cooperation agreement, Media
Broadcast granted, with BNetzA's approval, an esiolel right of use of the related orbital frequenights to
SES ASTRA.

On 10 July 2014, all of Media Broadcast’s orbita&guency rights at 23.5°E.L and 28.5°E.L. weregmssi to
SES ASTRA rendering the above cooperation agreesnieoperative. The BNetzA approved this assignment
on 13 May 2014 and SES ASTRA now directly holdsatieesponding assignment of frequencies.

SES ASTRA has operations at 23.5°E.L. with ASTRA Bng German rights and Luxembourg rights. In
addition, SES has procured and operates six $asait 28.2°E.L./28.5°E.L.

Nominal Orbital Slot Frequency Bands
23.5°E.L. Ku-band
28.2-28.5°E.L. Ku and Ka-band

For details of the Group’s satellites located iasth orbital slots, see “Business—Satellite Fleeketl
The United Kingdom and Gibraltar

On 5 March 1998, the Gibraltar Regulatory Autho(fBRA) issued a Class Ill Teleport Facility Licence (Ku-
band) to SES Gibraltar, a company formed undeta¥es of Gibraltar, and a wholly owned, indirect siglary
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of SES AMERICOM. The licence authorises SES Gibraid perform TT&C of authorised Ku-band satellites
from its Gibraltar satellite control centre. Thisehce is valid for 25 years from the date of issue

On 12 July 2006, the government of Gibraltar issae@lass Il Teleport Facility Licence (C-band) tBSS
Gibraltar. This licence authorises SES Gibraltapésform TT&C of authorised C-band satellites frdis
Gibraltar satellite control centre. This licencevadid for 25 years from the date of issue.

SES Gibraltar has established and has operatiatellites at the following orbital slots and asateil
frequency bands under the GRA Class Il and Clagsleport Facility Licences:

Nominal Orbital Slot Frequency Bands
86.5°W.L. Ku-band
105°W.L. C-band
108.2°E.L. Ku-band
125°W.L. Ku-band

For details of the Group’s satellites located iesth orbital slots, see “Business—Satellite FleeketFl

The satellite licensing procedures followed by @itar are substantially similar to the procedudeived by
the U.K. Like the U.K., Gibraltar does not issuaap station licences. Rather, the U.K. and Gibraléder to
the international frequency coordination processatied by the ITU Radio Regulations. The Telepatility
Licence granted to SES Gibraltar is therefore thly authorisation of any kind that Gibraltar wiisue for
communication with a satellite until just priorlaunch.

SES Gibraltar also holds licences issued by the @Rsuant to the Outer Space Act of 198&A) (a U.K.
statute extended to Gibraltar by the Outer SpadeoAcl986 (Gibraltar) Order 1996). The OSA licences
authorise the launch and/or operation of the setelThe OSA as applied to Gibraltar is intendedséoure
compliance with the U.K.'s international obligatioiwith respect to the launching and operation @fcep
objects and the carrying on of other activitiesouter space by persons connected with GibraltaneMo
specifically, the OSA requires a finding that &tice will not:

. jeopardise public health or the safety of persanwaperty;
. be inconsistent with the international obligatieh&sibraltar; or
. impair the national security of Gibraltar.

A licence issued pursuant to the OSA is not a radimmunication licence and does not grant authtoityse
particular orbital positions or ITU-registered fuemcies. Rather, the authority to use particulbitairlocations
is granted by the Teleport Facility Licence. TheAOence allows the regulatory authorities of Gilbar to
conduct due diligence on, for example, the relewamitracts with the satellite manufacturer, lausehvices
provider and insurer(s), in order to ensure thatdhtellite to be launched will be in accordandh wWie U.K.'s
international treaty obligations, and that the litgeconforms to the relevant ITU filings for theatellite. An
OSA licence is conditioned upon maintaining adegjtiaird party liability insurance coverage for taellite.
The GRA requires that primary TT&C must be locateibraltar.

Because Gibraltar is an overseas territory of th€ satellites licenced by Gibraltar are notiftecthe ITU by
the U.K. Except for its notification role, the U.government does not regulate the provision ofiservy SES.
SES may not launch a satellite, operate a sateltiteonduct any other activity in outer space frGibraltar
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without a licence from the GRA. Licences generalipntain various conditions. Failure to comply witiese
conditions could result in a loss of the licence.

SES Gibraltar has received an OSA licence from &idar to launch and operate a satellite, curréatlywn as
the NSS-11 satellite (formerly known as GE SATCOM-BAP-1, and WSAT-1) at the 108.2°E.L. orbital
location. It has also received a licence to opeitat&SES-9 satellite at the 108.3°E.L. orbital loma Both
satellites are operated by SES Gibraltar. The tiesrare revocable upon breach of their terms anditoons
and will expire at the end of the life of the respe satellite. The GRA waived for one year thguieement
that the primary TT&C for SES-9 must be situateibraltar.

SES Gibraltar has also received an OSA licence ffaitoraltar to operate the SES-7 satellite (formerly
ProtoStar-2) at the 108.2°E.L. orbital location.eTBES-7 satellite was procured in orbit by SES and
subsequently relocated to 108.2°E.L. SES-7 is opdrat that orbital location by SES Gibraltar. TBRA
waived the requirement for SES-7 that the primargT must be situated in Gibraltar. The licencedgacable
upon breach of its terms and conditions. The lieenidl expire at the end of the life of the satelli

SES Gibraltar has received OSA licences from Gidrab operate the AMC-18 satellite at the 105°Vérhital

location, the AMC-21 satellite at the 125°W.L. ddbilocation, and NIMIQ-1 at the 86.5°W.L. orbitatation.

AMC-18 and AMC-21 are operated at their respeabil@tal locations by SES Gibraltar. Each of thefices is
revocable upon breach of its terms and conditi@tech licence will expire at the end of the life tbie

respective satellite. OSA licences are not requmetIMIQ-1 because it is licenced by Canada.

Isle of Man

SES, through its Isle of Man entity SES Leasing, dlatained various launch licences from the Unitiedydom
Space AgencyUKSA). Prior to the satellite launch that it has pretJfISES Leasing must obtain a licence from
the UKSA pursuant to the OSA (the U.K. statute rdtéel to the Isle of Man by the Outer Space Act 1086

of Man) Order 1990), which authorises the launchihef satellite. The OSA as applied is intendedettuse
compliance with the international obligations oé tb.K. with respect to the launch of space objacis the
carrying on of other activities in outer space lpygons connected with the Isle of Man. More speadify, the
UKSA will not issue a licence unless it is satidftat activities authorised by the licence wilt:no

. jeopardise public health or the safety of persanwaperty;
. be inconsistent with the international obligatiofishe U.K. or Isle of Man; or
. impair the national security of the U.K. or IsleMsén.

The licence issued pursuant to the OSA is not f@@mmunication licence and does not grant authtwiuse
particular orbital slots or frequencies.

In order to obtain an OSA licence, SES Leasing magd to provide the UKSA with access to relevant
documents such as the contracts with the satelieufacturer, the launch services provider andntharer(s).
This is in order to ensure compliance with the W khternational treaty obligations (particularlytivrespect to
launch, maintenance in orbit and disposal of seeland their associated risks).

SES Leasing may not launch (or procure the laurfita satellite, operate a satellite or conduct ather
activity in outer space from the Isle of Man withappropriate licences which generally contain o@si
conditions. Failure to comply with these conditimasild result in a loss of the licence.

Bermuda

In 2013, the Bermuda Ministry of Economic Develominand the Bermuda Regulatory Authority (fRRA)
granted to SES Satellites (Bermuda) Ltd. (knownSagellite Ventures (Bermuda) LtdS¥BL) from 30
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January 2014), an SES affiliate incorporated utitetaws of Bermuda, the rights to occupy the aflgbsition
96.2°W.L. and develop the corresponding Ku-band B8§uency bands (12.2-12.7 GHz, 17.3-17.8 GHzg Th
96.2°W.L. orbital position is assigned to Bermudaspant to the Appendix 30/30A Region 2 Plan oflffig
and the associated rights were granted to SVBL st of an application by SVBL to the BRA. SVBi
obliged to report regularly to the BRA on the depshent and use of spectrum at the 96.2°W.L. orpitaltion
and to make fee payments based on the use of gpecihe right of Bermuda and SVBL to occupy and
develop the Ku BSS frequency bands at the 96.2°\0rhital position has been historically disputedabthird
party, Spectrum Five LLC. SES and SVBL have sudolgsiefended all such claims and the party pringd
satellite facilities to SVBL has received permananthority from the US telecommunications regulator
operate EchoStar VI at the location. SES is notrawéany current activities by Spectrum Five tatowue the
dispute, however, there can be no assurance teatr8m Five will not take such actions in the fatur

SVBL's operations at 96.2°W.L. are subject to thmpliwable provisions of a Licence, a Certificate of
Compliance, a Certificate of Competence, a Ceatiimf Coordination issued by the BRA, an Orbites®urce
Use Agreement entered into between Bermuda and SWBkmuda's Telecommunications Act 1986, the
Satellite Network Notification and Coordination Réggfions 2007, as well as the Radio Regulationth@iTU,
international treaties, laws, resolutions, ordéxsd|etins, agreements, decrees, standards and agipticable
regulatory, legal and administrative instruments.

Because Bermuda is an overseas territory of the,ddellites licenced by Bermuda are notifiedht® TU by
the U.K. Except for its notification role, the U.lgovernment does not regulate the provision ofiseriay
SVBL.

Mexico

In 2004, Mexico's Secretariat of Communications dmdnsport $CT) granted to QuetzSat, a SES affiliate
incorporated under the laws of Mexico, a concessmroccupy orbital position 77°W.L. and develop its
corresponding frequency bands (12.2-12.7 GHz, 17.8-GHz) in the Broadcasting Satellite Service -(Ku
BSS), including the rights to broadcast and recsigaals (all such rights under the concessionitaiter
referred to as “landing rights”). The 77°W.L. odbiposition is assigned to Mexico pursuant to thpendix
30/30A Region 2 Plan of the ITU, and the relatedcession was awarded to QuetzSat following itsessfal
bid at auction. The concession is for a renewaista of 20 years.

QuetzSat's operations at 77°W.L. are subject toapplicable provisions of the following: its consies,
including the conditions set forth in the concessand its technical annexes; Mexico's Federal Ldw o
Telecommunications and Broadcasting as amende@li8 gee below) and Regulations of Communicatian vi
Satellite of Mexico; the Poalitical Constitution thfe United Mexican States; the Radio RegulationtheflTU;
international treaties; laws; resolutions; ordémgljetins; agreements; decrees; official Mexicaandards and
other regulatory, legal or administrative provisiossued by the Mexican government.

On January 16, 2013, Mexico adopted a major refoirits Federal Telecommunications Law. Pursuarthéo
new Federal Law of Telecommunications and Broaduasall concessions for the use of radio-frequeneire
to be issued by the newly created Federal Institfitd elecommunicationsifetel) (formerly the Federal
Commission of Communications @ofete). The reform included a relaxation of foreign istraent limitations
in telecommunications, from 49 per cent to 100qest. The 49 per cent foreign investment limitatiemains

in place for foreign investment in broadcastingyo@duetzSat’s concession is considered a telecornmations

service under the new law so 100 per cent of forgigestment is authorised.

Pursuant to its concession QuetzSat is requiratiake semi-annual payments for fees based on thefuse
frequencies for the provision of service under tioacession and file annual audited financial statdm
Moreover consistent with the conditions establishiedler the concession, QuetzSat reserves a paofion
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satellite capacity in each frequency band for ugdhe state for national security networks and docial
services, with coverage of all of the nationalitery.

With respect to system operations, QuetzSat mustiger SCT with any information or resources reqiiite
conclude the international coordination processamy other process required for operation of thellgst
system. QuetzSat assumes responsibility for satelintrol and operations. As required by the cesioa, the
main and alternate satellite system control andatipm centres are established and maintained iridde
territory. Such centres are capable of limitingimterrupting satellite transmissions upon Ifetalégjuest.
QuetzSat is also obligated under the concessiondiatain continuity and quality of service and toyde
coverage of national territory.

Majority ownership in QuetzSat is held by Satéliebales, S. de R.L. de C.V. (Satélites Globake$)lexican
entity.

In December 2013, QuetzSat notified the reguldtat ES Global South America Holdings, S.L. (holafet9
per cent of the shares of Satélites Globales) d&f8l [Satin America, S.A., both wholly-owned subsidiarof
SES S.A., sought to acquire the remaining 51 petr @eshares in Satélites Globales, which shares fveld by
Mexican citizens. Ifetel authorised such transfeMay 2014 and upon transfer of such Mexican-owstetes,
QuetzSat became a 100 per cent foreign-owned entity

In 2001, the SCT granted to Sistemas Satelitalddaléco, S. de R.L. de C.VSEM), an affiliate of the Issuer
incorporated under the laws of Mexico, a conces&nrrights to transmit and receive frequenciesecissed

with foreign satellites that cover and provide smrwithin Mexican territory, for a term of 10 ysarThis

authorisation was renewed in 2011 for a term of/dérs. To date, 25 satellites in the SES fleetatkhorised

for use in Mexico under this concession.

Consistent with Mexican law prior to the recenbref, majority ownership in SSM is held by a Mexiantity.
SSM complies with obligations to make monthly répan the use of satellite capacity on each ofttellites
listed on its concession, and to make semi-annaminpnts for fees based on the use of frequenciethéo
provision of service under the concession. Purstarits concession, SSM files annual audited fifglnc
statements.

The QuetzSat and SSM concessions authorise lamidjhty only and do not authorise provision of erséu
services. Rather, QuetzSat and SSM must each etimitré contracts only with duly authorised hoklef
concessions or other authorisations to provideigEsvto end-users. Contracts for the provision paEce
segment to customers must be approved in advanitelrggulator Ifetel.

QuetzSat and SSM are subject to the laws and tggndaof Mexico, as well as the laws and regulatiof
countries from or within which QuetzSat or SSM pdevservices. Such laws and regulations may limit o
prohibit QuetzSat's or SSM'’s ability to sell semgdn certain markets.

Mexico, the countries served by QuetzSat or SSMheir regulatory authorities may adopt new lawdices
or regulations, or change their interpretationxating laws, policies or regulations, which coghilise existing
authorisations to be changed or cancelled, reqQinetzSat or SSM to incur additional costs or otlsw
adversely affect operations or revenue. If Quetz$8abSM fails to remain compliant with the termsitsf
concession or should QuetzSat or SSM be unablétaeinoany necessary government approvals, sualréail
could delay or prevent QuetzSat or SSM from offgsome or all of its services.

Brazil

In 2014, Brazil's National Telecommunication Agen@natel) granted SES DTH do Brasil Ltda., a SES
affiliate incorporated under the laws of Brazilncessions to occupy orbital positions\Wa.. and 64W.L.,
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and develop the corresponding FSS and BSS frequmnogs. The related concessions were awarded to SES
DTH do Brasil following its successful bid at anctian. Both concessions are for a renewable terfrbofears.

SES DTH do Brazil's operations at 48°W.L. andV@4_. are subject to the following: its concessirgluding

the conditions set forth in the concession andechnical annexes; applicable provisions of Braziederal
Telecommunications Law and Regulations of Commuiticavia Satellite of Brazil; the Radio Regulatioofs
the ITU; laws; resolutions; orders; agreements;@hdr regulatory, legal or administrative provisassued by
the Brazilian government.

With respect to system operations, SES DTH do Bragst provide Anatel with any information or resces
required to conclude the international coordinajwacess or any other process required for operatiche
satellite system. SES DTH do Brasil assumes regititysfor satellite control and operations. Asquéred by
the concession, the main satellite system contrdl @peration centres will be established and miaiethin
Brazil. Such centres will be capable of limiting interrupting satellite transmissions upon Anate€guest.
SES DTH do Brasil is also obligated under the cssioms to maintain continuity and quality of seeyito
provide coverage of national territory and to datbcto the Brazilian territory 25 per cent of thaat
transponders of the satellite that will occupy #&W.L. orbital position and 50 per cent of theatot
transponders of the satellite that will occupy84.. orbital position. SES-14 will be located at\VBL. and its
launch is scheduled for Q4 2017. SES must locatellite at 64V.L. no later than until August 2020.

In addition, New Skies Satellites B.V., SES Amenictnc. and SES Astra AB, through New Skies Satllit
Ltda (New Skies Ltdj a Brazilian entity, have been granted Brazil ketaccess for the following operational
satellites at the following orbital locations:

Satellite Operator Operational Satellite Orbital Slot Frequency Band:
NEW SKIES NS&-7 20°W C and K
SATELLITES B.V.

SES-4 22°W C and Kt

SES-6 40.5°wW C, Ku and C (AP30E
SES ASTRA AE SES-5 5°E C
SES Americom Ini AMC-12 37.5°W C

New Skies Ltda is obligated to make semi-annuabnteon the use of satellite capacity at the aigbdrorbital
positions listed above and to make annual paynfenfees based on the maintenance of licencesariBSES
DTH do Brasil will be subject to the same requiratseonce the satellites are operational at 48°\alrid
64°W.L.

The concessions held by SES DTH do Brasil and NkiwsS.tda authorise landing rights only and do not
authorise provision of end-user services. Rathe§ BTH do Brasil and New Skies Ltda must each enthat

it contracts only with duly authorised holders obncessions or other authorisations to provide
telecommunication services to end-users.

Brazilian regulatory authorities may adopt new lapslicies or regulations, or change their integtion of
existing laws, policies or regulations, which coalguse existing authorisations to be changed ocetiad,
require SES DTH do Brasil or New Skies Ltda to madditional costs or otherwise adversely affe@rapions
or revenue. If SES DTH do Brasil or New Skies Lali(s to remain compliant with the terms of its ceasion,
such failure could delay or prevent SES DTH do BrasNew Skies Ltda from offering some or all ¢§i
services.
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Canada

Ciel is a limited partnership organised under tesl of the Province of Ontario, Canada that isreutly

majority-owned by SES. Ciel holds Canadian spectliaances (previously referred to as “radio licesige
permitting operation by Ciel of the Ciel-2 Ku-BS&aellite at the 129°W.L. orbital position, the Ci#lKa-BSS

payload on SES-2 at the 86.5°W.L. orbital positiol the Ciel-6i Ka-BSS payload on SES-3 at the \MOB?

orbital position. Ciel has filed applications withdustry Canada to develop satellites at the falhgwthree
orbital positions:

Nominal Orbital Slot Frequency Bands
86.5°W.L. Ka-BSS
103°W.L. Ka-BSS
138°W.L. Ku-BSS

For details of Ciel's satellites located in thesgital slots, seeBusiness—Satellite Fleet—Fleet

Ciel is subject to the laws of Canada and reguiabyg authorities of the Canadian government, primnar
Industry Canada and the Canadian Radio-televisiuh Belecommunications Commissio@RTC). Ciel's
operations are subject to regulation and licenbingndustry Canada pursuant to the Radiocommuoitaiict
(the Radio Ac). The Radio Act empowers Industry Canada to regulae orderly development and efficient
operation of radio communications in Canada. InguSanada has the authority to issue licencesplestia
standards, assign Canadian orbital slots and plaraltocation and use of the radio spectrum, incdhe
radio frequencies upon which satellites and edaifioss depend.

Ciel requires licences issued by the Minister afustry pursuant to the provisions of the Radio thcbperate
satellites and develop radio spectrum. The Ministes broad discretion to issue these licencesx terims and
conditions on such licences, to amend those tentsanditions and to suspend or revoke such licenierms
of the licences with which Ciel must comply in arde operate the Ciel-2 satellite include publicdié

commitments, the payment of annual fees, sateltiterage of all areas of Canada visible from thutairslot

and compliance with foreign ownership restricti@pplicable to holders of radio licences. Industgn@da
issues guidelines and procedures on the spectaamsing process which provide a framework withirncivh
decisions under the Radio Act are made.

Sweden

SES, through its wholly-owned Swedish subsidiars SESTRA AB, holds the rights to use Swedish orbital
locations at 5.0°E.L. and 13°W.L. and their asgeddrequencies. SES ASTRA AB is permitted by P®S t
operate in the C-, Ku- (FSS and BSS) and Ka-fregudrands on the ASTRA 4A and SES-5 satellites. SES
ASTRA AB has a space activities licence for the RBT4A satellite and its frequency bands (Regeripghkl
N2007/8282/FIN). It also has a licence for spadwvisies for the SES-5 satellite including the K- (FSS and
BSS), C- and Ka-frequency bands (Regeringsbes|QfiLiIB375/F).

The Swedish National Space Board, acting on thedatarof the Ministry of Education, acts as the faigu for
the launch of Swedish space objects. Outer spdiatias are governed by the Swedish Law on Oufescs
(Lag (1982:963) om Rymdverksamhet) of 1982. A Selediatellite operator is required to have a licdoce
space activities and to place objects in outerespadicence for space activities is granted tonedsh satellite
operator on a per satellite basis. The definitiba &wedish satellite operator is, however, atdiseretion of
the Swedish National Space Board; it is not defimethe Law on Outer Space. A licence may be stltfec
conditions to be determined upon issuance of ttemtie and may be revoked if the licensee violdtesdrms
of the licence, which are also at the discretiothefSwedish National Space Board.
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A licence is required to (i) perform activities tamds outer space (i.e., TT&C) and (ii) to placeeots in outer
space. However, a licence is not required to recgignals from outer space.

The PTS, mandated by the Ministry of Enterpriseerggp and Communications, is the official regulabbr
satellite communications and frequency use in Swe@irrently, frequencies are coordinated with RTS
accordance with a document entitled “Routines fagBency Coordination,” a non-binding set of guirtks

outlining the basic procedures for coordination afidcation of satellite frequencies. The guiddirspecify

among other rights and remedies that in order boniufrequency filings through the PTS, such conypaust

be a Swedish legal entity.

No Swedish definition of a satellite operator existhe factors contributing to SES ASTRA AB'’s stais a
Swedish satellite operator are at the discretiah®PTS and the Swedish National Space Board.

Andean Community

On 11 December 2009, the Andean Community authobiisawv Skies to use the Ku-band frequencies in the
SIMON BOLIVAR 2 satellite network filing at the 6W.L. orbital location for an initial term of 30 yea The
Colombian Administration (on behalf of the Andeaon@nunity) is the notifying administration resporsifor

the international coordination of, interference tpotion of and interference resolution for the SINIO
BOLIVAR 2 ITU network filing.

The applicable conditions for use of the satellite set forth in Decisions 654 and 725 of the Andea
Community. Decision 725 Community Authorisation for Operation and Commedis#éion for Member
Countries’ Orhit-Spectrum Resources at the 67° \Webttal Locatiorf) granted New Skies authorisation for
commercial use of the orbit-spectrum resourceb@ftndean Community member states at the 67°WHitabr
location. Decision 725 mandates that New Skiesragte prices, terms and conditions for the provisid
capacity and services from the 67°W.L. orbital tam® and that New Skies has the right to retainealenue

for such capacity and services. Decision 654 (tRegulatory Framework for Commercial Utilisation of
Member Countries’ Orbit-Spectrum Resources”) alufiesrthe Andean Community Secretary General ta ente
into an agreement with New Skies and provides thatauthorisation granted becomes null and voichupo
failure of New Skies to comply with its terms.

In February 2010 SES signed a contract as provitd€kcision 725. The contract requires that SE Stiate
the SIMON BOLIVAR 2 network by placing a satelligg the 67°W.L. orbital location before July 31, 201
SES fulfilled this requirement by redeploying thM@&-4 satellite to 67°W.L. SES deployed a seconelkizt,
AMC-3, to that orbital location in early 2012. Umdbe contract, the Andean Community is responditnie
coordinating the operation of satellites at thatattocation under ITU procedures and SES mudigipate in
all coordination activities related to satellitegtee orbital location.

A February 2014 amendment to the contract providas SES has the right, but not the obligatiorplexe a
satellite meeting certain specified technical patans at the 67°W.L. orbital location before 30eJ@2017. An
April 2012 amendment to the contract allows the dard Community to terminate the contract, upon 3@'da
notice, in the event that SES does not place aifgual satellite at 67°W.L. by the specified dateith
allowances for any delay due to force majeure ieting this date.

In consideration for the authorisation and pursuanthe terms of the contract, SES must provide eand
Community Member States with a portion of the Kadbarbit/spectrum resource at the 67°W.L. locatiorg

manner consistent with technical specificationdarh in the contract. The contract terms incluglguirements
to provide training to telecommunications sectdiciEls of the Member States and to provide a sraalbunt
of C-band capacity on an SES satellite at a sephyeation.
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The European Union
Telecommunications Regulations & Audiovisual Regria

The EU'’s regulatory Framework for Electronic Comneations {elecoms Package adopted in 2002 and
substantially amended in 2009 covers EU spectrulitigs®y licensing, access/interconnection issued an
consumers’ rights. Key provisions of the Teleconaekage also include technology neutrality in spmatr
management and the importance of the Radio Regokatf the ITU. SES’s and its customers’ activides
governed by the principles of the Telecoms Packagparticular those regarding spectrum policy #makse
related to the procedures and conditions to awthdhie delivery of wireless services including ltdeservices.
The Telecoms Package is now under further revietin mew proposed amendments due out in the autdmn o
2016.

The Radio Spectrum Policy Programni@SPP, adopted in March 2012, is consistent with théed@ms
Package. The RSPP outlines for the period from 2012015 at a strategic level how using spectrum ca
contribute to the most important political objeetivof the European Union. The RSPP specifies thd te
release spectrum for mobile wireless broadbanaiious frequency bands specifically below 6 GHzluding

the 3.4-3.8 GHz band, provides guidance on theiagimn of spectrum management principlesg(
efficiency, neutrality, trading) and clarifies ti8J Commission’s role in harmonisation of rulesg on
tradable frequencies or on coordination at the Ktdraal borders with non-EU countries). It remaimslear
whether a new RSPP will be adopted or all spectmatters will be covered under the newly amended
Telecoms Package.

The EU sets up principles of freedom to establisti fieedom to receive and retransmit audiovisuadiane
within the EU with the Audiovisual Media Service8AMMS) Directive. In the EU, the “country of origin
principle” applies to the distribution of traditiahTV broadcasts and on-demand services. BecausHitea
transmissions are often international in natues, Uplinked from one country and received in anotireseveral
other countries), the country of origin principleoals the cumulative burden on satellite broadcas(er
service providers) of complying with the laws aedulations of multiple Member States.

The AVMS Directive is also important to SES’s buesia. The Directive, which applies to lineke ( traditional
television) and non-lineare(g, video on demand) TV-like services, sets up comrmtamdards regarding
programme content which EU Member States are redu@ impose on service providers whose transnmissio
originate from an EU Member State’s territory. TA¥MS Directive provides that audiovisual services
properly licenced in one EU Member State can beametitted in other Member States without a further
licence. To the extent the service providers whamsgent are transmitted via SES's satellites apeagiately
licenced in an EU Member State, there are no amditibroadcasting licensing requirements for SHSS S
undertakes to confirm that broadcasters (or septogiders) transmitting via its satellites haveradcessary
licences.

Sanctions Regulations

Certain EU sanctions regulations restrict SES'$itglib provide services in, or export hardware tertain
countries or specific persons or entities. In ¢ertases, SES may be able to obtain authorisatmn &n EU
Member State in order to provide service that watlterwise be subject to sanctions. However, tiereo
guarantee that such authorisation will be granfesl.a result, SES may be required to forgo commercia
opportunities that are subject to sanctions. Failar obtain or maintain required sanctions authtidss or
failure to comply with applicable sanctions lawsdaegulations could have a material adverse effacits
business.

On 28 November 2012, New Skies made a voluntamgiaisre to the Dutch Ministry of Finance concerning
certain unregistered or unauthorised paymentsecblat its business with Iranian persons not idietibn the
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EU sanctioned parties list. These payments repesddess than 0.25 percent of New Skies’ total ahnu
revenue for 2010, 2011 and 2012. No further paymemte received. On 13 June 2013, the Dutch Minastr
Finance concluded its review of the matter by isgua warning to New Skies and advised that a sarti
compliance audit would take place in 2014. No finether penalty was assessed. New Skies has hbega
contacted concerning an audit. Under the then tefledU sanctions rules, the payment service pevid
responsible for requesting registration or auttatios of payments related to New Skies’ businesk Wwanian
persons. It is possible that certain payments tfsam the Group were not registered. This couldosepthe
Group to claims by the payment service providerguastion. SES has informed the payment servicaders
with which it holds accounts of pertinent Iran santions. SES continues to work cooperatively it
payment service providers to enable compliance agtplicable EU regulations.

International Telecommunication Union Filings and Gordination Procedures
International Regulation

The Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, the U.S., the Nédéimels, Brazil, Canada, Colombia, Mexico, Sweden and
the U.K. are members of the ITU. The ITU, a spéotal agency of the United Nations of which mostrtdas

in the world are members, establishes rules andatigns relating, among other things, to the coation of

the international use of the radio frequency spctand orbital positions. All members of the ITWéahe
same rights as other members to use frequencyrspeend corresponding orbital positions. The Graip
required to comply with all provisions of the ITUo@vention, including its Radio Regulations, andeoth
applicable international treaties to which the afeentioned countries are parties.

Allocation of Frequency

Through the Radio Regulations, which are in pasigieed to prevent harmful interference, the ITUesuises
the use of orbital positions and associated fregjesn The Radiocommunication Bureau is the ITU'slybo
which administers the ITU's Radio Regulations. E&EH member nation is required to register its [osgo
use of orbital slots with the ITU's RadiocommunioatBureau.

Once spectrum at an orbital slot has been requdsteal country and the Radiocommunication Bureau is
notified, other countries may inform the Radiocomication Bureau of any conflicts with their presemt
proposed use of the spectrum at that orbital lonatiwhen a conflict or potential conflict is noteshuntries
must negotiate in an effort to coordinate the psegouses and resolve any interference concerns. The
Radiocommunication Bureau may be asked to assisesolving any dispute arising in connection with
proposed uses of frequencies and orbital locatidosiever, no binding dispute resolution mechanigplias,

and, if there is no agreement, a satellite systalhnat be entitled to protection from interferencader
international law. Any country may place a satellir earth station in operation without coordinatend
notification. However, if it does so the satelliteearth station is not entitled to registrationttie ITU's Master
International Register and the associated protestimm harmful interference associated with sedfistration.

The governments of the Grand Duchy of Luxemboung, U.S., the Netherlands, Brazil, Canada, Colombia,
Mexico, Sweden and the U.K. are each responsiblefiing and coordinating SES's or its affiliates’
applications for the use of frequencies at spetifieital locations with the Radiocommunication & under
the provisions of the ITU Convention. When a canftir potential conflict is noted in the Group’ssusf an
orbital slot or affecting a satellite it operatdss relevant filing administration is responsilde fiegotiating to
resolve any intended use or interference concénnmany instances these governments delegate éythmr
the operator, SES ASTRA, New Skies, SES AMERICOMESSGibraltar, Ciel, SES DTH do Brasil or
QuetzSat, to coordinate use of the spectrum atrhitablocation directly with other potentially affted
operators. Agreements reached with other operadoes forwarded to their respective governments for
ratification. Coordination between SES AMERICOM atder U.S.-licenced operators is not subject ¢ol U
Radio Regulations, as it is considered a domesfc khatter. As a British Overseas Territory, Gitanals not a
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member of the ITU. Therefore, to forward a requeshe ITU to coordinate the use of certain freaues in
connection with a satellite network, the Group mmake the request to the Office of Communicati@fegm)

in the U.K. through the GRA, in accordance with ithiternational obligations of the U.K. as set authie Radio
Regulations of the ITU.

The operation of satellites at all orbital slotsdi@ne in accordance with the ITU Convention andRiéslio
Regulations.

Other
Regulation of Earth Stations

SES, its subsidiaries and its affiliates operatthestations in a number of jurisdictions includimgt not limited

to the U.S., the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, Can&ieeden, Gibraltar, Bermuda and Belgium. SES or its
subsidiaries and affiliates hold the relevant eastition licences in these jurisdictions. Fees @ai in
connection with these antenna applications andidiee Renewal fees and/or annual regulatory fezslao
assessed on earth stations. Violations of ruleBcayte to earth station licensing may result inctens, fines,
loss of authorisations and denials of authorisatifor new earth stations and for renewals of exsti
authorisations.

Spectrum Reallocation

The ITU and a number of national governments haveanced or commenced efforts to find more spectum
support projected growth in demand for terresbraadband services. Typically these efforts foausectrum
below the frequencies that SES deploys on the Gsaagiellites. In some countries, however, partthefC-
band frequencies (3.4-3.8 GHz) have been desigrfateshared terrestrial use, thereby inhibiting bgethe
Group's satellites and limiting growth of servicesing these bands in those countries. It is exgetttat
pressure to designate C-band or parts of the C-fuartdrrestrial broadband will continue, which éurther
limit the use of satellite services in this bandr®recently, there have been attempts to introdudecrease
terrestrial “sharing” of the Ku- and Ka-band fregaies the Group uses for satellite services.

The fact that the Group, and the satellite indugtgerally, use this spectrum extensively on iteli@s to
provide services to its customers may be a bulageinst arbitrary reallocation, especially in majuarkets.
However, the Group cannot be certain that sometdegnin which it does business will not reallocéte
satellite spectrum that it uses today in favoutesfestrial services or introduce constraints om @roup’s
operations through spectrum sharing.

Spectrum Auctions and Spectrum Fees

A small number of countries today use, or have gseg to introduce, an auction mechanism to asgigctrsim
for the provision of satellite services in theitional territory. A number of other countries hantroduced, or
are considering, market-based spectrum fegs.,(based on “opportunity cost” pricing) for all spech use,
including satellite spectrum use. The Group cameotertain that the use of such auctions and/sr\iéié not

increase. If they do, they could create signifidaartiers to entry and significantly increase threup’s costs of
doing business in those countries.

Insurance

The Group is required by certain governments tahpasge third-party liability insurance to cover dgmahat
may be caused by its satellites. In its insuramaleyy the Group designates the governments ofGhand
Duchy of Luxembourg, the U.S., the Netherlands, d&me the U.K., Gibraltar, the Isle of Man, Mexi@and
Canada as additional insured parties and pays pnesnfor coverage broad enough to cover these partie
against liability as a “launching state” under mtional conventions.
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Market Access and Authorisations of Other Natiohahorities

Legal and regulatory restrictions and requiremeagagerning satellite service vary among countries. &
provider of satellite services and capacity, SESubject to the many national communications, syt
broadcasting laws and regulations in each of thisdictions in which it operates. Many countriesvéna
liberalized their regulations to permit entities goovide voice, data or video services using nomektic
satellites. This trend accelerated with the impletagon of commitments made by many WTO member#)én
context of the 1997 WTO Agreement on Basic Telecomations Services, to open their home satellite
markets to greater or full competition on defineleslules. For these countries, often no approvitence is
required or, alternatively, an approval or licersceequired but typically granted to the satelipeerator.

Other countries require the satellite operatoritiaio a licence to provide satellite services quacity within
their national boundaries, or otherwise place legale factorestrictions on market access by a foreign stelli
operator. In such markets, the provision of senficen foreign-licenced satellites may be complidate
prohibited altogether.

Some of these countries require SES to obtaindegrauthorisation or approval before SES may cfitzllite
services or capacity in those countries. As SEBdaes or relocates satellites, it seeks the requisences,
authorisations or approvals. There is no guarahiesuch licences, authorisations or approvalsbeittimely
or ever granted. This would delay or prevent maakeess by SES.

Sometimes the only means to access a market islliygsthrough a third-party provider in that cogntin
order to provide its services and capacity in themetries, SES must negotiate sales of serviceapacity
agreements with these third parties. Third partyise providers using satellites operated by SES aso
required to obtain local approvals necessary tustrat to or receive from these satellites.

In addition, the laws, regulations and practicesaie countries may make it harder to compete again
domestic or regional satellite system operator fritvat country. Obtaining and maintaining regulatory
approvals involves significant time and expense.

Antitrust and Competition Laws

SES is subject to and must comply with applicaldmpetition laws and regulations in the jurisdiction
which it does business. Based on market conditaorts SES’'s commercial interests in a particular trgun
these laws and regulations may limit SES’s abitityprovide service in a country. In certain caSsS may be
required to obtain approval from the relevant goweental authority in order to provide service omptete a
transaction, merger, joint venture or other agtiut which it would have a controlling interest. ¢donnection
with the 50.5 per cent Acquisition, the parties Wé required to submit a request for antitrustevevunder the
Hart-Scott-Rodino Act. Depending on how any relévaarket is defined, SES may be deemed to openae i
highly concentrated market and hold strong markettipns in several countries.

As a result, there is no guarantee that competiathority approval will be granted for such trastsm or
activity. In some circumstances, competition auttes may allow a venture or activity to proceed tmould
place limitations or conditions upon SES'’s actesti SES may be required to forego commercial oppibie:s
should competition authorities not allow a tranismct merger, joint venture or other activity to peed or
should the limitations imposed by that authoritydetermined to be overly burdensome.

In its SES/DPC merger control decision in Deceml#804, the German Competition Authority
(Bundeskartellamt) found that SES held a dominasttipn in the market for the provision of satelltapacity
for DTH services in Germany (or the German-speakémgtory). The Bundeskartellamt concluded thaSSE
satellite transponder business in Germany must omjih special, more stringent competition rules f
dominant companies. In particular, the Group mustdiscriminate against business partners, refusipply
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satellite capacity without objective reasons, emién exclusive purchase agreements with or grapally
rebates to customers, or tie the sale of satebipacity and other services.

O3b

O3b is subject to the regulatory authority of Jer@ed the United Kingdom. As a British Crown Depemncly,
Jersey's space and ITU activities are handled byuh. Accordingly, the UKSA is responsible forditsing
03b’s space activities under the OSA. The UKSAibsaised the licence to O3b for O3b’s first twelvieHies.
0O3b’s use of spectrum is regulated by Ofcom. THe does not issue licences for satellite use oftspm.

O3b brought into use its assigned frequencies fwitne deadline of 23 October 2014.

0O3b’s gateways in Hawaii, Greece, Australia (Pegthydl Peru perform TT&C as well as communications
functions for the O3b satellite system. Each of¢hgateways has received applicable licences andtpe

In the 18.8-19.3 GHz and 28.6-29.1 GHz band, O3btrooordinate with all prior filed satellite netwsr O3b
expects to be able to coordinate to prevent harimfetference. In the 17.8-18.6 GHz and 27.6-28# BGands,
O3b must protect geostationary satellite netwontespective of O3b’s ITU filing dates. O3b must ihoate
with all non-geostationary Ka-band satellite netwgofiled ahead of it regardless of the frequenaydsabeing
used. According to Ofcom procedures, O3b must @splete coordination with operators that have UTKI
filings. In most of these cases, there is a mixeoripy situation where both parties have ITU pitpiover the
other for some of their filings.

In some countries, terrestrial operators use soares pf O3b’s Ka-band spectrum. However, the rifk o
material delay of commercial operations is mitigabecause such use is taken into account for aatsit@
selection and terrestrial coordination, and O3tegdiency plan is compliant with ITU frequency adltions.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Issuer

The corporate name of the Issuer is SES and iisdasname is SES. The Issuer was incorporated timele
laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg on 16 Mar€®2 as a public limited liability compangdciété
anonyme and is registered with Luxembourg Trade and CamifiRegister under number B 81.267. The Issuer
is governed by Luxembourg law. SES’s registeredesidis Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf (Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg) and its telephone number i852 710 725-1. The lIssuer is incorporated for an
unlimited term.

Share Capital

The Issuer has issued two classes of shares: Bl&disares and Class B Shares. Although they cotestitu
separate classes of shares, Class A Shares arslBCEisares carry the same rights except thatdilCilass B
Shares, held by the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg antiMo entities wholly-owned by the Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg, entitle their holders to only 40 pentasf the dividend, or in case the Issuer is digsh| to 40 per
cent of the net liquidation proceeds paid to had#rClass A Shares and (ii) that the Class B Share entitled
to a preferential subscription right for all capitecreases of the Issuer. Each Share, whethetass@\ or B, is
entitled to one vote. In accordance with the ISsuarticles of association (th&rticles of Associatiol, no
shareholder of Class A Shares may acquire shar@ghbtever means, directly or indirectly, in a walyieh
would make that shareholder’s holding cross a 2@est, 33 per cent or 50 per cent threshold im$enf such
shareholder’s proportional ownership of the Shaneless it has obtained prior approval from the Gane
Meeting of Shareholders. Such threshold is caledlaly taking into account the shares of all clabstd by a
shareholder of Class A. For the number of issuadeshof each class as of 26 May 2016 (being thestlat
practicable date prior to the publication of thisgpectus) seePtincipal Shareholdersbelow.

All the Shares issued by the Issuer are fully @aid represent capital. The Issuer has not issueeedible
securities exchangeable securities or securititts warrant.

There are no acquisition rights and or obligationsr authorised but unissued capital of the Issumeany
undertaking to increase the capital.

Shares in the Issuer held by or on behalf of thesler itself

On 30 April 2016 the Issuer held 6,819,786 FDRshwio par value, and with a carrying value in adeace
with Luxembourg GAAP of €188,646,582.06.

History of the share capital of the Issuer on thastt 3 financial years

On 2 April 2015 the extraordinary shareholders’ timgeof the Issuer has authorised the Board of dims to
issue within the authorised share capital amourtting 644,250,000 a maximum of 6,200,000 new Chass
Shares and of 3,100,000 new Class B Shares. Gzathe date, the Board of Directors has approveisshe of
6,000,000 new Class A Shares and 3,000,000 nevs Bl&&hares and has mandated the Chairman’s Office t
accept the relevant subscriptions. On 1 June 2B&5share capital of the Issuer was increased duynig 9
million new shares (6 million of Class A Shares annhillion of Class B Shares. For further detaide page
125 of the annual report for the 2015 financialryea

On 7 April 2016 the extraordinary shareholders’ timgeof the Issuer has authorised the Board of dims to
issue, from time to time, up to 61,848,000 Shares(l,232,000 new Class A Shares and 20,616,00Class

B Shares). On 7 April 2016 the Board of Directoes lapproved the issue of up-to 39,857,600 new @Glass
Shares and of up-to 19,928,800 new Class B Shamd@as mandated the Chairman’s Office to accept the
relevant subscription. On 31 May 2016, the shapitalaof the Issuer was increased by issuing 594@bBnew
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shares (39,857,600 of Class A Shares and 19,92880tass B Shares), and the B Shareholders coididb
the total aggregate amount of €137,854,500 andZ0&xisting FDRs.

As of the date of this Prospectus the authorisedesbapital of the Issuer including the issued esteapital is
€721,560,000 and as of 31 May 2016 the subscriapiat of the Issuer was set at €718,983,000 ctngisf
575,186,400 Shares with no par value, all of whadh fully paid up and divided into two categoriésShares,
383,457,600 Class A Shares and 191,728,800 Cl&tmRes.

Dividend policy

The Issuer is committed to maintain a progressivielend policy as part of its current use of cashigy, which
will be validated annually. There are no restrittioon dividend distributions other than as providfadby
Luxembourg company law.

Description of the rights preferences and restrimis attaching to each class of existing shares

Class A Shares and Class B Shares constitute fpaoae classes of shares in the Issuer butparikpassuin
all respects save as specifically provided herein.

The Class A Shares and the Class B Shares arg fraesferable.

No shareholder of Class A may hold, directly oriactly, more than 20 per cent, 33 per cent or &0gent of
SES'’s Shares unless he has obtained prior approvalthe General Meeting of Shareholders. Sucht lghall
be calculated by taking into account the Sharedl alasses held by a shareholder of Class A.

In case of an increase of the share capital olgkeer by a contribution that is either in kinditorcash, the
shareholders of Class B Shares have a preferentigkription right for additional Class B Sharestider for
the proportion of one issued Class B Share forisned Class A Shares to be maintained at all times

Class B Shares are issued each time for an isguiog equal to 40 per cent of the issuing prica ghare of
Class A.

The economic rights of one Class B Share comparedé Class A Share are 40 per cent.

The Issuer does not have any preferred sharegdésner outstanding and the Articles do not pm¥a the
issuance of such shares by the Issuer.

Actions necessary to change the rights of holdefshe Shares

A change of the rights of the holders of the Shaeegliires an amendment of the Articles of Assommti
Amendments of the Articles of Association requihargholder consent in accordance with the Articled
article 67-1 of the Luxembourg Company Law.

Description of any provision of the Articles of Assiation, statutes, charter or bylaws that wouldveaan
effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a cha@gn control of the issuer.

No shareholder of class A may hold, directly oriiectly, more than 20 per cent, 33 per cent or &0gent of
the Shares unless he has obtained prior appraval tihe General Meeting of Shareholders. Such livilitbe
calculated by taking into account the Shares otlabses held by a shareholder of Class A Shdrasll hot
apply to the shareholders issuing fiduciary cemdifes in agreement with the Issuer.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, a shamolor a potential shareholder who plans to acgiyre
whatever means, directly or indirectly, more th@nper cent, 33 per cent or 50 per cent of the Shamest
inform the Chairperson of the Board of Directorsoth intention.
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The Chairperson of the Board of Directors will theform the government of the Grand Duchy of Luxeuniy
of the planned acquisition, which may only be omgbby the government within three months of reogjvi
such information, should it determine that suclaeguisition is against the general public interest.

In case of no opposition from the government, tbarB of Directors shall convene an extraordinargting of
Shareholders, which may decide at a majority pexbitbr in article 67-1 of the Luxembourg law of AQgust
1915, as amended, regarding commercial companiesL(ixembourg Company La)y to authorise the
shareholder or potential shareholder to acquireerttaan 20 per cent, 33 per cent or 50 per cemteoBhares. If
the demanding party is a shareholder of the Issueray attend the General Meeting of Shareholdadswill
be included in the count for the quorum but maytaké part in the vote.

In the event of a breach of such ownership thresbolrestrictions by a person or a group of persmisg
together or under the control of one person, theesship of Shares above the thresholds or in brefthe
relevant restriction may not be enforced vis-athis Issuer and no right, including voting rightseatittements
to dividends and other distributions will be recisgl to such Shares. For the purposes of thisatiatr, the
method of acquisition of the Shares is irrelevant.

An indication of the articles of association, staas, charter or bylaws provisions, if any, govergithe
ownership threshold above which shareholder ownepsmust be disclosed.

In accordance with article 8 of the Luxembourg lafv1l January 2008 as amended, on transparency
obligations for issuers of securities, any shamrobr FDR holder acquiring or disposing of shane§DRs
respectively, is required to inform the Issuer #meiCommission de Surveillance du Secteur Finaniigtin

four trading days of the proportion of voting righteld as a result of such acquisition or dispodedre that
proportion reaches, exceeds or falls below thestuiels of 5 per cent, 10 per cent, 15 per cenpe2Cent, 25

per cent, 33 1/3 per cent 50 per cent or 66 2/ @et.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, a shamolor a potential shareholder who plans to acgiyre
whatever means, directly or indirectly, more th&p2r cent, 33 per cent or 50 per cent of the Shafr¢he
Issuer must inform the Chairperson of the BoarDiofctors of such intention.

Description of the conditions imposed by the memmtam and articles of association statutes, charter
bylaws governing changes in the capital, where swomditions are more stringent than is required taw.

In case of an increase of the share capital olgkeer by a contribution that is either in kinditorcash, the
shareholders holding Class B Shares have a préfdrsnbscription right for additional Class B Sésin order
for the proportion of one issued B Share for tveuésl Class A Shares to be maintained at all times.

Objects and Purposes

According to Article 2 of the Articles of Associati, SES’s objects and purposes are to take genenayl
interest whatsoever in electronic media and todtiveg more particularly, in the area of commurimas via
satellite. In this context, SES'’s purpose is thigling of participations, in any form whatsoever Limxembourg
companies and foreign companies, and any other ébrimvestment, the acquisition by purchase, sijpson,

or in any other manner as well as the transferaly, €£xchange or otherwise of securities of any kand the
administration, control and development of its fobid. In addition, the Issuer may conduct all kindf
commercial, industrial and financial business, witbvable as well as with immovable assets, whiamaly
deem useful in the accomplishment of its purpobe. [suer may also hold any kind of interest, infanm, by
way of participations, guarantees or otherwise,aimy Luxembourg or foreign enterprise, company or
association likely to further SES’s purpose tolibst use.
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General Meetings

Under Luxembourg Company Law, the Issuer’s annndla extraordinary general meetings of Sharehslder
represent the entire body of shareholders of theels They have the widest powers, and resolupassed by
such meetings are binding upon all shareholdersthven absent, abstaining from voting or voting agiathe
resolutions.

The meetings are presided over by the ChairmaheoBbard of Directors or, in his absence, by onthefVice
Chairmen of the Board of Directors or, in their ese, by any other person hereto appointed by teting.
Any shareholder who is recorded in the Issuer’sett@der register the f4day before the meeting at 24 hours
(Luxembourg time) is authorised to attend and tie & the meeting. A shareholder may act at anyingeby
appointing a proxy who does not need to be a sbhteh

Each registered shareholder receives written nofieeGeneral Meeting of Shareholders, includirgttme of
the meeting, the agenda and the draft resolut@nkeast 30 days prior to the meeting. Holders DRE are
represented at the meeting by Banque et Caissedji@ de I'Etat acting as Fiduciary. Each FDR regnés
one Class A Share. If a holder of FDRs wants tendttthe General Meeting of Shareholders in pertat,
shareholder needs to convert at least one FDRair@@tass A Share. In order to facilitate the atteesdaof the
meeting by FDR holders, the Issuer pays the apgpiazharge for a conversion of up to 10,000 FDRsfshort
period prior to the annual general meeting for BBR holder who is not yet a shareholder of thedssu

Notice of the meeting and of the proposed agengalitished in the press. The Fiduciary circulates draft
resolutions to both international clearing systemgroclear and Clearstream, allowing FDR holdergite
their voting instructions to the Fiduciary in tinfiar the meeting. At the same time, the draft resohs are
made available on the Issuer’'s website. Unlesd-tleciary has received specific instructions frdre £FDR
holder, the Fiduciary must vote in favour of thegwsals submitted by the Board of Directors. Onenore
shareholders owning together at least 5 per cetiiteo§hares of the Issuer have the right to reqoesdd items
on the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholaled may deposit draft resolutions regarding itested
in the agenda or proposed to be added to the ag€hidarequest will need to be made in writing (wiail or e-
mail) and received no later than the twenty—seamdpreceding the General Meeting of Shareholdweisnall
need to include a justification or draft resolutimnbe adopted at the General Meeting of Sharetmldde
written request must include a contact addresshiochathe Issuer can confirm receipt within 48 hofuosn the
receipt of the request. The Issuer will then, a thtest fifteen days preceding the General Meetihg
Shareholders publish a revised agenda.

The meeting may deliberate validly only if at lehsif of the Class A Shares and at least half efGllass B
Shares are represented. In the event that thereelggiiorum is not reached, the meeting must benveced in
accordance with the form prescribed by the ArtidésAssociation. It may then validly deliberate hatit
consideration of the number of represented shares.

The proceedings are held in French, but an Englistslation is provided by the Issuer. A Frenclsigr of the
General Meeting of Shareholders minutes and thétsesf the shareholders’ votes are published erigbuer’s
website within 15 days after the General MeetingSbiareholders. With the exception of the procedure
described above (in respect of a shareholder iitgrid hold more than 20 per cent, 33 per centOopér cent,
respectively, of the shares of the Issuer), alréselutions of the meeting are adopted by a simaljrity vote
except if otherwise provided for by Luxembourg Camyp Law.

Extraordinary General Meetings

In case of no opposition from the Government of émkourg, the Board of Directors shall convene an
extraordinary meeting of Shareholders which mayd#eat a two-thirds majority as provided for inicle 67-1
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of the Luxembourg Company Law, to authorise thedader or potential shareholder to acquire moag 20
per cent, 33 per cent or 50 per cent of the Shares.

Without prejudice to the quorum requirements, thiiches of Association may be amended with a twicdih
majority in accordance with article 67-1 of the keaxoourg Company Law.

Annual General Meetings

The annual general meeting is held on the firstr3day in April of each year at 10.30 a.m., or ilsulay is a
legal holiday, on the preceding business day.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for definlBgS’s strategic objectives as well as its overaiporate
plan. The Board of Directors approves, upon prapibeen the Executive Committee, the annual consaéd
accounts of SES and the appropriation of resutis,Group’s medium-term business plan, the congelidla
annual budget of SES and the management repod sulimitted to the General Meeting of Shareholdéers.
also approves major investments and is respongibia-vis shareholders and third parties for th@aggment
of SES, which it delegates to the Executive Conemitt

The Board of Directors is composed of 18 non-exeeudirectors, five of them female. In accordandththe
Articles of Association, two-thirds of the Board Directors members represent holders of Class AeShand
one-third of the Board of Directors members reprebelders of Class B Shares. The mandates ofutrert
Board of Directors members will expire at the anraieneral Meeting of Shareholders in April 201712@&nd
2019 respectively.

On 1 January 2015 Mr. Romain Bausch, PresidentGE@ until 3 April 2014 has assumed the position of
Chairman of the Board of Directors. Mr. Bausch usrently assisted by two Vice Chairmen, Messrs ¢oen
Tesch and Jean-Paul Zens, each one elected oadtsedb proposals submitted by Board of Directoesniers
representing shareholders of Class A and of ClastsaBes, respectively.

In the event of a vacancy on the Board of Diregttite remaining Board of Directors members may,nupo
proposal from the Nomination Committee and on aptaary basis, fill such a vacancy by a majorityevdh
this case, the next General Meeting of Sharehold#rslefinitively elect the new Director who wilomplete
the term of the Director whose seat became vacant.

In accordance with internal regulations, at lease-third of the Board of Directors members must be
independent Directors. A Board of Directors menibaronsidered independent if he or she has ndoefitip

of any kind with the Issuer or management which rimagact his or her judgment. Independence for these
purposes is defined as:

. not having been a Director for more than 12 years;

. not having been an employee or officer of the Isswer the last five years;

. not having had a material business relationship thi¢ Issuer in the last three years; and

. not representing a significant shareholder owniimgctly or indirectly more than 5 per cent of SES’s
shares.

Nine of the current Board members are considerddpiendent: Mr. Marc Beuls, Mr. Marcus Bicknell, Mr.
Victor Casier, Mrs. Bridget Cosgrave, Mrs. Tsegai@ges, Mr. Conny Kullman, Mr. Ramu Potarazu, Mr.
Marc Speeckaert and Mrs. Katrin Wehr-Seiter.

171



Mr. Pierre Margue, Vice President Legal ServicespOmte and Finance acts as secretary of the Buoiard
Directors.

The following table sets forth the name, age arsltipo of each member of the Board of Directorofthe
date of this Prospectus.

Name Age  Position Term of mandate
Mr Romain BAUSCH 62 Non-executive Chairman 2019
Mr. Frangois TESCH 65 Non-executive Vice-Chairman 012
Mr. Jean-Paul ZENS 63 Non-executive Vice-Chairman 0172
Mr. Serge ALLEGREZZA 56 Non-executive Director 2018
Mr. Marc BEULS 59 Independent Non-executive Directo 2017
Mr. Marcus BICKNELL 68 Independent Non-executivedaitor 2017
Mr. Victor CASIER 42 Independent Non-executive Biaxr 2019
Mrs. Bridget COSGRAVE 54 Independent Non-execubrector 2017
Mr. Hadelin DE LIEDEKERKE 61 Non-executive Director 2018
BEAUFORT

Mr. Jean-Claude FINCK 60 Non-executive Director @01
Mrs.Tsega GEBREYES 46 Independent Non-executivedior 2019
Mr. Conny KULLMAN 65 Independent Non-executive Diter 2018
Mr. Ramu POTARAZU 54 Independent Non-executive Etioe 2017
Mrs. Anne-Catherine RIES 43 Non-executive Director 2017
Mr. Jean-Paul SENNINGER 56 Non-executive Director 01
Mr. Marc SPEECKAERT 65 Independent Non-executiveeBtior 2018
Mrs. Pascale TOUSSING 46 Non-executive Director @201
Mrs. Katrin WEHR-SEITER 46 Independent Non-exeaaidirector 2018

The business address of the members of the Bodatexftors is Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzd@fand
Duchy of Luxembourg) and its telephone number 32 710 725-1.

Board Practices

According to Article 9 of the Issuer’s the Articled Association, the Issuer is managed by the Bazrd
Directors. General Meeting of Shareholders eldatsBoard of Directors and determines the numbd3aafrd
of Directors members, their remuneration and tefroffice (which may not exceed six years). The Bbaf
Directors members shall be natural persons but neelde shareholders.

The Board of Directors is composed of a numberiadctbrs, based on a list of candidates submitiethb
Nomination Committee and representing the shareheldf Class B Shares, that is equal to one tHitthe
total number of members of the Board of Directand a number of Directors, based on a list of caatdsl
submitted by the Nomination Committee and repr@sgrthe shareholders of Class A Shares, that isleiqu
the difference between the total number of BoarDiogctors members and the number of Board of Darec
members representing the shareholders of ClassaBeS§hThe shareholders may submit to the Nomination
Committee a number of candidates at least equhktaumber of posts to be filled for their classes.

The Board of Directors members shall be electedngntive candidates presented on the list by the hetion
Committee and shall be appointed and may be rematvady time with or without cause by a simple migjo
vote of the Shares present or represented at theer@eMeeting of Shareholders, without considering
abstentions.
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According to Article 10 of the Articles of Assodiat, the Board of Directors may grant special p@aend
delegate the daily management of the Issuer, akasethe representation of the Issuer in relatmrhis
management, to one or several Directors, manageather agents, shareholders or not, acting ajoirgl]y or

in a committee. The Board of Directors may createnftime to time, one or several committees compage
Board of Directors members and/or external persamd to which it may delegate powers and roles as
appropriate.

According to Article 11 of the Articles of Assodiatt, the Board of Directors elects from among iexmbers a
Chairperson. The Board of Directors shall furtheoase two vice-chairpersons of the Board of Dine;tone

of whom shall be chosen from among the Directorminated by the shareholders of Class A Sharespaad
from among the Directors nominated by the sharehsldf Class B Shares. In the case of a tie, thaér@rson

has no casting vote.

Pursuant to Article 12 of the Articles of Assoaieitj the Board of Directors shall meet every timewhequired
by the Issuer’s business, but generally once imatgr. The Board of Directors shall further megbru the
written demand of two Directors. The Board of Diogs may deliberate or act validly only if a majgrof the
Directors are present or represented. If such euasunot achieved at a first meeting, the Boar@®ioéctors
may validly deliberate at a second meeting conveneatccordance with the above formalities, whatdter
number of Directors present or represented.

Pursuant to Article 13 of the Articles of Assoaiatj the resolutions of the Board of Directors aaesed by a
simple majority of votes of the voting Directorsepent or represented, without considering abstentim
addition, any material contract that is proposedbacsigned by the company or any of its wholly coltdd
operating subsidiaries with a shareholder ownitrggctly or indirectly, at least 5 per cent of theases of the
Issuer is subject to a prior authorisation by tleard of Directors. It is specified that, each Dioeavho has a
direct or indirect interest contrary to the Issaariterest in a matter submitted to the approvahefBoard of
Directors, must inform the Board of Directors. Siihector may not deliberate or vote on this matter

Committees

The Board of Directors governs through clearly itfied board committees to which it delegates darta
powers. The Issuer's committees include the Chaiten@ffice, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit a
Risk Committee and the Nomination Committee, as ag&lthe Executive Committee, which is respondibte
the day-to-day management of the Issuer. These dteaes) are properly authorised under the Articles o
Association to make decisions and act on behalfieflssuer’s’ Board of Directors within the paraenstlaid
down by the Board of Directors. The Board of Dioestis kept fully informed of the work of these auittees.
Any issues requiring resolution must be referrethéofull Board of Directors.

The Chairman’s Office

The Chairman and the two Vice Chairmen are membetbe Chairman’s Office. The Chairman’s Office
prepares the agenda for Board of Directors meetagsving the Vice Chairmen to coordinate the piregion

of board meetings with the Directors of their shal&ss. Current members are: Mr. Romain Bausch, Mr.
Francois Tesch and Mr. Jean-Paul Zens.

The Remuneration Committee

In accordance with general corporate governancelatds, the Board of Directors established a Rematina
Committee, which determines the remuneration ohtleenbers of the Executive Committee, and whichssdvi

on the overall remuneration policies applied thtaug the Issuer. It also makes a recommendation to
shareholders as to the remuneration of membetseoBoard of Directors, which is determined by shalder
vote at the Issuer’'s annual general meeting. TheuReration Committee reports to the Board of Doexctt
each meeting through its chairman. The Remuner&mnmittee is composed of six members, at leasird t
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of who are independent Board of Directors membardine with the Issuer’s internal regulations. The
committee is chaired by Mr. Conny Kullman (indepemi) and the other members are Mr. Romain Bausch, M
Marcus Bicknell (independent), Mr. Hadelin de Likelke Beaufort, Mr. Jean-Claude Finck and Mr. Jeank
Zens.

The Remuneration Committee also oversees the ingpitation of the decision under which the membeth®f
Executive Committee must within five years hold dugiivalent of an annual salary’s worth of registieshares
in the Issuer (with the President and Chief ExeeuBfficer of the Issuer having to hold shares twvonto years
of his salary).

The Audit and Risk Committee

As part of its overall corporate governance, tharBoof Directors established an Audit and Risk Caitea,
which assists the Board of Directors in carryingjitaioversight responsibilities in relation to porate policies,
risk management, internal control, internal ancedl audit and financial and regulatory reportmgctices.
The committee has an oversight function and prevalénk between the internal and external audaoi the
Board of Directors.

The Audit and Risk Committee is composed of six iners, four of whom are independent Board of Dinexcto
members. The Audit and Risk Committee is chairedMyy Marc Speeckaert (independent), and the other
members include Mr. Marc Beuls (independent), Mrg8 Allegrezza, Ms. Bridget Cosgrave (indepengent)
Mr. Jean-Claude Finck and Mrs. Katrin Wehr—Seited€pendent).

The Nomination Committee

In line with best practice in corporate governariae, Board of Directors established a Nominatiom@ittee
whose role is to identify and nominate suitabledidates for the Board of Directors of Directors;, &ection

by the annual General Meeting of Shareholders. pughosals are based on submissions from sharebdtite

a number of candidates at least equal to the numibposts to be filled for each class of sharehwld&he
Nomination Committee also proposes candidates fachive Committee membership for election by the
Board. The Nomination Committee is composed ofhsembers, at least a third of who are independeatdo
of Directors members in line with the Issuer’s in# regulations. The Nomination Committee is abaiby
Mr. Jean-Paul Zens, and the other members incMddiomain Bausch, Mr. Marcus Bicknell (independgnt)
Mr. Conny Kullman (independent), Mrs. Ries and Fhancois Tesch.

The Executive Committee

The Executive Committee, which is the senior denishaking body in the Group’s corporate governance
framework, reviews the Group’s financial reportiagd generates proposals for the allocation of coypa
resources which are submitted to the Board of Bore¢ ensuring that the strategic interests ofGheup are
coordinated and prioritised at the highest exeeutvel.

The Executive Committee is comprised of the follogvexecutives who lead the Group’s five primaryithess
functions:

1. the President and Chief Executive Officer;
2. the Chief Commercial Officer;

3. the Chief Development Officer;

4, the Chief Financial Officer; and

5. the Chief Technical Officer.
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This organisational and management structure stgppmdreamlined and efficient decision-making and ha
delivered operational synergies as well as enhabgsitiess development.

The Group has five customer-facing commercial gspgpch of which is headed by a senior vice preside

1. Europe;

2. the Americas;

3. Asia-Pacific, India and the Middle East;
4, Africa; and

5. Product Development and Management.

These commercial groups are supported by four M&#kitions CentresMSCS9, which develop new products
and solutions to enhance the customer experiemossathe four market verticals.

While the Issuer generates management reportinghéoisales performance of the different areas akitree
current financial reporting does not, for examplitempt to match these revenue streams to theardlelirect
and indirect operating expenses and underlyingssse

In analysing overall revenue and allocating botman and capital resources, the Group matches teaue to
the downlink region rather than according to salggnisation.

The Executive Committee is in charge of the daipnagement of the Group. It functions as a collelybaly.
The Executive Committee is mandated to prepare @ad the overall policies and strategies of SES for
approval by the Board of Directors. It may approm&ra-group transactions, irrespective of the antboun
provided that they are consistent with the constéid annual budget of the Issuer as well as specifi
transactions with third parties for an amount ug€16 million per project. It informs the Board ofrEctors at

its next meeting on each such transaction, it beimdgerstood that the aggregate amount for suckegisogan at
no time be higher than €30 million. The Executiverr®nittee may approve any external credit facilities
external guarantees, pledges, mortgages and aey @tlcumbrances of SES, or any wholly-owned atifi)ifor

as long as the Issuer will not lose its investngade rating as a result of such facility or gutganit may
approve increases of up to 5 per cent in the dapitpenditure budget for a satellite procuremen¢aaly
approved by the Board of Directors, it being untierd that the Internal Rate of Return will neecceonply
with certain specific thresholds defined by the Bloaf Directors. The Executive Committee must infathe
Board of Directors at its next meeting of each snchease.

The Executive Committee submits to the Board ofeEtors those measures which it deems necessary to b
taken in order to meet the purposes of SES. Rwithé beginning of each fiscal year, the Execufteenmittee
submits to the Board of Directors a consolidatediget for approval.

The Executive Committee is in charge of implemeanti decisions taken by the Board of Directors hpdhe
committees specially mandated by the Board of Direc The Executive Committee may, in the interefts
SES, sub-delegate part of its powers and duti@s toembers acting individually or jointly. The Gfmaan of
the Executive Committee organises the work of tkecktive Committee and coordinates the activitiegso
members, who report directly to him. In order toilftate the implementation by the Board of Direstof its
overall duty to supervise the affairs of SES, ttai@nan of the Executive Committee informs the @han of
the Board of Directors on a regular basis of SE@8tvities. The latter receives the agenda andrtimeites of
all meetings of the Executive Committee in due time

® Composition
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The Executive Committee is made up of non-directoh® are elected by the Board of Directors upon a
proposal of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Pierre Margue, Vice President Legal ServicestpOrate and Finance acts as secretary of the Execu
Committee.

The following persons are members of the Execufteenmittee: the President and Chief Executive Office
who assumes the chairmanship of the Executive Ctteenithe Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Comuiar
Officer, the Chief Development Officer and the Ghiechnology Officer. The Executive Committee isdaa
up of non-directors who are elected by the Boardicéctors upon a proposal of the Nomination Cortesit

Name Age Position

Mr. Karim Michel SABBAGH 52 President and Chief Exéve Officer
Mr. Padraig McCARTHY 55 Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Martin HALLIWELL 57 Chief Technology Officer

Mr. Ferdinand KAYSER 57 Chief Commercial Officer
Mr. Christophe DE HAUWER 45 Chief Development Officer

The chairmanship of the Executive Committee ismssuby the President and Chief Executive Officer.

The business address of the members of SES’s Exec@ommittee is Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betizdo
(Grand Duchy of Luxembourg) and its telephone nunige 352 710 725-1.

Biographical information — Board of Directors
Mr. Romain Bausch

Born on 3 July 1953, Mr. Bausch has been PresidedtCEO of the Issuer from May 1995 to April 2014,
following a career in the Luxembourg civil servigddinistry of Finance). Before joining the Issueritschief
executive, Mr. Bausch occupied key positions inktheking, media and telecommunications sectorspadt a
five-year term as a Director and Vice Chairman BESMr. Bausch was appointed to the Board of Dimacin
April 2013 and he is Vice Chairman of the BoardDifectors of O3b and a Director of SES ASTRA. Mr
Bausch is Chairman of the Board of Directors of SHS is also a member of the Boards of Directors of
Aperam, BIP Investment Partners Compagnie Finamdier Luxembourgeoise and the Luxembourg Future
Fund, as well as the Chairman of the CNFP (Cordatlonal des Finances Publiques) of Luxembourg. He
graduated with a degree in economics (specialisatidusiness administration) from the UniversityNancy.

He holds an honorary doctorate from the Sacred tHéaiversity in Luxembourg. He is a member of the
Remuneration Committee and of its Nomination Corteait

Mr. Bausch is a Luxembourg national. He is not mtependent director because of his recent emplaymen
relationship with SES.

Mr. Francgois Tesch

Born on 16 January 1951, Mr. Tesch became a dirertadl5 April 1999. He is Chief Executive Officef o
Luxempart S.A. He graduated with a degree in ecac®ifnom the Faculté d’Aix en Provence and holds an
M.B.A. from INSEAD (Institut Européen d’Administian des Affaires). Mr. Tesch is also Chairman o th
Board of Foyer S.A. of Luxembourg S.A. and of Ficiare de Tubize S.A., and Vice Chairman of the Baar
Directors and a member of the Nomination CommitfeBE S.

Mr. Tesch is a Luxembourg national. He is not afejrendent director because he has been a directorofe
than 12 years.
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Mr. Jean-Paul Zens

Born on 8 January 1953, Mr. Zens became a diregtor May 2002, and was elected Vice Chairman on the
same date. Mr. Zens is also a member of the BoaRdrectors of SES ASTRA and Entreprise des Postes
Télécommunications, Luxembourg. He is currentlyebior of the Media and Communications department of
the Ministry of State in Luxembourg. He holds a ldegree and a degree in psychology and commumnicatio
sciences from the University of Strasbourg. Mr. £ém the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of its Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Zens is a Luxembourg national. He is not anepehdent director because he represents an importan
shareholder.

Mr. Serge Allegrezza

Born on 25 October 1959, Mr. Allegrezza becamerecttir on 11 February 2010. He is currently thee&ior
General of Statec, the Luxembourg Institute foitiSias and Economic Studies, a post he has hetw Spril
2003. He was Conseiller de Gouvernement lére cktsgee Ministry of Economics, responsible for intd
market policy, and is the Chairman of the Obseryafor Competitiveness. He is also the Chairmarnhef
Board of Directors of Entreprise des Postes etcbénunications and of the Board of LuxTrust i.md a
member of the Conseil Economique et Social. Mregiezza, was a part-time lecturer at the |IAE/Ursigrof
Nancy 2, has a Master in economics and a PhD.plieabeconomics. Mr. Allegrezza is a member of Aluglit
and Risk Committee of SES.

Mr. Allegrezza is a Luxembourg national. He is antindependent director, because he representspamtant
shareholder.

Mr. Marc Beuls

Born on 15 September 1956, Mr Beuls became a direct 7 April 2011. He serves as a Member of thar8o

of Directors at Maris Ltd, a Mauritian holding coamy investing in frontier markets in Africa and Qae NV,
Belgium, providing software solutions for qualitgridrol of medical imaging. He is the Chairman of énnan
Prepaid Value VAS LLC, USA, developing value addedvices for the wireless prepaid market. He is the
former President and CEO of Millicom Internatio@@llular S.A., a position he held from 1998 to 20B&or

to joining Millicom in 1992 as Senior Vice Presidén charge of finance and treasury, Mr Beuls wdrkar
Generale Bank in Belgium, specialising in projentl &rade financing in emerging markets. Mr Beulsdyiated
from the Limburg Business School, currently UHasdeblding a degree in economics with a major irafice.

Mr Beuls is a member of the Audit and Risk Comneitbé SES.

Mr Beuls is a Belgian national. He is an independinector.
Mr. Marcus Bicknell

Born on 28 February 1948, Mr. Bicknell became &ator on 6 May 2005. Mr. Bicknell is a director Néw
Media Foundry Ltd. and of Langstaff-Ellis Ltd., bohon-listed companies in the United Kingdom. Heis
member of the Development Board of the Royal AcadefrDramatic Art and is a director of Inspire Yaun
People. From 1986 to 1990 he was Commercial DireaftGociété Européenne des Satellites. Mr. Bidknel
holds an M.A. Honours Degree in physical anthrogplitom Cambridge University. Mr. Bicknell is a mber

of the Remuneration Committee and of the Nomina@ommittee of SES.

Mr. Bicknell is a British national. He is an indeyokent director.
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Mr. Victor Casier

Born on 7 May 1974, Mr. Casier became a director7 ofpril 2016. Mr. Victor Casier is a member of the
Executive Committee of Sofina S.A. and a membervarfious companies within Sofina’s portfolio. He
represents Sofina on the Board of O3b Networksaka, Global Lifting Partners and Spanish invesitrfand
QMC II. Prior to joining Sofina, Mr. Casier workéor Roland Berger Strategy Consultants, Transwiddted
and Banco Urquijo. Mr. Casier holds an MBA from thmiversity in Chicago, a Master in Business
Engineering (Ingénieur de Gestion) from the Uniitér€atholique de Louvain and participated in tNSEAD
International Directors Programme (IDP).

Mr. Casier is a Belgian national. He is an indegendiirector.
Mrs. Bridget Cosgrave

Born on 1 July 1961, Mrs. Cosgrave became a diremto3 April 2008. She is President and Founder of
EVERY EUROPEAN DIGITAL, a company deploying Intetnaf Things infrastructure focused on Poland
CEE and the Baltics. She is advisor and investddkikO VERKOT QY in Finland, and Board member at
EUSKALTEL in Spain. Mrs. Cosgrave was with Belgac8m\. from 2001-2007 as a member of the Executive
Committee where she was Executive Vice Presidenthef Enterprise division, Chairman, President and
founding CEO of BICS SA, and Board Member of BelqacMobile (Proximus) and Telindus Group. She
previously served as Director General of DIGITALEORE and Deputy Director General of ETSI. Mrs.
Cosgrave holds an M.B.A. from London Business Sthod a B.A. (Hons.) in Economics & History from
Queen’s University in Canada. Mrs. Cosgrave is mbe of the Audit and Risk Committee of SES.

Mrs Cosgrave is a dual Irish and Canadian nati®fa. is an independent director.
Mr. Hadelin de Liedekerke Beaufort

Born on 29 April 1955, Mr. de Liedekerke Beaufoechme a director on 17 April 2000. He is curremtly
director of Santander Telecommunications, a priyateld company, as well as a director of othevate
companies with interests in various fields sucHirzencial, communication and real estate develogmévir.

de Liedekerke Beaufort graduated from the Ecoleckéiie de Lausanne. Mr. de Liedekerke Beaufort is a
member of the Remuneration Committee of SES.

Mr. de Liedekerke Beaufort is a French national.isl@ot an independent director because he has deen
director for more than 12 years.

Mr. Jean-Claude Finck

Born on 22 January 1956, Mr. Finck became a diremto31 May 2001. Mr. Finck is Chief Executive O

of Banque et Caisse d’Epargne de I'Etat, a membtreoBoards of Directors of Bourse de Luxembourd. S
Luxair S.A., Cargolux S.A., La Luxembourgeoise $l&a Luxembourgeoise Vie S.A., Paul Wurth S.A., &ad
Banque Postale Asset Management. Mr. Finck graduatéh a degree in economics from the University of
Aix/Marseille. Mr. Finck is a member of the Remuetéwn Committee and of the Audit and Risk Commitiée
SES.

Mr. Finck is a Luxembourg national. He is not adependent director because he represents an importa
shareholder.

Mrs. Tsega Gebreyes

Born on 14 December 1969, Mrs. Tsega Gebreyes leeadirector on 4 April 2013. She is the Founding
Director of Satya Capital Limited. She served agefCBusiness Development and Strategy Officer dteCe
International BV and Senior Advisor to Zain. Shesvedso Founding Partner of the New Africa Oppottuni
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Fund, LLP and has worked with Mc Kinsey and CitzolMrs Gebreyes is a director of Ison Growth, Satya
Capital Limited and Sonae. She is a Senior AdisofrPG Growth. She has a double major in Econommics
International Studies from Rhodes College and halds.B.A. from Harvard Business School.

Mrs. Gebreyes is an Ethiopian national. She imdapendent director.
Mr. Conny Kullman

Born on 5 July 1950. Mr Kullman became a directorsoApril 2012. He was a former Director Generdf,GC
and Chairman of Intelsat. After working as a Systdemgineer for Saab-Ericsson Space AB in Swedeih unt
1983, he joined Intelsat in Washington DC, wherehkkel several positions before becoming the company
Director General and CEO in 1998. Mr Kullman becatime CEO of Intelsat, Ltd. in 2001, and in 2005,
Chairman of Intelsat, Ltd., and CEO and Presidémntelsat (Bermuda), Ltd., positions from which tetired

in 2006. Mr Kullman graduated with a Master of &ce in Electronic Engineering from the Chalmers
University of Technology in Gothenburg in 1974. Kllman is the Chairman of the Remuneration Conenitt
and a member of its Nomination Committee of SES.

Mr. Kullman is a Swedish national. He is an indegmnt director.
Mr. Ramu Potarazu

Born on 10 August 1961. Mr Potarazu became a diremt 20 February 2014. He is the CEO of Binary
Fountain. He is the Founder and former CEO of Vuityg Prior to founding Vubiquity, Mr Potarazu sperb
years in various positions at Intelsat (1991-206&) became Intelsat’s Vice President of OperatiorsCIO in
1996 and its Vice President, Commercial Restrunguin 2000. In 2001 Mr Potarazu became President of
Intelsat Global Service Corporation and from 2002006 he was President and Chief Operating Offafer
Intelsat Ltd. Prior to joining Intelsat, Mr Potataheld several engineering positions. Mr Potaraadgated
with a BS in Computer Science and in Mathematiomfthe Oklahoma Christian University. He also hads
MSc in Electrical Engineering from the John Hopkisiversity and was a member of the Stanford Exeeut
Program.

Mr Potarazu is a US national. He is an independieattor.
Mrs. Anne-Catherine Ries

Born on 1 April 1973, Mrs Ries became a directorlafanuary 2015. Mrs. Ries is Senior Policy Advisathe
Prime Minister and Minister for Media and Communi@as in Luxembourg with a focus on telecom andtalig
development strategies. She has recently been rapdocoordinator of the newly launched government
initiative ‘Digital Létzebuerg'.

Anne-Catherine Ries graduated with a law degrem flee Université de Paris Il and the UniversityOofford.
She holds a postgraduate LL.M degree with honowss fthe London School of Economics, where she
specialised in Telecommunications, Information Textbgy and European Competition Law. After startirey
professional career in a law firm in Paris, shagdithe Permanent Representation of Luxemboutget&U in
Brussels in 2000. Upon her return to Luxembourg @ret the last decade, her focus has been ontatgyaech
companies to establish and develop in Luxembourg.sBs on the Board of Directors of POST Luxembour

Mrs Anne-Catherine Ries is member of the NominaGommittee of the Issuer.

Mrs. Ries is a Luxembourg and French national. iSheot an independent director because she repisesen
important shareholder.

179



Mr. Jean-Paul Senninger

Born on 3 December 1959, Mr. Senninger became extdir on 7 April 2016. Mr Senninger has been the
general secretary of the Council of Ministers oé thuxembourg Government from December 2013. Mr
Senninger joined the Ministry of Foreign Affairs it999 as Premier Conseiller de Gouvernement, for
Cooperation and Defense Matters. He was Luxembgmngassador to Spain (2004-2008) and to the United
States of America, Canada and Mexico (2008-2012mFR2012-December 2013, he was the Secretary Genera
of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs. Mr Senningersalworked as Professeur-Stagiaire, as attaché i@ffice of

the Mayor of Luxembourg City and as Senior Officamd Head of Unit at the European Investment Birk.
Senninger holds a BA in Political Science and aiBA.iterature from the Friedrich Wilhelms Univegitin
Freiburg and a Master in European Studies fronCibléege of Europe in Bruges.

Mr Senninger is a Luxembourg national. He is nofreependent director because he represents antampo
shareholder.

Mr. Marc Speeckaert

Born on 23 May 1951. Mr. Speeckaert became a dir@ct 6 May 2005. He is the Managing director diirgo
S.A. and a director of several non-listed corporatj as well as of Rapala (which is listed on tleésidki Stock
Exchange), and of Mersen (which is listed on Euxbritaris). Mr. Speeckaert graduated with a degnee i
applied economics and holds a Master in Businesk Aministration from the Université Catholique de
Louvain (UCL) in Belgium. He also participated im &dvanced Management Program from Wharton,
University of Pennsylvania (USA). Mr. Speeckaetthis Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee 0ESE

Mr. Speeckaert is a Belgian national. He is anpedelent director.
Mrs. Pascale Toussing

Born on 26 June 1969, Mrs Toussing became dirextor April 2016. Mrs Toussing is Premier Conseitler
Gouvernment and Director for Tax Policy at the Lmkeurg Ministry of Finance. She is the Chairwomén o
the Conseil Economique et Social, Vice-Chairwoméathe Commissariat aux Assurances, a member of the
Steering Committee of the Luxembourg Sovereign Famdia director of Banque Internationale a Luxemdpou
S.A. Prior to taking up her position at the Minystif Finance in May 2014, Mrs Toussing was Depuitg&or
General of the Luxembourg Direct Tax Administrati@906-2014). She also worked for Banque Génénale d
Luxembourg S.A and held other positions in the Bfityi of Finance. Mrs Toussing holds a Licence arri®es
Economiques from the University of Louvain La Neuve

Mrs Toussing is a Luxembourg national. She is mandependent director because she representspamtant
shareholder.

Mrs. Katrin Wehr-Seiter

Born on 27 January 1970, Mrs. Wehr-Seiter becamlieegtor on 1 January 2015. She is a Managing Rirec
of BIP Investment Partners SA. Prior to joining B#Re served as a Principal at global investmemt Flermira
and worked also as an independent strategy consaltavell as a Senior Advisor to internationalvaré equity
group Bridgepoint. She started her professionatarant Siemens AG where she held various positions
strategy consulting and engineering. She servea dsector of several non-listed corporations a$l as
Nanogate AG (listed on the Frankfurt stock exchanigkes. Wehr-Seiter holds an MBA from INSEAD and an
MSc in Mechanical Engineering from the Technicalvwdnsity of Chemnitz. Mrs. Wehr-Seiter is membetod
Audit and Risk Committee of the Issuer.

Mrs. Wehr-Seiter is a German national. She is dependent director.
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Biographical information — Executive Committee
Mr. Karim Michel Sabbagh

Born on 26 September 1963, Mr. Karim Michel Sabbagied the Issuer’'s Executive Committee in Sep&mb
2013 and was appointed as President and Chief Exedfficer effective 3 April 2014. He is Chairmanfthe
Executive Committee and Chairman of the Board of SESTRA. He also serves on the Board of O3b and
YahLive, and also is a member of the O3b Audit &isk Committee. He is also on the Board of Fedil
(Business Federation Luxembourg) and serves ashieieman.

Mr. Sabbagh served on the Board of Directors fr@hl2until 2013 and was a member of the Audit argkRi
Committee of the Issuer for the same period. Rdqgoining SES, he was a Senior Partner and glplzdtice
leader for communications media & technology at B8 Company. He holds a BBA and MBA from the
American University of Beirut, a PhD in businessnaristration with a focus in strategic managemeoinfthe
American Century University in New Mexico, and a Ak international business management from the
International School of Management.

Mr. Sabbagh is Canadian and Lebanese national.
Mr. Padraig McCarthy

Born on 27 September 1960, Mr. Padraig McCarthy aygminted as Chief Financial Officer on 4 Aprill20
He is a member of the Board of SES ASTRA.

Mr. McCarthy joined SES in 1995 from Norton S.A.ew he was Financial Director Europe. Previously he
held positions with KPMG Chartered Accountantslaind. After having served as the Issuer’'s ControlNé
McCarthy took the position of Chief Financial Officof SES ASTRA, then the European subsidiary ef th
Issuer, from 2002-2011. Prior to his appointmenthief Financial Officer, he worked as Senior ViRresident
Financial Operations & Business Support at the dssince 2011. Mr. McCarthy holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from the University College Cala fellow of the Irish Institute of Chartered Aootants
and followed advanced management executive progenatBabson Business School and INSEAD.

Mr. McCarthy is an Irish national.
Mr. Martin Halliwell

Born on 20 April 1959, Mr. Martin Halliwell was apimted Chief Technical Officer on 1 May 2011. Heais
member of the Boards of SES ASTRA and of O3b. Millittell joined SES in 1987 after working for Calde
Wireless and for Mercury Communications. He wasviptesly President of SES ENGINEERING and
Technical Director of SES Multimedia. Previously tworked as SES Operation Manager and as General
Manager of SES'’s Global Multimedia Networks. Hedsoh Higher National Diploma in Communications and
Electronics and a BA specialising in Mechanical iBegring and Mathematics from the Open University o
London, and an MBA in External Environment and @&iga&c Management from the same university.

Mr. Halliwell is a British national.

Mr. Ferdinand Kayser

Born on 4 July 1958. Mr. Ferdinand Kayser was apigoi Chief Commercial Officer of SES on 1 May 2011.
He is a member of the Boards of SES ASTRA and YiahLi

Mr. Kayser joined SES in 2002 as President and fGiecutive Officer of SES ASTRA. He has worked in
senior roles in media companies such as Premietkeé&smbH and Co. KG and CLT Multimedia. Prior i h
appointment as Chief Commercial Officer of the &sie was President and Chief Executive OfficeBBE
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ASTRA. Mr. Kayser holds a Master of Economics frime University of Paris 1, Panthéon-Sorbonne, asd h
concluded specialized university studies in Mediszvland Management of Electronic Media.

Mr. Kayser is a Luxembourg national.
Mr. Christophe De Hauwer

Born on 15 April 1971, Mr; Christophe De Hauwer veggpointed Chief Development Officer of the Issasr
of 1 August 2015. Since 2010, Mr. de Hauwer has lsemember of the Board of 03b Networks Board.dH& i
member of the Board of SES ASTRA.

Mr de Hauwer joined SES in 2003, holding severdaitioms of responsibility areas of Strategic Mairkgt
Strategic and Business Planning and Corporate Denant, as well as Fleet Development and Yield
Management. Mr. de Hauwer played an instrumentaliromany transactions, such as the acquisitioNef/
Skies in 2005, the GE share redemption in 200&taméhvestment in 03b in 2009. Prior to joining SEB. de
Hauwer worked in the Strategy Consulting practitehe European Telecommunication and Media Industry
with Arthur Andersen. He holds an Engineering afth® Degree from the Université Libre de Bruxelles.

Mr. de Hauwer is a Belgium national.
Remuneration
Remuneration of the Members of the Board of Direrto

The annual General Meeting of Shareholders detesnthe remuneration of the members of the Board of
Directors for attending Board of Directors and cattee meetings. In 2016, the shareholders approwed
maintain the fees paid to the Directors at theiptsvyear’s level with a majority of 99.972 per tdbirectors
receive a fixed fee of €40,000 per year, whereas/ibe Chairmen receive an annual fixed fee of @8,and

the Chairman receives €100,000 per year.

A Director chairing one of the committees set ughsy Board of Directors, if not the Chairman of Baard of
Directors, receives an additional remuneration 060 per year. A Director, chairing the Audit aRtsk
Committee, if not the Chairman of the Board of Biogs, receives an additional remuneration of €9,66r
year.

The shareholders also maintained the fees at €fg8@&ach meeting of the Board of Directors or anGuttee
of the Board of Directors attended, except forrtteetings of the Audit and Risk Committee for whilitectors
receive €1,920 per meeting. A director participgiim more than one Committee meeting on the samevila
receive the attendance fee for one meeting onlif. dflahe attendance fee is paid if the directortipgpates in
the meeting via telephone or videoconference.

All these fees are net of any Luxembourgish withlingl taxes. The total net remuneration fees pai@®d5 to
the members of the Board of Directors (net of th@dmbourgish withholding tax) amounted to €1,038,66
which €243,200 was paid as variable fees, withrémeaining €795,467 representing the fixed parhefBoard
of Directors fees. The gross overall figure for 20das €1,298,333.

Issuer stock owned by members of the Board of Dioes

As of 2 June 2016, the members of the Board ofdiire and their closely associated family membenseal a
combined total of 775,355 shares and FDRs.

Transactions made by the members of the Board mciirs are published on the company’'s website unde
Management Disclosures. In accordance with the eoylp dealing code, directors require prior periiss
before dealing in the Issuer’s shares or FDRs.
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Remuneration of the Members of the Executive Contegt

The remuneration of the members of the Executiven@ittee is determined by the Remuneration Committee
It is composed of a fixed and a variable part. Tdtal gross remuneration paid to the six memberthef
Executive Committee for 2015 (including Gerson $ouhtil 31 July 2015) amounted to €9,078,741.89 of
which €3,358,112.95 represented the fixed part @5d20,628.94 the variable part. The direct renatiar
paid to the members of the Executive Committee antsolito €4,671,377.47 whereas the indirect remtinara
was €4,407,364.42. The indirect remuneration alsotains the benefits derived by the members of the
Executive Committee from the Issuer’s executivelstoption plan and the long-term incentive planadspted

by the Board of Directors. During 2015, the memhmrthe Executive Committee were awarded a combined
total of 308,463 options to acquire company FDRaraexercise price of €33.23, the price being basethe
average of the closing price on Euronext Parishaf first 15 trading days following the Remuneration
Committee meeting at which the options were ausiedri A quarter of those options vested on 1 Jar2Git§,

and the remaining quarters vest on 1 January 2DJ@nuary 2018, and 1 January 2019 respectivel®015,
members of the Executive Committee were granted6Rrestricted shares as part of the Issuer’s teng-
incentive plan, as well as 37,389 performance shditeese shares will vest on 1 June 2018.

During 2015, Messrs Martin Halliwell, Ferdinand Isay, Padraig McCarthy and Gerson Souto (a member of
the Executive Committee until 31 July 2015) solchecor all of the restricted shares which vested dune.
Mr. Karim Michel Sabbagh exercised some of hislstygtions during the course of the year.

The Issuer publishes the details of all transastioade by its Board of Directors members and byrtbmbers
of its Executive Committee on its websitétp://www.ses.com/management-disclosures

Each member of the Executive Committee is entitiedwo years of base salary in case his contract is
terminated without case. If a member resigns, mei®ntitled to any such compensation.

Issuer stock owned by members of the Executive Cditbesn

As of 2 June 2016, the five members of the Exeeu@ommittee then in place owned a combined total
of 178,758 shares and FDRs, 184,372 unvestedctedtrand performance shares and 1,562,867 options.
Transactions made by members of the Executive Cteeniare published on SES’'s website
http://www.ses.com/management-disclosures

Pension retirement or similar benefits

The Issuer has defined contribution plans or memioérthe Executive Committee. For further detaéde s
“Accounting for pension obligatiohen note 2 to the 2015 Financial Statements.

There is no other amount set aside or accruedéistuer or its Subsidiaries to provide pensiatireraent or
similar benefits or arrangements to the membethafExecutive Committee and the members of the Bofr
Directors do not benefit from pension retiremensiamilar benefits or arrangements

Conflicts of Interests

None of the members of the Issuer's managemenbardof Directors have been subject to any bankppt
receivership or liquidation proceedings, nor hawve af them been convicted of any fraudulent offeaisbeen
subject to any official public incrimination or sdions by statutory or regulatory authorities (udihg
designated professional bodies) in acting as fayrde=ctor or senior manager of any company ferl#st five
years, nor has any of them been disqualified byuartcfrom acting as a member of the management or
supervisory bodies of an issuer or from actinchi| inanagement or conduct of the affairs of anyeistar the

last five years.
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In 2015 the Board of Directors approved an incréastES’s participation in O3b on a fully diluteddis. Four
members of the Board of Directors (Francois Tebtdrc Speeckaert, Tsega Gebreyes and Katrin Welerpei
did not participate in the O3b discussion and m\hte on this topic, because they each represpattya that
holds an investment in O3b.

On 7 April 2016 the Board of Directors approved He5 per cent Acquisition. Five members of the rBoaf

Directors (Francois Tesch, Marc Speeckaert, Tseglareyes, Victor Casier and Katrin Wehr-Seiter) alad

participate in the 50.5 per cent Acquisition andhie vote on this topic, because they each represgarty that
holds an investment in O3b.

Interests of Directors

As at 10 May 2016 (being the latest practicable gator to the publication of this Prospectus) ¢hare no
outstanding transactions other than in the ordiramyrse of business undertaken by the Issuer ichnthie
Issuer’s Directors were interested parties. Centaimbers of the Board of Directors and Executiven@ittee
have direct or beneficial interests in the Issuerdinary shares. Se&kémuneration of the Members of the
Executive Committee' Remuneration of the Members of the Board of Dimstto

Except as described in sectioRélated-party Transactioh®elow and sectiofiConflicts of Interest$ above,
there are no potential conflicts of interest betwé®e private interests or other duties of the @oes of the
Issuer and their duties to the Issuer.

Information regarding services contracts providingfor benefits upon termination of employment

The members of the Executive Committee as wehasrtembers of the Board of Directors, do not béfrein
services contracts with the Issuer or any of itbsBliaries providing for benefits upon terminatiohtheir
employment.

Related-party Transactions

. see note 7 to the Condensed consolidated intenandial information;
. see note 30 to the 2015 Financial Statements;

. see note 28 to the 2014 Financial Statements; and

. see note 28 to the 2013 Financial Statements.

Internal control procedures

Please refer to the Chairman’s report on Corpo@dgernance and Internal Procedures 2015 for further
information.

Statement of Compliance

The Issuer follows the ‘Ten Principles of Corpor@evernance’ adopted by the Luxembourg Stock Exphan
(its home market) as revised in 2013, a copy ottiecian be found atww.bourse.lu/corporate-governance

The Issuer meets all the recommendations madedd¥Td#n Principles” except with regard to Recommedioda
3.9, which states that the committees created @é\Bttard of Directors should only have advisory pesvé&he
Board of Directors has delegated some decisionimgaowers to the Remuneration Committee. For thie fu
details of these powers, see the charter of theuReration Committee on the SES websitev{v.ses.co
After each meeting of the Remuneration Committée, Ghairman reports to the Board about the latest
Remuneration Committee discussions.
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PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS
The Issuer has issued two classes of shares: £l8kares and Class B shares.

As of 31 May 2016, the Grand Duchy of Luxembourtdhedirect 11.58 per cent voting interest in thsuker
and two indirect interests, both of 10.88 per ctirhugh two state owned banks, Banque et Caidggadjne
de I'Etat and Société Nationale de Crédit et d’tigsement. These shares constitute the ClassBsSha

Although they constitute separate classes of sh@lass A Shares and Class B Shares carry the sghis
except that (i) the Class B Shares entitle theiidrs to only 40 per cent of the dividend, or isethe Issuer is
dissolved, to 40 per cent of the net liquidationgaieds paid to shareholders of Class A and (it)theClass B
Shares are entitled to a preferential subscriptigint for all capital increases of the Issuer. €lBsShares are
not listed on a regulated market. Each Share, whethClass A or B, is entitled to one vote. In@dance with
the Articles of Association, no shareholder of GlAsShares may hold, directly or indirectly, mdnarn 20 per
cent (twenty per cent), 33 per cent (thirty-three pent) or 50 per cent (fifty per cent) of theuksss Shares
unless he has obtained prior approval from the @éméeeting of Shareholders. Such limit will be @dated
by taking into account the Shares of all classés by a shareholder of Class A Shares. It will apply to the
shareholders issuing fiduciary certificates in agrent with the Issuer.

The number of issued shares of each class as Ma312016 (being the latest practicable date priothe
finalisation of this Prospectus) was as follows:

The Issuer’s Shareholders| Number of % Voting Shareholding | % Economic Participation ™
Shares

Class A Shares

Sofina Group 13 960 104 2.43% 3.03%

Nouvelle Santander 8 000 000 1.399 1.74%

Telecommunications S.A.

Luxempart Invest S.ar.l. 5413 264 0.94% 1.18%

Other shareholders 4799 393 0.83% 1.04%

BCEE FDRs (free float) 351 284 839 61.07% 76.34%

Total Class A Shares 383 457 600 66.67% 83.33%

Class B Shares

BCEE 62 572 893 10.88% 5.44P%

SNCI 62 565 084 10.88% 5.44%

Etat du Grand-Duché de 66 590 822 11.58% 5.79%

Luxembourg

Total Class B Share® 191 728 800Q 33.33% 16.67%

Total Shares (Actual) 575 186 400
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Total Shares (Economic) 460 149 120

@ Economic Participation means the pro rata righe 8hare to any dividend and to any liquidation kstsrp

@ Class B Shares carry 40 per cent of the economiitsriof A Shares.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE GUARANTOR
Establishment, domicile and duration

The Guarantor is a Delaware general partneririped in the State of Delaware, United States wfefica
under Delaware law by SES and SESTRA, S.A. SES ASTRA (together thePartnery on 9 April 2003
pursuant to a partnershiygreement dated 9 April 2003, as amended by AmemidNe 1 thereto, dated 15 Julhy
2004 (asamended, thdPartnership Agreementand the Delaware Revised Uniform Partnership Atte
Organisational ID number for the Guarantor is 36464The term of the Guarantor shabntinue until
dissolution pursuant to the provisions of the Raghip Agreement. SESmericas is domiciled in the United
States of America and its principal place of busines at 4Research Way, Princeton, New Jersey 08540
(telephone: +1 609 987 4000).

Business Overview

According to Article 1.3 of the Partnership Agreerpethe purpose and character of thgsiness of the
Guarantor is to engage in any lawful business divigc permitted by the Delaware Revised Uniform
Partnership Act or the laws of any jurisdictionviich the Guarantor may do business as the Partays
agree from time to time, including, without limitai, (i) to hold SES’s existing interest in SES &b
Americas, Inc.(Global America3, a Delaware corporation, and a wholly owned gslibsy of SES, (ii) to
incur certain indebtedness for the purposes of refingnoimtain existing debt of Global Americas, (ib)mhake
additional capital contributions to Global Ameriégagxchange for additional interest@obal Americas as the
Partners may agree from time to time, (iv) to aguiold or dispose dfterests in subsidiaries and affiliates of
SES and (V) to engage in activities and transagtiamichthe Partners deem necessary, convenient, incidental
or advisable in connection with tlieregoing, including, the entering into of loan egments, the lending or
borrowing of fundsthe purchase or sale of securities and the puravasale of derivative instruments.

The Guarantor is part of the Group.

The Guarantor re-funds its own capital maturitiesthie capital markets to support SES’s funding goal
whenever the markets provide the Guarantor atourable access and rates. The Guarantor emtts i
derivative transactionghenever it is necessary to hedge its financibris

Organisational Structure

The following chart shows the position of the Guéoain the Group.

#001
SES
[LU]

100 %
99.94 %

0.06 %

100 %

# 007
SES Global-
Americas Inc.

[US]

100 %
HIdCo
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As a holding entity, the Guarantor is dependenthenperformance of the operatiogmpanies in the Group. A
description of the Group and the operating comairighe Group appears irDescription of SES and the
Group -Organisational Structure of the Group

Management

The Partners of the Guarantor are:

. SES, Chéateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Luxembourg; and

. SES ASTRA, Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Luxembourg.

The Partners have full, exclusive and completereigm in the management andntrol of the business of the
Guarantor and can make all decisions affectinglihsiness otthe Guarantor. The Partners exercise their
respective management power and authority throtgpresentatives. Each Parther may appoint one
representative (Representativefrom time totime and one or more alternates who may servearalisence of
such Partner'Representative. The current Representatives are:

€)) for SES:
Name Function Principal Activities outside the Guarantor
Pierre Margue Representative Vice Presidentegal Service€orporate and
Finance Secretary to thBoard of SES
Karim Michel Alternate President and Chief Executive Officer of SES
Sabbagh Representative S.A.
Padraig McCarthy Alternate Chief Financial Officer of SES S.A.
Representative
(b) for SES ASTRA:
Name Function Principal Activities outside the Guarantor
Padraig McCarthy = Representative Chief Financiaic®ffof SES S.A.
Ferdinand Kayser Alternate Chief Commercial Officer of SES S.A.
Representative
Anne Reuland Alternate Senior Legal Counsel of SES S.A.
Representative

The business address for each of the above pass@iéiteau de Betzdorf, L-68L5xembourg.

Management Bodies’ Conflicts of Interests

There are no potential conflicts of interest betwéee duties to the Guarantor of thersons listed above a:
Partners or Representatives and their privatedasteior other duties.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Regime

The Guarantor is subject to the Delaware Reviseitbtin Partnership Act as it isgeneral partnership and not
a corporation.
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Audit Committee
The Guarantor does not have an audit committee.
Partnership Interests

SES holds a 99.94 per cent interest in the Guaramd SES ASTRA holds a 0.06 per cemtrest in the
Guarantor. The Guarantor is controlled by the Rastthrough the terms of tiartnership Agreement.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds of the issue of the Securitidsbeilapplied by the Issuer (i) for general corpenatirposes
and the repayment of certain existing indebtediédbe Group; and (ii) the repayment of a portidntie
existing indebtedness of O3b.
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TAXATION
LUXEMBOURG TAXATION

The following is a general description of certaan tonsiderations, under the existing laws of Luseuang as
currently applied by the Luxembourg tax authorijtiedating to a holding of the Securities. It does purport
to be a complete analysis of all tax consideratiaiating to the Securities. Prospective purchasérthe
Securities should consult their tax advisers aheoconsequences under the tax laws of the coohtwhich
they are resident for tax purposes and the tax ¢d\asy other jurisdiction of acquiring, holdingdeeming and
disposing of the Securities receiving payments @anather amounts thereunder. This summary is baped
the law as in effect on the date hereof and isestitp any change in law that may take effect aftmh date,
and may be retroactively applicable.

Prospective purchasers of the Securities shouldware that the residence concept used below apiplies
Luxembourg income tax assessment purposes only.réfeyence in this section to a tax, duty, levy astpor
other charge or withholding of a similar natureersfto Luxembourg tax law and/or concepts onlyefenence
to Luxembourg income tax generally encompassesocatg income taxirpét sur le revenu des collectivifés
municipal business taxinipét commercial communala solidarity surchargecgntribution au fonds pour
I'emploi), personal income taxinfpbt sur le revenuas well as a temporary equalisation tamp0t
d’équilibrage budgétaire temporaiyre

Corporate holders of the Securities may also bgstin net wealth taxrpét sur la fortungas well as other
duties, levies or taxes. Corporate income tax, mipal business tax as well as the solidarity sugdapply to
most corporate taxpayers resident in Luxembourgafopurposes. Individual taxpayers are generalbjext to
personal income tax, to the solidarity surcharge &m the temporary equalisation tax. Under certain
circumstances, where an individual taxpayer acteéncourse of the management of a professionalisiness
undertaking, municipal business tax may apply dk we

Luxembourg tax residency of the holders of the Satias

A holder of Securities will not become resident; he deemed to be resident, in Luxembourg by reasbnof
the holding of the Securities or the executionfgrerance, delivery and/or enforcement of the Séesti

Withholding Tax
Resident holders of the Securities

Under the Luxembourg law dated 23 December 2008n@nded (th@005 Law, a 10 per cent. Luxembourg
withholding tax is levied as of 1 January 2006 oteriest or similar income payments (accrued sindelyt
2005) made by Luxembourg paying agents to or ferithmediate benefit of an individual beneficial @wn
who is resident in Luxembourg. This withholding t@go applies on accrued interest received upquosid,
redemption or repurchase of the Securities. Sughhaiding tax will be in full discharge of incomaxtif the
beneficial owner is an individual acting in the s of the management of his/her private wealth.
Responsibility for the withholding of tax in apiton of the 2005 Law is assumed by the Luxembqangng
agent within the meaning of the 2005 Law.

Further, Luxembourg resident individuals actingthe course of their private wealth management, ateo
beneficially entitled to interest payments and otsimilar income made as from 1 January 2008 bgyng
agent established in a European Union member aita¢e than Luxembourg or the European Economic Area
in a jurisdiction having concluded an agreementhwitixembourg in connection with Council Directive
2003/48/EC, may opt for a final 10 per cent levysuch case, the 10 per cent levy is calculatati@tasis of
the same amounts as for the payments made by Lwowemnipaying agents. The option of the 10 per ceat f
levy must cover all interest payments made by pagigents to the beneficial owner over the fulllgrear. The
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Luxembourg resident individual who is beneficiadiytitled to the interest is responsible for thelatation and
the payment of the 10 per cent final levy.

Non-resident holders of the Securities

Under the Luxembourg tax laws currently in effettere is no withholding tax on payments of intesest
(including accrued but unpaid interest) made taugeimbourg non-resident holder of Securities. Ther=dso

no Luxembourg withholding tax upon repayment of firancipal, or upon redemption or exchange of the
Securities.

Exchange of information

Non-resident holders of the Securities should tteon 9 December 2014, the Council of the Eunopgr@on
adopted Directive 2014/107/EU amending DirectivelZQ6/EU of 15 February 2011 on administrative
cooperation in the field of taxation which now pidms for an automatic exchange of financial account
information between EU Member States (fbAC Directive. The adoption of the aforementioned directive
implements the Organisation for Economic Co-opematand DevelopmentOECD) Common Reporting
Standard CRS and generalizes the automatic exchange of infdomawvithin the European Union as of 1
January 2016.

The measures of cooperation provided thus formigylythe EU Savings Directive are then replaced gy th
implementation of the DAC Directive which is alsoprevail in cases of overlap of scope. As Audida been
allowed to start applying the DAC Directive up taeoyear later than other Member States, speciagitranal
arrangements taking account of this derogationyajpphustria.

In addition, Luxembourg signed the OECD’s multitatecompetent authority agreement (thkiltilateral
Agreement to automatically exchange information under thBRSC Under this Multilateral Agreement,
Luxembourg will automatically exchange financiataant information with other participating juristians as
of 1 January 2016. The Luxembourg law dated 18 Dbee 2015 (th&€€RS Law implements this Multilateral
Agreement, together with the DAC Directive introthgcthe CRS, in Luxembourg.

Income Taxation
Taxation of Luxembourg non - residents

Holders of the Securities who are non-residentsugeémbourg and who do not have a permanent edtaigist
or a permanent representative in Luxembourg to lwbicwhom the Securities are attributable are iabld to
any Luxembourg income tax, whether they receivenpays of principal or interest (including accrued b
unpaid interest) or realise capital gains uponmgation, repurchase, sale or exchange of any Sesurit

Holders of the Securities who are non-residentswfembourg who have a permanent establishment or a
permanent representative in Luxembourg to whiclwloom the Securities are attributable have to inelady
interest received or accrued, as well as any dagdia realised on the sale or disposal of the 8&esiin their
taxable income for Luxembourg income tax assesspapbses.

Taxation of Luxembourg residents
Luxembourg resident individuals

An individual holder of Securities acting in theucse of the management of his/her private weatbubject to
Luxembourg income tax in respect of interest remmbiwvedemption premiums or issue discounts under th
Securities except if a withholding tax has beemeldwn such payments in accordance with the 2006 La
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Under Luxembourg domestic tax law, gains realispdnuthe sale, disposal or redemption, in any form
whatsoever, of the Securities by an individual baddof Securities who is a resident of Luxemboumgtéx
purposes and who acts in the course of the manajerhieis/her private wealth, are not subject tadmbourg
income tax, provided this sale or disposal takaseght least six months after the acquisition ef3kcurities.

An individual holder of Securities who acts in tmurse of the management of his/her private wealthwho
is a resident of Luxembourg for tax purposes, basdude the portion of the gain correspondingdorued but
unpaid income in respect of the Securities in leisthxable income, insofar as the accrued but driptérest is
indicated separately in the agreement, excepffiiad withholding tax or levy has been levied incaance
with the 2005 Law.

Luxembourg resident individual holders of the Samsg acting in the course of the management of a
professional or business undertaking to which tleeuSties are attributable, have to include anwriedt
received or accrued, as well as any gain realiseth® sale or disposal of the Securities in tteeiable income
for Luxembourg income tax assessment purposesbleagains are determined as being the differentedss

the sale, repurchase or redemption price (includiogrued but unpaid interest) and the lower ofdbst or
book value of the Securities sold or redeemed. Th@er cent Luxembourg withholding tax levied vk
credited against their final income tax liability.

Luxembourg corporate residents

Luxembourg corporate holders of the Securities nmgtide any interest received or accrued, as aglany
gain realised on the sale or disposal in any forhatgaoever of the Securities in their taxable incdore
Luxembourg income tax assessment purposes. Tagainle are determined as being the difference betiree
sale, repurchase or redemption price (includingiiged but unpaid interest) and the lower of thet coshook
value of the Securities sold or redeemed.

Luxembourg residents benefiting from a speciakégyme

Luxembourg holders of the Securities who benefimfra special tax regime, such as, (i) undertakiogs
collective investment subject to the amended lawt®fDecember 2010 or (ii) specialised investment$u
subject to the amended law of 13 February 200Tipfamily wealth management companies governedhigy
amended law of 11 May 2007, are exempt from inctares in Luxembourg and thus income derived froe th
Securities as well as gains realised thereon,@rsubject to income taxes.

Net Wealth Tax

Luxembourg resident holders of the Securities, Baxembourg non-resident holders of the Securitib® w
have a permanent establishment or a permanenseggpative in Luxembourg to which or whom the Semsi
are attributable, are subject to Luxembourg netttvéax on such Securities, except if the holdeBeturities is
() a resident or non-resident individual taxpay@), an undertaking for collective investment sdtjto the
amended law of 17 December 2010, (iii) a secutiieacompany governed by the amended law of 22 Marc
2004 on securitisation, (iv) a company governedth®y amended law of 15 June 2004 on venture capital
vehicles or (V) a specialised investment fund gosdrby the amended law of 13 February 2007, (Y@naly
wealth management company governed by the amemgedfl 11 May 2007 or (vii) a professional pension
institution governed by the amended law of 13 R095. However, (i) a securitisation company goverhg
the amended law of 22 March 2004 on securitisaligna company governed by the amended law ofuieJ
2004 on venture capital vehicles and (iii) a prei@sal pension institution governed by the ameridedof 13
July 2005 remain subject to a minimum net wealth ta
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Other Taxes

There is no Luxembourg registration tax, stamp dutgny other similar tax or duty payable in Luxemty by
the holders of the Securities as a consequendeeafsuance of the Securities nor will any of thieses be
payable as a consequence of a subsequent trahséelemption or repurchase of the Securities (ebicepases
of voluntary registration in Luxembourg).

Under Luxembourg tax law, where a holder of theusiies is a resident of Luxembourg for inheritariag
purposes at the time of his/her death, the Seesridre included in his/her taxable base for indwec# tax
purposes. On the contrary, no estate or inheritemaes are levied on the transfer of the Securifpes death of
a holder of Securities in cases where the deceassdnot a resident of Luxembourg for inheritance ta
purposes.

Luxembourg gift tax may be due on a gift or donatid Securities if the gift is recorded in a deedsged in
front of a Luxembourg notary or otherwise registareLuxembourg.

There is no Luxembourg value added tax payablespeact of payments in consideration for the isseiafithe
Securities or in respect of the payment of intesprincipal under the Securities or the transiérthe
Securities.

UNITED STATES TAXATION

The following is a summary based on present lawcearftain U.S. federal income tax considerations for
prospective purchasers of the Securities. It addsesnly Non-U.S. Holders (as defined below) thatlpase
Securities in the offering. This discussion addessmly certain U.S. federal income tax considenatrelating

to circumstances where SES Global Americas HoldBBamakes guarantee payments under the Guarantee to
Non-U.S. Holders and does not address any otheraiasiderations that may be relevant to a Non Hdbder
relating to the acquisition, ownership and dispositf the Securities by a Non U.S. Holder. Thedssion is
not a substitute for tax advice. It does not addedisof the tax consequences that may be reldeaaiNon U.S.
Holder in light of such holder’s particular circutasces, including tax consequences that may bécapfd to
persons subject to special rules, such as banksjrcether financial institutions, securities d&al insurance
companies, certain U.S. expatriates or persondripltie Securities as part of or in connection veitffixed
base or permanent establishment outside the UStteds.

In this discussion, Alon-U.S. Holderis a beneficial owner of a Security that is natS. federal income tax
purposes (i) a citizen or resident of the Uniteaté&, (ii) a partnership or other entity or arranget treated as
a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purpofés,a corporation or other entity treated asaporation
organised in or under the laws of the United Statets political subdivisions, (iv) a trust sukjec the control
of a U.S. person and the primary supervision of &. ldourt or (v) an estate the income of whichuigiect to
U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its aaur

Withholding Tax on Guarantee Payments under the Gaatee

Guarantee payments made by SES Global Americasrgsl@GP to a Non-U.S. Holder under the Guarantee on
a Security issued by SES are generally expectedrstitute income from sources without the Uniteates and
therefore should not be subject to U.S. withholdarg However, no rulings have been, or will bejga from

the Internal Revenue Service (thiRS) regarding the source of payments made by SESaGlamericas
Holdings GP under the Guarantee and no assurandeecgiven that the IRS would not assert, or theduat
would not uphold, the position that payments unither Guarantee are from a U.S. source. In gendral, i
payments by SES Global Americas Holdings GP urtteiGuarantee were treated as being from a U.Scesour
U.S. withholding tax would apply to such paymentsaate of 30 per cent unless reduced by an ahybic
income tax treaty or a specific U.S. withholding éxemption. Prospective purchasers are urgedrsutiotheir

tax advisors about the proper source of paymertsived under the Guarantee from SES Global Americas
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Holdings and the consequences to them if paymamderuthe Guarantee are treated as being from a U.S.
source.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Guarantee payments made by SES Global AmericasrdslidGP in respect of interest and principal dughen
Securities that are made to an account within théed States or by a U.S. paying agent or other. U.S
intermediaries to a Non-U.S. Holder will not be jpebto backup withholding and certain informatieporting
requirements if appropriate certification (IRS FoMt8BEN or W-8BEN-E or other appropriate form) is
provided by the Non-U.S. Holder to the payor areighyor does not have actual knowledge or reasknaw
that the certificate is false. Any backup withholgltax may be credited against a holder’s U.S.riddecome
tax liability or refunded to the extent it exceddls holder’s liability.

THE DISCUSSION ABOVE IS A GENERAL SUMMARY OF CERTAI N U.S. FEDERAL INCOME
TAX CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO AN INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES. IT DOES NOT
COVER ALL TAX MATTERS THAT MAY BE OF IMPORTANCE TO A PARTICULAR INVESTOR.
EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR IS URGED TO CONSULT ITS OWN TAX ADVISOR ABOUT
THE TAX CONSEQUENCES TO IT OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES IN LIGHT OF
THE INVESTOR’S OWN CIRCUMSTANCES .

Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to the Giortks, all payments of principal, premium and fest by
or on behalf of the Guarantor under the Guarartiaé be made free and clear of, and without withing or
deduction for, or on account of, any present ourfuttaxes, duties, assessments or governmentajeshaf
whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, wittiregl assessed by or within the United States orpalitical
subdivision or any authority thereof or therein ingvpower to tax, unless such withholding or deiuncis
required by law. In that event, the Guarantor wpplgtsuant to Condition 15, be obliged to pay sadtiitional
amounts as would result in receipt by the Holdérsuch amounts as would have been received by baehmo
such withholding or deduction been required, altfiodhis is subject to certain exceptions set outhia
Conditions.

THE PROPOSED FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS TAX ( FTT)

On 14 February 2013, the European Commission gddisa proposal (th€ommission’s Proposalfor a
Directive for a common FTT in Belgium, Germany, drsa, Greece, Spain, France, Italy, Austria, Pattug
Slovenia and Slovakia (thmarticipating Member Statds

The Commission’s Proposal has very broad scope cantt, if introduced, apply to certain dealings in
Securities (including secondary market transac}ionsertain circumstances. The issuance and sphiser of
Securities should, however, be exempt.

Under the Commission’s Proposal, the FTT could wafplcertain circumstances to persons both withid a
outside of the patrticipating Member States. Gehgrialwould apply to certain dealings in the Sétias where
at least one party is a financial institution, atdeast one party is established in a particigaltitember State.
A financial institution may be, or be deemed to ‘lestablished” in a participating Member State ibraad
range of circumstances, including (a) by transgatiith a person established in a participating Mernttate or
(b) where the financial instrument which is subjecthe dealings is issued in a participating Mengiate.

However, the FTT proposal remains subject to natioti between the participating Member States, thad
scope of any such tax remains uncertain. AdditiGhebpean Union Member States may decide to ppatiei

Prospective holders of the Securities are advissgék their own professional advice in relatiothteoFTT.
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE

J.P. Morgan Securities Plc, BNP Paribas, Sociérégtaée, HSBC Bank plc, ING Bank N.V., Belgian Branc
and Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc (fBeokrunnerg have, pursuant to a Subscription Agreement
dated 8 June 2016, jointly and severally agreel thie Issuer, subject to the satisfaction of certanditions,

to subscribe the Securities at 99.666 per centheaf principal amount. The Issuer has agreed totpahe
Bookrunners a combined management and underwrgimgmission. In addition, the Issuer has agreed to
reimburse the Bookrunners for certain of their eg®s in connection with the issue of the Securiflése
Subscription Agreement entitles the Bookrunnertetminate it in certain circumstances prior to pagmin
respect of the Securities being made to the Issuer.

United States

The Securities have not been and will not be regst under the Securities Act, and may not be exdfer sold
within the United States or to, or for the accoontbenefit of, U.S. persons except in certain @atisns
exempt from the registration requirements of theusides Act. Terms used in this paragraph havenbkanings
given to them by Regulation S under the SecuriigigRegulation S.

Each Bookrunner has agreed that, except as petnbijtéhe Subscription Agreement, it will not offarsell the
Securities (i) as part of their distribution at atiye or (ii) otherwise until 40 days after theeabf the
commencement of the offering and the closing daithin the United States or to, or for the accoonbenefit
of, U.S. persons, and it will have sent to eachledeo which it sells Securities during the distitibn
compliance period a confirmation or other noticétiisg forth the restrictions on offers and salestloé
Securities within the United States or to, or foe taccount or benefit of, U.S. persons. Terms usdtis
paragraph have the meanings given to them by Régul3.

The Securities are being offered and sold outsidth® United States to non-U.S. persons in reliaoice
Regulation S. In addition, until 40 days after tmenmencement of the offering of the Securitiespfier or

sale of Securities within the United States by ala@tethat is not participating in the offering maglate the
registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Terms used in this paragraph have the meaninga ¢ivlaem by Regulation S under the Securities Act.
United Kingdom
Each Bookrunner has represented and agreed that:

€)) it has only communicated or caused to be conitated and will only communicate or cause to be
communicated an invitation or inducement to engagmvestment activity (within the meaning of
Section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets2800 (theFSMA)) received by it in connection
with the issue or sale of the Securities in circiamees in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not
apply to the Issuer or the Guarantor; and

(b) it has complied and will comply with all apgigle provisions of the FSMA with respect to anythin
done by it in relation to the Securities in, fromotherwise involving the United Kingdom.

France

Each of the Bookrunners has represented and atiieed has not offered or sold and will not offar sell,
directly or indirectly, any Securities to the pwhiln France and it has not distributed or causduktdistributed
and will not distribute or cause to be distributedhe public in France, the Prospectus or anyrotiffering
material relating to the Securities and such offsates and distributions have been and will beemiad-rance
only to (a) persons providing investment servicgating to portfolio management for the accountiofd
parties personnes fournissant le service d'investissemengeaktion de portefeuille pour compte de Jiers
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and/or (b) qualified investor@nvestisseurs qualifi¢sand/or a limited circle of investorggrcle restreiny,
acting for their own account, all as defined ingd &m accordance with, Articles L.411-1, L.411-24D1-1 and
D.411-4 of the FrencBode monétaire et financier

Japan

The Securities have not been and will not be regast under the Financial Instruments and ExcharajeoA
Japan (Act No. 25 of 1948, as amended, Rmancial Instruments and Exchange Ayt Accordingly, each
Bookrunner has represented and agreed, that inbasdirectly or indirectly, offered or sold andlmwmot,
directly or indirectly, offer or sell any Securgién Japan or to, or for the benefit of, a residérdapan (which
term as used herein means any person residenpam,Jancluding any corporation or other entity avigad
under the laws of Japan) or to others for re-affgror re-sale, directly or indirectly, of Japantar or for the
benefit of, any resident in Japan except pursuaantexemption from the registration requirementsaof
otherwise in compliance with, the Financial Instamts and Exchange Act and other relevant laws and
regulations of Japan.

Republic of Italy

The offering of the Securities has not been regidtaith theCommissione Nazionale per le Societa e la Borsa
(CONSOB pursuant to Italian securities legislation ancoadingly, no Securities may be offered, sold or
delivered, nor may copies of this Prospectus @ngfother document relating to any Securities briduted in
Italy, except, in accordance with any Italian sés, tax and other applicable laws and regulation

Each Bookrunner has represented and agreed thead ot offered, sold or delivered, and will ndenfsell or
deliver any Securities or distribute any copy @ throspectus or any other document relating td&dmirities
in Italy except:

(@) to qualified investorsr{vestitori qualificat), as referred to in Article 100 of Legislative Dee No. 58
of 24 February 1998, as amended from time to tithe Kinancial Services Adtand Article 34ter,
first paragraph, letter (b) of CONSOB Regulation Mb971 of 14 May 1999, as amended from time to
time (thelssuers Regulatioj or

(b) in other circumstances which are expressly gxedchfrom the rules on public offerings pursuant to
Article 100 of the Financial Services Act and Igsugegulation.

In any event, any offer, sale or delivery of theBdies or distribution of copies of this Prospecor any other
document relating to the Securities in Italy unpieragraphs (a) or (b) above must be:

® made by an investment firm, bank or financiggkermediary permitted to conduct such activitiethie
Republic of Italy in accordance with the Finan&alrvices Act, and CONSOB Regulation No. 16190
of 29 October 2007 as amended from time to time laggislative Decree No. 385 of 1 September
1993, as amended from time to time (Banking AcY);

(i) in compliance with Article 129 of the Bankinict, as amended, and the implementing guidelines of
the Bank of Italy, as amended from time to time;spant to which the Bank of Italy may request
information on the issue or the offer of securitiethe Republic of Italy; and

(iii) in compliance with any other applicable laasd regulations, including any limitation or requirent
which may be imposed from time to time by CONSOBtle Bank of Italy or other competent
authority.
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General

None of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Bookrumhas made any representation that any actiorbevithken

in any jurisdiction by the Bookrunners, the Issaethe Guarantor that would permit a public offgriof the
Securities, or possession or distribution of thiespectus (in preliminary, proof or final form) anyaother
offering or publicity material relating to the Seties (including roadshow materials and investor
presentations), in any country or jurisdiction whaction for that purpose is required.

Persons into whose hands this Prospectus comesarieed by the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Roulers
to comply with all applicable laws and regulationseach country or jurisdiction in or from whicheth
purchase, offer, sell or deliver the Securitiehave in their possession or distribute such offerimaterial, in
all cases at their own expense.

Each Bookrunner has agreed that it will, to thet lndésts knowledge, comply with all applicable lawad
regulations in each jurisdiction in which it acagsr offers, sells or delivers Securities or hassipossession or
distributes this Prospectus (in preliminary, proofinal form) or any such other material, in ales at its own
expense.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

It is expected that listing of the Securities oa @fficial List and admission of the Securitiesraaitng

on the Market will be granted on or about 10 Jub&62 subject only to the issue of the Global
Certificate. The fees estimated in connection With listing and admission to trading of the Se@sit
on the Market are estimated to amount to approxiyn&tl1,400.

The issue of the Securities was authorised byutienk of the board of directors of the Issuer gpdss
on 7 April 2016 and approved by the executive cottamiof the Issuer on 9 May 2016, and the giving
of the guarantee in respect of the Securities weisosised by a resolutions of the partners of the
Guarantor dated 27 April 2016.

There has (i), other than the payment of the divddeelating to the year ended 31 December 2015,
which was paid in April 2016 in the amount of €588lion, and the Capital Raise, been no significant
change in the financial or trading position of thguer since 31 March 2016 and (ii) there has been
material adverse change in the financial positioprospects of the Issuer since 31 December 2015.
There has been no significant change in the firsrari trading position of the Guarantor since 31
December 2015 and there has been no material @dsleasge in the financial position or prospects of
the Guarantor since 31 December 2015.

Neither the Issuer nor any member of the Group e involved in any governmental, legal or
arbitration proceedings (including any such proaegsl which are pending or threatened of which the
Issuer is aware), during the twelve (12) monthgguang the date of this Prospectus which may have,
or have had in the recent past, a significant effacthe financial position or profitability of tHesuer
and/or the Group.

The Securities have been accepted for clearanceighrEuroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg
(which are the entities in charge of keeping thmords), with International Securities Identification
Number (SIN) is XS1405777746 and the Common Code is 140577774.

The address of Euroclear is 1 Boulevard du Roi AlbeB-1210 Brussels, Belgium and the address of
Clearstream, Luxembourg is 42 Avenue JF Kenned8351 uxembourg.

For the life of this Prospectus, copies of thedfeihg documents will, when published, be availdble
inspection from the registered office of the Issard the Guarantor and from the specified office of
the Fiscal Agent for the time being in Luxembourg:

€)) the articles of association (with an English tratish thereof) of the Issuer and the
partnership agreement of the Guarantor;

(b) the consolidated audited financial statements @& @uarantor for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2015 and the awditemblidated financial statements and
non-consolidated annual accounts of the Issueed@pact of the financial years ended 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2015, in each cgsthén with the audit reports prepared
in connection therewith. The Issuer currently prepaconsolidated financial statements and
non-consolidated annual accounts on an annual éadithe Guarantor prepares consolidated
financial statements on an annual basis;

(c) the most recently published audited annual findnstatements and unaudited interim
financial statements (if any) of the Issuer and @warantor, in each case together with any
audit or review reports prepared in connection etvith. The Issuer currently prepares
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10.

unaudited consolidated interim financial statememtsa half-yearly basis and the Guarantor
prepares unaudited consolidated interim finant¢&kments on a half-yearly basis;

(d) the Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Deed of Guaraaeethe Deed of Covenant; and

(e) a copy of this Prospectus.

In addition, a copy of this Prospectus will also d&ilable for viewing on the website of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchangenfrw.bourse.li.

On 4 April 2013, PricewaterhouseCoop&waciété coopérativevere appointed as auditofi®viseur
d’'entreprises agréépf the Issuer and the Guarantor, replacing ErnsYdung, Société Anonyme
Cabinet derévision agréé

The auditors have audited the consolidated findistéiements and non-consolidated annual accounts
of the Issuer, without qualification, the consotithfinancial statements being drawn up in accarélan
with International Financial Reporting Standardsadspted for use in the European Union and the
non-consolidated annual accounts being preparedcaordance with the Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparatibthe annual accounts for each of the two financi
years ended on 31 December 2015 and 31 Decembér 201

The auditors have audited the consolidated findstadements of the Guarantor, without qualificatio
the consolidated financial statements being drapwniruaccordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted for use in the Earopnion for each of the two financial years
ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

The auditors have reviewed, without qualificatidhe condensed consolidated interim financial
information prepared in accordance with IAS 34,téhim Financial Reporting” as adopted by the
European Union.

The auditors are members of the Luxembourg bodyegfstered auditorsir(stitut des Réviseurs
d’Entreprises.

For the period from (and including) the Issue Datéut excluding) the First Reset Date, the yiid
the Securities will be 4.700 per cent. per annuachSyield is calculated at the Issue Date on trsisba
of the Issue Price. It is not an indication of ftyield.

Certain of the Bookrunners and their affiliates havmaged, and may in the future engage, in
investment banking, corporate finance advisory anddmmercial banking transactions with, and may
perform services for the Issuer, the Guarantoranaiy of their affiliates in the ordinary course of
business, for which they have received or may veceustomary fees, commissions or reimbursement
of expenses (including acting as managers andhatets in connection with issuances of securities
and/or debt facilities of the Issuer or the Guasgnt].P. Morgan Securities plc has agreed to geovi
alternative financing in connection with the Acqtiis.

Save for the fees payable to the Bookrunners amd\gents, so far as the Issuer is aware, no person,

natural or legal, involved in the issue of any S#i@s has an interest that is material to thedssiithe
Securities.
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GLOSSARY
Analogue
Transmission method for conveying voice, data, iesaqy video information using a continuous signal.
Bandwidth
Part of the electromagnetic frequency spectrum tmaddio frequency transmission.
Beam

Term used to describe the radiation pattern oftellgéa antenna. The intersection of a satellitarbewith the
surface of the Earth is called the footprint (af theam).

Broadband two-way internet access
Internet connectivity characterised by high-speaddmission and reception capabilities.
C-band

Frequency range assigned to satellite communicatsyistems, approximately 4 GHz for the downlink and
6 GHz for the uplink. The associated transmissiowagr is relatively low in comparison with Ku-banfdy
example. Larger antennas are therefore requireCfband operation. Considered to be the frequeange
least susceptible to transmission impairments asatain.

Capacity

Quantity of information transmitted. By analogyeté is often reference to spectrum width and t@#seciated
power needed to transmit this quantity of informati

Contract backlog

The minimum future revenue due to the Group untieexisting customer contracts. In relation to cacts
where customers have discretionary terminationtsighe minimum future revenue represents the revep to
the earliest termination point as well as the ajblie termination fee (if any).

DISH Network DTH
A Direct-To-Home satellite pay TV provider with gsincipal operations in the United States.
Digital

Format for recording, processing, transmitting brmhdcasting data via a digital binary code sigaatl not by
the modulation of a continuous signal as in anadgansmission).

Digital Subscriber Line (DSL)

A technology enabling the use of the copper lin@snecting customers of a switched telephone netdmrk
purposes of digital broadband connectivity.

Digital Video Broadcasting (DVB)

A set of European standards for the broadcastidgegaeption of digital TV signals by satellite (D\®, cable
(DVB-C) or terrestrial means (DVB-T), developed hiit the framework of the Digital Video Broadcasting
project and formalized by the European Telecomnatiins Standards Institute (ETSI). These European
standards have been adopted by many countrieswidgd
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Direct-to-home (DTH)

A method of transmission that transmits satellitgpammes directly to customers’ homes.
Downlink

Transmission path for data or other signals fratnramunications satellite to an Earth station.
Earth station

Installation required in order to receive a signain a satellite and/or transmit a signal to albeThe facility
consists of an antenna and communications equipametiite ground and is also known as a ground gtatio

Fixed Service Satellites (FSS)

Geostationary communications satellites betweeth estations located at fixed points used for braatifeeds
for television stations, radio stations and broatioatworks, as well as for telephony, telecommatioas and
data communications.

Frequency

Number of vibrations produced by unit of time dgria given period. Frequency relates to the rateaahtion
per second of the carrier wave or modulating sigBatellite transmissions are generally in GHz (&band,”
“Ka-band” and “Ku-band”).

Geostationary orbit (GEO)

The orbit whose altitude above the equator is 35}08, where a satellite travels at the same angpleed as
the rotating earth. Objects situated in this capibear motionless from a ground observer.

Geo-synchronous satellite

A term typically used to describe a satellite whoslit is only stabilised longitudinally and whitherefore
appears to oscillate above and below the equatptéade. Term is sometimes used interchangeably with
“Geostationary”.

GSM
Global System for Mobile Communications, a gloliahslard for mobile communications
High definition television (HDTV)

Television that offers a clearer and more detgilietire and requires two or three times more badtwihan
standard definition channels.

HD+

Proprietary access system developed by SES toettadblreception of encrypted Free-To-Air High Ditiiam
TV signals.

High Throughput Satellite (HTS)

A satellite whose payload is configured to re-usgdiency spectrum available at a given orbitaltjposi with
the objective of increasing the maximum bandwidthilable and delivering it at lower unit cost.

Hosted payloads

Payloads carried on a satellite for third partidsich are additional to the primary mission of Hagellite.

202



IPTV
Internet Protocol Television. Television signaléaaed via IP technology.
Ka-band

A frequency range assigned to satellite commuruinatsystems, approximately 20 GHz for the downéink

30 GHz for the uplink. These frequencies have tt@test wavelength of the three principal frequebapds
used by geostationary satellites. Small antennadeaised, but Ka-band requires the use of highrepb@ams
that are tightly concentrated over fairly small giaphical areas. The Ka-band is optimized for apfibbns
such as broadband services. Considered to be #disble due to risk of weather-related transmission
impairments.

Ka-band (Gov)
A part of the Ka-band spectrum reserved by the fidilgovernmental use.
Ku-band

A frequency range assigned to satellite commurninatsystems, approximately 14 GHz for the uplint &fh
GHz for the downlink. Used for radio and televisitinis band is the most widespread in Europe asualtrof
the small size of the antennas needed for recepBenerally highly reliable and seldom affectedwmather-
related impairments.

L-band

The frequency range between 1 and 2 GHz. Mainlg émemaritime mobile satellite services.
Low Earth Orbit (LEO)

Describing the orbit below about 2,000 km altitude.

Medium Earth Orbit (MEO)

Describing the orbit between LEO (~2,000 km) andd3E36,000km).

MNOs

Mobile Network Operator

Mobile backhaul

The transmission of mobile cellular traffic usirgedlite to connect cells which do not have teriaklinkage.
Payload

Set of satellite equipment used for reception, Ueggry conversion, processing and retransmissiothef
communications signals after they have been araglifout excluding add-on equipment such as théoptat
(physical structure and subsystems such as el@camicl thermal control, attitude control etc.).

Radio frequency
Electromagnetic frequency generally higher thaki2®, used to transmit information.
Redundancy

Integral satellite design feature involving the oéseveral identical components, each able taoephny of the
others in the event of failure.

203



Steerable beam

Beam of a satellite antenna that can be directéd anparticular geographical region using grounsiba
controls.

Telemetry, tracking and control (TT&C)

System that provides an important communicatiok tiatween the satellite and the earth statiomdbkes an
uplink for command and a downlink for monitoringethealth of satellite components, as well as progid
tracking information for monitoring the satellitgdgsition in orbit.

Transponder

Name given to the retransmitter on board a saellftose function is to retransmit the signals rexkifrom the
earth uplink station into the designated geograpbierage area of the satellite.

Ultra High Definition (UHD)

A further enhancement of video display quality,idiing about four times the resolution of HD aeduiring
correspondingly greater amounts of bandwidth togmst. UHD TV significantly enhances the colour gan
contrast and audio quality of the broadcast beybatidelivered by HD TV.

Uplink
Transmission of data or other signals from an Estdlion to a communications satellite.
Very small aperture terminal (VSAT)

A station, located on Earth, used in satellite camications of data, voice and video signals. Typiqzart of a
network, the antenna size can range from 80 cnmio 2

Wide Area Augmentation System
Provider of a reference signal to enhance the acgwf position determination using the GPS system.
X-band

Frequency range from approximately 8 — 12 GHz,rveskfor governmental use.
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